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Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Directors’ report

The directors present their Directors’ report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018,
Principal activities

The principal activity of the company is that of a holding company. The directors expect this to continue in the future.
Results and dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend. The loss for the financial year was £1,647 {2017 profit
of £69.516).

Directors
The directors who held office during the year were as follows:

Boyd Martin Robert

Mayo Marc M.

Oates Michael Peter {resigned 15 February 2018)
Vasileff Ann Maris {appointed 14 February 2018)

Disclosure of information to auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors® report confirm that, so far as they are cach
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware; and cach director has taken
all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be re-appointed and KPMG LLP
wili therefore continue in office. KPMG LLP was appointed as statutory auditor of the company.

By order of the board
Aun Maris Vasileff : Clear2Pay House
Director Pitreavie Court
Dunfermline
Fife
KY11 8UU

26 September 2019



Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Directors’ report and the
financial statements '

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

e  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
*  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e  state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

®  assess the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and

» use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for
such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings
Limited

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings Limited (“the company™) for the year ended

31 December 2018 which comprise the Profit and loss account and other comprehensive income, the Balance sheet
and the Statement of changes in equity and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e  give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its loss for the year
then ended,;

e  have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland, and

& have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are
independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the Eurapean Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial statements. All
audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and related disclosures and the
appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on
assessments of the future economic environment and the company’s future prospects and performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are subject
to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We applied a
standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company’s future prospects and
performance. However, no audit should be expected tp predict the unknowable factors or all possible future
implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
group or the company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company’s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of
approval of the financial statements (“the going concern period™).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis
for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. In our evaluation of the Directors’
conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company’s business model, including the impact of Brexit, and
analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the
going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.



Independent auditor’s report to the members of Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings
Limited (continued)

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that
are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a
material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the group or the company will continue in operation.

Directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the Directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover that
report and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the Directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial statements
audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit
knowledge. Based solely on that work:

e  we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors’ report;

e  inour opinion the information given in that report for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements;
and

¢  in our opinion that report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e  adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

e the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemption from the requirement to
prepare a strategic report.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 2, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at
www . frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.



The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

T

Robert Seale  (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

KPMG LLP

Cne Srowhill

Snow Hill Queensway

Birmingham

B4 6GH

y. 3 September 2019



Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Profit and Loss Account and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Note 2018 2017
£ £
Administrative expenses - (448)
Operating loss - (448)
Other interest receivable and similar income 2 87 96,426
Interest payable and similar charges 3 (1,734) {26,462}
(Loss)/ Profit before taxation (1,647) 69,516
Taxation 6 - -
(Loss)/Profit for the financial year being total comprehensive (1,647) 69,516
income

All amounts relate to continning activities.
All recognised gains and losses in the current and prior year are included in the profit and loss accounts.

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.



Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Balance Sheet
at 31 December 2018
Note 2018 2017

Fixed assets
Fixed asset investments 7 1 1

Current assets
Debtors - due within one year
Debtors - due afier more than one year

o Co

4,691,959 4697977

Total debtors 4,691,959 4,691,977
Cash at bank and in hand - 41

4,691,959 4,698,018

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 9 - (4,413)

Totxal assets less current Liabilities 4,691,95% 4,693,606

Net assets 4,691,959 4,693,606

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 10 466,079 466,079
Share premium account 2,944 325 2,944 323
Profit and loss account 1,281,558 1,283,202

Shareholders’ funds 4,691,959 4,693,606

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements,

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 26 September 2019 and were signed on its
behalf by:

-V

Ann Maria Vasileff
Director

Company registered number: SC381889



. Statement of Changes in Equity

Called up

share capital

£

Balance at 1 January 2017 466,079

Profit for the financial year being total -
comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2017 466,079

Balance at | January 2018 466,079

Loss for the financial year being total -
comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2018 466,079

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.

Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings Limited

Directors’ report and financial statements

Share premium
account

£

2,944,325

2,944,325

2,944,325

2,944,325

Profit and
loss account

£
1,213,686

69,516

1,283,202

1,283,202

(1,647)

1,281,555

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Total equity
£

4,624,090

69,516

4,693,606

4,693,606

(1,647)

4,691,959




Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Notes
{forming part of the financial statements)

1 Accounting policies

Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings Limited (the “Company™) is a private company incorporated, domiciled and registered
in England in the UK. The registered number is SC381889 and the registered address is Clear2Pay House, Pitreavie
Court, Dunfermline, Fife, KY11 8UU.,

The Company is exempt by virtue of s401 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare group financial
statements. These financial statements present information about the Company as an individual undertaking and not
about its group.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102, the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland ("FRS 102"). The presentation cwurrency of these
financial statements is the pound sterling. All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest £1.

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking, Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. includes the Company in its
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of Fidelity National Information Services,
Inc. are prepared in accordance with the U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles available to the public and
may be obtained from 601 Riverside Avenue, Jacksonville, FL, 32204. In these financial statements, the company is
considered to be a qualifying entity (for the purposes of this FRS) and has applied the exemptions available under
FRS 102 in respect of the following disclosures:

e  Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning to the end of the period;
e  Cash Flow Statement and related notes; and
e  Key Management Personnel compensation.

Related party disclosure exemption

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 102, section 33.1A, not to disclose
transactions with wholly-owned members of the Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. group.

1.1 Going concern

The company has net current assets of £4,691,959 as at 31 December 2018 and made a loss for the year then ended of
£1,647. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis which the directors consider to be
appropriate for the following reasons.

The company is part of a wider group business model by which group companies at times provide and receive services
from each other and as needed use group funding and cash pool arrangements. The company may be dependent on
the ultimate parent company providing additional financial support to meet its liabilities as they fall due for at least
12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. The company’s ultimate parent has indicated its
intention to continue to make available such funds as are needed by the company for that period. As with any
company placing reliance on other group entities for financial support, the directors acknowledge that there can be no
certainty that this support will continue although, at the date of approval of these financial statements, they have no
reason to believe that it will not do so.

On the basis of their assessment of the company’s financial position, the facts and circumstances noted above, and of
the enquiries made of the directors of the company’s ultimate parent, the company’s directors have a reasonable
expectation that the company will continue in operational existence and meet its liabilities as they fall due for the
period of 12 months from the date of these financial statements. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting in preparing these annual financial statements.

1.2 Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Company’s functional currency at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance
sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated
at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the profit and loss account.



Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Notes (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
1.3 Basic financial instruments

Trade and other debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
If the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, for example if payment is deferred beyond normal business
terms, then it is measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market rate of instrument for a similar
debt instrument.

Trade and other creditors

Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. If the arrangement
constitutes a financing transaction, for example if payment is deferred beyond normal business terms, then it is
measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market rate of instrument for a similar debt
instrument.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose only of the cash flow statement.

14 Expenses
Interest receivable and Interest payable

Interest payable and similar charges include interest payable, finance charges on shares classified as liabilities and
finance leases recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on provisions,
and net foreign exchange losses that are recognised in the profit and loss account (see foreign currency accounting
policy).

Other interest receivable and similar income include interest receivable on funds invested and net foreign exchange
gains.

Interest income and interest payable are recognised in profit or loss as they accrue, using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised in the profit and loss account on the date the company’s right to receive payments is
established. Foreign carrency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

L5 Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss
account except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in
which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Cuwrrent tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments
in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements. Deferred tax is not recognised
on permanent differences arising because certain types of income or expense are non-taxable or are disallowable for tax
or because certain tax charges or allowances are greater or smaller than the corresponding income or expense.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the reversal of the related difference, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that is it probable that they will
be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

10



Notes (continued)

2 Other interest receivable and similar income

Loans to group companies
Foreign exchange gains

3 Interest payable and similar charges

Loans from group companies
Foreign exchange losses

4 Auditor’s remuneration

Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018

1,695

1,734

2017

96,414

96,426

2017

15,147
11,315

26,462

Amounts payable in respect of audit services in the year and preceding year were bome by Clear2Pay Scotland

Limited.

5 Directors’ remuneration

The directors received no remuneration for their services to this company.

6 Taxation

UK Corporation tax

Current tax on profit of the year
Adjustment in respect of previous periods

Total tax

2018

2017

11



Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings Limited
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Notes (continued)

6 Taxation (continued)

The tax assessed for the year differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK applied to (loss)/profit before
tax. The differences are explained below:

2018 2017
£ £
(Loss)/profit before tax
(1,647) 69,516
Tax using the UK corporation tax of 19.00% (2017: 19.25%)} ) (313) 13,379
Effect of:
Group relief surrendered/(claimed) 313 (13,379)
Total tax (credit)/ charge for the year - -
7 Fixed asset investments
Shares in
group
undertakings
£
Cost
At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 1
Subsidiary undertakings, associated undertakings and other investments
Class of share Proportion of Nature of business
capital held share capital held
Level Four Americas LLC (unaudited) Cost Ordinary 100% Supply and licensing of software

The registered office of this company is c/o The Corporation Trust Company, 1209 Orange Street, Delaware, 19801,
United States.

8 Debtors
2018 2017
£ £
Corporation tax - 5
Amounts owed by group undertakings 4,691,959 4,697,972
Total debtors 4,691,959 4,697,977

12
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Notes (continued)

9 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2018 2017
£ £
Amounts owed to group undertakings - 4,413
1¢ Share capital
2018 2017
£ £
Authorised, allotted, called up and fully paid
466,079 ordinary shares of £1 each 466,079 466,079

11 Controlling party

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Fidelity National Information Services, Inc, whose principal place of
business is 601 Riverside Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida, U.S.A.
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Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, all references to "FIS," "we,” the "Company" or the "registrant” are to Fidelity National
Information Services, Inc., a Georgia corporation, and its subsidiartes.

PARTI
Item 1. Business

Overview

FIS is a global leader in financial services technology, providing solutions and services to clients in the retail and institutional banking, payments,
capital markets, asset management and wealth and retirement markets. Through the depth and breadth of our solutions portfolio, global capabilities and
domain expertise, FIS serves clients in vver 130 countrics. [leadquartered in Jacksonville, Florida, FIS employs more than 417,000 people worldwide and
holds leadership positions in payment processing, financial software and banking selutions. Providing software, services and cutsourcing of the techaology
that empowers the financial world, FIS is a Fortune 500 company and is a member of the Standard & Poor’s 500® Index.

FIS is incomorated under the kaws ol the State of Geergia as Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. and our stock is traded on the New York Stock
Exchange under the trading symbol "FIS."

We have grown organically, as well as through acquisitivns, which have contributed critical applications and services that complement or enhance our
existing offerings, diversifying our revenue by custoiner, geography and scivice offcring. Our solutions include core processing selutions; digital solutions;
fraud, risk management and compliance solutions; electronic funds transfer and network services; card and retail payment solutions; corporate liquidity
solutions; wealth and retirement solutions; item processing and output services; govemment payments solutions; ¢Payment solutions; securities processing
and finance solutions: global wading solutions, assel management and insurance solutions; and global commereind services for financial institutions and
credit unions, as well as cotupanies and povenuuental entitics. We scll certain of these solutions to domestic companies, as well as to global organizations
and companies domiciled both within and outside of North America, where our solutions are able to be deployed across multiple regions. Our strategic
acquisitions have enabled us to broaden our available solution scts, scale our operations, expand and diversify our customer base and strengthen our
competitive position,

Financial Information About Operating Segments and Geographic Areas

FIS reports its financial performance based on three segments: Integrated Financial Solutions ("[FS"), Global Financial Selutions ("GFS") and Coarporate
and Other. For information about our revenues and assets by geographic area see Notes 2(n), 3 and |9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Competitive Strengths
We belicve our competitive strengths inciude the following:

s Brand - FIS has built a global brand known for innovation and thought leadership in the financial services sector.

«  Global Distribution and Scale - Our worldwide presence, array of solution offerings, customer breadth, established infrastructure and employee
depth enable us to leverage our client relationships and global scale to drive revenue growth and operating efficiency. We are a global leader in the
markets we serve. supported by a large, knowledgeable talent pool of employees around the world.

s+ Extensive Domain Expertise and Extended Portfolio Depth - FIS has a significant number and wide range of high-guality software applications and
service offerings that have been developed over many years with substantial input from our customers. Our brozd portfolio of solutions includes a
wide range of flexible service arrangements for the deployment and support of our software, from managed processing arrangements, cither at the
customers site or at an FIS location, including data centets or our private cloud, to traditional license and maintenance fee approaches. This broad
solution set allows us to bundle tailored or integrated services to compete effectively. In addition, FIS is able to use the modular nature of aur
software applications and our ability to integrate many of pur services with the services of others to provide customized solutions that respond to
mdividualized customer needs. We understand the needs of our customers and have developed and acquired innovative solutions that can give them
a competitive advantage and reduce their operating costs, We have made significant investment in modemizing our platforms and solutions and
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moving our server compute into our private cloud located in our strategic data centers to increase our competitiveness in the global marketplace.

Excellent and Long-Term Relationship with Customers - A significant percentage of FIS’ business with our customers relates to applications and
services provided under multi-year, recurring contracts. The nature of these relationships allows us to develop close partnerships with these
customers, resulting in high client retention rates. As the breadth of FIS® service offerings has expanded, we have found that our access to key
customey personnel is increasing, presenting greater opporiunities for cross-selling and providing integrated, total sotutions to our customers.

Strategy

Our mission is to deliver superior solutions and services to our cltents and to expand our client base, which will result in sustained revenue and eamings
growth for our shareholders. Our strategy to achieve this goal has been and continues to be built on the following pillars:

Build, Buy, or Partner to Add Solutions to Cross-Sell Existing Clients and Win New Clients - We continue to invest in growth through intemal
software development, as well as through acquisitions and equity investments that complement and extend our existing solutions and capabilities,
providing us with additional solutions to cross-sell existing clients and capture the interest of new clients. We also partner from time to time with
other entities to provide comprehensive offerings to our prospects and customers, By investing in solution innovation and integration, we continue
to expand our value proposition to our prospects and clients.

Support Our Clients Through Innovation - Changing market dynamics, particularly in the areas of information security, regulation and innovation,
are transforming the way our clients operate, which is driving incremental demand for our integrated solutions and services around our intellectual

property. As prospects and customers evaluate technology, business process changes and vendor risks, our depth of setvices capabilities enables us
to become involved eadlier in their planning and design process and assist them as they manage through these changes.

Continually uprove to Drive Margin Expansion - We strive to optimize our performance through investments in infrastructure enhancements, our
workforce and other measures that are designed to drive margin expansion.

Expand Client Relationships - The overall market we serve continues to gravitate beyond single-application purchases to multi-solution
partnerships. As the market dynamics shift, we expect our ¢lients and prospects to fely more en our multidimensional setvice offerings. Our
leveraged solutions and processing expertise can produce meaningful value and cost savings for our clients through more efficient operating
processes, improved service quality and convenience for our clients’' customers,

Build Global Diversification - We continue to deploy resources in global markets where we expect to achieve meaningful scale.

Revenues by Segment

The table below summarizes our revenues by reporting segment (in millions):

2018 2017 2016
IFS $ 4401 § 4260 § 4,178
GFS 3,718 4,050 4,183
Cormorate and Other 304 358 470
Total Consolidated Revenues $ 8423 % 8668 % 8,831

Integrated Financial Solutions ("IFS")

The IFS segment is focused primarily on serving North American clients for transaction and account processing, payment solutions, channel solutions,
digital shannels, fraud, risk management and complitance solutions, lending and wealth end retitement solutions, and corponate liquidity, capitalizing on the
continuing trend to outsource these solutions. Clients in this segment include regional and community banks, credit unions and commercial lenders, as well

as government institutions,
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merchants and other commetrcial organizations. These markets are primarily served through integrated solutions and characterized by multi year processing
contracts that generate highly recurring revenue. The predictable nature of cash flows generated from this segment provides opportunities for further
investments in innovation, integration, information and security, and compliance in a cost effective manner.

Our solutions in this segment include the following:

v Core Processing and Ancillary Applications. Out core processing software applications ase designed to run banking processes for our financial
instilution clivits, inclading deposit and leading systems, Customcr management, and other central management systems, scrving as the syastem of
reeord for processed activity. Qur diverse seleetion of market-focused corc systems cnables FIE to compete effectively in a wide mnge of markets. We
continue to invest in our core modemnization efforts to further differentiate our offerings for the long-term. We also offer a number of servicee that are
ancillary to the primary applications listed above, including branch automation, back-office support systems and compliance support.

= Digital Solutions, Including Internet, Mobile and eBanking. Our comprehensive suite of retail delivery applications cnables finaneial institutions
1o intcgrate and streamline customer-facing operations ond back office processes, thereby improving customer interaction aeross all channels (e.g.,
beanch effiees, Intcaet, ATM, Mobile, c2ll contess). TIS focus on consumer aceess has driven significant market innovation in this arca, with multi-
chauncd and multishost sulutions and s strategy that provides tight istcgiation of scrvices and & seamless customer exXpuivine. W aie vow adding
functienality and offering Digital One, an integrated digital banking platform, to our community bank clients to provide a consistent, omnichannel
experience for consumers of banking services across self service channels like mobile banking and online banking, as well as supporting channels
for bank staff operating in bank branches and contaet centers, The uniform customer experience will exiend to suppert a broad mnge of finaneial
services including opening new accounts; servicing of existing accounts; providing money movement services; personal financial management; as
well as a broad range of other consumer, small business and commercial banking capabilities. Digital One will be integrated into and will extend the
core banking platforms offered by FIS and will also be offered to customers of non-FIS core banking systems.

*  Fraud, Risk Managcement and Compliance Salutions. Our decision solutions offer a spectrum of options that cover the account lifecycle from
helping to identify qualificd account applicants te managing existing customer aceounts and fraud. Qur applications include know your cusiomer,
new account decisioning and opening, account and transaction manogement, fraud management and colleetions. Our ek management services use
our proprictary risk management models and data sources to assist in detecting fraud and assessing the risk of opening a now account. Our systems
uge a combination of advanced suthentication procedures, predictive analytics, artificial intelligence modeling and proprietary and shared databases
to assess and detect fraud risk for deposit transactions for financial institutions.

+  Electronic Funds Transfer and Network Services. Our electronic funds transfer and debit card processing businesses offer settlement and card
management solutions for financial institution card issuers. We provide traditional ATM based debit network access through NYCE and emerging
real-time payment altcmatives. NYCE conncets millions of cands and point-of-sale locations nationwide, providing consumers with sccure, real-time
access to their money. Also through NYCE, clients such as financial institutions, retailers and independent ATM operators can capitalize on the
efficicney, consumer convenience and security of electrenic real- time payments, real time account to account transfers, and strategie alliances such
as surcharge-free ATM network arrangements.

v Card atd Retail Payment Solutions. Approximately 5,500 financial institutions use a combination of our technology and/or serviees te issue
VIEA®, MasterCard® or Americon Eagress® branded credit and debit cands or other electionic payment cards foruse by both consumer and business
accounts, Card transactions continue to incroase as a percentage of total point-ofisale payments, which fucls continuing demand for card rolated
services. We offer Europay, MasterCard and VISA {"EMV") integrated circuit cards, o ften refirmed 1o as smart cards o1 elip canls as well as a variety
ol atoied-valuc card types and loyalty/reward pregrams. Our integrated services range from cord production and activation to processing to an
extensive range of fraud managemem services and value-added loyalty programs designed to inciease cuid usage and fee-based revenues fn
financial institutions and meichants, The mwajuiity vl ou progiams aic full service, including most of the oporations and support necessary for an
issuer to operate a credit cand program. We do not make credit decisions for our card issuing clients. We are also a leading provider of prepaid card
services, which include gift cards and reloadable cards, with end to end solutions for development, processing and administration of stored-value
programs, Qur closed loop gift card colutions and leyalty programs provide merchants compelling solutions to drive consumer loyalty. In addition,
our merchant processing service provides a merchant or
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financial institution a comprehensive solution to manage its merchant card activities. including point-of-sale equipment, transaction autherization,
draft capture, settlement, charge-back processing and reporting.

»  Corporate Liguidity. Our corporate liquidity solutions help chief financial officers and treasurers manage working capital by increasing visibility to
cash, reducing risk and improving communication and response time between a company’s buyers, suppliers, banks and other stakeholders. Qur end-
to-end collaborative financial management framework helps bring together receivables, treasury and payments for a single view of cash and risk,
which helps our clients optimize business processes for enhanced liquidity management.

>  Wealth and Retirement. We provide wealth and retirement solutions that help banks, trust companies, brokerage firms, insurance firms, retirement
plan professionals, benefit administrators and independent advisors acquire, service and grow their client relationships. We provide solutions for
client acquisition, transaction management, trust accounting and recordkeeping that can be deployed stand-alone or as part of an integrated wealth
or retirement platform, or on an outsourced basis.

«  [Item Processing and Qutput Services. Our item processing services furnish financial institutions with the technology needed to capiure data from
checks, transaction tickets and other items; image and sort items; process exceptions through keying; and perform balancing, archiving and the
producticn of statements. Our item processing services are performed at one of our multiple item processing centers located throughout the U.S. or
on-site at client locations. Our extensive solutions include distributed (i.¢., non-centralized) data capture, mobile deposit capture, check and
femittance processing, fraud detection, and document and report management. Clients encompass banks and cotporations of all sizes, from de novo
banks to the largest financial institutions and corporations. We offer 2 number of output services that are ancillary to the primary solutions we
provide, including print and mail capabilities, document composition softiware and solutions, and card personalization fulfiliment services. Our print
and mail services offer complete computer output solutions for the creation, management and delivery of print and fulfillment needs. We provide our
card personalization fulfillment services for branded credit cards and branded and non-branded debit and prepaid cards.

+  (Government Payments Solutions. We provide comprehensive, customized electronic service applications for government agencies, including
Intemal Revenue Service ("IR3") payment services and government food stamp and nutrition programs known as Supplemental Nutrition Assistance
Program ("SNAP") and Women, Infants and Children ("WIC"). We also facilitate the collection of state income taxes, real estate taxes, utility bills,
vehicle registration fees, driver’s license renewal fees, parking tickets, traffic citations, tuition payments, court fees and fines, hunting and fishing
license fees, as well as various business licenses.

»  ¢Payment Solutions. We provide reliable and scalable bill publishing and bill consolidation technology for our clients, generating and facilitating
the payment of millions ef menthly bills, servicing both billers and financial institution ¢lients, Ontine bill payment fanctionality includes credit
and debit card-based expedited payments. Our end-to-end presentment and payment solution provides an ali-in-one solution to meet billers” needs
for the distribution and collection of bills and other customer documents. FIS also provides Automated Cleering House ("ACH") processing.

Global Financial Solutions ("GFS")

The GFS segment is focused on serving the largest global financial institutions and/or international financial institutions with a broad array of capital
markets {including asset managers, buy- and sell-side securitics and trading firms), asset management and insurance solutions, as well as banking and

payments solutions,

GFS clients include the largest global financial institutions, including thosc headquartered in the United States, as well as international financial
institutions we serve as clients in more than 130 countries around the world, and asset managers, buy- and sell-side securities and trading firms, insurers and
private equity firms. These institutions facc unique business and regulatory challenges and account for the majotity of financial instimytion information
technology spend globally. The purchasing patterns of GFS clients vary from those of IFS clients who typically purchase solutions an an mntsonteed hasis
GFS clionts purchase our solutions and sorvices in various woys including licensing and managing technology "in-house,” using consulting and third-party
service providers as well as fully outsourced end-to-end solutions. We have long-established relationships with many of these financial institutions that
generate significant recurring revenue. This segment included the Company's consolidated Brazilian Venture until the joint venture with Banco Bradesco
was unwound and the assets we continue to own were spun off to a new wholly-owned FIS subsidiary on December 31,2018 (see Note 16 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements).
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Our solutions in this segment include the following:

Securities Processing and Finance. Our offerings help financial institutions to increase the efficiency, transparency and control of their back -office
trading operations, post-trade processing and settlement includiug dervative solutions, risk management, sccuritics lending, syndicated lending, tax
processing, apd regulaiory compliance. The bycadil of v vffiings alsv facilitates advanced business intelligence and market data distribution
based on our extensive market data access.

Glubeud Ty ading. Our trading solutions provide trade exccution, data and netwosk solutions to financial institutions, corporations and municipalities
in North Ameriva, Europe and other global markets acruss a variety of assel classcs. Our trade execution and network solutions help both buy- and
sell-side firms improve execution quality, decrease overall execution costs and address todays trade connectivity challenges.

Asset Management and fnsurance. We offer solutlons thae help ingtivucional investers, insurgnce compunies, hedge funds, privade equity fiang, fuod
administrators and securities transfer agents improve both investment decision-making and cperational efficiency, while managing risk and
increasing transparency. Our asset management solutions support every stage of the investment process, from research and pontfolic management, to
valuation, risk management, comipliance, investment accounting, transfer ageney and client reporting. Our insurance solutions help support front-
office and back-office fanctions including actuarial risk calculations, pelicy administration and financial and investment accounting and reporting
for a variety of insurance lines, in¢luding life and health, annuities and pensions, property and casualty, reinsurance, and asset management.

Retail Banking and Payments Scrvices. Qur GFS operations leverage existing applications and provide services for the specific business needs of our
customers in targeted global markets. Services are delivered from our operation centers around the world. Our banking solution services include
fully outsuuned voie bank processing arrangeniits including an integratcd digital banking platform, application management, software licensing
and maintenance and facilities management. Our payment solution services include fully outsourced card-issuer services and customer support,
payment processing (including real-time payments) und switching services, prepaid and debit card processing, soflware hicensing aud waiutenance,
outsourced ATM management and retail point-of-sale payment services.

Strategic Consulting Services. We completed the sale of a majority siake in Capco, which compnised our Strategic Consulting Services, on July 31,
2617 {see Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Corporate and Other Segment

The Corpurate and Othcr scgnicnt consists of cotporate overhead expense, certain leveraged functions and miseellancous cxpenses that are not included
in the operating segments, as well as ceriain non-strategic businesses. The overhead and leveraged costs relate to marketing, corporate finance and
accounling, human resources, legal, and amortization of acquisition-related intangibies and other costs that are not considered when management evaluates
revenue generating segment perfermance, such as acquisition integration and other costs. At the end of 2018, the only business unit remaining in this
segment is our Global Commercial Services business described below:

Global Commercial Services. Our global commercial services include solutions, both onshore and offshore, designed to meet the technology
challenges facing clients, large or small, including financial institutions and non-financial institutions. These solutions range in scope from
operations support for a single application to full management of informatien technology infrastructures. We also provide outsourcing teams to
manage costs, improve operational efficiency and transform aur ctients’ back-office and customer service processes.

The non-strategic business solutions in this segment have been divested as described below:

Retaif Check Processing. Effective Angust 31,2018, FIS sold substantially all the assets of the Certegy Check Services business unit in North
America (see Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Public Sector and Educative. We conpleted the sale of our Public Scetor and Education business to portfolio companies of Vista Equity Partners on
February 1, 2017 (see Note 16 ofthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements),
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Sales and Marketing

We have experienced sales personnel with expertise in particular services and markets, as well as in the needs of panticular types of customers. We
believe thot focusing our expertise in speeific markets (e.g., global financial institutions, Morth American financinl institutions) and tailoning intcgrated
solution sete of particular value te participants in those markets cnables us to leverage opportunities to erogs sell and up-sell. We continue to realign our sales
teams te better maich our solution expertise with the matket opportunity and customer domand. We target the majority of our potential customers via direct
and/or indirect field sales, as well as inbound and vutbound lead genertion and telesales efforts.

Qur global marketing strategy is to develop and lead the execution of the IFS and GFS strategic marketing plans in support of theit revenue and
profitability goals and the FIS brand. Key components include thought leadership, integrated programs with consistent message development, internal and
extemnal communications, ¢lient conference content management, web contont creation and management, trade shows, demand generation campaigns and
collateral development and management.

Patents, Copyrights, Trademarks and Other Intellectual Property

The Cempany owns intellectual property, including trademarks, trade names, copyrights and patents, which we believe is important to our future success.
Although we acquired the teademarks and trade names used by BunGard through the acquisition by FIS and certain of its wholly owned subsidiaries of
SunGard and SunGard Capital Corp. Il (collectively, "SunGard") on November 30, 2015 (the "SunGard zcquisition”), we note that following the split-off of
the Availability Services ("AS") business by SunGard in 2014, AS has the right to use the Sungard Availability Services name, which does not include the
right to use the SunGard name orits derivatives,

We rely on a combination of contractual restrictions, intemnal security practices, patents, copyrights and applicable law to establish and protect our
software, technology and cxpertisc worldwide. We nely on tiademark law to protect our rights in our brands. We iutend to conlinu laking appropristc
measures to protect our intellectual property rights, including by legal action when necessary and appropriate. In general, we own the proprictary rights
necessary for the conduct of our business, although we do license certain items from third parties under arms length agreements for varying terms, including
some "open source” licenses.

Competition

The markets for our solutions and services are intensely competitive. Depending on the business line, in both our IFS and GFS segments, our primary
competitors include intemal technology departments within financial institutions, retailers, data processing or software development departments of large
companies or large computer manufacturers, companies that deliver software and integrated services to the financial services industry, thind-party payment
processors, securities exchanges, asset managers, card associations, olearing networks or associations, trust corapanies, independent computer services firms,
companies that develop and deploy sofiware applications, companies owned by global banks selling new competitive solutions, companies that provide
customized development, implementation and sapport services, disruptive technology innovaters, and business process cutsowrcing companies. Many of
those gompanies compete with us acroos multiple selutions, markets and geopraphica. Some of these competitors poasess greater financial, salss and
marketing rcaources than we do. Competitive factors impacting the succas uf vur survices across our scgments inchide the guality of the technology based
application er service, application features and functions, ease of delivery and integration, the ability to maintain, enhance and support the applications or
serviges, price and ovemll relationship management. We balieve we compete favorably in each of these categarien. In addition, we believe our financial
services industry expertise, combined with our ability to offer multiple applications, setvices and integrated selutions to individual clients, enhances our
competitiveness against companies with more limited offerings.

Research and Development

Our rescarch and development activities have related primarily to the modemization of our proprietary core systems, design and development of next
generation digital and innovative solutions and development of processing systems and related software applications and risk management platforms. We
expect to continue our practice of investing an appropriate level of resources to maintain, enhance and extend the functionality of our proprietary systems
and existing software applications, to develop new and innovative software applications and systems to address emerging technology trends in response to
the needs of our clicnts and to enhance the capabilitics of our outsourcing infrastructurc. In addition, we intend to offir services compatible with new and
emerging delivery channels.
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As part of our research and development process, we evaluate current and emerging technology for compatibility with our existing and future software
platforms. To this end, we engage with various hardwarc and software vendors in cvaluation of various infrastructure components, Where appropriate, we use
third-pany technology components in the development of our software applications and service offerings. In the case of nearly all of our third-party software,
enterprise license agreements exist for the thind-party component and either altemative suppliers exist or transfer rights exist to ensure the continuity of
supply. As a result, we are not materially dependent upon any third-party technology componeats. Third-party sofiware may be used for highly specialized
business functions, which we may not be able 1o develop intemally within time and budget constrainis. Additionally, third-party software may be used for
commodity-type functions within a technology platform environment. We work with our clients to determine the appropriate timing and approach to
introducing technology or infrastructure changes to our applications and services. During the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016 approximately
3% to 4% of revenues were non-capitalizable research and development expense.

Government Regwlation

Cur services ate subject (0 abroad range ol vuiuplea faleial, statc, and forcign regulation and requircments, as woll as requirements under the rules of
self-regulatory organizations, including federal truth-in-lending and truth-in-savings mles, Regulation AA (Unfair or Deceptive Acts or Practices), data
protection and privacy laws, usury laws, laws goveming state trust charters, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the Fair
Credit Reporting Act, the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, the Bank Secrecy Act, the USA Patriot Act, the Internal Revenue Caode, the Employee
Retitement Income Security Act, the Health Insuiapce Postability and Accountability Act, the Community Reinvestment Act and the Dedd-Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the "Dodd-Fmank Act"), the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "1934 Act"), the Investment Advisors Act of 1940
{the "1940 Act"), anti-cormmuption laws including the U.S. Foreign Commupt Practices Act and UK. Bribery Act, the rules and regulations ofthe Financial
Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA™, the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and the Financial Conduct Authority in the UK. ("FCA"). The
compliance of our services and applications with these aud other applicable laws and regulations depends on o variety of factors, including the manner in
which our clients use them. In some cases, we are directly subject to regulatory oversight and examination. In other cases, our clients are contractually
responsible for detemmining what is requited of thew under applicable laws and rcgulations and utilize our praducts and services to achieve compliance with
those laws and regulations. In either case, the failuze of our scrvices to comply with applicable laws and regulations may result in restrictions on our ability to
provide those services and/or the imposition of ¢ivil fines and/or criminal penalties. The principal areas of regulation impacting our business are the
following:

= Oversight by Banking Regulators. As a provider of electronic data processing and back-office services to financial institutions, FIS is subject to
regulatory oversight and examination by the Federal Banking Agencies ("FBA"), including the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"), the
Office of the Comptroller of the Currency ("OCC"), the Board of Govemors of the Federal Reserve System ("FRB"), the National Credit Union
Administration ("NCUA™ and the Consumer Financial Protection Burean ("CFPB"] as part of the Multi-Regional Data Processing Servicer Program
("MDPS"). The MDPS program includes technology suppliers that provide mission critical applications for a large number of financial institutions
that are reguluied by multiple regulatory agencies. Perivdic inforination technology examination assessments are performed using FBA Interagency
guidelines to identify potential risks that could adversely affect serviced financial institutions, determine compliance with applicable laws and
regulations that affect the services provided to financial institutions and ensure the services we provide to financial institutions do not create
systemic risk to the banking system or impact the safe and sound operation of the financial institutions we process. In addition, independent auditors
annually review several of our operations 1o provide repoits on internal controls for our clients’ audilors and regulators. We are alzo subject to
review and examination by state and intemational regulatory authorities under state and foreign laws and rules that regulate many of the same
activities that are described above, including electronic data processing, payments and back-office services for financial institutions and the use of
consumer information.

Our U.S.-based wealth and retirement businesses held charters in 2013 in the states of Georgia and Delaware, which made us subject to the regulatory
compliance requirements of the Georgia Department of Banking and Finance and the State of Delaware Office of the State Bank Commissioner. As a
result, we are also authorized to provide trust services in various additional states subject to additional applicable state regulations. We divested
Reliance Trust Company of Delaware effective December 31, 2018, which was our only charter in Delaware.

+  Oversight by Securities Regulators. Our subsidiary that conducts our broker-dealer business in the US. is registered as a broker-dealer with the SEC,
is a member of FINRA, and is registered as a broker-dealer in numerous states, Our broker-dealer is subject to regulation and oversight by the SEC. In
addition, FINRA, a self-regulatory organization
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that is subject to oversight by the SEC, adopts and enforces mles goveming the conduct, and examines the activities, of its member firms, including
our broker-dealer. State securitics regulators, the Municipal Securitics Rulemaking Board, and various exchanges, including the New York Stock
Exchange, also have regulatory or oversight authority over our broker-dealer. Broker-dealers are subject to regulations that cover all aspects ofthe
securities business, including sales methods, trade practices among broker-dealers. public and private securities offerings, use and safekeeping of
customers’ funds and securities, capital structure, record keeping, the financing of customers® purchases and the conduct and qualifications of
directors, officers and employees. In particular, as a registercd broker-dealer and member of a self-regulatory organization, we are subject to the
SEC’s uniform net capitai rule, Rule 15¢3-1. Rule 15¢3-1 specifies the minimum level of net capital a broker-dealer must maintain and also requites
that a significant part of a broker-dealer’s assets be kept in relatively liquid form. The SEC and various sel-regulatory organizations impose rules
that require notification when net capital falls below certain predefined criteria, limit the ratio of subordinated debt to equity in the regulatory
capital composition of a broker-dealer and constrain the ability of a broker-dealer to expand its business under certain circumstances. Additionally,
the SEC’s uniform net capital rule imposes certain requirements that may have the effect of prohibiting a broker-dealer from distributing or
withdrawing capital and requiring prior notice to the SEC for certain withdrawals of capital.

Our subsidiaries also include an SEC-registered transfer agent. Our registered transfer agent is subject to the 1934 Act and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder. These laws and regulations genenaily grant the SEC and other supervisory bodies broad administrative powers to address
non-~compliance with regulatory requirements. Sanctions that may be imposed for noncompliance with these requirements include the suspension of
individual employces, limitations on engaging in certain activities for specified periods of time or for specified types of clicnts, the revocation of
registrations, other cengures and significunt fines,

Subsidiaries engaged in activities outside the U.S, are regulated by various government agencies in the particular jurisdiction where they are
chartered, incorporated and/or conduct their business activity. For example, pursuant to the UK. Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
{"FSMA™), certain of our subsidiaries are subject to regulations promuilgated and administered by the FCA. The FSMA and rules promulgated
thereunder govem all aspects of the UK. investment business, including sales, research and trading practices, provision of investment advice, use
and safekeeping of client funds and securities, regulatory capital, record keeping, margin practices and procedures, approval standards for
individuals, anti-money laundering, periodic reporting and settlement procedures.

= Privacy and Data Protection. The Company is subject to an increasing number of privacy and data protection laws, regulations and directives
globally (referred to collectively as "Privacy Laws"), many of which place restrictions on the Company’'s ability to efficiently transfer, access and use
personal data across its business. The legislative and regulatory landscape for privacy and data protection continues to evolve.

Our financial institution clients operating in the United States are required to comply with privacy regulations imposed under the Gramm-Leach-
Bliley Act {referred to as "GLBA")and numerous similar state laws. GLBA and those state laws place restrictions on the use of non-public personal
information. All financial institutions must disclose detailed privacy policies to their customers and offer them the opportunity to direct the
financial institution not to share information with third parties. The regulations under GLBA, however, permit financial institutions to share
information with non-affiliated parties who perform services for the financial institutions. As a provider of setvices to financial institutions, we are
required to comply with the privacy laws and are bound by the same limitations on disclosure of the information received from our clients as apply
to the financial institutions themselves. A determination that there have been violations of privacy laws could expose us to significant damage
awards, fines and other penalties that could, individuaily or in the aggregate, materially harm our business and reputation.

In July 2016, the European Commission formally approved and adopted the EU-US Privacy Shield, providing a compliance framework for
organizations to transfer peryonal data regarding citizens of the European Union (the "EU") to the U.S. While we have certified certain lines of
business under the Privacy Shield, we have chosen to adopt EU mede! clauses published by the European Commission as the primary basis for the
export of data from the EU to the U.S.

New and proposed data protection legislation and regulations also significantly affect our business. The General Data Protection Regulation
("GDPR"), which became effective on May 25, 2018 imposes a strict data compliance regime and extends the scope of the EU data protection law to
all foreign companies processing data of EU residents. We have amended thousands of client and vendor contracts and put into place a thorough
compliance program to comply with this new comprehensive privacy law. Although the GDPR applies across the EU without a need for locat
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implementing legislation, as bas been the case under the current data protection regime, loca) data protection authorities ("DPAs") will still bave the
ability te interpret the GDPR, which has the potential to create inconsistencies on a country-by-country basis. The Company will also be subject to
the Califomia Consumer Privacy Act {"CCPA"}, which comes into effect on January !, 2020 and provides California residents additional data
protection rights including the right to be informed about the personal information collected by third parties and the use of that personal data.
Funther, certain operations of the Company will be subject to the Brazil General Personal Data Protection Act. which is alse scheduied to become
effective in 2020. The Company has adopted a comprehensive global privacy program to assess and manage these evolving risks.

= Money Transfer. Elements of our cash access and money transmission businesses are registered as a Money Services Business and are subject to the
USA Patriot Act and reporting requirements of the Bank Secrecy Act and U.S. Treasury Regulations. These businesses may also be subject to certain
state, local and licensing requirements. The Financial Crimes Enforcement Network, state attorneys general, and other agencies have enforcement
responsibility over laws relating 10 money laundenng, currency transmission, and licensing. In applicable states, we have obtained money
transmitter licenses. Howevet, changes to state money transmission laws and regulations, including changing interpretations and the implementation
of new or varying regulatary requirements, may resutt in the need for additional money transmitter licenses or for the requirement that we change the
way in which we deliver certain services.

We are also subject to certain economic and trade sanctions programs that are administered by the U.S. Treasury 's Office of Foreign Assets Control
(referred to as "OFAC"), which prohibit or restrict transactions to or from or dealings with specified countries, their govemments, and in certain
circumstances, their nationals, and with individuals and entities that are specially-designated nationals of those countries, narcotics traffickers, and
terrorists or terrorist organizations. Similar anti-money laundering laws apply 10 movements of currency and payments through electronic
transactions and 1o dealings with persons specified in lists maintained by the country equivalents to OFAC in several other countries. We have
implemented policies, procedures, and intemal centrols that are designed to comply with the regulations and economic sanctions programs
administered by OFAC. Outside the U.S., applicable laws, rules and regulations similarly require designated types of financial institutions to
implement anti-money laundering programs. We have implemented policies, procedures and internal contrals that are designed to camply with all
applicable anti-money laundering laws and regulations.

*  Consumer Reporting and Protection. Our decision solutions subsidiary (ChexSystems) maintains a database of consumer information used to
provide various account opening services including credit scoring analysis and is subject to the Federal Fair Credit Reporting Act ("FCRA") and
similar state laws. The FCRA regulates consumer reporting agencies ("CRAs™), including ChexSystems, and govems the accuracy, faimness, and
privacy of information in the files of CR As that engage in the praciice of assembling or evaluating certain information relating 1o consumets for
certain specified purposes. CRAs are required to follow reasonable procedures to assure maximum possible accuracy of information conceming the
individual about whom the report relates and if a consumer disputes the accumcy of any information in the consumer’s file, to conduct a reasonable
investigation withiit statutory timelines. The FCRA imposes many other requirements on CRAs and users of consumer report information.
Regulatory enforcement of'the FCRA is under the purview of the United States Federal Trade Commission ("FTC"), the CFPB, and state attomeys
general, acting alone or in concent with one another. In furtherance of our objectives of data accuracy, fair treatment of consumers, protection of
consumets” personal information, and compliance with these laws, we strive to, and have made considerable investment to, maintain a high level of
security for our computer systems in which consumer data resides, and we maintain consumer relations call centers to facilitate efficient handling of
consumer requests for information and handling disputes, We also are focused on ensuring our operating environments safeguard and protect
consumer’s personal information in compliance with these laws,

Our consumer reperting and facing businesses are subject 1o CFPB Bulletin 2013-7 (an update to the former Regulation A - Unfair Deceptive Acts or
Practices), which states the definition of Undfair, Deceptive or Abusive Acts or Practices {"UDAAP"). This specific bulletin states that UDAAPs can
causc significant financial injury to consumers, erode consumer confidence, and undermine fair competition in the financial marketplace. Original
creditors and other covered persons and service providers under the Dodd-Frank Act involved tn coltecting debt related to any conisumer financial
product or service are subject to the prohibition against UDAAPs in the Dodd-Frank Act.

«  Debt Collection. Our collection services are subject to the Federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and various state collection laws and ficensing
requirements, The FTC, as well as state attomeys general and other agencies, have enforcement respensibility over the collection laws, as well as the
various credit reporting laws.
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v Anti-Corruption. F13 is subject to applicable anti-corruption laws, such as the U.8, Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the UK. Bribery Act, in the

jurisdictions in which it operates. Anti-corruption laws genenaily prohibir offering, promising, giving, or authorizing others to give anything of
Rl sihes Wiy or lodi Iy b & 48 it GEe{a] e privite pii (0 wlng e (0 fTuenes wifuis] sptiew Wiy ainy yt e Reir Resizene
advantage, such as to obtain or retain business. FIS has implemented policies, procodures, u;a nlemnal controts that ane ;les:é';na % cnmﬂy wi

such laws, rules and regulations.

The foregoing list of taws and regulations to which our Company is subject is not exhaustive, and the reguiatory framework goveming our operations
changes continvously. Enactment of new laws and regulations may increasingly affect the operations of our business, directly and indirectly, which could
resuit in substantial regulatory compliance costs, litigation expense, adverse publicity, and/or loss of revenue.

Information Security

Globaily, attacks on information technology systems continue to grow in frequency, complexity and sophistication. This is a trend we expect to
continue. Such attacks have become a point of focus for individuals, businesses and govemmental entities. The objectives of these attacks include, among
other things, gaining unauthorized access to systems to facilitate financial fraud, disrapt operations, cause denial of service events, conrupt data, and steal
non-public information. These circumstances present both a threat and an opportunity for FIS. As part of our business, we electronically receive, process, store
and transmit a wide range of canfidential information, including sensitive customer infomiation and personal consumer data. We also operate payment, cash

access and prepaid card systems.

FIS remains focused on making strategic investments in information sccurity to protect our clients and our information systems, This includes both
capital expenditures and operating expenses on hardware, software, personnel and consviting sérvices. We also participate in industry and governmental
initiatives to improve information security for our clients. Through the expertise we have gained with this ongoing focus and involvement, we bave
developed fraud, security, risk management and compliance solutions to target this growth opportunity in the financial services industry.

For more information on Information Security, see "ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Employees

As of December 31, 2018, we had more than 47,000 employees, including approximately 29,000 employees principaily employed outside of the U.S,
None of our U.S, werkfosce cumrently is unionized. Approximately 6,800 of our employees, primarily in Brazil, Germany, Tunisia, France, ftaly, Mexico and
Chile, are represented by labor unions or wotks councils. We consider our relations with our employees to be good.

Available Information

Cur internet website address is www.fisglobal.com. We make our Annual Reports on Forn 10-K, Quarterty Reports on Form 10-Q, and Curmrent Reports on
Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports, available, fice of charge, on that website as soon 2s reasonably practicable afier we file or furnish them to the
Securitics and Exchange Commission. Qur Corporate Govemance Policy and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics are also avaiiable on our website and are
available in print, free of charge, to any sharcholder who mails a request to the Corporate Secretary, Fidelity National Information Services, Inc., 601
Riverside Avenue, Jacksonville, FL 32204 USA. Other corporate govemance-relatcd documents can be found at our website as well, However, the
information found on our website is not a pant of this or any other repont.

Item 1A,  Risk Factors

In addition to the normal risks of business, we are subject to significant risks and uncertainties, including those listed below and others described
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Any of the risks described herein could result in a significant adverse effect on our results of operations and

financia} condition.

il




Security breaches or attacks, or our failure to comply with information security faws or reguiations or industry security reguirements, could harm our
business by disrupting our delivery of services and damaging our reputation and could result in a breach of ane or more client contracts.

We electronically receive, process, store and transmit sensitive business information of our clients. In addition, we collect personal consumer data, such
as names and addresses, social security numbets, driver's license numbers, cardholder data and payment history records. Such infonmation is necessary to
suppert our clients’ transaction processing and to conduct our check authorization and collection businesses. The unintemupted operation of our information
systems, as well as the confidentiality of the customer/consumer information that resides on such systems, is critical to our successful operation. For that
reason, cybersecurtity is one of the principal operational risks we face as a provider of services to financial institutions, f we fail to maintain an adequate
security infrastructure, adapt to emerging security threats, or implement sufficient security standards and technology to protect against security breaches, the
confidentiality of the information we secure could be compromised. Unauthorized access to our computer systems or databases could result in the theft or
publication of confidential information, the deletion or modification of records, damages from legal actions from clients and/or their customers, or otherwise
cause interruptions in our operations and damage 10 our reputation. These risks are greater with increased information transmission over the Intemet and the
increasing level of sophistication posed by cyber ciminals.

As a provider of services to financial institutions and a provider of card processing services, we are bound by the same limitations on disclosure of the
information we receive from our clients as apply to the clients themselves, [f we fail to comply with these regulations and industry security requirements, we
could be exposed to damages from legal actions from clients and/or their customers, governmental proceedings, governmental notice requirements, and the
impesition of fines or prohibitions on card processing services. In addition, if more restrictive privacy laws, mles or industry security requirements are
adopted in the future on the Federal or State level, or by a specific industry body, they could have an adverse impact on us through increased costs or
restrictions on business processes. Any inability to prevent security or privacy breaches, or the perception that such breaches may occur, could cause our
existing clients to lose confidence in our systems and terminate their agreements with us, inhibit our ability to attract new clients, result in increasing
regulation, or bring about other adverse consequences from the govemment agencies that regulate our business.

Entity mergers or conselidations and business failures in the banking and financial services industry could adversely affect our business by eliminating
Some of our existing and potential clients and making us more dependent on a more limited pumber of clients.

There has been and continues to be substantial consolidation activity in the banking and financial services industry. In addition, certain financial
institutions that experienced negative operating results, including some of our clients, have failed. These consolidations and failures reduce our number of
potential ¢lients and may reduce our number of existing clients, which could adversely affect our revenues, ¢ven if'the ¢vents do not reduce the aggregate
activities of the consalidated entities. Further, if our clients fail and/or merge with ot are acquired by other entities that are not our clients, or that use fewer of
our services, they may discontinue or reduce use of our services. It is also possible that larger financial institutions resulting from consolidations would have
greater leverage in negotiating terms or could decide to perform in-house some or all of the services we curvently provide or could provide. Any of these
developments could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

If we fail to innovate or adapt our services to changes in technology or in the marketplace, or if our ongoing efforts to upgrade our technology are not
successful, we could lose clients or our clients cauld lose customers and we could have difficulty attracting new clients for our services.

The markets for pur services are characterized by constant technological changes, frequent introductions of new services and evolving industry
standards. Our future success will be significantly affected by our ability to enhance our current solutions and develop and introduce new solutions and
services that address the increasingly sophisticated needs of our clients and their customers. In addition, as more of our revenue and market demand shifis to
software as a service ("SaaS"), business process as a service {"BPaaS"), cloud, and new disruptive technologies, the need to keep pace with rapid technology
changes becomes more acute. These initiatives carty the risks associated with any new solution development effort, including cost overruns, delays in
delivery, and performance issues. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in developing, marketing and selling new solutions or enhancements
that meet these changing demands, that we will not experience difficulties that could delay or prevent the successful development, introduction, and
marketing of these solutions or enhancements, or that our new solutions and enhancements will adequately meet the demands of the marketplace and achieve
market acceptance, Any of these developments could have an adverse impact on our future revenues and/or business prospecls.
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We operate in a competitive business environment and if we are unable to compete effectively our results of operations and financial condition may be
adversely affected.

The market for our services is intensely competitive. Our competitors vary in size and in the scope and breadth of the solutions and services they offer.
Some of our competitors have substantial resources. We face direct competition from third parties, and since many of sur larger potential olients have
historically developed their key applications in-house and therefore view their system requirements from a make-versus-buy perspective, we also often
compete against our potentigl clients’ in-house capacities. In addition, the markets in which we compete have recently attmeted increasing competition from
smaller start-ups with disruptive technologies, which are receiving increasing investments, global banks {and businesses controlled by combinations of
global banks) and global intemet companies that are introducing competitive products and services into the marketplace, particularly in the payments area.
Emerging technologies and increased competition may also have the effect of unbundling bank solutions and result in picking off solutions we are currently
providing from our legacy systems. Intemational competitors are also now targeting and enteting the U.S. market with greater force, There can be no
assumance that we will be able to compete successfully against cusrent or fiture competitors or that the competitive pressures we face in the markets in which
we operate will not maicrially adversely affoct our business, financial condition, and results of operations. See "Item 1, Business, Competition.”

Global economic, pelitical and other conditions, inciuding business cycles and consumer confidence, may adversely affect our clients or trends in
consumer spending, which may adversely impact the demand for our services and our revenue and profitability.

A significant portion of our revenue is derived from transaction processing fees, The global transaction processing industries depend heavily upen the
overall level of consumer, business and govemment spending. Any change in economic factors, including a sustained deterioration in general economic
conditions or consumer confidence, patticularly in the United States, or increases in interest rates in key countries in which we operate may adversely affect
consumer spending, including related consumer debt, further reduce check writing and change credit and debit card usage, and as a result, adversely affect
our financial performance by reducing the number or average purchase amount of transactions that we service.

‘When there is a slowdown or downturn in the economy, a drop in stock market levels or trading volumes, or an event that disrupts the financial markets,
our business and financial results, particularly with respect to our capital markets businesses, may suffer for a number of reasons. Customers may react to
worsening conditions by reducing their capital expenditures in general or by specifically reducing their information technology spending. In addition,
customers may curtail or discontinue trading operations, delay or cancel information technology projects, or seek to lower their costs by renegotiating vendor
contracts. Moreover, competitors may respond to market conditions by lowering prices and attempting to lure away our customers to lower cost solutions.
Any more protective trade policies or actions taken by the U.S. may also result in other countries reducing or making more expensive services permitted to be
provided by U.S. based companies. If any of these circumstances remain in effect for an extended period of time, there could be a material adverse effect on

our financial results.

Constraints within global financial markets or international regrlatory requirements could constrain our financial institution cliepts' ability to
purchase our services, impacting our future growth and profitability.

A significant number of our clients and potential clients may hold sovereign debt of economically struggling nations or be subject to international
banking regulatory requirements such as Basel Il (and & set of farther reforms known as Basel IV scheduled to be phased in commencing in January 2022),
which may require changes in their capitalization and hence the amount of their working capital available to purchase our services. These potential
constraints could alter the ability of clients or potential clients to purchase our services and thus could have a significant impact on our future growth and

profitability.

The sales and implementation cycles for many of vur software and service offerings can be lengthy and require significant investment from both our
clients and FIS. If we fail to close sales or if a client chooses not to complete an installation after expending significant time and resources to do so, our
business, financial condition, and results of operations may be adversely affected. '

The sales and associated deployment of many of our software or service offerings often involve significant capital commitments by our clients and/or
FiS. Potential clients gencrally commit significant resources to an evaluation of available software and services and require us to expend substantial time,
effort, and money educating them prior to sales. Furthet, as part of the sale or deployment of our software and services, clients may also require FIS to perform
significant related services to complete a proof of concept or custom development to meet their needs. All of the aforementioned activitics may require the
expenditure of significant funds and management resources and, ultimately, the client may determine not to close the sale ot
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complete the implementation. If we are unsuccessful in closing sales ot if the client decides not to complete an implementation after we expend significant
funds and management resources or we experience delays, it could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Onr results may fluctiate from period 1o period because of the lengthy and unpredictable sales eycle for our saftware, changes in our mix of licenses and
services, activity by competitors, and customer budgeting, operational requirements or renewal cycles.

Particularly with respect to our GFS segment, our operating results may fluctuate from period to period and be difficult to predict in a particular period
due to the timing and magnitude of software license sales and other factors. We offer a number of our software solutions on a license basis, which means thay
the customer has the right to mn the software on its own or a third party's hardware. We generally recognize license revenue when the license contract is
signed, the software is delivered, and the term has begun. The value of the license often depends on a number of customer-specific factors, such as the
number of customer locations, users or accounts. The sales cycle for a software license may be lengthy and take unexpected tumns. Thus, it is difficult to
predict when software sales will occur ot how much revenue they will generate. Because there are few incremental costs associated with software sales, our
operating results may fluctuate from quarter to quarter and year to year due to the timing and magnitude of software sales. Our results may also vary asa
result of pricing pressures, increased cost of equipment, the ¢volving and unpredictable markets in which our solutions and services are sold, changes in
accounting principles, and competitors” new solutions or services.

In addition, there arc a number of other factors that could cause our sales and resuits of operation to fluctuate from period to period, including the
following:

«  customers periodically renew or upgrade their installed base of our selutions, which trigger buying cycles for curmrent or new versions of our
solutions and our revenue generally fluctuates with these refresh cycles as a result;

« the budgeting cycles and purchasing practices of customers, particularly large customers;

« changes in customer, distributor or reseller requiretments or market needs;

« deferral of orders from customers in anticipation of new solutions or offerings announced by us or our competitors or otherwise anticipated by
the market;

«  our ability to successfully expand our business domestically and intemationally; and

+  insolvency or credit difficulties confronting our customers, which could adversely affect their ability to purchase or pay for our solutions.

Failure to obtain new clients or renew client contracts on favorable terms could ndversely affect resuits of operations and financial condition,

We may face pricing pressure in obtaining and retaining our clients. Larger ¢lients may be able to seek price reductions from us when they renew a
contract, when a contract is extended, or when the client's business has significant volume changes. They may also reduce services if they decide to move
services in-house. Further, our smaller and mid-size clients may also exert pricing pressure, particularly on renewal, due to pricing competition or other
economic needs or pressures being experienced by the client. On some occasions, this pricing pressure results in lower revenue from a client than we had
anticipated based on out previous agreement with that client. This reduction in revenue could result in an adverse effect on our business, operating results
and financial condition.

Further, failure to renew client contracts on favorable terms could have an adverse effect on our business. Our contracts with clients generally run for
several years and include liquidated damage provisions that provide for early termination fees. Terms are generally renegotiated prior to the end ofa
contract's term. If we are not successful in achieving a high rate of contract renewals on favorable terms, our results of operations and financial condition
could be adversely affected.

Our business and operating results could be adversely affected if we experience business interruptions, errors or failure in connection with owr or third-
party information technology and communication systems and other software and hardware used in cannection with our business, if we experience defects
or design errors in the software solutions we offer, or more generally, if the third-party vendors we rely upon are unwilling or unable to provide the services
we need to effectively operate our business.

Many of our services, including our transformation services, are based on sophisticated software and compuling systems, and we may encounter delays
when developing new technology solutions and services. Further, the technology solutions underlying our services have occasienally contained and may in
the future contain undetected emors or defects when first introduced or when new versions are refeased. [n addivion, we may expernence ditficulties in
installing or integrating our
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.technolcfgics on platforms used by our clients or our clients may cancel a project after we have expended significant effort and resources to complete an
m_stallauon. Fina.lly, our systems and operations could be exposed to damage or interruption from fire, nateral disaster, power loss, telecommunications
fa.llurc, qnauthorlzed entry and computer viruses. Defects in our technology solutions, errors or delays in the processing of electronic transactions, or other
d_lﬂ’icpltles_ could resul_t in (i) interruption of business operations; (ii) delay in market acceptance: (iii) additional development and remediation costs;

{iv) dn‘rersmn oftechnical and other resources; (v) loss of clients; (vi} negative publicity; or (vii) exposure to liability claims. Any one or more of the,
foregeing could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Although we Attempt to Livit pur potensing linwility
through controls, incleding system redundancies, security controls, application development and testing controls, and disclaimers and limitation-of-liability
{p‘ni:;‘sions in our license and client agreements, we cannot be certain that these measures will always be successful in preventing disruption ot limiting our
1ability.

Further, most of the solutions we offer arc very complex software systems that are regularly updated. No matter how careful the design and development,
complex software often contains errors and defects when first introduced and when major new updates or enhancements are released. If errors or defects are
discovered in current or future solutions, we may pot be able to correct them in a timely manner, if at all. In our development of updates and enhancements to
our software selutions, we may make a major design error that makes the solution operate incorrectly or less efficiently. The failure of software to properly
petform could result in the Company and its clients being subjected to losses or liability, including censures, fines, or other sanctions by the applicabie
regulatory authorities, and we could be liable to parties who are financially harmed by those ermors. In addition, such etrors could cause the Company to lose
revenues, lose clients or damage its reputation.

In addition, we generally depend on a number of third parties, both in the United States and intemnationally, to supply elements of our systems,
computers, research and market data, connectivity, communication netweork infrastructure, other equipment and related support and maintenance. We cannot
be certain that any of these third parties will be able to continue providing these services to effectively meet our evolving needs. If our vendors, or in centain
cases vendors of our customers, fail to meet their obligations, provide poor or untimely service, or we are unable to make altémative arrangements for the
provision of these services, we may in turn fail to provide our services or to meet our obligations to our cusiomers, and cur business, financiat condition and
operating results could be materially harmed.

The Dodd-Frank Act, the CFPB and state regulatory authorities, such as the New York State Department of Financial Services, may result in business
changes for certain of ouer businesses and clients that have or could have an adverse effect on our financial condition, revenues, resulls of operations, or
prospects for future growth and overall business.

The Dodd-Frank Act represented a comprehensive overhaul of the regulations goveming the financial services industry within the United States. The
Dodd-Frank Act established the CFPB and provided the CFPB with rulemaking authority with respect to certain federal consumer protection statutes as well
as examination and supervisory authority over consumer reporting agencies, including ChexSystems.

The CFPB continues to establish rules and regulations for regulating financial and nen-financial institutions and providers to those institutions to ensure
adequate protection of consuiner privacy and to ensure consumers are not impacted by deceptive business practices. These rules and regulations govem our
clients or potential clients and also govern certain of our businesses. These regulations have resulted and may further result in the need for FIS to make
capital investments to modify our solutions and services to facilitate our clients' and potential clients’ compliance, as well as to deploy additional processes
or reporting 10 comply with these regulations. In the future, we may be subject to additional expense to ensure continued compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and to investigate, defend and/or remedy actual or alleged violations. Fusther, tequirements of the regulations have resulted and could further
result in changes in our business practices, our clients' business practices and thosc of other marketplace participants that may alter the delivery of setvices to
consumers, which have impacted or could further impact the demand for our software and services as well as alter the type or valume of transactions that we
process on behalf of our clients. As a result, these requirements, or proposed or future requirements, could have an adverse impact on our financial condition,
revenues, tesults of operations, prospects for future growth and overall business.

The New York Department of Financial Services has enacted new rules that require covercd financial institutions to cstablish and maintain cybersecurity
programs. The impact of these rules and any future rules may require FIS to be subject to additional regulation and adopt additional business practices that
could require additional capital expenditures ot impact our operating results. Changes to state money transmission laws and regulations, including changing
interpretations and the implementation of new or varying regulatory requirements, may result in the need for additional money transmitter licenses. These
changes could result in increased costs of compliance, as well as fines or penalties.
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Many of our clients are subject to a regulatory environment and to industry standards that may change in a manner that reduces the types or volume gf
solutions or services we provide, or may reduce the type or number of transactions in whick our clients engage, and thergfore, reduce our revenues.

Our clients are subject to a number of govemment regulations and industry standards with which our services must comply. Our clients must ensure that
our services and related solutions work within the extensive and evolving regulatory and industry requirements applicable to them. Federal, state, foreign or
industry authorities could adopt laws, rules or regulations affecting our clients' businesses that could lead to increased operating costs and could reduce the
convenience and functionality of our services, possibly resulting in reduced market acceptance. In addition, action by regnlatory authorities relating to credit
availability, data usage, privacy, or other related regulatory developments could have an adverse effect on our clients and, therefore, could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, revenves, results of operations, prospects for future growth and overall business. Elimination of regulatory
requirements could also adversely affect the sales of our solutions designed to help clients comply with complex regulatory environments.

Our revenues from the sale of services to members of VISA, MasterCard, American Express, Discover and other similar organizations are dependent
upon our continued certification and sponsorship, and the loss or suspension of certification or sponsorskip could adversely affect our business.

In order to provide our card processing services, we must be certified (including applicable sponsorship} by VISA, MasterCard, American Express,
Discover and other similar organizations. These certifications are dependent upon our continued adherence to the standards of the issuing bodies and
sponsoring member banks. The member financial iustitutions, some of which are our competitors, set the standards with which we must comply. If we fait to
comply with these standards we could be fined, our certifications could be suspended, or our registration could be terminated. The suspension or termination
of our certifications, or any changes in the rules and regulations governing VISA, MasterCard, American Express, Discover, ot other similar organizations,
could result in a reduction in revenue or increased costs of operation, which in tumn could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Changes in card association and debit network fees or products could increase costs or otherwise limit our operations.

From time to time, card associations and debit networks increase the interchange fees that they charge. It is possible that competitive pressures will result
in our absorption of a portion of such increases in the future, which would increase our operating costs, reduce our profit margin and adversely aifect our
business, financial condition, and results of operations. Furthermore, the rules and regulations of the various card associations and networks prescribe certain
capital requirements. Any increase in the capital level required would further limit our use of capital for other purposes.

Interchange fees and related practices have been receiving significant legal and regulatory scrutiny worldwide. The resulting regulatory changes that
could occut from proposed regulations could alter the fees charged by card associations and debit networks worldwide. Such changes could have an adverse
impact on our business ot financial condition due to reductions or changes in types of transactions processed on behalf of our elients.

Qur securities brokerage operations are highly regulated and subject to risks that are not encountered in our other businesses.

One of our subsidiaries is an SEC registered broker-dealer in the U.S. and others are authorized by the FCA to conduct certain regulated business in the
UK. Domestic and foreign regulatory and self-regulatory organizations, such as the SEC, FINRA, and the FCA, can, among other things, fine, censure, issue
cease-and-desist orders against, and suspend or expel a broker-dealer ot its officers or employees for failure to comply with the many laws and regulations that
govem brokerage activities. Those laws and regulations derive from a vanety of policy considerations and address a wide range of topics, including those
designed to protect customers of broker-dealers, and the privacy of their information, and those designed to protect the integrity of the markets, such as laws
and regulations requiring broker-dealers to report suspicious activity of customers. Sanctions for failure to comply with such laws and rcgulations may arise
out of currently-conducted activities or those conducted in prior periods. Our ability to comply with these laws and regulations is largely dependent on our
establishment, maintenance, and enforcement of an cffective brokerage compliance program. Failure to establish, maintain, and enforce the required
brokerage compliance procedures, even if unintentional, could subject us to significant losses, lead to disciplinary or other actions, and tamish our
reputation. Regulations affecting the brokerage industry may change, which could adversely affect our financial results.

We are exposed 1o certain risks relating to the exceution services provided by our brokerage operations to our customers and counterpatties, which
include other broker-dealers, active traders, hedge funds, asset managers, and other institutional and
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{lon-‘il}stimtio'nal clients, These risks include, but are not limited to, customers or counterparties failing to pay for or deliver securities, trading emors, the
1_nab1hty or fmh._ue to settle tradgs, and trade execution system failures, As ttuding in the U.S. securities markets has become more auto;nated the pot;ntial
impact ofa tmd_lng error of a rapid series of errors caused by & computer or human error, or 2 malicious act has become greater. In our other bllsinesses we
gengf?lly can dlf«;claim liability for trading losses that may be caused by our software, but in our brokerage operations, we may not be able to limit ou;-
l:abl_llty for trading losses or failed trades even when we are not at fauli. As a result, we may suffer losses that are disproportionately large compared to the
relatively modest profit contributions of our brokerage aperations. P

P.rlvacylaws and regula_rions, such as the GDPR, require FIS to adopt new business practices and centractusl provisions in existing and pew contracts
which may require transitional and incremental expenses whick may impact our  future operating results.

New privacy laws, such as the GDPR in the EU, continue to develop in ways we cannot predict. Privacy laws may be interpreted and applied
inconsistently from country to country and impose inconsistent or conflicting requirements, Complying with varying jurisdictional requirements could
increase the costs and complexity of compliance and associated recordkeeping costs or require us to change our business practices in a manner adverse to our
business. Violations of privacy laws can result in significant penalties and damage to our brand and business.

Implemeatation of the GDPR has required changes to certain of our business practices, thereby increasing our costs, We have put into place a thorough
compliance program to comply with the known obligations under the GDPR and have performed data protection impact assessments for our businesses that
are in scope and have executed data protection agreements with the clients and vendors of those businesses. If certain of our clients and vendors fail to
recognize the importance and/or applicability of these requirements and do not respond to our request for such amendments, both parties may be subject to
pelrllaltil;:s and fines for noncompliance. Failure ta comply with the requirements of the GDPR could resuit in significant penaitics and loss of business, among
other things.

New privacy laws in California and Brazil are expected to issue clarifying regulations prior to becoming effective in 2020 so we will continue to have
uncenainties about what we will be expected to comply with these laws until they are issued, including the costs and efforts of compliance. There are also
several additional privacy laws being considered by state legislatures, the federal legislature and countries around the world, so a more substantial
compliance effort with varying regimes in different jurisdictions is considered probable in the future, which will increase the costs and complexities of our
business.

If we fail to comply with applicable regulations or te meet regulatory expectations, our business, resulls of operations or financial condition could be
adversely impacted,

The majority of our date processing services for financial institutions are not directly subject to federal or state regulations specifically applicable to
financial institutions such as banks, thrifts and credit unions. However, as a provider of services to these financial institutions, our data processing operations
are examined on a regular basis by various federal and state regulatory authorities and by international regulatory authorities, such as the FCA, in cerfain
jurisdictions. If we fail to comply with any applicable regulations or guidelines for operations of a data services provider, we could be subject to regulatory
actions or mting changes, may not meet contractual obligations, and may suffer harm to our client relationships or reputation. Failure to meet the
aforementioned requirements or to adapt to new requirements at the federal, state or intemational level could inhibit our ability to retain existing clients or
obtain new clients, which could have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

In addition to our data processing services described above, we also have business operations that store, process or transmit consumer information or
have direct relationships with consumers that are obligated to comply with regulations, including, but not limited to, the Federal Fair Credit Reporting Act,
the Federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and applicable privacy requirements. Further, our intemational businesses must comply with applicable laws
such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Failure to maintain compliance with or adapt te changes in any of the aforementioned requirements could
restlt in fines, penalties or regulatory actions that could have an adverse impact an our business, results of operations and financial conditicn,

High profile payment card industry or digital banking security breaches could impact consumer payment bekavior patterns in the future and reduce eur
card payment transaction volumes.

We are unable to predict whether or when high profile card payment or digital banking security breaches will occur and if they occur, whether consumers
will transact less on their payment cards or reduce their digital banking service. If consumers
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transact less on cards issued by our clients or reduce digital banking services and we are not able to adapt to offer our clients altemative technologies, it
could have a significant adverse impact on our revenue and related eamnings.

Misappropriation of our intellectual property and proprietary rights or a finding that our patents are invalid cowld impair our competitive position,

Our ability to compete depends in some part upon our proprietary solutions and technology. Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights,
unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspects of our services or to obtain and use information that we regard as proprietary or challenge the validity of
our patents with governmental authotities. Policing unauthorized use of our proprigtary rights is difficult. We cannot make any assurances that the steps we
have taken will prevent misappropriation oftechnology or that the agreements entered into for that purpose will be enforceabie. Effective patent, trademark,
service mark, copyright, and trade secret protection may not be available in every country in which our applications and services are made available online.
Misappropriation of our inielleciual property vr potential litigation conciming such matters could have an advorme effect on pur results of operations or
financial condition.

If our applications or services are found to infringe the proprietary rights of others, we may be required to change our business practices and may also
become subject to significant costs and monetary penalties.

As out information technology applications and gervices develop, we are increasingly subject to infringement claims. Any claims, whether with or
withont merit, could {i) be expensive and time-consuming to defend; (ii) result in an injunction or other equitable relief which could cause us to cease
making, licensing or using applications that incorporate the challenged intellectual property; {iii) require us to redesign our applications, if feasible;

(iv) divert management’s attention and resources; and (v) require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements in order to obtain the right to use necessary
technologies or pay damages resulting from any infringing use.

Some of our solutions contain "open source” software, and any failure to comply with the terms of one or more of these open source licenses could
negatively affect our business.

We use a [imited amount of software licensed by its authors or other third parties under so-caifed "open source” licenses and may continue to use such
software in the future. Some of these licenses contain requirements that we make available source code for modifications or derivative works we create based
upon the open source software, and that we license such modifications or derivative works under the terms of 8 ponticular open source license or other license
granting third parties certain rights of further use. By the terms of certain open source licenses, we could be required to release the source code of our
proprietary software if we combine our proprietary software with open source software in a certain manner. Additionally, the terms of many open source
licenses have not been interpreted by United States or other counts, and there is a risk that these licenses could be construed in a manner that could impose
unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to commercialize our selutions. In addition to risks related to license requirements, usage of open
source software can lead to greater risks than use of third-party commercial software, as open souice licensors genemally do not provide wamanties or controls
on otigin of the software. We have established processes to help alleviate these risks, including a review process for screening requests from our development
organizations for the use of open source, but we cannot be sure that all open source is submitted for approval prior te use in our soiutions. In addition, many
of the risks associated with usage of open source cannot be eliminated, and could, if not properly addressed, negatively affect our business.

Lack of system integrity, fraudulent payments, credic quality, and undetected errors related 1o funds sectlement or the availability of clearing services
could result in a financial loss.

We scttle funds on behalf of financial institutions, other businesses and consumers and receive funds from clients, card issuers, payment networks and
consumers on a daily basis for a variety of transaction types. Transactions facilitated by us include debit card, credit card, electronic bill payment
transactions, banking payments and check cleating that supports consumers, financial institutions and other businesses. These payment activities rely upon
the technology infrastructure that facilitates the verification of activity with counterparties, the facilitation of the payment as well as the detection or
prevention of fraudulent payments. If aur continuity of operations, integrity of processing, or ability to detect or prevent fraudulent payments were
compromised, this could result in a financial loss to us. In addition, we rely on various financial institutions to provide ACH services in support of funds
settlement for certain of our solutions. If we are unable to obtain such ACH services in the future, that could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial position and results of operations. In addition, we may issue credit to consumers, financial institutions or other businesses as part of the funds
settlement. A default on this credit by a counterparty could result in a financial loss to us. Furthermore, if one ef our clients for which we facilitate settlement
suffers a flaudulent event due to an error of their controls, we may suffer a financial loss if the client dees not have sufficient capital to cover the loss.
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. ui'ihe Referendum on the United Kingdom’s Membership in the European Union could cause disruption te and create uncertainty surrounding our
ness.

" [::I'he refemnd}lm on the Umted_ng‘.iom‘s membership in the European Unifm (refelmi_ to as _"Brexit"), approving the exit of the United Kingdom from

e European Union could cause disruptions to and create uncertainty surounding our business, including aifscting our relaticaships with our existing nhsd
futore clients, suppliers and employees, which could have an adverse effsct on our business, financial results and operations. The effects of Brexit will depend
on the agreements, if any, the UK. makes with the EU to retzin access to EU markets at the time Brexit takes effect {March 29,2019, if not
suspended/delayed), during a transitional period or more permanently. In addition, because the terms of trade between the UK. and jurisdictions other than
the EU may be currently governed by trade agreements between the EU and such other jurisdictions, the UK. may be required to negotiate new terms of trade
with such other jutisdictions. These potential measures could disrupt the markets we serve and the tax jurisdictions in which we operate and adversely
change tax benefits or liabilities in these or other jurisdictions, and may cause us to lose clients, suppliers, and employees. In addition, Brexit could lead to
legal uncertainty and potentially divergent national laws and regulations as the UK. determines which EU laws to replace or replicate.

Actions to implement Brexit may also create global economic uncertainty, which may cause our clients to closely monitor their costs and reduce their
spending on our solutions and services.

Any ofthese effects of Brexit, among others, could materially adversely affect our business, business opportunities, results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

Faiture to praperly manage or mitigate risks in the operation of our wealth and retiremeni businesses in the U.S and the UK could have adverse Hability
Cconsequences.

We have wealth and retirement businesses in the U.S. and UK. engaged in processing securities transactions on behalf of clients and serving as a
custodian, Failure to properly manage or mitigate risks in those operations and increased volatility in the financial markets may increase the potential for and
magnitude of resulting iosses, including those that may arise from human errots or otmissions, defects or intetruptions in computer or communications systems
or breakdowns in processes or in intemal controls. Human errors or omissions may include failures to comply with applicable laws or corporate policies and
procedures, theft, fraud or misappropriation of assets, whether arising from the intentional actions of internal personnel or external third parties. In addition,
the U.8.-based business holds charters in the states of Georgia and Delaware which exposes us to further regulatory compliance requirements of the Georgia
Department of Banking and Finance and the Office of the Commissioner of Banking in the State of Delaware. The U.S. wealth and retirement business is
required to hold certain levels of regulatory capital as defined by the state banking regulators in the states in which it holds a bank or trust charter {Delawzre
and Georgia). In the UK., our Platform Securitics and broker-dealer businesses are regulated by the FCA and are subject to further regulatory capital
requirements. One consequence of Brexit may be that the loss of the ability to “passport” regulated business from the UK. to the EU may result in our having
to add operations of the business in a country in the EU that may subject us to further regulatory requirements and costs in that country.

Our business is subject to the risks af international operations, including movements in foreign curvency exchange rates.

The intemnational operations of FIS rpresented approximately 26% of aur total 2018 revenues and are largely conducted in currencies other than the
U.S. Dollar, including the British Pound, Brazitian Real, Euro and Indian Rupee. Our business and financial results could be adversely affected due to a
variety of factors, including the following:

+  changes in a specific country or region’s politica! and cultural climate or economic condition, including change in govemmental regime;
. unexpected or unfavorable changes in foreign laws, regulatory requirements and related interpretations;
« difficulty of effective enforcement of contractual provisiens in local jurisdictions;

. inadequate int¢llectual property protection in foreign countries; o ) )
- trade-protection measures, import or expert licensing requirements such as Export Administration Regulations promulgated by the U.S. Department

of Commerce and fines, penalties or suspension or tevocation of export privileges;
» trade sanctions imposed by the U.S. or other govemments with jurisdictional autherity over our business operations;
= the effects of applicable and potentially adverse foreign tax law changes;
+  significant adverse changes in foreign cumrency exchange rates;
» longer accounts receivable cycles;
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= managing a geographically dispersed workforce;
«  trade treaties, tariffs or agreements that could adversely affect our ability to do business in affected countries; and
+  compliance with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or FCPA, and the Office of Foreign Assets

Control regulations, particularly in emerging markets.

In foreign countries, particularly in those with developing economies, certain business practices may exist that are prohibited by laws and regulations
applicable to us, such as the U.S, Foreign Cormupt Practices Act, the UK. Bribery Act and other anti-corruption laws. Although out policies and procedures
require compliance with these laws and are designed 1o facilitate compliance with these laws, our employees, contractors and agents may take actions in
violation of applicable laws or our policies. Any such violation, even if prohibited by our policies, could have a material adverse effect on our business and
reputation,

As we expand our international operations, more of our clicnts may pay us in foreign currencies. Conducting business in currencies other than
U.8. Dollars subjects us to fluctuations in currency exchange rates that can negatively impact our results, period to peried, including relative to analyst
estimates or guidance. Qur primary exposure to movements in foreign curtency exchange rates relates to foreign currencies in Brazil, Eutope, including the
United Kingdom, and pans of Asia. The U.S. Dollar value of our net investments in foreign operations, the peripdic conversion of foreign-denominated
camings to the U.S, Dollar (our reporting curmrency), and our resulits of operations and, in some cases, cash flows, could be adversely affected in a material
manner by movements in foreign cumency exchange rates. These risks could cause an adverse effect on the business, financial pesition and results of
operations of the Company.

We have businesses in emerging markets that may experience significant economic volatility.

We have operations in emerging markets, primarily in Brazil, India, Southeast Asia, the Middle East and Afiica, These emerging market economies tend
to be more volatile thay the more established markets we serve in North America and Europe, which could add volatility to cur future revenues and eamings.

Failure to attract and retain skilled technical employees or senior manggement personnel could harm our ability to grow.

Qur future success depends upon our ability to atiract and retain highly-skilled technical personnel. Because the development of our selutions and
services requires knowledge of computer hardware, operating system software, system management software and application software, our technical personnel
inust be proficient in a number of disciplines. Competition for such technical personnel is intense, and our filure to hire and tetain talented personnel could
have a matetial adverse ¢ffect on our business, operating results and financial condition.

Our future growth will also require sales and marketing, financial and administrative personnel to develop and support new solutions and services, to
enhance and support current solutions and services and to expand operational and financial systems. There can be no assurance that we will be able to attract
and retain the necessary personnel to accomplish our growth strategies and we may experience constraints that could adversely affect our ability to satisfy
client demand in a timely fashion.

Our ability to maintain compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations and to manage and monitor the risks facing our business relies upon the
ability to maintain skilled compliance, security, risk and audit professionais, Competition for such skillsets is intense, and our failure to hire and retain
talented personnel could have an adverse effect on our internal control environment and impact our operating results.

Our senior management team has significant experience in the financial services industry and the loss of this leadership could have an adverse effect on
our business, operating results and financial condition. Further, the loss of this leadership may have an adverse impact on senior management's ability to
provide cffective oversight and strategic direction for all key functions within the Company, which could impact our future business, operating results and
financial condition.

We are the subject of various legal proceedings that could have a material adverse effect on ovr revenue and profitabivity.

We are involved in various litigation matiers, including in some instances class-action cases and patent infringement litigation. If we are unsuccessful in
our defense of litigation matters, we may be forced to pay damages and/or change our business practices, any of which could have a material adverse effect on
our business and results of operations.
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Unfavorable resolution of tax contingencies or unfavorable future tax law changes could adversely affect our tax expense,

_Ourtax retum_s anfi positions are subject to review and audit by federal, state, local and international taxing authorities. An unfavorable ouicome to a tax
audit conld result in hlgk_ler tax expense and could negatively impact our effective tax rate, financial position, results of operations and cash flows in the
cumrent and/or future periods, The U.S. enacted significant tax reform in 2017 and certain provisions of the new law could have an adverse impact to us
Unfavorable future tax law changes could also result in negative impacts. In addition, tax-law amendmeonts tn the United States and other jusisdictions could
significantly impact how United States multinational corporations are taxed. Although we cannot predict whether or in what form such legislation will pass,
if enacted it could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results.

A material weakness in our internal controls could have a material adverse effect on us.

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reasonable assurance with respect to our financial reports and to adequately mitigate risk of
fraud. I we cannot provide reasonable assuranee with respect to our financial reports and adequately mitigate risk of fraud, ourreputation and operating
results could be harmed. intemal contro] over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstaiements because of its inherent limitations, including the
possibility of buman error, the circumvention or ovemiding of controls, or fraud. Therefore, even effective internal controls can provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements. In addition, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness of intemal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. A material weakness
in our internal control over financial reporting could adversely impact our ability to provide timely and accurate financial information. If we are unable to
report financial information timely and accurately or to maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures, we could be subject to, among other things,
regulatory or enforcement actions by the SEC, any one of which could adversely affect our business prospects.

Risks Related to Business Combinations and Ventures

Strategic transactions, including acquisitions and divestitures, involve significant risks and uncertainties that conld advetsely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Strategic acquisitions and divestitures we have made in the past and may make in the future present significant risks and unceriainties that could
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. These risks include the following:

« Difficulty in evaluating potential acquisitions, including the risk that our due diligence does not identify or fally assess valuation issues, potential
liabilities or other acquisition risks;

+  Difficulty and expense in integrating newly acquired businesses and operations, including combining product and service offerings, and in entering
into new markets in which we are not experienced, in an efficient and cost-effective manner while maintaining adequate standards, controls and
procedures, and the risk that we encounter significant unanticipated costs or other problems associated with integration;

+  Difficulty and expense in consolidating and rationalizing IT infrastructure and integrating acquired software;

= Chailenges in achieving strategic objectives, cost savings and other benefits expected from acquisitions;

+  Risk that our markets do not evelve as anticipated and that the strategic acquisitions and divestitures do not prove to be those needed to be
successful in those markets;

+  Risk that acquired systems expose us to cybersecurity and other data security risks;

»  Costs to reach appropriate standards to protect against cybersecurity and other data security risks or timeline to achieve such standands may exceed
those estimated in diligence;

+  Risk that acquired companies are subject to new regulatory regimes or oversight where we have limited experience that may result in additional
compliance costs and potential regulatory penalties;

*  Risk that we assume or retain, or that companies we have acquired have assumed or retained or otherwise become subject to, significant liabilities
that exceed the limitations of any applicable indemnification provisions or the financial resources of any indemnifying parties;

+  Risk that indemnification related to businesses divested or spun-off that we may be required to provide or otherwise bear may be significant and
could negatively impact our business;
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»  Risk of exposure to potential liabilities arising out of applicable state and Federal fraudulent conveyance laws and legal distribution requirements
from spin-offs in which we or companies we have acquired were involved;

«  Risk that we may be responsible for U.S. Federal income tax liabilities related to acquisitions or divestitures;

+  Risk that we are not able to complete strategic divestitures on satisfactory terms and conditions, including non-competition arrangements applicable
to certain of our business lines, or within expected time frames;

= Potential loss of key employees or customers of the businesses acquired or to be divested; and

= Risk of diverting the attention of senior management from our existing operations.

The future results of our Brazilian operations may not meet our financial goals foliowing the unwinding of the Brazilian Venture.

On December 31,2018, we closed a transaction with Banco Bradesco to unwind the Brazilian Venture, Under this agreement, the Brazilian Venture
spun-off certain assets of the business that also provide services to non-Bradesco clients 1o a new whelly-owned FIS subsidiary. The subsidiary entered into a
long-term commercial agreement to provide cument and new services to Banco Bradesco effective January 1, 2019 that include software licensing,
maintenance, application management, card portfolio migration, business process outsourcing, fraud management and professional services. As a result of
the transaction, Bance Bradesco owns 100% ofthe entity that previously housed the Brazilian Venture and its remaining assets that relate to card processing
for Banco Bradesco, which Banco Bradesco wiil perform intemalily. The transaction is expected to result in an annualized reduction in FIS’ reported revenue
of approximately $225 million.

While FIS expects the net eamings from non-Bradesco customers and the cumrent and new services provided to Bradesco by FIS to largely replace the net
eammings lost from the unwinding of the Brazilian Venture, no assutance can be made in this regard, and FIS may faii to meet its financial goals 0 grow the
business following the closing of the transaction. Further. it is possible that existing non-Bradesco clients may reduce the amount of services we perform for
them following the unwinding of the Brazilian Venture, In addition, the costs of operating in Brazil on a stand-alone basis could be higher than we
anticipate.

For further detail on our Brazilian Venture see Note 16 of the Notes te Consclidated Financial Statements.
There could be significant liability for us ifali or part of the AS Split-Off were determined to be taxable for U.S. federal or state income tax purposes.

On March 31, 2014, SunGard completed the split-otf of its Availability Services ("AS") business to its existing stockholders, including its private equity
owners, on a tax-free and pro-rata basis (the “AS Split-Qff”). At the time SunGard received opiniens from outside tax counsel to the effect that the AS Split-Off
should qualify for tax-free treatment as transactions described in Section 355 and related provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended (the “Code™).
In addition, actions taken following the AS Split-Off, including the SunGard acquisition and certain 50 percent or greater changes by vote or value of the
stock ownership of the new entity conducting the AS business, may cause the AS Split-Off to be taxable to FIS. In connection with the SunGard acquisition,
we and SunGard received opinians of outside tax counsel to the effect that the SunGand acquisition should not cause the AS Split-offto fail to so qualify.

Notwithstanding the receipt of tax opinions, the tax-free treatment of the AS Split-oifis not free from doubt, and there is a risk that the Internal Revenue
Service (the “IRS™), a state taxing authority or a court could conclude to the contrary that the separation of the AS business from SunGard may not qualify as
tax-free transactions. An opinion of tax counsel is not binding on the IRS, state taxing authorities or any court and as a result there can be no assurance that a
tax authority will not challenge the tax-free treatment of all or part of the AS Split-Off or that, if litigated, 2 court would not agree with the IRS or a state
taxing authority. Further, these tax opinions rely on certain facts, assumptions, representations, warranties and covenants from SunGard, the new entity
conducting the AS business and from some of SunGard’s stockholders regarding the past and future conduct of the companies’ respective businesses, share
ownership and other matters. If any of the facts, assumptions, representations, wamanties and covenants on which the opiniens rely is inaccurate or
incomplete or not satisfied, the opinions may no longer be valid. Moreover, the IRS or state taxing authotity could determine on audit that the AS Split-Offis
taxable if it determines that any of these facts, assumptions, representations, warranties or covenants are not correct or have been violated or ifit disagrees
with one or more conclusions in the opinions or for other reasons.

ifthe AS Split-Off is determined to be taxable, we and possibly our stockholders could incur significant income tax liabilities. These tax liabilities could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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Actions taken by Sungard Availability Services Capital, Inc. or its stockholders could cause the AS Split-Off to fai { i
en, ' , Inc. -Off te fail to qualify as a tax-free ¢
and Sungard Availability Services Capital, Inc. may be unable to Sfully indemnify SunGard for the rcsnl:flg .n‘gm‘ﬁcfnt quliabij;‘l:ties.a ¢ fransaction

Ca ilt’;m;nam tos the Ta“x Sharing and Disaffiliation Agreement ("Tax Sharing Agreement") that SunGard entered into with Sungard Availability Services

pital, Inc. ("SpinCo"), SpinCo is required to indemnify SunGerd for certain taxes relating to the AS Split-Off that tesult fom (i) any breach of th
representatlogs or the covenants made by SpinCo regarding the preservation of the intended tax-froe reatmient of the AS Split-OfY, (i) any IGI}I.I!!! orcum?uio:
that is inconsistent with the representations, statements, warranties and covenants provided to tax counsel in connection with their delivery of tax opinions to
SunGard with respect to the AS Split-Off, and (iii) any other action or omission that was likely to give rise to such taxes when taken, in each case, by SpinCo
or any of its subsidiaries. Conversely, if any such taxes are the result of such a breach or certain other actions or omissions by SunGard, SunGard would be
wholly responsible for such taxes. In addition, ifany part of the AS Split-Off fails to qualify for the intended tax-fiee treatment for reasons other than those for
which SunGard or SpinCo would be wholly responsible pursuant to the provisions described above, SpinCo will be obligated to indemnify SunGard for 23%
of the liability for taxes imposed in respect of the AS Split-Off and SunGard would bear the remainder of such taxes. If SpinCo is required to indemnify
SunGard for any of the foregoing reasons, SpinCo’s indemnification liabilitics could potentially exceed its net asset value and $pinCo may be unable to fully
reimburse or indemnify SunGard for its significant tax liabilities arising from the AS Split-Off as provided by the Tax Sharing Agreement.

We have substantial investments in recorded goodwill and other intangible assets as a result of prior acquisitions, and a severe or extended economic
downturn could cause these investments to become impaired, requiring write-downs that would reduce our operating income.

As of December 31, 2018, goodwill aggregated to $13.5 billion, or 57.0% of total assets, and other indefinite-lived intangible assets aggregated to $43
million, or 0.2% of total assets. Current accounting rules require goodwill and other indefinite-tived intangible assets 10 be assessed for impairment at least
annually or whenever changes in circumstances indicate potential itpaimment. Factors that may be considered a change in circumstance include significant
underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results, a significant decline in our stock price and market capitalization, and negative
industry or economic trends. The results of our 2018 annual assessment of the recoverability of goodwill indicated that the fair values of the Company’s
repoiting units were in excess of the carrying values of those reporting units, and thus no goodwill impairment existed as of December 31, 2018, Likewise,
the fair value of indefinite-lived intangible assets was also in excess of the camrying value of those assets as of December 31, 2018. However, if worldwide or
United States economic conditions decline significantly with negative impacts to bank spending and consumer behavior, or if other business or market
changes impact our outlook, the carrying amount of our goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets may no longer be recoverable and we may be
required to record an impaimment charge, which would have a negative impact on our results of operations.

As of December 31, 2018, intangible assets with finite useful lives aggregated to $3,089 miltion, or 13.0% of total assets. Current accounting ruics
require intangible assets with finite useful lives to be reviewed for impzirment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. Factors that may be considered a change in circumstance include significant underpetformance relative to historical or
projected future operating results, a significant decline in our stock price and market capitalization, and negative industry or economic trends.

We will continue to monitor the fair value of our intangible assets as well as our market capitalization and the impact of any economic downtum on our
business to determine if there is an impairment in future periods.

Risks Related to our Indebtedness

Our existing debt levels and future levels under existing fucilities and debt service requirements may adversely affect our financial condition or
operational flexibility and prevent us from fulfilling our obligations under our outstanding indebtedness.

As of December 31, 2018, we had total debt of approximately $9.0 billion. This level of debt or any increase in our debt level could have adverse
consequences for our business, financial condition, operating results and operational flexibility, including the following: (i) the debt level may cause us to
have difficulty borrowing money in the future for wotking capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions or other purposes; (ii) our debt level may limit
operational flexibility and our ability to pursue business oppertunities and implement certain business strategies; (iii) some of our debt has a variable rare of
interest, which exposes us to the risk of increased inierest tates; (iv) we have a higher level of debt than some of our competitors or potential
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competitors, which may cause a competitive disadvantage and may reduce flexibility in responding to changing business and economic conditions,
including increased competition and vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry cenditions; (v) there are significant maturities en our debt that
we may not be able to repay at maturity or that may be refinanced at higher rates; and (vi) if we fail to satisfy our obligations under our outstanding debt or
fail to comply with the financial or other restrictive covenants contained in the indenture governing our senior notes, or our credit facility, an event of default
could result that could cause all of our debt to become due and payable.

We may be adversely affected by changes in LIBOR reporting practices or the method in which LIBOR is determined.

As of December 31, 2018, we had outstanding approximately $208 million of variable debt that was indexed to the London Intetbank Offered Rate
("LIBOR"). On July 27,2017, the Financial Conduct Authority (the “FCA") announced its intention to stop persuading or compelling banks to submit rates
for calibration of LIBOR to the administrator of LIBOR after 2021. It is not pessible to predict the further effect of the rules or policies of the FCA, any
changes in the methods by which LIBOR is determined, or any other reforms to LIBOR that may be enacted in the United Kingdom, the European Union or
clsewhere. Any such developments may cause LIBOR to perform differently than in the past, or cease to exist, In addition, any other legal or regulatory
changes made by the FCA, ICE Benchmark Administration Limited, the European Money Markets Institute (formerly Euribor-EBF), the European
Commission or any other successor gevemance or oversight body, or future changes adopted by such body, in the method by which LIBOR is determined or
the transition from LIBOR to a successor benchmark rate may result in, among other things, a sudden or prolonged increase or decrease in LIBOR, a delay in
the publication of LIBOR, and changes in the rules or methodologies in LIBOR, which may discourage market participants from continuing to administer or
to participate in LIBOR's determination, and, in certain situations, could result in LIBOR no lenger being determined and published. If a published U.S.
dollar LIBOR rate is unavailable after 2021, the interest rates on our debt which is indexed to LIBOR will be determined using various alternative methods,
any of which may result in interest obligations which are more than or do not otherwise comrelate over time with the payments that would have been made an
such debt if U.S. dollar LIBOR was available in its current form. Further, the same costs and risks that may lead to the discontinuation or unavailability of
U.S. dollat LIBOR may make one or more of the alternative methods impossible or impracticable to determine. Any of these proposals or consequences could
have a material adverse effect on our financing costs.

Rising interest rates could increase our borrowing costs

Qurexposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to our shont-term commercial paper borrowings, Revolving Credit Facility and interest
rate derivatives. In the future we may have additional borrowings under existing or new variable-rate debt. Increases in interest rates on variable-rate debt
would increase our interest expense. A rising interest rate environment could increase the cost of refinancing existing debt and incurring new debt, which
could have an adverse effect on our financing costs.

Credir Ratings, if fowered Below investment grade, could adversely affect our cost of funds and liquidity

The Company maintains investment grade credit ratings from the major U.S. rating agencies on its senior unsecured debt (S&P BBB, Moody's Baa2,
Fitch BBB). as well as its commercial paper program (S&P A-2, Moody's P-2, Fitch F2). Failure to maintain investment grade rating levels could adversely
affect the Company’s cast of funds and liquidity and access to certain capital markets, but would not have an adverse effect on the Company’s ability to
access its existing Revolving Credit Facility.

Pleasc note that a security tating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities, that it may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by
the assigning rating organization, and that cach rating should be evaluated independently of any other rating.

Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

The statements contained in this Form 10-K or in our other documents or in oral presentations or other statements made by our management that are not
purely historical are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the U.S. federal securities laws. Statements that are not historical facts, inciuding
statements about anticipated financiai outcomes, including any eamings guidance of'the Company, business and market conditions, outlock, foreign
currency exchange rates, expected dividends and sharc repurchases, the Company’s sales pipeline and anticipated profitability and growth, as well as other
statements about our expectations, beliefs, intentions, of strategies regarding the future are forward-looking statements. These statements relate to fisture
events and our future results and involve a number of risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements are based on management's beliefs, as well as
assumptions made by, and information currently available to, management. Any statements that refer 10 beliefs, expectations, projections or other
characterizations of future events or circumstances and other statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements. In many cases, you can
identify forward-looking statements by
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terminclogy such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential” or “continue.” o the negative of
rhese: terms and other con-!parahle termmo!ogy. Actual results, peltfonnance orachi¢vement could differ materially from those contained in these forward-
looking statements. The risks and uncertainties that forward-looking statements are subject to include the foilowing without limitation:

:::n n:l;t:l;;: ;c::l\;md businesses will not be infegrated successfully, or that the integration will be more costly or more timeconsuming and complex

- therisk that cost savings and other synergies anticipated to be realized from acquisitions may not be fully realized or may take longer to realize than
expected;

+  therisk of doing business internationally;

+  changes in general econemic, business and political conditions, including the possibility of intensified international hostilities, acts of terrorism,
changes in either or both the United States and intemationai lending, capital and financial markets and currency fluctuations;

* theeffect oflegislative initiatives or proposais, statutory changes, governmental or other applicable regulations and/er changes in industry
requirements, including privacy and cybersecurity laws and regulations;

= the risks of reduction in revenue from the elimination of existing and potential customers due to consolidation in, or new laws or regulations
affecting, the banking, retail and financial services industries or due to financial failures or other setbacks suffersd by firms in those industries;

* changes in the growth rates of the markets for our solutions;

+  failures to adapt cur solutions to changes in technology or in the marketplace;

- intemal or external security breaches of our systems, including those relating to unauthorized access, theft, corruption or loss of petsonal
information and computer viruses and other malware affecting our software or platforms, and the reactions of customers, card associations,
govemment regulators and others to any such events;

+  therisk that implementation of software (including sofiware updates) for customers or at customer locations ar employee error i monitoring our
software and platforms may result in the corruption or loss of data or customer information, interruptien of business operations, outages, exposure to
liability claims or loss of customers;

= the reaction of cument and potential customers to communications from us or regulators regarding information security, risk management, intemal
andit or other matters;

*  competitive pressures on pricing related to the decreasing number of community banks in the U.S., the development of new disruptive technologics
competing with one or more of our solutions, increasing presence of intemational competitors in the U.S. market end the entry into the market by
global banks and global companies with respect to certain competitive solutions, each of which may have the impact ofunbundling individual
solutions from a comprehensive suite of solutions we provide to many of our customers;

* the failure to innovate in order to keep up with new emerging technologies, which could impact our solutions and our ability to attract new, or retain
existing, customers;

»  the failure to meet financial goals to grow the business in Brazil after the unwinding of the Brazilian Venture;

+  the risks of reduction in revenue from the loss of existing and/or potential customers in Brazil after the unwinding of the Brazilian Venture;

+  an opemtional or natural disaster at one of ourmajor operations centers; and

+  otherrisks detailed elsewhere in this Risk Factors section and in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Other unknown or unpredictable factors alse could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospecis. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are inherently
subject to uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict. Except as required by applicable law or regulation, we do not
undertake (and expressly disclaim) any obligation and do not intend to publicly update or review any of these forward-looking statements, whether as a result
of new information, firture events or otherwise. You should carefully consider the possibility that actual results may differ materially from our forward-

looking statements.

Items 1B, Unresaived Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Praperties

FIS’ corporate headquarters is located at 601 Riverside Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida. In addition, FIS owns or leases support centers, data processing
facilities and other facilities at approximately 177 locations. We believe our facilities and
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equipment are generally well maintained and are in good operating condition. We believe that the computer equipment that we own and our various facilities
ate adequate for our present and foreseeable business needs,

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is involved in varivus pending and threatened litigation matters related to its business and operations,
some of which include claims for punitive or exemplary damages. The Company believes no such currently pending or threatened actions are likely to have a
material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position. With respect to litigation in which the Company is involved generally, please note the
follawing:

+  These matters raisc difficult and complicated factual and legal issues and are subject to many uncertainties and complexities.

»  The Company revicws all of its litigation on an on-going basis and follows the authoritative provision for accounting for contingencies when
making accryal and disclosure decisions, A liability must be accrued if (a) it is probable that a liability has been incurred and {b) the amount of loss
can be reasonably estimated. If one of these critetia has not been met, disclosure is required when there is at least a reasonable possibility that a
material loss may be incurred. When assessing reasonably possible and probable outcomes, the Company bases decisions on the assessment of the
ultimate outcome following all appeals. Legal fees associated with defending litigation matters are expensed as incurred.

Indemnifications and Warranties

The Company generally indemnifies its clients, subject to certain limitations and exceptions, against damages and costs resulting from claims of patent,
copyright, or trademark infringement associated solely with its customers' use of the Company's software applications or services. Historically, the Company
has not made any material payments under such indemnifications, but continues to monitor the conditions that are subject to the indemnifications to identify
whether it is probable that a loss has occutred and would recognize any such losses when they are estimable. In addition, the Company warrants to customers
that its software operates substantially in accordance with the software specifications. Histerically, no material costs have been incurred related to software
warranties and no accruals for wamanty costs have been made.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
PART I
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol "FIS.”

As of January 31, 2019, there were approximately 10,660 shareholders of record of our common stock.

We currently expect to continue to pay quarterly dividends. However, the amount, declaration and payment of future dividends is at the discretion of the
Board of Directors and depends on, among other things, our investment opportunities, results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, future
prospects, and other factors that may be considered relevant by our Board of Directors, including legal and contractual restrictions. A regular quarterly
dividend of $0.35 per common share is payable on March 29, 2019, to shareholders of record as of the close of business on March 15, 2019.

ftem 12 of Part 1 contains information conceming securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans.

Our Board of Directors has approved a series of plans authorizing repurchases of our common stock in the open market at prevailing market prices or in
privately negotiated transactions, the most recent of which on July 20, 2017, authorized repurchases of up to $4.0 billion through December 31, 2020. This

share repurchase authorization replaced any existing share repurchase authorization plan. Approximately $2.7 billion of plan capacity remained available for
repurchases as of December 31, 2018.
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The following table summarizes purchases of equity securities by the issuer duting the three-month period ended December 31, 2018 {in millions. except
per share amounts):

Approximate dollar
value of shares that
Total cost of sharey may yst be
purchased as part of purchased under
Total number of Average price publicly announced the plans or
Month ended shares purchased paid per share plans or programs programs
October 31,2018 1.4 $ 10531 s 150 $ 2,680

There were no share repurchases in November and December 201 8.

The graph below compares the cumulative 5-year total retura of holders of Fidelity National Information Services, Inc.'s common stock with the
cumulative total retums of the S&P 500 index and S&P Supercap Data Processing & Outsourced Services index. The graph assumes that the value of the
investment in our common stock and in ¢ach index was $100 on December 31, 2013 and tracks it (including reinvestment of dividends) through December
31,2018,

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Fidelty National Information Services, inc., the S&P 500 Index,
and S&P Supercap Data Processing & Qutsourced Services

$250

i

$0 .
1213 1214 1218 1218 1217 12ns

—&— Fidelity National information Services, Inc.
---2—- S&P 500
— o — S&P Supercap Data Processing & Outsourced Services

*$100 imvested on 12/31/13 in stock or index, inchxding reirvestment of dividends.
Fiscal yoar ending December 31

CopyTight® 2019 Stenderd & Poor's, @ dmsion of S5&P Global. Al rights resafved.
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12/13 12/14 12/18 12/16 1217 12118
Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. 100.00 117.87 115.70 147.50 186.28 205.49
S&P 500 100.00 113.69 115.26 129.08 157.22 150.33
S4&P Supercap Data Processing & Outsourced Services 100.00 112.46 118.51 138.77 193,67 219.65

The stack price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicarive of future stock price performance.

Ttem 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected fnancial data set fuill below constitutes historical financial data of FIS and should be read in conjunction with "Item 7. Maragement’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” included elsewhere
in this report.

On Seplember 28, 2018, FIS euled iuto ay agiccinent with Banco Dradesee to unwind the Brozilion Venture. The transaction closed on December 31,
2018, As aresult of the transaction, the Brazilian Venlure spuu-off ceitain assets of the business that also provide services to non-Bradesco clients to a new
wholly-owned FIS subsidiary, Also as a result of the transaction, Banco Bradesco owns 100% of the entity that previously housed the Brazilian Venture and
its remaining assets that relate to card processing for Banco Bradesco, which Banco Bradesco will perform intemally. In the third quarter of 2018, FIS
incurred impairment charges of $95 million related to the expected disposal, including impairments of ifs contract intangible asset, goodwiil and its asscts
held for sale to fair value less cost to sell. Upon closing of the transaction, FIS recorded an additional pre-tax loss of $12 million related to the business
divested, removed FI$' noncontrolling interest balance of $90 mmillion, and recorded a $57 million increase to additional paid in capital for the business spun-
offinto the pew wholly-swned FIS subsidiary. The impaimment toss and pre-tax loss on disposal were recorded in the Corporate and Other segment. The
Brazilian Venrure business divesied was included wilhin the GFS segment as part of the consclidated Brazilian Venture results recorded by FIS through the
transaction date. The transaction did not meet the standard necessary to be reported as discontinued operations; therefore, the impairment loss, pre-tax loss
and related prior period eamings remain reported within eamings from continuing operations.

Effective August 31, 2018, FIS sold substantially all the assets of the Certegy Check Services business unit in North America, resulting in a pre-tax loss
of$54 million, including goodwill distributed through the sale of business of $43 million.

Effective January 1, 2018, we adopted the new revenue recognition accounting standard, Topic 606, as described further in "Item 7. Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Recent Accounting Pronouncements.” Amounts for the years ended December
31,2017,2016, and 2015 were recast to reflect our retrospective applications of the new standard.

On July 31,2017, FIS ¢losed on the sale of a majority ownership stake in its Capco consulting business and risk and compliance consulting business to
Clayton, Dubilier & Rice L.P., by and through certain funds that it manages ("CD&R"), for cash proceeds of approximately $469 million, resulting in a pre-
tax loss of $41 million. The divestiture is consistent with our strategy to focus on our IP-led businesses. CD&R acquired preferred units convertible into 60%
of the common units of the venture, Cardinal Holdings, L.P. ("Cardinal™ and FIS obtained common units representing the remaining 40%, in each case before
equity is issued to management. The prefetred units are entitled to a quarterly dividend at an annual rate of 12%, payable in cash (if available) or additional
preferred units at FIS' option. The businesses sold were included within the GFS and IFS segments, The sale did not meet the standard necessary to be reported
as discontinued operations; therefore, the pre<tax loss and related prior period eamings remain reported within eamings from continuing operations.

F1S' 4% ownership in Cardinal was initially valued al $172 millivi and was recorded as an cquity method investmont included within other noncurment
assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, After the sale on July 31,2017, FIS began to recognize the eamings in after-tax equity method investment earnings
outside of operating income and segment Adjusted EBITDA. For periods prior to July 31, 2617, the Capoo consulting business and risk and compliance
consulting business were included within operating income and segment Adjusted EBITDA.

On February 1, 2617, FIS completed the sale of the Public Sector and Education ("PS&E") business for $850 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of 385
million. The transaction included all PS&E solutions, which provided a comprehensive set of technology solutions to address public safety and public
administration needs of government entities as well as the needs of
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K-12 school districts. The divestiture is consistens with our strategy to serve the financiul services markets. Cash proceeds were used to reduce outstanding
debt (see Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Net cash proceeds, after payment of taxes and transaction-related expenses, were
approximately $500 million. The PS&E business was included in the Corporate and Other segment. The sale did not meet the standard necessary to be
reported as discontinued operations; therefore, the pre-tax gain and related prior period eamings remain reported within eamings from continuing operations.

On November 30, 2015, we completed the SunGard acquisition. The results of operations and financial position of SunGard are included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements since the date of acquisition.

During the second quarter of 2015, we s0ld certain assets associated with our gaming industry check warranty business, resulting in a pre-tax gain of
$139 millien, which is included in Other income {(expense), net. The sale did not meet the standard necessary to be reported as discontinued operations;
therefore, the gain and related prior period camings remain reported within eamings from centinuing operations.

We have engaged in share repurchases in the periods presented. In 2018, 2017, 2015 and 2014, we repurchased a total of approximately 12.0 million
shares for $1,215 million, 1.1 million shares for $105 million, 5§ million shares for $300 million and 9 millien shares for $476 million, respectively. There
were no share repurchases in 2016.

The effective tax rate for the 2013 period included the impact of the reduction in the U.§. federal income tax rate from 35% to 21% due to tax reform
enacted December 22, 2017, The effective tax rate for the 2017 period included a net benefit of $761 million related to tax reform items including $48
million of tax credits due to fax planning strategies implemented in the fourth quarter and a net detriment of $180 million due to the book basis in excess of
the tax basis of certain businesses sold during the year. The cffective tax rate for the 2015 period included 2 net detriment of $90 wiilion due to the book
basis in excess of the tax basis of a business sold during the year. The effective tax rate for the 2016 through 2014 periods did not include a net benefis for ihe
recognition of excess tax benefit for stock compensation as the effective date of ASU 2016-09 was for reporting periods beginning after Deceber 15,2016,
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Statement of Earnings Data:
Revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Asset impairments
Operating income
Tolal other income {expense), net

Farnings from continuing operations before income taxes and equity method
investment earnings {loss)

Provision (benefit} for income taxes
Equity method nvestient camnings (loss)

Eamings from continuing operations, net of tax
Earnings {loss} from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net earnings
Net (earnings) loss atiributable 1o noncontrelling interest
Net earnings atributable to FIS common stovkbolders

Net eamnings per share ~— basic from contiouing operations auributable to FIS common
stockholders

Net earnings (loss) per share — basic from discontinued operations atributable 1o FIS
common stockholders

Net earnings per share — basic attributable to FIS common stockholders *

Weighted average shares — basic

Net earnings per share — diluted from continuing eperations atiributable to FIS common
sockholders

Net earnings (loss) per share — diluted from discontinued aperations attributable to FIS
common stockholders

Net earnings per share — dilated attributable to FIS common stockholders *
Weighted average shares — diluted
Amounts attributable to FIS common stockholders:

Earnings from continuing operations, net of tax

Eamings (fossj from discontinued operations, net of tax

Net earnings entributable to FIS common stockholders

* Amounts may not sum due to reunding.

Yerr Ended December 31,
2018 017 016 018 2014
{In millions, except per share data)

3 8,423 8,668 5 8,831 6,260 % 6,413
5,569 5,794 5,895 4,471 4,327

1,854 21,874 2936 2,189 2,086

1,301 1,442 1,707 1102 815

95 — — — —

1,458 1,432 1,229 1,087 1,271
(354) (456) (392 (6D (218)

1,164 976 837 1,025 1,053

208 321) il 75 335

(15) (3) — — —

881 1,294 546 650 718
— — 1 7N (11)

881 1,294 547 643 707
(35) (33) (22) (19) (28)

5 846 1.261 s 525 624 § 679
3 2.58 3.82 1 1.61 2.21 s 242
- — — {0.03) (0.04)

s 2.58 3.82 § 1.6 2.19 % 2.38
328 3306 326 285 285

5 2.55 375 % 1.59 218 $ 239
— _ — (0.03) (0.043

b ] 2.55 3.7% H 1.59 2.16 5 235

332 336 3310 289 289

$ 846 1,261 1 524 631 $ 690
— — 1 (7) [$2})

$ 346 1,261 § 525 624 § 679
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Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents
Goodwill

Intangible asscts, net

Total assets

Total debt

Total FIS stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interest

Total equity

Cash dividends declared per share

Selected Quarterly Financial Data

Selected unaudited quarterly financial data is as follows:

2018
Revenue
Gross profit

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes and equity method
investment earnings (loss)

Net earnings attributable to FIS common stockholders

Net eamings per share — basic attributable to FIS common stockholders
Net earnings per share — diluted attributable to FI$ commen stockholders
2017

Revenue

Gross profit

Eamings from continuing operations before income taxes and equity method
investment camings {loss)

Net earnings attributable to FIS common stockholders

Net earnings per share — basic atiributable to FIS common stockholders
Net camings per share — diluted attributable to FIS commion stockholders
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As of December 31,
018 2017 016 2015 2014
{In millions, except per share data)
703 % 665 % 683 % 682 § 493
13,545 13,730 14,178 14,745 8,878
3,132 3,885 4,590 5,080 1,268
23,770 24526 26,026 26,185 14,521
8,985 8,763 10478 11,444 5,068
10,215 10,711 9,675 9298 6,557
7 109 104 86 135
10,222 10,820 9,779 9,384 6,692
128 § 1.16 § 1.04 § 1.04 § 0.96
Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 3 December 31
(I millions, except per share data)

s 2,066 $ 2106 % 2084 % 2,167
652 692 720 790
225 276 204 400
182 212 154 299
$ 055 % 064 S 047 % 092
$ 054 % 064 3 047 % 0.91
$ 2,148 % 2258 % 209 % 2,166
657 738 710 768
209 283 119 365
129 139 59 934
$ 039 % 042 % 018 % 231
$ 039 §% 042 $ 018 3 277
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following section discusses management’s view of the financial condition and resulis of operations of FIS and its consolidated subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016.

This section should be read in conjuncliva with the audited Consolidated Tinancial Statements and related Notes of FIS included clsewhore in this
Annyal Report. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cendition and Results of Operations contains forward-leoking statements. See
"Forward-Looking Statements" and "Risk Factors” for a discussion of the uncertainties, risks and assumptions associated with these forward-looking
statements that could cause future results to differ materially from those reflected in this section.

Overview

FIS is 4 global leadcr in finanvial servives technology, providing selutions and services to clients in the retail and institutional banking, payments,
capilal makels, asset management, and wealth and retirement markets, Through the depth and breadth of our solutiens portfolie, glebal capabilities and
domain expertise, FIS serves clicuts in wvir 130 countrics. [leadquaniered in Jacksonville, Florida, FIS employs more than 47,008 people worldwide and
holds leadership positions in payment processing, financial softwarc and banking solutions, Providing software, services and cutsourcing of the technology
that empowers the financial world, FIS is a Fortune 500 company and is 2 member of the Standard & Poor’s 500® Index,

We have grown vrganically, as well as through acquisitions, which have contributed critical applications and services that complement or enhance our
existing offerings, diversifying ouws icvenue by customer, geography and service offering. We evaluate possible acquisitions that might contribute to our
growth or performance on an ongoing basis.

FIS reports its financial performance based on three segments: Integrated Financial Solutions ("IFS"), Glebal Financial Solutiens ("GFS") and Corporate and
Other. A description of these segments is included in Note 19 to the Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements. Revenue by segment and the adjusted
EBITDA of our segments are discussed below in Segment Results of Operations.

Business Trends and Ceoditions

Our revenue is primarily derived from a combination of recurring technology and processing services, professional services and software license fees. The
majority of our revenue has Listorically been recuiring, and has been provided under multi year contmcts that contribute relative stability to our revenue
stream. These services, in genenal, are considered cutical to our elients’ operations. A considerablc portion of our recurring revenue is derived from transaction
processing fees that [luctuate with the level of accounts and card transactions, among other variable measures, associated with consumer, commercial and
tapital markews activity. Professional services tevenun 1s lypically non-rccuming, and sales of software licenses are less predictable, a portion of which con be
regarded as discretionary spending by ourclients.

We continue 1o assist financial institutions in migrating 10 outsourced integrated technolegy solutions to improve their profitability and address
increasing and vagoing regulatory requitements. As & provider of cutsourcing solutions, we benefit from multi yoor recuming revenus streams, which help
moderate the elfects ol bvader year-lo-year economic and markct changes that stherwise might have a larger impact on our results of operations. We belisve
our integrated solutions and outsourced services are well positioned to address this outsourcing trend across the markets we serve.

Over the last three years, we have moved approximately 50% of our server compute to our FIS cloud located in our strategic data centers and our goal is
1o increase that percentage to 65% by the eud of 2019 and 80% by the ¢nd of 2021. This allows us to further enhance security for our clients’ data and
increases the flexibility and speed with which we can provide services and solutions to out Jicats, cventually at lesser cost. Concurrently, we have continued
to consolidare our data centers, closing 10 additional data centers in 2018. Our consolidation has generated a savings for the Company ac of year-end 2018
exceeding $100 million in run rate annual expense reduction since the program’s inception in mid-2016. We plan to close and consolidate approximately 20
move data centers by 2021, which should result in additional mn rate annual expense reduction of about $150 million.

We confintue 1o invest in mmodemization, innovation and integrated solutions and services in order to meet the demands of the markets we serve and
compete with global banks, intemnational provides, and distuptive technology innovators. We invest both organically and through investment opportunities
in companies building compiementary technolugies in the (inancial scrvices space, Our internal efforts in research and development activities have related
primarily to the modernization of our proprictary core systems, design and development of next generation digital and innovative solutions and development
of
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processing oystems and related software applications and risk management platforms. We have increased our investments in these areas in each of the last
three years. We expect to continue our practice of investing an appropriate level of resources to maintain, enhance and extend the functionality of our
proprictary systems and existing software applications, to develop new and innovative sofiware applications and systems to address emerging technology
trends in response to the needs of our clients and to enhance the capabilities of our cutsourcing infrastructure.

Consuruer prefersnce continues to shift from traditional branch banking services to digital banking solutions, and our clients seek to provide a single
integrated banking experiznce through their branch, mobile, intemet and voice banking channels. We have been providing our large reginnal hanking
customers in the TLS. with Digital One, an integrated digital hanking platform, and are now adding fimetienality and offering Digital One to our community
bank clients 1o provvide a roansistent, ommichannel experience far consnmers nfhanking senrices acmss self-service channels like mobile hanking and nnline
banking, as well as supporting channels for bank staff aperating in bank hmnches and contact centers. The nmiform customer experience will extend to
suppott a broad range of financial services including opening new accounts; servicing of existing accounts; providing money movement services; perzonal
financial managemont; as well as a broad range of other conzunict, small business and commercial banking capabilitics. Digital One will be integrated into
and will cxtend tho coro banking platforms offered by FIS and will also be offercd to customers of non-FIS core banking systems.

We continua to see demand for innovative solutions in the payments market that will doliver faster, mero convenient payment selutions in mobile
channels, intemet applications and cards. We believe digital payments will grow and partially replace existing payment tender volumes over time as
consumets and merchants embrace the convenience, incremental services and benefits. Additionally, new formidable non-traditional payments competitors
and large merchants aro investing in and innovating digitsl paymoent technologies to addreas the emerging maret opportunity, and it is uncleor the extent to
which particulor technologies or servicos will succeed, Wo beliove the growih of digital payments continues to present both an opportunity and a rigk to us as
the market develops. Although we cannot predict which digital payment technologies or solutions will be successful, we cautiously believe our client
relationships, payments infrastructure and experience, adapted solutions and emerging solutions are well positioned to maintain or grow our clients' existing
payment volumes, which is our focus.

We anticipate congolidation within the banking industry will continue, primarily in the form of merger and acquisition activity among financial
institutions, which we believe as a whole is detrimental to our business. Howevet, consolidation resulting from specific merger and scquisition transactions
moy be beneficial to ourbusiness. When consolidations of financial institutions ocour, merger partners often operte systems obtained from competing
servicg providers. Tho newly formed entity generally makes a determination to migrate itz core and payments systems to a single platform. When a financial
institution processing cliont is involved in a conaclidation, we may benefit by their expanding the use of our services if such services are chosen to survive
the consolidation and support the newly combined entity, Conversaly, weo may lose revenue if we are providing services to both entities, orif a client of ours
is involved in o consolidation and our services are not chosen to survive the consolidation and support the newly combined entity. It is also posgible that
larger finangial institutions resulting from consolidation may have greater leverage in negotiating terms or could decide to perform in-house some or all of
the services that we currently provide or eould provide. We seek to mitigate the risks of conselidations by offering other competitive services to take
advantage of specific opportunities at the surviving company.

In certain of the intemational markets in which we do business, we continue to experience growth on a constant cutrency basis. Demand for our solutions
may also continue to be driven in developing countries by government-led financial inclusion pelicies aiming to reduce the unbanked papulation and by
growth in the middle clagses in these marketo driving the need for more eophisticated banking solutions. The majority of our intemational revenne is
generated by clients in Brazil, the United Kingdom, Germany, Canada and India. For the full year of 2019, we anticipate an approximate $45 million adverse
impact to rovenue duc to foreign gumrency translation, although the actual amount of impact is uncertain due to the many factors that affect exchange rates,

On December 31, 2018, FIS closed the transaction we previously announced to unwind the Brazilian Venture with Banco Bradesco. Under this
agreement, the Brazilian Venture spun off certein assets of the business that also provide services to non-Bradesco clients te 2 new wholly-owned FIS
subsidiary. This subgidiary entered inte a long term commercial agreement to provide cumrent and new services to Banco Bradesco effective Janyary 1,2019
that include software licensing, maintenance, applieation management, card portfolio migration, business precess outsourcing, fraud management and
professional services. As a result of the transaction, Banco Bradesoo owns 100% of the entity that previously housed the Brazilian Venturc and its remaining
assets that relate to card processing for Banco Bradesco, which Banco Bradesco will perform intemally. The transaction is expected to result in an annualized
reduction in FIS’ reported revenue of approximately $225 million. In addition, it resultsd in impaitment charges of $95 millien in the third quarter of 2018,
For further detail on our Brazilian
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Venture see Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and "Item 1 A. Risk Faciors” included elsewhere in this report.

Globally, attacks on information technology systems continue to grow in frequency, complexity and sophistication. This is a trend we expect to
continue. Such attacks have become a point of focus for individuals, businesses and govemmental entities. The objectives of these attacks include, among
othet things, gaining unauthorized access to systems to facilitate financial fraud, disrupt operations, causc denial of service events, corrupt data, and steal
non-public information. These circumstances present both a threat and an opportunity for FIS, As part of our business, we electronically receive, process, store
and transmit a wide range of confidential information, including sensitive customer information and personal consumer data. We alse operate payment, cash
access and prepaid card systems.

FIS remaias focused on making strategic investments in information security to protect our clients and our infonnation systems. This includes both
capital expenditures and operating expense on hardware, software, personnel and censulting services, We also participate in industry and governmental
initiatives to improve information security for our clients. Through the expertise we have gained with this ongoing focus and involvement, we have
developed fraud, security, risk management and compliance solutions to target this growth oppontunity in the financial services industry.

As described in Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, on July 31, 2017, we sold a2 majonty intercst in certain of our consulting
businesses to affiliates of CD&R. These businesses had lower margins than many of our other businesses, The consulting businesses sold were included
within the GFS and IFS segments. Also, on February 1, 2017, we sold our PS&E business, which had been inciuded in our Corporate and Other segment.
These divestitures affect the comparabitity of our results of operations for the 2018, 2017 and 2016 periods presented.

Critieal Accounting Policies

The accounting policies described below are those we consider critical in preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements. These policies require
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosurcs with respect to
contingent liabilities and assets at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periods, Actual amounts could differ from those estimates. See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a more detailed description of the
significant accounting policies that have been followed in preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenue in a number of ways, including from the delivery of account- or transaction-based processing, Saa$, BPaa§, cloud
offerings, software licensing, software-related services and professional services. We are frequently a party to multiple concurrent contracts with the same
client. These situations require judgmeant to determine whether the individual contracts should be combined or evaluated separately for putposes of revenue
recognition. In making this determination, we consider the timing of negoiiaiing and executing the contracts, whether the different elements of the contracts
are negotiated as a package with a single commercial objective, whether the solutions or services promised in the contracts are a single performance
abligation, and whether any of the payment tenms of the contracts are interrelated. Our individual contracts also frequently include multiple promised
solutions or services. At contract inception, we assess the sclutions and services promised in our contracts with customers and identify a performance
obligation for each promise to transfer to the customer a solution or service {or bundle of solutions or services) that is distinct - i.e., if a solution or service is
separately identifiable from other items in the bundled package and if a customer can benefit from it on its own or with other resources that are readily
available to the customer. We must apply judgment in these circumstances in determining whether individual promised solutions or services can be
considered distinct or should instead be combined with other promised solutions or services in the contract. We recognize revenue when or as we satisfy a
performance obligation by transferming control of a solution or service to a customer. We must use judgment te determine the appropriate measure of progress
for performance obligations satisfied over time and the timing of when the customer obtains control for performance obligations satisfied at a point in time.
Judgment is also required in estimating and allocating variable consideration to one or more, but not all, performance obligations in a contract, determining
the standalone selling prices of each performance obligation, and allocating the transaction price te each distinct performance obligation in a contract.

Due to the large number, broad nature and average size of individual contracts we are party to, the impact of judgments and assumptions that we apply in
recognizing revenue for any single contract is not likely to have a material effect on our consolidated operations or financial position. However, the broader
accounting pelicy assumptions that we apply across similar contracts or classes of clients could significantly influence the timing and amount of revenue
recognized in our historical and
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tuture t?.sults uf_ opetgtions or financial position. Additional information about our revenue recogmition policies ts included in Note 2 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Computer Software

Computer software includes the fiir value of sofiware acquired in business combinations, purchased software und capitalizsd sofware devalopment
costs. Purchased software is recorded at cost and amortized using the straight-line method overits estimated useful life, which is generally three to five years.
Software acquired in business combinations is recorded at its fair value and amortized using straight-line or accelerated methods over its estimated useful life,
which is three to 10 years {as discussed below in the Critical Accounting Policy section Purchase Aecounting). As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, computer
software, net of accumulated amortization, was $1.8 billion and $1.7 billion, respectively, and amortization of computer software was $468 million, $436
million, and $396 million for the years ended December 31,2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively. Balances related to acquired sofiware represent a significant
portion ofthese balances, particularly for the periods after the acquisition of SunGard, which resulted in acquired software of $674 million.

The capitalization of software development costs is govemed by FASB ASC Subtopic 985-20 if the software is to be sold, lcased or otherwise marketed,
or by FASB ASC Subtopic 350-40 if the software is for internal use, After the technological feasibility of the software has been established (for software to be
marketed), or at the beginning of application development (for intemal-use software), software development costs, which include primarily salaries and
related payroll costs and costs of independent contractors incurred during development, are capitalized. Research and development costs incurred prior to the
establishment of technological feasibility (for software to be marketed), or prier to application development (for intemal-use software), are expensed as
incurred. Evaluating whether technological feasibility has been achieved requires the use of management judgment.

Software development costs are amortized on a product-by-product basis commencing on the date of general release of the solutions (for software to be
marketed) or the date placed in service (for internal-use software). Software development costs for software to be marketed are amortized using the greater of
(1) the straight-line method over its estimated useful life, which ranges from three to 10 years, or (2) the ratio of current revenues to total anticipated revenues
over its usefal life.

In determining useful lives, management considers historical results and technological trends that may influence the estimate. Useful lives for all
computer software range from three to 10 years.

We also assess the recorded value of computer software for impairment on a regular basis by comparing the carrying value to the estimated future cash
flows to be generated by the underlying software asset (for software to be marketed). There are inherent uncertainties in determining the expected useful life
or cash flows to be generated from computer software. For the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively, we have not had more than
minimal charges for impairments of software. While we have not historically experienced significant changes in these balances due to changes in estimates,
our results of operations could be subject to such changes in the future.

Purchase Accounting

‘We are required to allocate the purchase price of acquired businesses to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction at their estimated
fair values. The estimates used to determine the fair value of long-lived assets, such as intangible assets or computer software, are complex and require a
significant amount of management judgment. We generally engage independent valuation specialists to assist us in making fair value determinations,

Ifthe initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, we are required to
record provisional amounts in the financial statements for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Adjustments to provisional amounts inittally
recorded that are identified during the measurement petiod are recognized in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined. This
includes any effect on eamings of changes in depreciation, amettization, or other income effects as a result of the change to the provisional amounts,
caiculated as if the accounting had been completed at the acquisition date. During the measurement period, we are also required to recognize additional
assets o liabilities if new information is obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have resulted in
the recognition of those assets and liabilities as of that date. The measurement period ¢nds the sooner of one year from the combination date or when we
receive the information we were seeking about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date or we learn that more information is not
obtainable. ’

We are also required to estimate the useful lives of intangible assets to determine the amount of acquisition-related intangible asset amortization expense
to record in future periods. We periodically review the estimated useful lives assigned to
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our finite-lived intangible assets to determine whether such estimated useful lives continue to be appropriate. Additionally, we review our indefinite-lived
intangible assets to detenmnine if there is any change in circumstances that may indicate the asset’s useful life is ne longer indefinite,

We had no significant business combinations during the 2018 and 2017 periods.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations. Goodwill and
other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives should not be amortized, but shall be tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if circumstances
indicate potential impairment. FASB ASC Subtopic 350-20 allows an entity first to assess qualitatively whether it is more likely than not that a reporting
unit's cammying amount exceeds its fair value, referred to in the guidance as "step zero.” If an entity concludes that it is more likely than not that a reporting
unit'’s fair value is less than its camrying amount (that is, a likelihood of more than 50 percent), the "step one” quantitative assessment st be performed for
that reporting unit. FASB ASC Subtopic 350-20 provides examples of events and circumstances that should be considered in performing the step zero
qualitative assessment, including macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors, overall financial performance, events affecting
a reporting unit or the entity as a whole and a sustained decrease in share price. Performance of a qualitative impairment assessment requires judgment.

in applying the quantitative analysis, we determine the fair value of our reporting units based on a weighted average of multiple valuation techniques,
principally a combination of an income approach and a market approach. The income approach calculates a value based upon the present value of estimated
future cash flows, while the market approach uses eamings multiples of similarly situated guideline public companies. If the fair value of a reporting unit
exceeds the camrying value of the reporting unit’s net assets, goodwill is not impaired and further testing is not required.

We assess goodwill for impairment on an annual basis duting the fourth quarter or more frequently if circumstances indicate potential impairment. For
each 0£2018, 2017, and 2016, we began out anhual impairment test with the step zero qualitative assessment. In performing the step zero qualitative
assessment for each year, examining those factors most likely to affect our valuations, we concluded that it remained more likely than not that the fair value
of each of our reporting units continued to exceed their carrying amounts. Consequently, we did not perform a step one quantitative assessment specifically
for the purpose of our annual impairment test for these years.

Similar to the FASB ASC Subtopic 350-20 guidance for goodwill, FASB ASC Subtopic 350-30 allows an organization to first perform a qualitative
assessment of whether it is more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset has been impaired. We assess indefinite-lived intangible assets for
impainment on an antual basis during the fourth quarter or fnore frequently if circumstances indicate potential impairment. For 2016, we engaged
independent specialists to perform a valuation of our indefinite-lived intangible assets, using a form of income approach valuation known as the relieffrom-
royalty methad. There was substantial excess of fair value over camying value for our indefinite-lived intangible assets in the 2016 independent valuations.
Based upon this quantitative assessment performed, there was no impaimment for 2016. For each 0f 2018 and 2017, we performed a qualitative assessment
examining those factors most likely to affect our valuations and concluded that it remained more likely than not that our indefinite-lived intangible assets
wete not impaired. Consequently, we did not perform a quantitative impairment assessment specifically for the purpose of our annual impairment test for
either of these years.

Determining the fair value of a reporting unit or acquired infangible assets with indefinite lives involves judgment and the use of significant estimates
and assumptions, which include assumptions regarding forecasted revenue growth rates, operating margins, capital expenditures, tax rates, and other factors
used to calculate estimated future cash flows. In addition, risk-adjusted discount rates and future economic and market conditions and other assumptions are
applied. Goodwill was $13.5 billion and $13.7 billion as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and indefinite-lived intangible assets were $43
million and $48 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2817, respectively. As a result, 2 meaningful change in one or more of the underlying forecasts,
estimates, or assumptions used in testing these assets for impairment could result in a material impact on the Company's results of operations and financial
position. However, because there was a substantial excess of fair value over carrying value in our previous independent valuations performed in 2015 for
goodwill and 2016 for indefinite-lived intangible assets, we believe the likelihood of obtaining materially different results based on a change of assumptions
is low.

Related Party Transactions
We are a party to certain historical related party agreements as discussed in Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Factors Affecting Comparability

For information regarding factors affecting comparability, see "ltem 6. Sefected Financial Data.” As a result of the transactions noted in Item 6. Selected

Fingncial Data, our financial position, results of operations, camings per share and cash flows in the periods covered by the Consolidated Financial
Statements may net be directly comparable,
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Consolidated Results of Operations
(in millions, except per share amounts)

2018 2017 2016
Revenue $ 8423 § 8,668 § 8,831
Cost of evenue 5,569 5,794 5,895
Gross profit 2,854 2,874 2,936
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,301 1,442 1,707
Asset impairments 95 — —
Operating income 1,458 1432 1,229
Other income {expense):
Interest income 17 22 20
Interest expense (314) (359) (403)
Other income {expense), net (57) (11%) %)
Total other income (expense), net (354) {456) (392)
Eatnings from continuing operations before income taxes and equity method investment eamings
(loss) 1,104 976 837
Provision {benefit) for income taxes 208 {321) 291
Equity method investment eamings (loss) {15) 3 —
Eamings from continuing operations, net of tax 881 1,294 546
Eamings {losg) from discontinued operations, net of tax —_ —_ 1
Net eamings 881 1,294 547
Net (eamings) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (35) {33) 22)
Net eamings attributable to FIS common stockholders $ 846 3 1,261 % 525
Net camings per share — basic from continuing operations attributable to FIS common stockholders  $ 258 % 382 § 1.61
Net eamings (loss) per share -— basic from discontinued operations attributable to FIS common
stockholders — — _
Net eamings per share — basic attributable 1o FIS common stockholders * $ 258 % 382 % 1.61
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic 328 330 326
Net earnings per share — diluted from continuing operations attributable to FIS common
stockholders £ 255 % 375 8§ 1.59
Net eamings (loss) per share — diluted from discontinued operations attributable to FIS common
stockkelders — — —
Net earnings per share — diluted attributable to FIS common stockholders * b 255 § 375 § 1.59
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted 332 336 330
Amounts attributable to FIS common stockholders:
Eamings from continuing operations, net oftax 5 846 § i,261 $% 524
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax — — 1
Net eamings attributable to FIS common stockholders $ B46 % 1,261 $ 525

* Amounts may not sum due to rounding.

Revenue

Revenue for 2018 decreased $245 million, or 2.8% from 2017, due 10 (1) the reduction in revenue from the sale of the Capco consulting business and the
risk and compliance consulting business during the third quarter of 2017; (2} the reduction in revenue from the sale of the PS&E business during the first
quarter 6f2017; and (3) the reduction in revenue from the sale of the Certegy Check Services business unit in North America during the third quarter of2018.
This decrease was partially offset by (1) increased volumes in banking and wealth solutions (excluding the effects of the sale of the risk and compliance
consulting business); (2) increased sales for GFS banking snd payments solutions; (3} growth in corporate and digital solutions;
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(4) growth in retail payments; and (5) payments growth in Latin Ametica Additionally, 2018 was impacted by a $40 million unfa i
( h in 1 : . rable fc
impact primarily resulting from 2 stronger U.S. Dollar versus the Brazilian Real. P ¢ vemple forign cueney

Revenue for 2017 decreased $163 million, or 1.8% from 2016, due to the reduction in revenue from the sale of the PS&E business during the first quarter
of 2917 and the sale of the Capco consulting business and the risk and compliance consulting business during the third quarter of 201 7. These decreases were
partially offset by (1) increased volumes in banking and wealth solutions (excluding the effects of the sale of the risk and somplinnce consulting Business);
{2) volume growth in payment solutions in Brazil; (3) continued growth with our existing customers for our post-trade derivative solutions; and (4) growth in
corporate and digital solutions. The 2017 period also benefited from a lower purchase accounting adjustment, as compared to the 2016 period, to reduce
SunGard acquired deferred revenue to fair value and a $16 million favorable foreign cumrency impact primarily resulting from a stronger Brazilian Real versus
the U.S. Dollar, partially offset by a weaker Pound Sterling. See “Segment Results of Operations” for more detailed explanation.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

Cost of revenues totaled $5,569 million, $5,794 million and $5,895 million during 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, resulting in gross profit of $2,854
million, $2,874 million and $2,936 million, respectively. Gross profit as a percentage of revenues ("gross margin™) was 33.9%, 33.2% and 33.2% in 2018,
2017 and 2016, respectively. The decrease in gross profit for 2018 as compared to 2017 primarily resulted from the revenue variances noted above. The gross
profit percentage for 2018 as compared to 2017 bencfited from higher margin software licenses and the realization of ungeing expense synergies.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for 2018 decreased $141 million, or 9.8% from 2017. The year-overyear decrease is primarily driven by the
sale of PS&E during the first quarter 0£ 2017, the sale of the Capco consulting business and risk and compliance consulting business during the third quarter
of 2017, the sale of Certegy Check Services business unit in North America during the third quarter 0f2018 and cost management initiatives.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for 2017 decreased $265 million, or 15.5% from 2016, primarily driven by the sale of PS&E dusing the first
quarter of 2017, the sale of the Capco consulting business and risk and compliance consulting business during the third quarter of 2017 and integration and
cost management initiatives.

Operating Income

Operating income totaled $1,458 million, 81,432 millior: and $1,229 million for 2018,2017 and 2016, respectively. Operating income as a percentage
of revenue ("operating margin*) was 17.3%, 16.5% and 13.9% for 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The annual changes in operating income resulted from
the revenue and cost variances addressed above. The change in operating margin during 2018 was negatively impacted by asset impairments of $95 million
related to the unwinding of the Brazilian Venture. Notwithstanding the asset impairments, however, operating margins improved primatily from cost
management initiatives and the Capco consuiting business divestiture during 2017. The increase in operating margin from 2017 as compared to 2016

resulted primarily from integration and cost management initiatives.
Total Other Income (Expense), Nes

Interest expense is typically the primary component of total other income (expense), net.

The decrease of $45 million in interest expense in 2018 as compared to 2017 is primarily due to a lower weighted-average interest rate on the
outstanding debt and benefits realized from interest rate swaps executed in the fourth quarter of 2018, which are discussed in Note 11 of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial S$tatements.

The decrease of $44 million in interest expense in 2017 as compared to 2016 is primarily due to lower outstanding debt and lower weighted-average
intetest rate on the outstanding debt.

Other income {expense), net for 2018 includes a pre-tax loss of $54 million on the sale of the Certegy Check Services business unit in Nonth America and
$12 million to unwind the Brazilian Venture, partially offset by a pre-tax gain of $19 million on the sale of Reliance Trust Company of Delaware.

Other income (expense), net for 2017 includes (1) a pre-tax charge of $171 million in tender premiums and the write-off of previously capitalized debt
issuance costs on the repurchase of approximately $2,000 million in aggregate principal of debt
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securities; (2) a net pre-tax loss of $29 million on the sale of the Capce consulting and risk and compliance business ang other divestitures; (3) a pre-tax
charge of approximately $25 million due to the redemption of the Senior Notes due March 2022 and the pay down ofthe 2018 Term Loans, consisting of the
call premium on the Senior Notes due March 2022 and the write-off of previously capitalized debt issuance costs; partially offset by (4) a pre-tax gain of $85
million on the sale of the PS&E business, an $8 million pre-tax gain on an investment sale and a $12 million foreign currency gain.

During 2016, FIS paid down the 2017 Term Loans and partially paid down the 2018 Term Loans resulting in a pre-tax charge upon extinguishment of
approximately $2 million due to the write-off associated with previously capitalized debt issue costs. Additionally in 2016 as a result of these debt pay
downs, FIS terminated interest rate swaps with a notional amount totaling $1,250 million resulting in a pre-tax loss of §2 million due to the release of fair
value changes from other comprehensive earnings.

Provision (Benefit} for Income Taxes

Provision {benefit) for income taxes from continuing operations totaled $208 million, $(321) million and $281 million for 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, This resulted in an effective tax rate on continuing operations of 18.8%, (32.9)% and 34.8% for 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The
effective tax mate for the 2018 period included the impact of the reduction in the U.S. federal income tax rate from 35% to 21% due to tax reform enacted
December 22, 2017, and a net detriment of $33 million due to the book basis in excess of the tax basis of centain businesses sold during the year. The
effective tax rate for the 2017 period included a net benefit of $761 miflion related to tax reform items including $43 million oftax credits due to tax
planning strategies implemented in the fourth quarter and a net detriment of $180 million due to the book basis in excess of the tax basis of certain
businesses sold during the year. The effective tax rate for the 2016 period did not include a net benefit for the recognition of excess tax benefit for stock
compensation as the effective date of ASU 2016-09 was forreporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016.

Egquity Method Investment Earnings (Loss)

On July 31,2017, FIS obtained a 40% equity interest in Cardinal as further described in Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. As a
result, we recorded equity method investment losses of §15 million and $3 million during the years ended December 31,2018 and 2017, respectively.

Earnings (Lassj from Discantinued Operations, Net of Tax
During 2018, 2017 and 2016, operations for Participacoes, our former item processing and remittance services business in Brazil are classified as

discontinued operations. Reporting for discontinued operations classifies revenues and expenses as one line item, net of tax, in the Consolidated Statements
of Eamings. The table below outlines discontinued operations for 2018, 2017 and 2016, net of tax {in millions):

Earnings (Joss). netoftax 2018 2017 2016

Participacoes operations 3 — § — 5 1

Participacoes had no revenue in 2018, 2017 and 201 6. Participacoes' processing volume were transitioned to other vendors or back to its clients during
the second quarter of 201 1. Participacoes had camings (losses) before taxes of $(1) million, $0 million and $2 million during the years ended December 31,
2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The shut-down activitics involved the transfer and termination of approximately 2,600 employees, which was completed
in 2011. Former employees generally had up to two years from the date of terminations, extended through April 2013, to file labor claims and a number of
them did file labor claims, As of December 31, 2018, there were approximately 346 active claims remaining. Consequently, we have continued exposure on
these active claims, which were not transferred with other assets and liabilities in the disposal.

Net (Earnings) Loss Ateributable to Noncontrolling Interest

Net (eamings) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest predeminantly relates to the joint venture in Brazil {se¢ Notes 15 and 16 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements) and totaled $(35) million, $(33) million and $(22) million for 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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Net Earnings Attributable to FIS Common Stockholders

Net earnings attributable te FIS common stockholders totaled $846 million, $1,261 million and $524 million for 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, or
$2.55,$3.75 and $1.59 per diluted share, respectively, due to the factors described above coupled with the impact of our share repurchase initiatives.

Segment Results of Operations

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA (defined as net eamings (foss) before net interest expense, income tax provision (benefit) and depreciation and
amortization) plus certain non-operating items. This measure is reported to the chief operating desision maker for purposes of making decisions about
allocating resources to the segments and assessing their performance. For this reason, Adjusted EBITDA, as it relates to our segments, is presented in
conformity with FASB ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting, The non-operating items affecting the segment profit measure generally include acquisition
accounting adjustments; acquisition, integration and certain other costs, and asset impairment, For consolidated reporting purposes, these costs and
adjustments are recorded in the Corporate and Other segment for the periods discussed below. Adjusted EBITDA for the respective segments excludes the
foregoing costs and adjustments. Fingncial information, including details of our adjustments to EBTTDA, for each of our segments is set forth in Note 19 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Integrated Financial Solutions

2018 1m7 2016
(In milllons)
Revenue $ 4401 $ 4,260 $ 4,178
Adjusted EBITDA $ 1,962 § 1,874 § 1,792

Year ended December 31,2018:

Revenue increased $141 miilion, or 3.3%, due to (1) increased volumes in banking and wealth solutions (excluding the effects of the sale of the risk and
compliance consulting business) contributing 2.0%; (2) growth in retail payments contributing 1.2%; and (3) growth in corporate and digital solutions
contributing 0.7%. These items were partially offset by the sale of the risk and compliance consulting business contributing (0.6)%.

Adjusted EBITDA increased $88 million, or 4.7%, primarily resulting from the revenue variances noted above and continued cost management
initiatives. Adjusted EBITDA margin increased 6{ basis points to 44.6% primarily driven by a revenue mix shift and operating efficiencies.

N

Year ended December 31,2017

Revenue increased $82 million, or 2.0%, due to (1} increased demand in banking and wealth solutions (excluding the effects of the sale of the risk and
compliance consulting business) contributing 2.9%; (2} growth in payment solutions excluding the card production business contributing 0.7%:; (3) growth
in corporate and digital solutions contributing 0.9%; partially offset by (4) the decline and sale of the risk and compliance consulting business contributing
{1.4)%:; and (5) the slow-down in card production activities associated with the roll-out of EMV contributing (1.2)%.

Adjusted EBITDA increased $82 million, or 4.6%, primarily resulting from the revenue variances noted above. Adjusted EBITDA margin increased 110
basis points to 44.0% primarily resulting from the favorable revenue mix shift and continued cost management,

Global Financial Solutions

2818 2017 2016
{In millions)
Revenue $ 3718 % 4050 $ 4,183
Adjusted EBITDA s 1,391 8 1323 § 1,211
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Year énded Decembeyr 31, 2018:

Revenue decreased 3332 million. or 8.2%, primarily due to (1) the sale of the Capco consulting business and other divestitures contributing (9.1)% and
(2) unfavorable foreign currency impact contributing (1.0)% or approximately $42 million driven primarily by a stronger U.S. Dollar versus the Brazilian
Real, partially offset by (1) growth in GFS banking and payments solutions in North America contributing 0.9%; and (2) payments growth in Latin America
contributing [.1%.

Adjusted EBITDA increased $68 million, or 5.1%, primarily resulting from favorable revenue mix and continued cost management initiatives. Adjusted
EBITDA margins increased 470 basis points to 37.4%, resulting from the positive impact of the Capco consulting business divestiture during 2017, as well as
continued cost management initiatives.

Year ended December 31, 2017;

Revenue decreased $133 million, or 3.2%, primarily due to the sale of the Capco consulting business contributing (5.4)%, partially offset by continued
growth in out post-trade derivatives utility contributing 0.6%, volume growth in payment solutions in Brazil contributing 0.9% and a favorable carrency
impact contributing 0.4% primarily resulting from a stronger Brazilian Real versus the U.S. Dollar, partially offset by a weaker Pound Sterling,

Adjusted EBITDA increased $112 million, or 9.2%, primarily resulting from higher margin revenue and the realization of ongoing expense synergies.
Adjusted EBITDA margins increased 370 basis points to 32.7% primarily resulting from growth in higher margin licenses, the divestiture of the Capco
consulting business, as well as realization of ongoing expense synergies.

Corporate and Other
2018 2017 2016
(In millions)
Revenue $ 304 8 358 % 470
Adjusted EBITDA $ (220) % (213) % (148)

The Corporate and Other segment results consist of selling, general and administrative expenses and depreciation and intangibie asset amormization not
otherwise allocated to the reponable segments. Corporate and Qther also includes operations from the Global Commercial Services business and non-
strategic businesses, including the PS&E business (which was divested on February 1, 2017) and the Certegy Check Services business unit in North America
{which was divested on August 31, 2018).

Year ended December 31,2018:

Revenue decreased $54 million, or 15.1%, and was primarily due to the sale of the PS&E business during the first quarter of 2017 and Certegy Check
Services business unit in North America during the third quarter of 2018.

Adjusted EBITDA decreased $7 million, or 3.3%, primarily resulting from the reduction in revenue from the sale of the PS&E business during the first
quarter 0f 2017 and Certegy Check Services business unit in North America during the third quarter of 2018, pantially offset by a reduction in infrastructure
technology expenses and the early results of our data center consolidation program.

Year ended December 31,2017:

Revenue decreased $112 million, or 23.8%, primarily due to the sale of the PS&E business during the first quarter 62017 and a decline in the Global
Commercial Services business, partially offset by lower 2017 SunGard purchase accounting impact on deferred revenue (all of which was recorded as a
contra-revenue item in the Corporate and Other segment).

Adjusted EBITDA decreased $65 miilion, or 43.9%, primarily resuiting from the reduction in revenue from the sale of the PS&E business during the first
quarter 02017, partially offset by integration and cost management initiatives.
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Liquidity and Capita] Resources
Cash Requirements

) Our ongcin_g cash requirements inclede operating expenses, income taxes, mandatory debt service payments, capital expenditures, stockholder
dividends, working capital and timing differences in settlement-related assets and liabilities, and may include discrationary debt repayments, sham
repurchases and business acquisitions. Our principal sources of funds are cash generated by operations and botrowings, including the capacity under our
Revolving Credit Facility and the Commercial Paper Program described in Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

As of December 31, 2018, we had cash and cash equivalents of $703 million and debt of $8,985 million, including the current portion, net of capitalized
debt issuance costs. Of the $703 million cash and cash equivalents, approximately $340 million is held by our foreign entities. The majority of our domestic
cash and cash equivalents represents net deposits-in-transit at the balance sheet dates and relates to daily settlement activity. We expect that cash and cash
equivalents plus cash flows from operations over the next 12 months will be sufficient to fund our operating cash requirements, capital expenditures and
mandatory debt service,

We currently expect to contintc to pay quarterly dividends, However, the amount, declaration and payment of future dividends is at the discretion of our
Board of Directors and depends on, among other things, our investment opportunities, results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, future
progpects, and other factors that may be considered relevant by our Board of Directors, including legal and contractual restrictions. Additionally, the payment
of cash dividends may be limited by covenants in certain debt agreements. A regular quarterly dividend of $0.35 per common share is payable cn March 29,
2019 to shareholders of record as of the close of business on March 15, 2019,

On July 20,2017 our Board of Directors approved a plan authorizing repurchases ofup to $4.0 billion of our outstanding common stock in the open
market at prevailing market prices or in privately negotiated transactions through December 31, 2020. This share repurchase awthorization replaced any
existing share repurchase authorization,

Cash Flows frem Operations

Cash flows from operations were $1,993 million, $1,741 million and $1,925 millio1 in 2018, 2017 and 2016 respectively. Our net cash provided by
operating activities consists primarily of net eamings, adjusted to add back depreciation and amortization. Cash flows from operations increased $252
million in 2018 and decreased $184 million in 2017. The 2018 increase in cash flows from operations is primarily due to lower trade receivables from
increased collections resulting from a reduction in days sales outstanding. These increases were partially offset by U.5. feder| estimated income tax
payments nommzlly due in the third and fourth quarters of 2017 that were paid during the first quarter of 2018 due to the Hurricane Irma Relief Program and
timing of working capital. The 2017 decrease in cash flows from operations is primarily due to increased trade receivables resulting from timing differences in
billing and collections and increased deferred contract costs.

Capital Expenditures and Other Investing Activities
Our principal capital expenditures are for computer software (purchased and intemally developed) and additions to property and equipment. We invested
approximately 3622 million, $613 million and $616 million in capital expenditures (excluding capital leases and other financing obligations) during 2018,

2017 and 2016, respectively. We expect to invest approximately 7.5% of 2019 revenue in capital expenditures.

In 2017, cash flows from investing activitics included proceeds from the sale of businesses and investments primarily relating to the sale of PS&E and the
Capco consulting and risk and compliance businesses.

Financing
For more information regarding the Company's debt and financing activity, see Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Contractual Obligations

FIS’ long-term contractual obligations generally include its long-term debt, interest on long-term debt, lease payments on certain of its property and
cquipment and payments for data processing and mainterance. For information regarding the
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Company's long-term debt, see Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The following table summarizes FIS’ significant coniractual
obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2018 {in millions):

Payménts Due in

Less than -3 3-5 More than

Type of Obligation Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Long-term debt (1) 3 8816 % 48 3 2,556 § 1,590 % 4,622
Interest (2) 2,882 293 574 460 1,555
Operating leascs 480 121 184 89 36
Data processing and maintenance 372 169 169 34 —
Other contractual obligations (3) T 2 3 2 —_—
Total 3 12,557 % 633 % 3486 $ 2,175 % 6,263

(1) The ptincipal amounts assume no changes in currency rates for our foreign notes relating to EUR and GBP,

(2) The calculations above assume that {a) applicable margins and commitment fees remain constant; (b) all variable-rate debt is priced at the rates in effect as of December 31,
2018; (c) no refinancing occurs at debt maturity; (d) only mandatory debt repayments are made; () no new hedging transactions are effected; and (f) there are no currency
effects.

(3} Amount includes the estimated payment for labor claims related (o FIS' former item processing and remittance operations in Brazil.

FIS believes that its existing cash balances and cash flows from operatiens will provide adequate sources of liquidity and capital resources to meet FIS”
expected liquidity needs for the operations of its business and expected capital spending for the next 12 months.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
FIS does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Recently Adopted Accounting Guidance

On March 30, 2016, the FASB issued ASU No, 201609 ("ASU 2016-09"), Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee
Share-Based Payment Accounting. The amendments were intended to simplify and improve the accounting for employee share-based payments. Under the
new guidance, all excess tax benefits and tax deficiencies over/under compensation expense recognized will be reflected in the income statement as they
occur. This will replace the prior guidance, which required tax benefits that exceed compensation expense (windfalls) to be recognized in equity. It also
eliminates the need to maintain a "windfall pool,” and removes the requirement to delay recognizing a windfall unti! it reduces current taxes payable, The
new guidance also changes the cash flow presentation of excess tax benefits, classifying them as operating inflows, consistent with other cash flows related 1o
income taxes. Under prior guidance, windfalls were classified as financing activities. These changes may result in more volatile net eamings. Similarly,
cffective tax rates are subject to more variability since the new guidance reflects all tax benefit excesses and deficiencies in tax expense. Under prior practice,
stock compensation generally did not impact the effective tax rate since any difference between compensation expense and the ultimate tax deduction was
reflected in additional paid in capital. Also under the new guidance, excess tax benefits are no longer to be included in assumed proceeds from applying the
treasury stock method when computing diluted eamings per share since they no loniger are recognized in additional paid in capital. Consequently, the
reduction to common stock equivalents for assumed purchases from proceeds are lower and the impact of common stock equivalents are more dilutive. For
public companies, the amendments are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those annual petiods.
Thus, ASU 2016-09 was effective for FIS as of January 1, 2017. FIS applied prospectively the recording of excess tax benefits as income tax expense and the
presentation of those benefits as an operating activity within the statement of cash flows and, therefore, prior perieds have not been adjusted. During 2016,
we recorded $32 million to consclidated equity as excess tax benefits from our stock plans,

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15 ("ASU 2016-15"), Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classificarion of Certain Cash Receipts
and Cash Payments. The amendments are meant to reduce the diversity in how certain cash receipts and cash payments are presented in the statement of cash
flows. ASU 2016-15 provides guidance as to the presentation on the statement of cash flows for eight specific cash flow issues, which are 1) debt prepayment
for debt
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extinguis‘hmc_ent costs, 2) settlement of zero-coupon debt instruments or other debt instruments with coupon interest rates that are insignificant in relation to
fhe effective interest rate ofthe borrowing, 3) contingent consideration payments made after a business combination, 4) proceeds for the settlement of
insurance claims, 5) proceeds from the settlement of corporate-owned life insurance pelicies, including bank-owned life insurance policies, 6) distributions
necelvet'l from qu_lity: method inve_stces. 7) beneficial interests in securitization transactions, and 8) separately identifiable cagh flows and application ofthe
px:edf)mmance principle. For public companies, the amendments are effective for annual periods be ginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods
within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted for any orgunization in sny intefit or asuual period. ¥l slesisd
to adopt this standard in the third quarter 0f2017. FIS has applied the presentation guidance above to its statements of cash flows and all adjustments have
been reflected on a retrospective basis. The primary impact of adopting the new guidance is our 2017 presentation of debt prepayment and related costs being
reflected in financing activities rather than operating activities.

In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-12 ("ASU 201 7-12"), Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815) - Targeted Improvements to Accounting for
Hedging Activities. The amendments were meant to improve the financial reporting of hedging relationships to better pottray the economic results of an
entity’s risk management activities in its financial statements, The amendments in this update also make certain targeted improvements to simplify the
application of the hedge accounting guidance in current GAAP. ASU 20i17-12 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including
interim periods within those fiscal years; the ASU allows for carly adoption in any interim period after issuance of the update, FIS elected to adopt this
standard as of January 1, 2018, The adeption of this ASU did not have an impact en the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

In March 2017, the FASB issucd ASU No. 201707 ("ASU 2017-07"), Comp tion - Retir 1 Benefits. The ASU improves the presentation of net
petiodic pension cost and net periedic postretirement benefit cost in the statements of operations. Under ASU 2017-07, the service cost component of the net
periodic benefit cast is disclosed in the same income statement line item as other employee compensation costs arising from services rendered during the
period, and the other components are reported separately from the line item that includes the service cost and outside of any subtotal of operating income.
ASU2017-07 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and early adoption is permitted. FIS adopted the provisions of ASU 2017-07
as of January 1, 2018. As a result, there was no material effect on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU Ne. 2016-18 ("ASU 2016-13"), Stafement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash. ASU 2016-18 requires
companies to include restricted amounts with Cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning and end of period total amounts shown on the
Statements of Cash Flows. FIS adopted the provisions of ASU 2016-18 as of January 1, 2018. As a result, there was no material effect on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01 ("ASU 2016-01"), Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.
ASU 2016-01 amends guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments, including significant revisions in accounting related to the
classification and measurement of investments in equity securities and presentation of certain fair value changes for financial liabilities when the fair value
option is elected. The amendment requires equity securities to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized through net ¢amings and
amends certain disclosure requirements associated with the fair value of financial instruments. In the period of adoption, the Company is required to
reclassify the unrealized gains/losses on equity securities within accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to retained earnings. In February 2018, the
FASB issued ASU No. 201803, Technical Corrections and Improvements to Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-18), which clarified certain
aspects of the previously issued ASU. FIS adopted the provisions of ASU 2016-01 as of January 1, 2018. As a resulf, there was no material effect on the

Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09 ("Topic 606"), Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). Topic 606 amends substantially all
authoritative literature for revenue recognition, including industry-specific requirements, and converges the guidance under this tepic with that ofthe
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards. It also includes guidance on accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining and costs incumed to fulfill 2
conttact with a customer. Topic 606 implements a five-step process for customer contract tevenue recognition that focuses on transfer of control, as opposed
to transfer of risk and rewards. Topic 606 also requires enhanced disclosures regarding the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
from contracts with customers. The FASB has issucd several amendments to Topic 606, including further guidance on principal versus agent consideration,
clarification on identifying performance obligations and accounting for licenses of intellectual property.
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The effective date of Topic 606 was postponed to reporting petiods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption allowed for reporting
penods beginning after December 15, 2016. We adopted the new standard effective January 1,2018.

Entities can transition to the standard with retrospective application to the carliest years presented in their financial statements, retrospectively using
certain practical expedients, or with a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. We adopted the new standard using the retrospective method
with the application of certain practical expedients. On May 10,2018, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K to recast its Consolidated Financial
Statements for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,2017 to reflect our retrospective application of ASU 2014-09,

The [argest impacts fiom the adoption of Topic 606 on our revenue recognition are related to the following areas:

+  Centain revenues, particularly those related to interchange and third-party network fees associated with our payment processing business,
previously recorded on a gross basis as a principal are now recorded on a net basis as an agent to the extent the Company does not control the
good or service before it is transferred to the customer.

«  Recognition of certain term license early renewals are now deferred until the conclusion of the term in effect at the time of renewal. Previously,
term license early renewals were generally recognized upon execution of the renewal agreement.

= We now recognize the license portion of software rental fees in certain of our global mading, asset management, and securities processing
businesses upon delivery. Previously, software license rental fees were recognized ratably over the rental period as the payments became due
and payable.

Impacts related to other changes introduced by the standard were substantially less significant than those listed above.

Upon retrospective application of Topic 606, our revenue decreased by approximately $455 million and $410 million and net eamings decreased
approximately $58 million and $43 million for the vears ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, For the year ended December 31, 2017, the net
eamings decrease included additional tax expense of approximately $21 million due to the re-measurement of deferred tax assets. The impact of Topic 606
on our 2017 and 2016 operating results may or may not be representative of the impact on subsequent years’ results, We have not calculated the impact of
Topic 606 on our 20[ 8 operating resuits as compared to not applying Topic 606.

Recent Accounting Guidance Not Yet Adopted

On February 25, 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 201602, Legses (Topic 842}, which requires lessees to recognize leases on-balance sheet and disclose
key information about leasing arrangements. Topic 842 was subsequently amended by ASU No. 2018-01, Land Easement Practical Expedient for Transition
to Topic 842; ASU No. 2018-10, Codification Improvements to Topic 842, Leases; ASU No. 2018-11, Targeted Improvements, and ASU No. 2018-20, Leases
(Tapic 842): Narrow-Scope Improvements for Lessors (collectively, the "new standard”). The new standard establishes a night-of-use model (ROU) that
requires a lessee to recognize a ROU assct and lease liability on the balance shect for all leases with a term longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified as
finance or operating, with classificarion affecting the pattem and classification of expense recognition in the income statement. Under the new standard,
lessor accounting is largely unchanged.

The new standard is effective for public business entities on January 1, 2019, with early adoption permitted. A modified retrospective transition approach
is required, applying the new standard to all leases existing at the date of initial application. An entity may choose to use either (1) its effective date or (2) the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements as its date of initial application. If an entity chooses the second option, the
transition requirements for existing leases also apply to leases entered into between the date of initial application and the effective date. The entity must also
recast its comparative period financial statements and provide the disclosures required by the new standard for the comparative periods. We will adopt the
new standard effective January 1, 2019 and use the effective date as our date of initial application. Consequently, financial information will not be updated
and the disclosures required under the new standard will not be provided for dates and periods before January 1, 2019,

The new standard provides a number of optional practical expedients in transition. We expect to ¢lect the "package of practical expedients,” which
pemits us not to reassess under the new standard our prior conclusions about lease identification, lease classification and initial direct costs. We do not
expect to elect the use-of-hindsight ot the practical expedient pertaining to land easements. The new standard also provides practical expedients for an
entity’s ongoing accounting. We cumrently cxpect to elect the practical expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components for all of our leases. We do
not currently expect to elect the short-term lease recognition exemption.
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We expect that this standard will have an immaterial effect on results of operations. While we continue to assess all of the effects of adoption, we
currently behe\ce .the most si gnificant effects relate to the recognition of new ROU assets and lease liabilities on our balance sheet for our real estate operating
leases and_ proeviding new disclosures about our leasing activities. On adoption, we currently expect to recognize additional ROU assets and lease liabilities
for operating leases ranging from $400 millien to $500 million.

On June 16, 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13 ("ASU 2016-13"), Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurements on Credit
Losses of Financial Instruments. This ASU was subsequently amended by ASU No, 2018-19, Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments
- Credit Losses (collectively, *Topic 326"). The primary objectives of Topic 326 are to implement new methodelogy for calculating credit losses on financial
instruments (¢.g., trade receivables) based on expected credit losses and to broaden the types of information companies must use when calculating the
estimated losses. Under current guidance, the credit losses are calculated based on multiple credit impairment objectives and recognition is delayed until the
loss is probable to occur. Under the new guidance, financial assets measured at amortized cost basis must be shown as the net amount expected to be
collected. The credit loss allowance is a contra-valuation account. Available-for-sale securities should continue to be recognized in a similar manner to
current GAAP; however, the allowance should be presented as an allowance instead of a write-down of the basis of the asset. For public business entities, the
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15,2019, and interim periods within these annual periods. Early adoption is permitted
for any organization in any intefim or annual period beginning after December 15, 2018, We do not plan to early adept and expect that the new guidance will
not have a material impact on our financial statement presentation, financial position, or results of operations,

On August 29, 2018, the FASB issued ASU Ne. 2018-15 ("ASU 2018-15"), Intangibles - Goodwill and Other - Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40):
Customer’s Accounting for implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service Contract. This ASU ¢larifies that
implementation costs incured by customers in cloud computing arrangements should be deferred and recognized over the term of the amangement, ifthose
costs wounld be capitalized by the customer in a software licensing arrangement under the internal-use software guidance. The provisions in ASU201%-15
should be applied either retrospectively or prospectively to all implementation costs incurred after the date of adoption. For public business entities, ASU
2018-15 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted. We
are currently assessing the impact the adoption of ASU 2018-15 will have on our financial position and results of operations.

Item 7TA.  Quanrtitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risks

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risks primarily from changes in interest rates and foreign cumency exchange rates. We periodically use certain derivative
financial instruments, including interest rate swaps and foreign currency forward contracts, to manage interest rate and foreign cumency risk. We do not use
derivatives for trading purposes, to generate income or to engage in speculative activity.

Interest Rare Risk

In addition to existing cash balances and cash provided by operating activities, we use fixed-rate and variable-rate debt to finance our operations. We are
exposed to interest rate risk on these debt abligations and related interest rate swaps.

The senior notes (as described in Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) represent the majotity of our fixed-rate long-term debt
obligations as of December 31, 2018, The carrying value excluding unamortized discounts of the senior notes was $8,476 million as of December 31, 20138.
The fair value of the senior notes was approximately $8,336 million as of December 31, 2018. The potential reduction in fair value of the senior notes from a
hypothetical 10 percent increase in market interest rates would not be material to the overal! fair value of the debt.

Our floating rate tisk principally relates to borrowings under our Commercial Paper Program and Revolving Credit Facility {as defined in Note 10 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) and an interest swap on our fixed-rate long-term debt. At December 31, 2018, our weighted-average cost of debt
was 3.3% with a weighted-average maturity of 7.5 years; 89% of our debt was fixed-rate and the remaining 11% of our debt was floating rate. A 100 basis
peint increase in the weighted-average interest rate on our floating rate debt would have increased our 2018 interest expense by $10 million. We performed
the foregoing sensitivity analysis based solely on the principal amount of our floating rate debt as of December 31, 2018, This
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sensitivity analysis does not take into account any changes that occurred in the prior 12 months or that may take place in the next 12 months in the amount
of our outstanding debt. Further, this sensitivity analysis assumes the change in intersst rates is applicable for an entire year. For comparison purposes, based
on principal amounts of floating rate debt outstanding as of December 31,2017, and calculated in the same manner as set forth above, an increase of

100 basis points in the weighted-average interest rate would have increased our annual interest expense by approximately $2 million.

As of December 31, 2018, we entered into the following interest rate swap transaction converting the intcrest rate exposure on our Senior Euro Notes due
July 2024 from fixed 1o variable {in millions):

Bank pays FIS pays
Effective Date Maturity Date Notional fixed rate of variable rate of
December 21,2618 July 15,2024 € 500 1.100% 3-month Euribor + 878% 1)

(1) 0.507% in effect as of December 31, 2018.

We designated the interest rate swap as a fair value hedge for accounting purposes as described in Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. A 100 basis peint increase in the 3-month Euribor rate would increase our annual interest expense by approximately $6 million,

Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to foreign currency risks that arise from normal business operations, These risks include the translation of local cumency balances of
foreign subsidiarics, transaction gains and losses associated with intercompany loans with foreign subsidiaries and transactions denominated in currencies
other than a location’s functional currency. We manage the exposure to these risks through a combination of nermal operating activities and the use of
foreign cumrency forward contracts and non-derivative and derivative investment hedges. Contracts are denominated in cumencics of major industrial
countnes.

Our exposure to foreign cumency exchange risks generally arises from our non-U.S. operations, to the extent they are conducted in local currency.
Changes in foreign currency exchange rates affect translations of revenue denominated in cumencies other than the U.S. Dollar. During the years ended
December 31, 2018,2017 and 2016, we generated approximately $1,542 million, $1.821 million and $1,908 miliion, respectively, in tevenue denominated
in currencies other than the U.8. Dollar. The major currencies to which our revenues are exposed are the Brazilian Real, the Euro, the British Pound Stetling
and the Indian Rupee. A 10% move in average exchange rates for these currencies (assuming a simultaneous and immediate 10% change in all of such rates
for the relevant period) would have resulted in the following increase or decrease in our reported revenue for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and
2016 (in millions):

Currency 2018 2017 2316
Pound Sterling 3 34 5 41 3 44
Euro 30 33 38
Real 38 39 34
Rupee 13 14 12
Total increase or decrease $ 115 3 127 % 128

While our results of operations have been impacted by the effects of currency fluctuations, our interational operations’ revenue and expenses are
generally denominated in local currency, which reduces our economic exposure to foreign exchange risk in those jurisdictions.

Revenue included $40 miilion of unfavorable and $16 million of favorable foreign currency impact during 2018 and 2417, tespectively, resulting from
changes in the U.S. Dollar. Net earnings attributable to FIS common stockholders included $12 million of unfavorable and $2 million of favotable foreign
currency impact during 2018 and 2017, respectively, resulting from changes in the U.S. Dellar. For the full year of 2019, we anticipate an approximate $45
million adverse impact to revenue duc to foreign curmency translation, although the actual amount of impact is uncertain due to the many factors that affect
exchange rates.
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Our foreign exchange risk management policy permits the use of derivative instniments, such as forward contracts and options, to reduce volatility in our
results of operations and/or cash flows resulting from foreign exchange rate fluctuations. We do not enter into foreign currency derivative instruments for
trading purposes or to engage in speculative activity. We do peniodically enter into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to hedge foreign cumency
exposure to intercompany loans and other balance sheet items. We did not have any significant forward contracts as of December 31, 2018 or 2017. The
Company also utilizes organic foreign cumency denominated debt and cross-cumrency interest rate swaps designated as net investment hedges in order to
reduce the volatility of the net investment value of certain of jts Euro and Pound Sterling functional subsidiaries (see Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements),
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the stockholders and board of directors
Fidelity Nationa! Information Services, Inc.:

Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. and subsidiaries’ (the “Company”) intemal control aver financial reporting as of December 31,
2018, based on ctiteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission, In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,2018,
based on criteria cstablished in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013} issued by the Committes of Sponserin g Organizations of the Treadway
Coramission,

We aiso have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (‘PCAOB™), the consolidated
balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the related consolidated statements of sarnings, comprehensive eamings, equity, and cash
flows for cach of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes (collectively, the “consolidated financial statements™),
and our report dated February 21, 2019 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements,

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal contro! over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financizl Reporting. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting fimm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all matetial respects. Our audit of internal conirol over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a materjal weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectivencss of intemnal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedurcs as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s interal control
over finencial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and firly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that conirols may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ KPMGLLP

Jacksonville, Florida
Febmary 21,2019
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the stockholders and board of directors
Fidelity National Information Services, Inc.:

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of
December 31,2018 and 2017, the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive earnings, equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes (collectively, “the consolidated financial statements™), In our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements present fairly, in gll material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2018, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting

principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boatd (United States) (“PCAOB™), the Company’s
internal control over finaneial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria established in firernal Control - Integrated Framework (2013} issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated February 21, 2019 expressed an unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the ULS. federal secutities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commussion and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are frec of material misstatement, whether due to emor or fraud. Cur audits included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ KPMGLLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2004,

Jacksonville, Florida
February 21,2019
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FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERYVICES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31,2018 and 2017
{In millions, except per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalenis
Seitlement deposits
Trade receivables, net
Contract assets
Settlement receivables
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Computer software, net
Deferred contract costs, net
Other noncurrent assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities
Scttlement payables
Deferred revenue
Short-term borrowings
Current portion of loag-term debt
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, excluding current portion
Deferred income taxes
Deferred revenue
Other long-term liabilities
Total Habilities
Equity:
FIS stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 200 shares authorized, none issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2018 and 2017

Commen stock, $0.01 par value, 600 shares authorized, 433 and 432 shares issued as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively

Additional paid in capital

Retained carnings

Accumulated other comprehensive earnings (loss}

Treasury stock, $0.01 par value, 106 and 99 common shares as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, at cost
Total FIS stockholders’ equity

Noncontrolling interest

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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2018 2017
703 665
700 677

1472 1.624
123 108
281 291
166 70
238 253

3,733 3,682
587 610

13,545 13,730

3,132 3,885

1,795 1,728
475 354
503 531

23,770 24,526

1,099 1,241
972 949
739 776
267 —

48 1,045

3,125 4,011

8,670 7,718

1.360 1,468

67 106
326 403
13,548 13,706
4 4
10,800 10,534
4,528 4,109
(430) 330
(4.687) (3.604)
10,215 10,711
7 109
10,222 10,820
23,770 24,526




FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARIES
Conselidated Statements of Earnings
Years Ended December 31, 2018,2017 apnd 2016
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Revenue {for related party activity, see Note 15}
Cost of revenue (for related party activity, see Note 15)
Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses (for related party activity, see
Note 15)

Asset impaiments
Operating income
Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
(Other income (expense}, net
Total other income {expense), net

Eamings from continuing operations before income taxes and equity
method investment eamnings (loss)

Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Equity method investment earnings (foss)
Earnings from continuing opemations, net of tax
Eamings {loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net eamings
Net (eamings) loss attributable to noncontrolling intergst
Net eamings attributable to FIS common stockholders

Net eamings per share — basic from continuing operations attributable to
FIS common stockholders

Net eamings (loss) per share — basic from discontinued eperations
attributable to FIS common stockholders

Net eamings per share — basic attributable to FIS common stockholders *

Weighted average shares outstanding — basic

Net eamings per share —— diluted from continuing operations attributabie io
FIS common stockholders

Net earnings (loss) per share — diluted from discontinued operations
attnbutable to FIS common stockholders

Net eamings per share — diluted attributable to FIS common stockholders
*

Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted

Amounts attributable to FIS common stockholders:
Earnings from continuing operations, net of tax
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net eamings attributable to FIS common stockholders

* Amounts may not sum due 1o rounding.

2018 2017 2016
$ 8423 § 8668 § 8431
5,569 5,794 5,895
2,854 2,874 2,936
1,301 1,442 1,707
9s _— —
1458 1,432 1,229
17 22 20
(314} (359) (403)
(57) {119) (9)
(354) (456) (392)
1,104 976 837
208 @321 291
(15) (3} —
381 1,294 546

— — 1
381 1,294 547
(35 (33 22)

5 846 § 1261 § 525
$ 258 % 382 % 1.61
$ 258 % 382 % 161
328 330 326
] 255 % 375 % 1.59
255 % 375 % 1.59
332 336 330
s 846 § 1261 $ 524
— — 1
$ 846 § 1,261 3 525

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings
Years Ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016

{In millions)
2018 2017 2016
Net eamings $ 881 $ 1,204 $ 547
Other comprehensive eamings, before tax:
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments and derivatives $ — 5 @9 )]
Reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) included in net eamings — —
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments and derivatives, net — (28)
Foreign cumency translation adjustments (120) 23 (4]
Minimum pension liability adjustments 5 & (1)
Other comprehensive camings (loss), before tax (115) (13) {3)
Provision for income tax expense (benefit) related to items of other
comprehensive earnings 1 a1
Other comprehensive eamings (loss), net oftax $ (116) (116 § (2) (2) (34) (34
Comprehensive eamings 765 1,292 513
Net (eamings) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (35 (33) 22)
Other comprehensive {eamings) losses attributable to nencontrolling interest 18 1 a9
Comprehensive carnings attributable to FIS common stockholders $ 748 $ 1,260 $ 472

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Equity
Years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016
{In millions, except per share amounts)

Aasust
FIS Stackholders
Accamulated
Number of shares Addirional ather
Conmon Treasary Commor peld In Rrtained romprebensive Trexsry Nae sstroling Tois!
sharen shhres ek capital carmngs cnroiags ek nrerem ity
Balanwces. December 31, 2018 430 (106} H 4 §10z10 1 3050 $ {219 5 (368§ &% 5 S384
Tununce of restricied stock 1 — —_ —_ —_ —_ — — —
Exercase of siock opfions — 3 — 21 — — 38 — 108
Treasury shares beld for taxes due upon excreite of pock oprions — — - {24) - - 16} - {a0)
Fixcess income 151 bened¥ from exercise of stock options - - - 32 — — - _ 2
Stock-based compensation — — — 137 — — — - 137
Cash dividends dectarcd {$1.04 per share} snd other distributions — — — - (342} — — (23 (365)
Oter - - - 4 — — 4 —_ g
Nel eatnings - — _ - 525 _ — 2 47
Other comprebensive carmings, net of ax — — —_ —_ _ (52) - 19 fex]
Bzlances, December 31, 2016 431 (103) 3 + 5 14,380 3 3233 3 (331) 1 (361D 3 104 5 9T
Tounce of resricted siock 1 - — _ — —_— —_ — —
Excrcne of stock ophoos —_ 5 —_ 73 —_ —_ 137 —_ 210
Treasury shares held for 1axes due upon cxerc e of siock eptivts — —_ — (28) _ - i25) — 53
Yock-hased compensation — — — 109 — — — — 109
Cash dividends declared ($1.16 per share } und viher distributons - — - - (385) — — @7 12y
Purchases of treasury siock _ (L - - — —_ {105y —_ (105}
Nel earnings - - — — 1.261 — - 33 1294
Other vomprehensive caraings, nct of lax — — — —= — (1) — (1} )
Balsnces. December 31, 2017 432 (CL1) 3 4 £ 10534 5 4,10% 5 (330 S Fe0d) % s 5 10.820
Isswance of restricted stock 1 — — - — - — — -
Exercise of stock options — 4 — 133 — — 155 — 210
Treasury shares bek for mxes due upon ¢xercise of stock optons — — — (10} — — 22) — (3
Siock-based compensation — — — = — — — — b4
Cash dividends declared (§1.28 per share) and other distributions — — — — (422 — — 29 (451}
Purchascs of reasury stock —_ (3 15] - — — — (1,216} — {1,216}
Bragitiaz Veature divestitery _ _ — 57 — — — (50) an
Other — - - — [&)] ol - - 5)
Net esmings — — - - 846 _ _ is i
Oiber pomprebentive darnings, pet of mx —_ — — — — {98} — (18) 116>
Balnces, Deccmber 31, 2018 433 (106} 5 4 s 10,800 3 4,528 3 {430y § {4687} 3 7 $ 10222

The sccompunying notes are un integral part of hese consolidated fipancisl statements.
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FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.

AND SUBSIPIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016
(In millions)

2018 2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings 881 §$ 1,294  § 547
Adjusttment to reconcile net camings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,420 1,366 1,153
Amortization of debt issue costs 17 19 19
| Asset impairments 95 — —
} Loss {(gain) on sale of businesses and invesiments 50 {62) —
Loss on extinguishment of debt 1 196 —_
] Stock-based compensation 84 107 137
| Deferred income taxcs {116) (985) (130)
‘ Excess income tax benefit from exercise of stock options —_ —_ {32)
Other operating activitics, net — — {2)
Net changes in assets and liabilities., net of effects from acquisitions and foreign currency:
Trade and other receivables 78 (232) 42
Contract assels 20} 62 19
Scitlement activity 9 ) 15
Prepaid expenses and other assets 4 @) (8)
Deferred contract costs {248) (153) (121)
Deferred revenue {100) 67 251
Accounts payable, accrued liabilitics, and other liabilities (162} 115 95
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,993 1,741 1925
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property and equipment (127 (145) (145)
Additions to computer software (495} (468) (471)
Net proceeds from sale of businesses and investments (16) 1,307 —
Other investing activities, net (30) 4) 3}
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities {668) 690 619)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings 26,371 9,615 7,745
Repayment of borrowings and capital lease obligations {26,14R) (11,689 (8,749)
Debt issuance costs 30) {13) 25
Excess income tax benefit from exercise of stock options — — 32
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 288 208 112
Treasury stock activity (1,255) (153) (40}
Dividends paid (421) (385) (341)
Distributions to Brazilian Venture partner {26) 2% 20
Other financing activities, net (15) (40) {23)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitics 1,236) (2.480) (1,309)
Effect of foreign cumrency exchange rate changes on cash (51) 31 4
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 38 {18) 1
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 665 683 682
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3 703 % 665 % 683
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 298 3 354 351
Cash paid for income taxes 3 503 § 545 341

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, all references io "FIS," "we,” the "Company" or the "registrant” are to Fidelity Nationgl
Information Services. Inc., a Georgia corporation, and its subsidiaries.

{1) Basis of Presentation

FIS is a global lgader in financial services technology with a focus on retail and institutional banking, payments, asset and wealth management, risk and
compliatice, consulting and outsourcing solutions.

We report the results of our operations in three reporting segments: Integrated Financial Solutions ("IFS"), Global Financial Solutiens ("GFS") and
Corporate and Cther (sce Note 19).

2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The following describes the significant accounting policies of the Company used in preparing the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.
®) Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of FIS, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and subsidiaries that are majority-owned. All
significant intercompany profits, transactions and balances have been eliminated in conseolidation.

) Cashk and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all cash on hand, money matket funds and other highiy liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash-and cash equivalents. As part of the Company’s payment processing business, the Company provides cash settlement services to financial institutions
and state and local governments. These services involve the movement of funds between the various patties associated with automated teller machines
("ATM"), peint-of-sale or electronic benefit transactions ("EBT"), and this activity results in a balance due to the Company at the end of each business day
that it recoups over the next few business days. The in-transit balances due to the Company are included in cash and cash equivalents. The canrying amounis
reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for these instruments approximate their fair value. As of December 31, 2018, we had cash and cash equivalents
of $703 million of which approximately $340 million is held by our foreign entities.

[(3) Fair Value Measurements
Fair Value of Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed in Business Combinations

FASB Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC™) Topic 8035, Business Combinations, requires an acquirer to recognize, separately from goodwill, the
identifiable assets acquired, liabilitics assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree, and to measure these items generally at their acquisition date
fair values. Goodwill is recorded as the residual amount by which the purchase price exceeds the fair value of the net assets acquired, Fair values are
detetmined using the framework outlined betow under Fair Value Hierarchy and the methodologies addressed in the individual subheadings. I the initial
accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end ofthe reporting period in which the combination occurs, we are required to report
provisional amounts it the finaneial stetements for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Adjusiments to provisional amounts initially recorded
that are identified during the measurement period are recognized in the reporting period in which the adjusiment amounts are determined. This includes any
effect on eamings of changes in depreciation, amortization, or other income effects as a result of the change to the provisional amounts, calculated as if the
accounting had been completed at the acquisition date. During the measurement period, we are also required to recognize additional assets or liabilities if
new information is obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have resulted in the recognition of
thase assets and liabilities as of that date. The measurement period ends the sooner of one year from the combination date or when we receive the information
we were seeking about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date or learn that more information is not obtainable.
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FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for receivables, accounts payablc, and shori-term bomrowings approximate their fair
values because of their immediate or short-term maturities. The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is estimated to be approximately $140 million
lower and $156 million higher than the carrying value as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. These estimates are based on values of trades of our
debt in close proximity to year end, which are considered Level 2-type measurements, as discussed below. These estimates are subjective in nayure and
involve uncertaintics and significant judgment in the interpretation of current market data. Therefore, the values presented are not necessarily indicative of
amounts the Company could realize or settle currently, The Company holds, or has held, certain derivative instruments, specifically interest rate swaps and
foreign exchange forward contracts. Derivative instruments are valued using Level 2-type measurcments.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The authoritative accounting literature defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and establishes a fair value hierarchy based
on the quality of inputs used to measure fair value.

The fair value hierarchy includes three levels that are based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique. The fair value hierarchy gives the
highest priotity to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3 measurements). If the inputs used to measure the fair value fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the asset or liability. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1. Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2. Inputs to the valuation methodology include the following:

. Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

. Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liabitity;

. Inputs that are derived principally from or cormoborated by observable market data by comrelation or other means,

Ifthe asset or lability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3. Inputs to the valuation methadology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement, Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect
the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best
information available in the circumstances.

Fair Value Measurements

Generally accepted accounting principles require that, subsequent to their initial recognition, certain assets be reviewed for impairment on a
nonrecurring basis by comparisen to their fair value. As more fully discussed in their respective subheadings below, this includes goodwill, long-lived assets,
intangible assets, computer software and investments. During the third quarter of 2018, as a result of entering into an agteement to unwind the joint venture
{(“Brazilian Venture") that the Company operated with Bance Bradesco, §.A. ("Banco Bradesco"), the Company recorded pre-tax asset impairments totaling
$95 million, including $42 million for the Brazilian Venture contract intangible asset, $25 million for goodwill, and $28 million for assets held for sale
during the third quarter (sce Notes 15 and 16). The impaiment charges are included in the Corporate and Other segment results. There were no significant fair
value measurement impairments for 2017 or 2016.

Contingent consideration liabilities or receivables recorded in connection with business acquisitions must also be adjusted for changes in fair value until
settled.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

@ Derivative Finarcial Instruments

The Company accounts for derivative financial instruments in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. During 2018, the
Company used interest rate swaps to engage in hedging activities relating to its investment in foreign denominated operations and to changes in fair value of
its foreign currency denominated debt. The Company designated these interest rate swaps as net investment hedges and a fair value hedge, respectively.
During 2017 and 2016, the Company engaged in hedging activities relating to its variable-rate debt through the use of interest rate swaps. The Company
designated these interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges. The estimated fair values of the derivative instruments are determined using Level 2-type
measurements. They are recorded as an asset or liability of the Company and are included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets in prepaid
expenses and other current assets, other non-cument assets, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, or other long-term liabilities, as appropriate, and as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive eamings, net of deferred taxes, for all derivative instmiments except the fair value hedge, which is recorded
as an adjusiment to long-term debi. A portion of the amount included in accumulated other comprehensive earnings for the cash flow hedges is recorded in
interest expense as a yield adjustment as interest payments are madc on the Company’s Revelving Credit Facility (see Note 10).

The Company also utilizes non-derivative net investment hedges in oxder to reduce the volatility of the net investment value of its forcign currency
denominated operations. The change in fair value of the net investment hedges due to remeasurement of the effective portion, net of tax, is recorded in other
comprehensive income {loss). The ineffective portion of these hedging instruments impacts net income when the ineffectiveness occurs.

We also have used currency forward contracts to manage our expesure to flucteations in cosls caused by variations in Indian Rupee ("INR™) exchange
rates, however, we terminated those contracts in 2017, These INR forward contracts were designated as cash flow hedges. The fair value of these currency
forward contracts was determined using currency exchange market rates, obtained from reliabie, independent, third party banks, at the balance sheet date. The
fair value of forward contracts was subject to changes in cumrency exchange rates. The Company had no ineffectiveness related to its use of currency forward
contracts in connection with INR cash flow hedges.

In September 2015, the Company entered into treasury lock hedges with a total notional amount of $1.0 billion, reducing the risk of changes in the
berchmark index component of the 10-year treasury yield. The Company designated these derivatives as cash flow hedges. On October 13, 2015, in
conjunction with the pricing of the $4.5 billion senior notes, the Company terminated these treasury lock contracts for a cash settlement payment of $16
million, which was recorded as a component of Other Comprehonsive Eamings and will be reclassified as au adjustment to interest expense over the 10 years
during which the related interest payments that were hedged will be recognized in income.

(e) Trade Receivables

A summary of trade receivables, net, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 s as follows {in millions):

2018 2017
Trade receivables $ 1489 % 1,687
Allowance for doubtful accounts (an {63)
Total trade receivables, net b3 1472 § 1,624

The company records allowance for doubtful accounts when it is probable that a trade receivable balance will not be collected. The Company writes-offa
trade receivable balance when the likelihood of collection is considered remote.
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A summary roll forward of the allowance for doubtful accounts for 2018, 2017 and 2016 is as follows (in millions):

Allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2015 b (16)
Bad debt expense 29)
Write-offs, net of recoveries 4

Allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2016 (41)
Bad debt expense {26}
Write-offs, net of recoveries 4

Allowance for doubtfiil accounts as of December 31,2017 (63)
Bad debt expense (13)
Write-offs, net of recoveries 59

Allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31,2018 $ (17

)] Settlemert Deposits, Receivables and Payables

We manage certain integrated electronic payment services and programs and wealth management processes for our clients that require us to held and manage
client cash balances used to fund their daily settlement activity. Settlement deposits represent funds we hold that were drawn from our clients to facilitate
settlement activities. Settlement receivables represent amounts funded Ly us. Settlement payablcs consist of scttlement deposits from clients, sottlement
payables to third parties and outstanding checks related to our settlement activities for which the right of offset does net exist or we do not intend to exercise
ourright of offset. Our accounting policy for such outstanding checks is to include them in settiement payables on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and
operating cash flows on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. The payment solution services that give rise to these settlement balances are seperate
and distinct from those settlement activities referred to under (b) Cash and Cash Equivalents, where the services we provide primarily facilitate the
moevement of funds.

() Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value ol identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business cembinatiens. FASB ASC
Topic 350, Intangibles - Goadwill and Otker, requires that goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives nat be amortized, but rather be
tested for impaimment annually, or more frequently if circumstances indicate potential impairment. The guidance allows an entity first to assess qualitatively
whether it is more likely than not that a reporting unit's camrying amount exceeds its fair value, referred to as "step zero.” If an entity concludes that it is more
likely than not that a reporting unit's fair value is less than its camrying amount (that is, a likelihood of more than 50 percent), the "step one” quantitative
assessment must be performed for that reponting uait. FASB ASC Topic 350 provides cxamples of events and circumstances that should be considered in
performing the step 2zero qualitative assessment, including macrocconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors, overall financial
performance, events affecting a reporting unit or the entity as a whole and a sustained decrease in share price.

In applying the quantitative analysis, we detennine the fair value of our repoiting units bascd on a weighted average of multiple valuation techniques,
principally a combination of an income approach and a market approach, which are Level 3-and Level 2-type measurements. The income approach
calculates a value based upon the present value of cstimated future cash flows, while the market approach uses eamings multiples of similarly situated
guideline public companies. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds the camying value of the reporting unit’s net assets, goodwill is not impaired and
further testing is not required.

The Company assesses goodwill for impaintient on an annual basis during the fourth quarter or more frequently if circumstances indicate potential
impairment. For each 0f 2018, 2017, and 2016, we began our assessiment with the step zero qualitative assessment. In performing the step zero qualitative
assessment for each year, examining those factors most likely to affect our valuations, we concluded that it remained more likely than not that the fair value
of each of our reporting units continued to exceed their carrying amounts. Consequently, we did not perform a step one quantitative assessment specifically
for the purpose of our annual impaitment test in any year presented in these financial statements.
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[1,}] Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed for impairment whencver cvents or changes in circumstances indicate that
the canying amount of ax asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparison of the carrying smount ofan
asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset, which are Level 3type measurements. [fthe carrying amount ofan
agset cxceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair
value of the asset.

(i) Intangible Assets

Tho Cempany has intangible ascets that consist primarily of customer relationships and trademarke that are recorded in connection with acquisitions at
their fair value based on the results of valuation analyses. Customer relationships are amortized over their estimated useful lives using an accelerated method
that takes into consideraticn cxpected customer attrition rates up to a 10 year period. Trademarks determined to have indefinite lives are not amortized.
Trademarks with finite lives arc amortized over periods ranging up to 5 years. Intangible assets with finite lives (principally customer relationships and
certain trademarks) are reviewed for impairment in aceordance with FASB ASC Subtopic 360-10.35, Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets, while
certain trademarks determined to have indefinite lives are reviewed for impairment at least annually in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350. Similar to the
guidance for goodwill, ASC Topic 350 allows an crganization to first perform a qualitative sssessment of whether it iz more Jikely than not that an indefinite-
lived intangible asset has been impaired.

The Company assesses indofinite lived intangible ossets for impoirment on an annual bagis during the fourth quarter or more frequently if circumstances
indicate potential impairment. For 2016, we engaged independent specialists to perform a valuation of our indefinite lived intangible assets, using a form of
income approach valuation known as the relief-from-royalty method, which is a Level 3-type measurement. There was substantial excess of fair value over
camrying value for cur indefinite lived intangible assets in the 2016 independent valuations. Based upon this quantitative asgessment performed, there was no
impairment for 2016. For each of 2018 and 2017, we performed a qualitative assessment examining those factors most likely to affect our valuations and
conciuded that it remained more likely than not that our indefinite-lived intangible assets were not impaired. Consequently, we did notperform a
quantitotive impairment agsessment speeifically for the purpose of our annual impairment tests for 2018 and 2017.

o Computer Software

Computer software includes software acquired in business combinations, purchased software and capitalized software development costs. Software
acquired in business combinations is generally valued using the relief-from-royalty mathad, 2 Level 3-type measurement. Purchased softwars is recnnded at
cost 3and amertized using the stmaight-line method over its estimated vseful life and softwars acquired in business combinations is recorded at its fair value
and amortized using straight-line or acoclernted methods over itg estimated useful life, ranging from three to 10 years,

The capitalization of software development costs is govemed by FASB ASC Subtopic 985-20 if the software is to be sold, leased or otherwise marketed,
or by FASD ASC Subtopic 35040 if the software is for intcmal usc, After the technological feasibility of the softwarc has been established (for softwarce to be
marketed) or at the beginning of application development (for internal-use software), software development costs, which primarily include salaries and
related payroll costs and costs of independent contractors incurred during development, are capitalized. Research and development costs incurrad prior to the
establishment of technological feasibility (for software to be marketed) or prior to application development (for internal use software), are expensed os
incurred. Software development costs are amortized on a product-by product basis commencing on the date of genoral releass (far software te be marketed) or
the date placed in service (for internal-use software). Software development costs for software to be marketed arc amortized using the greater of (1) the
straight line mothed over its estimated useful life, which manges from three to 10 years, or (2) the ratio of current revenues to total anticipated revenues over
its useful life.

[14] Deferred Contract Costs

The Company incurs costs as a result of both the origination and fulfillment of our contracts with customers. Origination costs relate primarily to the
paymeni of suley commivsions that awe direvily ielaied to sales trangactiong, Ful #llment coxiy
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include the cost of implementation services related to software as a service ("Saa8") and other cloud-based amangements when the implementation service is
not distinct from the vngoing servive. When odgivativn gosts and fulfillment costs that will be used to satisfy fature performance obligations ore direotly
related to the execution of our contracts with customers, and the costs are recoverable under the contract, the costs are capitalized as a deferred contract cost.
[mpaimment losses are recognized if the carrying amounts of the deferred contract costs are not recoverable. There were no significant impairment losses
recognized on deferred contract costs for 2018, 2017, or 2016.

Origination costs for contracts that contain a distinct software license recognized at a point in time are allocated between the license and all other
petformance obligations of the vonlract and amortized according to the pattem of performance for the respective obligations. Otherwise, origination costs are
capitalized as a single asset for each contract and amorntized using an appropriate single measure of performance considering all of the performance
obligations in the conliact, The Company aniorlizes origination costs over the expected benefit period to which the deferred contract cost relates. Origination
costs refated to initial coniracts with a custowgr ace anwrtized over the [esser of the uscful life ofthe solution or the expected customer relationship period.
Commissions paid on renewals are amortized over the renewal period. Capitalized fulfiliment costs are amortized over the lesser of the useful life of the
solution or the expected customer relationship period.

) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are computed primarily
using the straight-line method based gn tie estimated uselul lives of the rclated asscts as follows: 30 years for buildings nnd three to seven years for fumiture,
fixtures and computer equipment. Leaschold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the lesser of the initial term of the applicable
lease or the estimated useful lives of such assets.

(m) Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred income tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of
the Company's assets and liabilities and expected benefits of using nct operating loss and credit camyforwards. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The impact on deferred income taxes of Cchanges 1o tax satvs and laws, if any, is reflected in the Consolidated Finanoinl Statements in the period
enacted. A valuation allowance is established [ur auy puition of a defered income tax asset for which management believes it is more likely than not that the
Company will not be able to realize the benefits of all ora portion of that deferred income tax asset.

(m) Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenue in a number of ways, including from the delivery of account- or transaction-based processing, Saa$, business process as
a service ("BPaaS"), cloud offerings, software licensing, softwarc-related services and professional services,

The Company enters into ammangements with customers to provide services, software and software-related services such as maintenance, implementation
and training either individually or as part of an integrated offering of multiple services. At contract inception, the Company assesses the solutions and
services promised in its contracts with customers and identifies 2 performance obligation for cach promisc to transfer to the customer a solution or service {or
bundle of solutions or services) that is distinct - i.e., if 2 solution or service is separately identifiable from other items in the bundled package and ifa
customer can benefit from it on its own or with other resources that are readily available to the customer. To identify its performance obiigations, the
Company considers all of the solutions or services premised in the contract regardless of whether they are explicitly stated or are implied by customary
business practices. The Company recognizes revenue when or as it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a solution or service to a

customer.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration that the Company expects to receive in a contract with a customer. The Company s contracts with its
customers frequently contain variable consideration. Variable consideration exists when the amount which the Company expects to receive in a contraet is
based on the occumrence or nen-occumence of futute events, such as processing services performed under usage-based pricing arrangements or professional
services billed on a time and materials basis. Variable consideration is also present in certain transactions in the form of discounts, credits, price
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concessions, penalties, and similar items. If the amount of a discount or rebate in a contract is fixed and not contingent, that discount or rebate is not variable
consideration. The Company estimates variable consideration in its contracts primarily using the expected value method. In some contracts, the Company
applies the most likely amount method by considering the single most likely amount in a limited range of possible consideration amounts. The Company
develops estimates of variable consideration on the basis of both historical information and current trends. Variable consideration included in: the transaction
price is constrained such that a significant revenue reversal is not probable.

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental authoritics are not included in revenue. Postage costs associated with print and mail
services are accounted for as a fulfillment cost and are included in cost of revenue,

Technology or service compenents from third parties are frequently embedded in or combined with our applications or service offerings. We are often
responsible for billing the client in these arrangements and transmitting the applicable fees to the third party. The Company determines whether it is
responsible for providing the actual solution or service as a principal, or for arranging for the solution or service to be provided by the third party as an agent.
Judgment is applied to dctermine whether we are the principal or the agent by evaluating whether the Company has control of the solution or service priorto
it being transferred to the customer. The principal versus agent assessment is performed at the performance obligation level. Indicators that the Company
considers in determining if it has control include whether the Company is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the specified solution or
service to the customer, the Company has inventory risk and the Company has discrétion in establishing the price the customer ultimately pays for the
solution or service, Depending upon the level of our contractual responsibilitics and obligations for delivering solutions to end customers, we have
arrsngements where we are the principal and recognize the gross amount billed to the customer and other amangements where we are the agent and recognize
the net amount retained.

Once the Company has determined the transaction price, the total transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation in a manner depicting the
amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the solution(s) or service(s) to the customer (the
"allecation objective™). If the allogation objective is met at contractual prices, no allocations arc made. Othcrwise, the Company allocatcs the transaction
price to each performance gbligation identified in the contract on a relative standalone selling price basis, except when the critetia are met for allocating
variable consideration or a discount to one or more, but not all, performance obligations in the contract. The Company allocates variable considemtion to
one ot more, but not all performance obligations when the terms of the variable payment relate specifically to the Company’s efforts to satisfy the
performance cbligation (or transfer the distinet solution or service) and when such allocation is consistent with the allocation objective when considering all
performance obligations in the contract. Determining whether the criteria for allocating variable consideration to onc or more, but not all, performance
obligatiens in the gontract requires significant judgment and may affect the timing and amount of revenue recognized. The Company does not typically meet
the requirements to allocate discounts to one or more, but not all, perfermance obligations in a contract.

In order to detetmine the standalone selling price of its promised solutions or services, the Company conducts a regelar analysis to determine whether
various solutions or services have an observable standalone selling price. If the Company does not have an observable standalone selling price fora
particular salution or service, then standalone selling ptice for that panticular solwion or service ie estimated uging 21l information that is ressotiably
available and maximizing observable inputs with approaches including historical pricing, cost plus a margin, adjusted market assessment, and residual

approach.

The following describes the nature of the Company's primary types of revenue and the revenue recognition policies and significant payment terms as
they pertain to the types of transactions tho Company enters into with its custemers.

Processing Services Revenue

Processing services are ptimarily comprised of data processing and application management, including out 52a5, BPaaS and cloud o_fferings. Revenue
from processing services are typically volume. or activity based depending on factors such as the number efaccounts processed, transactions or t.mdes
processed, users, number ofhours of services or computer resources used. The payment terms may include tiered pricing structures with the base tier
representing a minimum monthly usage fee. Pricing within the tiers typically resets on 2 monthly basis, and minimum monthly volumes are generally met or
exceeded. Contract lengths for processing services typically span multiple years. Payment is generally due in advance or in arrears on a2 monthly or quarterly
basis and may includoe fixed or variable payment amounts depending on the specific payment terms and activity in the perind.
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For processing services revenue, the uatute of the Company’s promise to the custemer is to stand ready to provide continuous access to the Companys
processing platforms and perform an unspecified quantity of outsourced and transaction-processing services for a specified 1erm or terms. Accordingly,
processing services are genetally viewed as a stand-ready performance obligation comprised of 2 series of distinct daily services. The Company typically
satisfies its processing services performance obligations over time as the services are provided. A time-elapsed output method is used to measure progress
because the Company’s efforts are expended evenly throughout the period given the nature ofthe promise is a stand-ready service. The Company has
evaluated its varlable payment renms 1elated 1o iis provessing secvices rovenuc acioiiintid for as a serics of distinet days of service and coneluded that they
generally meet the criteria for allocatiing variable consideration cotirely to one of moro, but not all, performance obligations; in o contract. Accerdingly, when
the criteria are met, variable amounts based on the number and type of services performed during a period are allocated to ond recognized on the day in which
the Company performs the related services. Fixed fees for processing services are generally recognized ratably over the contract period.

License qnd Software Related Revenue

The Company’s software licenses geaerally have significant stand-alonc functionality to the customerupon delivery and are concidered to be functional
intellectual propenty ("IP"). Additionally, the nature of the Company’s promise in granting these software licenses to a customer is typically to provide the
customer a right to use the Company s intellectual property. The Company’s softwarc licenses are generally considered distinet performance obligations, and
revenue allocated to the software license is typically recognized at a point in time upon delivery of the license.

In conjunction with so lware licenses, the Company comnwaly provides the customer with additienal services such a5 mointenance as well as associated
implemensation and other professional seavices 1elated to the softwarc licensc. Payments for maintenance are typically due annually, quarterly, or monthly in
advance. Maintenatice is (ypically vumprised of techiical suppoit and unspecified updates and upgrades. The Company generally satisfies these performance
obligations evenly using a time-elapsed output method over the contract term given there is no discernible pattern of performance. When a software license
contract also includes professional services that provide significant modification or customization of the software license, the Company combines the
software license and professional services into a single performance obligation, and revenue for the combined performance obligation is recognized as the
professional services are provided consistent with the methods described below for professional services revenue.

The Company has contracts whete the licensed software is offered in conjunction with hosting services. The licensed software may be considered a
separate performance obligation from the hosting services if the customer can take possession of the software during the contractual term without incuming a
significant penalty and ifit is feasible for the customet to un the software on its own inffastnicture or hire a third party to host the software. If'the licensed
software and hosting services are sepaalely identifiable, license wvenuc is recognized when the hosting services commence and it is within the customer's
control to obtain a copy of the software, and hosting revenue is recognized using the time-¢lapsed output method as the service is provided. If the sofiware
license is nol separateiy identifiable fiom the hosting service, then the related revenuc for the combined performance obligation ic recognized ratably over
the hosiing period.

Occasionally, the Company offers extended payment terms on its license transactions and evaluates whether any potential significant financing
components exist, For certain of its business units, the Company will provide a sofiware license through a rental model for customers who would prefer a
perlodic fee instead of 3 larger upfont payment. Revouue recognition under these ammangements follews the same recognition pattern as the amangements
outlined above; however, the customer generally pays fur the software license and maintcnance in monthly or quanterly installments as opposed to an upfront
software license fee. Judgment is required to determine whether these arrangements contain a significant financing component. The Company cvaluates
whether there is a significant difference between the amount of promised consideration over the rental term and the cash selling price of the software license,
and the overall impact of the time value of money on the transaction. Rintal software license amangements that include a significsnt financing component
are adjusted for the time value of money at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate by recording a contract asset and interest income. The Company does
not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time value of money if it is expected, at contmact inception, that the period between
when the Company transfers a promised solution of service to a customer and when the customer pays for that solution or service will be one year or less.

65




FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

Professional Services Revenue

mee;sional setvices revenue is comprised of implementation, conversion, and programming services associated with the Company's data processing and
application management agreements, implementation or instaliation services related to licensed software, and other consulting services. A significant portion
of our professional services revenuc is derived from contracts for dedicated personnel resources who are often working full-time at a client site and under the
client's direction. This revenue generally re~occurs as contracts are renewed. Payment terms for professional scrvices may be based on an upfront fixed fee,
fixed upon the achievement of milestones, oron a time and materials basis.

In assessing whether implementation services provided on data processing, application management or software agreements are a distinct performance
obligation, the Company considers whether the services arc both capable of being distinct (i.e., can the customer benefit from the services alone orin
combination with other resources that are readily available to the customer) and distinct within the context of the contract (i.e., separately identifiable from
the other performance obligations in the contract). Implementation services and other professional services are typically considered distinet performance
obligations. However, when these services involve significant customization or modification ol an underlying solution or offering, or if the services are
complex and not available from a third-party provider and must be completed prior to a customer having the ability to benefit from a solution or offering,
then such services and the underlying solution or offering will be accounted for as a combined performance obligation.

The Company’s professional services that are accounted for as distinct petformance obligations and that are billed on a fixed fee basis are typically
satisfied as services are rendered; thug, the Company u3cs a cost-based input method, such as cost-to=cost o1 efforts expended (labor hours), 1o provide a
faithful depiction of the transfer of those services. For professional services that are distinct and billed on a time and materials basis, revenue is generaily
recognized using an output method that corresponds with the time and materials biiled and delivered, which is reflective of the transfer of the services to the
customer. Professional services that are net distinct from an associated solution or offering arc recognized over the common measure of progress for the
overall performance obligation (typically a time clapsed output measure that eomresponds to the period over which the solution or vffeiing is made available
to the customer).

Hardware and Other Revenue

Hardware and other miscellaneous revenue i3 gencerally recognized at a point in time upon delivery. The Company typically does not stock i inventory
the hardware solutions sold but arranges for delivery of hardware from third party supplicrs. The Company detemmincs whethis hardware delivered fivm thinds
party suppliers should be recognized on a gross or net basis by evaluating whether the Company has control of the solution or service prior to it being
transferred to the customer.

Material Rights

Some of the Company s contracts with customers include options for the customer to aequite sdditional selutions or services in the future, including
options to renew existing services. Options may represent a material right to acquire golutions or services if the discount is incremental to the range of
discounts typically given for thosc solutions or scrvices to that class of customer in that geographical area or market, and the customer would not have
obtaincd the option without cntering into the contract. If deeined to by a matenial right, the Company will awvuunt for the material right as a sepazaic
perfonmance obligaticn and detennine the standalone selling price based vn diieuily observable prices when available, INhe standalone selling price is not
direcily sbseivahble, then the Compuny evtlinates the siandalone selling price 1o be equal o the discount thay the custommer woutd obiain by exerelging the
option, as adjusted for any discount that the customer wonld receive without avercising the aption and for the ikelihaod that the option will be exercised.

(] Cost of Revenue and Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Cost of revenue includes payroll, employee benefits, occcupancy costs and other costs associated with personnel employed in customer service and
service delivery roles, including program design and development and professional services. Cost of revenue also includes data processing costs,

amortization of software and customer relationship intangibie aesets, and depreciation on operating assets.

Selling, general and administrative expenses include payroll, employee benefits, occupancy and other costs associated with personnel employed in sales,
marketing, humsn resources, fipance, risk management and other administrative roles. Selling,
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general and administrative expenses also include depreciation on non-operating corporate assets, advertising costs and other marketing-related programs.
(0] Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation plans using the fair value method. Thus, compensation cost is measured based on the fair value of
the award at the grant date and is recognized over the service period. Certain of our stock awards also contain performance conditions. In those circumstances,
compensation cost is recognized over the service period when it is probabie the outcome of that perfonmance condition will be achieved. if the Company
concludes at any point prior to completion of the requisite service period that it is not probable that the performance condition will be met, any previously
recorded expense would be reversed. Certain of our stock awards contain market conditions. In those circumstances, compensation cost is recognized over the
service period and is not reversed even if the award does not become exercisable because the market condition is not achieved.

[0)] Foreign Currency Translation

The fanctional currency for the foreign operations of the Company is either the U.S. Dollar ar the local foreigh currency. For foreign operations where the
local currency is the functional currency, the translation into U.8, Dollars for consolidation is performed for balance sheet accounts using exchange rates in
effect at the balance sheet date and for revenue and expense accounts using the average exchange rate during the period. The adjustments resulting from the
translation are included in accumulated other comprehensive eamings (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of Equity and Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Earnings and are excluded from net eamings.

Gains or losses resulting from foreign cutrency transactions are included in other income (expense).

{r) Management Estimates

The preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. generlly accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting petiods. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.
(s) Net Earnings per Share

The basic weighted average shares and common stock equivalents for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 are computed using the
treasury stock method.
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Net eamings and camings per share for the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016 are as follows (in millions, except per share data):

Year ended December 31,

2618 1017 016
Eamnings from continuing operations attributable to FIS, net of tax $ 846 § 1,261 § 524
Eamings (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to FIS, net of tax — — 1
Net eamings attributable to FIS common stockholders s 846 $ 1261 3 525
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic 328 330 326
Plus: Common stock equivalent shares 4 6 4
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted 332 336 330
Net eamings per share — basic from continuing operations attributable to FIS common
stockholders M) 258 § 382 % 1.61
Net eamings {loss) per share — basic from discontinued operations attributable to FIS commoen
stockholders — — _
Net eamings per share — basic attributable to FIS common stockholders * ) 258 § 382 § 1.61
Net eamings per share — diluted from continuing operations attributable to FIS common
stockholders b 255 % 375 3 1.59
Net earnings (loss) per share — diluted from discontinued operations attributable to FIS common
stockholders — — —
Net eamings per share — diluted attributable to FIS common stockholders * $ 255 % 375 ¢ 1.59

* Amounts may not sum due fo reunding.

Options to purchase approximately 1 million, 4 million and 3 million shares of our commen stock for the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and
2016, respectively, were not included in the computation of diluted eamings per share because they were anti-dilutive.

) Certain Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2017 and 2016 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to the classifications used in 2018.
(3) Revenue
Disaggregation of Revenue

In the following tables, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market, type of revenue, and recurring nature of revenue recognized. The
tables also include a reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the Company’s repoeriable segments.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018 (in millions):

Reportable Segments

Corporate
IFS GFS and Other Total

Primary Geographical Markets:

North America £ 4,222 $ 1,808 $ 253 3 6,283

All others 179 1,910 51 2,140
Total $ 4,401 $ 3,718 $ 304 $ 8.423
Type of Revenue:

Processing and services $ 3,582 3 2,095 3 276 3 5,953

License and software related 375 1,001 1 1,377

Professional services 170 603 9 782

Hardware and other 274 19 18 311
Total 3 4,401 3 3,718 § 304 b3 8,423
Recurring Nature of Revenue Recognized:

Recurring fees $ 3.890 $ 2,718 3 278 $ 6,886

Non-recurting fees 511 1,000 26 1,537
Total £ 4,401 % 3,718 $ 304 3 8,423
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For the year ended December 31, 2017 {in millions):

Reportable Segments
Corporate
IFS GFS and Other Total

Primary Geographical Markets:

North America b3 4,091 3 1,899 $ 306 6,296

All others 169 2,151 52 2,372
Total 5 4,260 b3 4,050 $ 358 8.668
Type of Revenue:

Processing and services 5 3433 $ 2,206 $ 320 5,959

License and software related 402 957 14 1,373

Professional services 195 896 13 1,104

Hardware and other 230 2] 11 232
Total $ 4,260 $ 4,050 M 358 8.668
Recurring Nature of Revenue Recognized:

Recuming fees $ 3,704 $ 2,80% $ 330 6,843

Non-recurring fees 556 1,241 28 1,825
Total $ 4260 s 4050 $ 358 8,668
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For the year ended December 31, 2016 (in millions):

Reportable Segments
Corporate
IFS GFS and Other Total

Primary Geographical Markets:

North America $ 4,022 3 1,889 3 37 ] 6281

All others 156 2,294 100 2,550
Total $ 4,178 3 4,183 3 470 S 8,831
Type of Revenue:

Processing and services $ 3,288 $ 2,163 $ 246 $ 5,697

License and software related 387 941 150 1478

Professional services 286 1,080 57 1,423

Hardware and other 217 (03] 17 233
Total $ 4,178 3 4,183 3 470 5 8,831
Recurring Nature of Revenue Recognized:

Recuming fees g 3,584 $ 2,778 5 377 $ 6,739

Non-recurring fees ' 594 1,405 93 2,092
Total 3 4,178 ) 4,183 ) 470 $ 8,831

Contract Balances

The following table provides infotmation about trade receivables, contract assets, and defemed revenues from contracts with customers (in millions).

As of December 31,
2018 2017 2016
Trade receivables, net b3 1472 $ 1624 1 1,550
Contract assets (current) 123 108 168
Contract assets (non-current}, included in other noncurrent assets 91 118 135
Deferred revenue (cument) 739 776 741
Deferred revenue (non-cument) 67 106 58

The payment terms and conditions in our customer contracts may vary. In some cases, customers pay in advance of our delivery of solutions or services;
in other cases, payment is due as services are performed or in amears following the delivery of the solutions or services. Differences in timing between revenue
recognition and invoicing result in accrued trade receivables, contract assets, or deferred revenue on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Receivables are
accrued when revenue is recognized prior to invoicing but the right to payment is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required). This occurs most
commonly when software term licenses recognized at a point in time are paid for pericdically over the license tenm. Contract assets result when amounts
allocated to distinct performance obligations are recognized when or as control of a solution or service is transferred to the customer but invoicing is
contingent on performance of other performance obligations or on completion of contractual milestones. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when
the rights become unconditional, typically upon invoicing of the related performance obligations in the contract or upon achieving the requisite project
milestone. Deferred revenue results from customer payments in advance of our satisfaction of the associated performance obligation(s) and relates primarily to
prepaid maintenance or other recurring services. Deferred revenue is relieved as revenue is recognized. Contract assets and deferred revenue are reported on a
contract-by-contract basis at the end of each reporting
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period. Changes in the contract assets and deferred revenue balances for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were not materially impacted by any
factors other than those described above, aside from the disposition of the Public Sector and Education ("PS&E") business, which reduced the December 31,
2017 centract asset balance by $2 million and the deferred revenue balance by $105 million.

The Company recognized revenue of $740 miltion, $741 million and $718 million, during the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, that was included in the comesponding deferred revenue balance at the beginning of the period.

During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, amounts recognized from performance obligations satisfied (or partially
satisfied) in prior periods were insignificant.

Transaction Price Allocated to the Remaining Performance Obligations
As of December 31, 2018, approximately $20.5 billion of revenue is estimated to be recognized in the fiture from the Company’s remaining unfulfilled
performance obligations, which are primarily comprised of recurring account- and volume-based processing services. This excludés the amount of znticipated
recurring renewals not yet contractually obiigated. The Company expects to recognize approximately 35% of our remaining performance obligations over
the next 12 months, approximately another 25% over the next 13 to 24 months, and the balance thereafier.

@) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 consists of the following (in millions):

2018 2017

Land b 31 % 31
Buildings 235 228
Leasehold improvements 135 158
Computer equipment 1,647 1,073
Fumniture, fixtures, and other equipment 197 167

1,645 1,657
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,058) (1,047)
Total property and equipment, net 3 587 § 610

During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company entered into capital lcase and other finencing obligations of $91 million and $84
million, respectively, for certain computer hardware and software. The assets are included in property and equipment and computer software and the
remaining capital leasc and other financing obligations are classified as long-term debt on cur Consolidated Balance Sheets. Periodic payments ate included
in repayment of borrowings on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Depreciation and amortization expense on property and equipment, including that recorded under capital leases, amounted to $184 million, $180
miilion and $185 million for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 20186, respectively.
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Changes in goodwill duning the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are summarized as follows (in millions):

Corporate &
iFs GF§ Giher Total
Balance, December 31, 2016 3 7676 S 6,332 § 170 §$ 14,178
Goodwill distributed through sale of businesses (14} 473) — @87
Foreign currency adjustments — 39 — 39
Balance, December 31,2017 7.662 5,808 170 13,730
Goodwill distributed through sale of businesses (14) {24) {43) (81)
Brazilian Venture impairment — (25) — (25)
Foreign currency adjustments — {79) — (7%)
Balance, December 31,2018 $ 7,648 3§ 5770 % 127 % 13,545

During 2017, foteign cumency adjustments includes an immaterial prior period adjustment related to the allocation of goodwill to the appropriate
foreign currency at the time of multi-cumency entity acquisitions, with the welated ofiset to accumulated other comprehensive eamings (loss).

Effective August 31, 2018, FIS sold substantially all the assets of the Certegy Check Services business unit in North America, resulting in a pre-tax loss
of $54 million, including goodwill distributed through the sale of business of $43 million.

(6) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2018 consist of the following (in millions):

Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net
Customer relationships and other $ 6,011 § 2,944) $ 3,067
Finite-lived trademarks 68 {46) 22
Indefinite-lived trademarks 43 — 43
Total intangible assets, net $ 6,122 % 2,990y § 3,132
Intangible assets as of December 31, 2017 consist of the following (in millions):
Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net
Customer relationships and other $ 6,220 § (2427) $ 3,793
Fiaite-lived trademarks 101 57) 44
Indefinite-lived trademarks 48 —_— 48
Total intangibie assets, net 5 6,369 § (2,484) § 3,885

Amontization expense for intangible assets with finite lives, including the contract intangible in our Brazilian Venture, which was amortized as a
reduction of revenue until impaired (see Note 16), was $659 million, $670 million and $518 million for the years ended December 31,2018,2017 and 2016,
respectively.
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Estimated amortization of intangible assets for the next five years is as follows {in millions):

2019 $ 626
2020 458
2021 443
2022 426
2023 405

(7) Computer Software

Computer software as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 consists of the following (in millions):

2018 2017
Software flom business acquisitions s 1,116 % 1,130
Capitalized software development costs 1.624 1,422
Purchased software 363 310
Computer software 3,103 2862
Accumulated amortization (1,308} (1,134)
5 1795 % 1,723

Total computer software, net

Amortization expense for computer software was $468 million, $436 million and $396 million for the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

[t)] Deferred Contract Costs

Origination and fulfillment costs from contracts with customers capitalized as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 consists of the following (in millions):

018 1017
Contract costs on implementations in progress $ 93 3 104
Incremental contract origination costs on completed implementations, net 219 127
Contract fulfillment costs on completed implementations, net 163 123
$ 475 § 354

Total deferred contract costs, net

For the ycars ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, amortization of deferred contract costs on completed amortizations was $123 million, $102
million and $71 million.

o Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 consists of the following (in millions):

2018 2017
Salaries and incentives $ 218§ 265
Accrued benefits and payroll taxes 66 71
Trade accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 687 776
Accrued interest payable 71 70
Taxes other than income tax 57 59
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities ] 1,099 § 1,241
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an Debt
Long-term debt as of December 31,2018 and 2017 consists of the following (in millions):
2018 2617

Senior Notes due April 2018, interest payable semi-annually at 2.000% (1) $ — § 250
Senior Notes due October 2018, interest payable semi-annually at 2.850% — 750
Senior Notes due October 2020, interest payable semi-annually at 3.625% ("2020 Notes") 1,150 1,150
Senior Euro Notes due January 2021, interest payable annually at 0.400% ("2021 Euro Notes") 572 599
Senior Notes due August 2021, interest payable semi-annually at 2.250% (*2021 Notes") 750 750
Senior GBP Notes due June 2022, interest payable annually at 1.700% ("2022 GBP Notes™) 382 405
Senior Notes due October 2022, interest payable semi-annually at 4.500% ("2022 Notes™) 300 300
Seniot Notes due April 2023, interest payable semi-annually at 3.500% ("2023 Notes") 700 700
Senior Notes due June 2024, interest payable semi-annually at 3.875% ("2024 Notes”) 400 400
Senior Euro Notes due July 2024, interest payable annuaily at 1.100% ("2024 Euro Notes”} 572 599
Senior Notes due October 2025, interest payable semi-annually at 5.000% ("2025 Notes") 900 900
Senior Notes due August 2026, interest payable semi-annually at 3.000% (“2026 Notes") 1,250 1250
Senior Notes due May 2028, interest payable senti-annually at 4.250% ("2028 Notes”} 4006 -
Senior Notes due August 2046, interest payable semi-annually at 4 500% ("2046 Notes") 500 500
Scnior Notes due May 2048, interest payable semi-annually at 4.750% (2048 Notes") 600 —
Revelving Credit Facility (2) 208 195
Other 34 15

8,718 8,763
Cutrent portion of long-term debt (48) (1,045)
Long-term debt, excluding current portion $ 8670 $ 7,718
1)) These Senior Notes were repaid on April 13, 2018 with borrowings on the Revolving Credit Facility.
) Intetest on the Revolving Credit Facility is generally payable at LIBOR plus an applicable margin of up to 1.625% plus an unused commitment fee

of up to 0,225%, each based upon the Company's corporate credit ratings. As of December 31, 2018, the weighted-average interest rate on the
Revolving Credit Facility, excluding fees, was 3.65%,

On December 21,2018, FIS entered into an interest rate swap that effectively converted the 2024 Eurp Notes from a fixed-rate to a floating rate debt
obligation. This detivative instrument was designated as a fair value hedge of the debt obligation. The fair value of the interest rate swap was §1 million at
December 31, 2018, recorded as a decrease in the hedged debt balance.

On September 21, 2018, FIS established a U.S. commercial paper program {the "Commercial Paper Program”) for the issuance and sale of senior,
unsecured commercial paper notes {the “Notes™), up to a maximum aggregate amount cutstanding at any time of $4 billion. The Notes have maturities of up
to 397 days from the date of issue. The proceeds of the Notes are expected to be used for general corporate purposes. As of December 31, 2018, the
outstanding principal balance of the Commercial Paper Program was $250 million with a weighted-average rate 0f2.91% recorded as shori-term bormrowings
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

On September 21, 2018, FIS entered into a Seventh Amendment and Restatement Agrecment ("Credit Facility Agreement"), which amends and restates
FIS' existing credit agreement (as amended, the "Restated Credit Agreement™). The Credit Facility Agreement increases the revolving credit commitments
outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility ("Revolving Credit Facility") existing under the Restated Credit Agreement from $3 billion to $4 billion
and extends the term of the Restated Credit Agreement to September 21, 2023. Borrowing under the Revolving Credit Facility will be used for general
corparate putposes, including backstopping any Notes that FIS may issue under the Commercial Paper Program described above. As of December 31, 2018,
the outstanding principal balance of the Revolving Credit Facility was 3208
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million, with $3,786 million of borrowing capacity remaining thereunder (net of $6 million in outstanding letters of credit issued under the Revolving
Credit Facility).

The obligations of FIS undet the Revolving Credit Facility, Commercial Paper Program and under all of its outstanding senior notes rank equal in
prierity and are unsecured. The Revolving Credit Facility and the senior notes arc subject to customary covenants, including, ameng others, limitations
under the Revolving Credit Facility on the payment of dividends by FIS, and customary events of defaul.

On June 15, 2018, FIS redeemed 100% of the outstanding aggregate principal amount of its $750 million 2.850% Senior Notes due October 2018, As a
result of the redemption, FIS incurred a pre-tax charge of approximately $1 million consisting of the call premium and the write-off of previously capitalized
debt issuance costs.

On May 16, 2018, FIS issued $1,000 million principal amount of new senior notes, including $400 million of Senier Notes due in 2028 that bear interest
at 4.250% and $600 million of Senior Notes due in 2048 that bear interest at 4.750%. Net proceeds from the offering, after deducting discounts and
underwriting fees, were $979 million. FIS used the proceeds to partially repay its Revolving Credit Facility.

On July 25, 2017, pursuant to cash tendet offers ("Tender Offers”), FIS repurchased approximately $2,000 million in aggregate principal of amount of
debt securities with a weighted average coupon of approximately 4.0%. The following approximate amounts of FIS's debt securities were repurchased: $600
million of its 3.625% notes due 2020, $600 million of its 5.000% notes due 2025, $200 million of its 4.500% notes due 2022, $300 million of its 3.875%
notes due 2024 and $300 million ofits 3.500% notes due 2023. The Company funded the Tender Offers with proceeds fiom the European bond offering and
bamowings on its Revolving Credit Facility, approximately $469 million of which were almost immediately repaid with proceeds from the sale of a majority
ownership stake in the Capco consulting business and risk and compliance consulting business, which was completed on July 31, 2017 (see Note 16). FIS
paid approximately $150 million in tender premiums to par to purchase the notes in the Tender Offers and incurred a pre-tax charge upon extinguishment of
approximately $171 million, in tender premiums, the write-off of previously capitalized debt issue costs and other direct costs.

On July 10, 2017, FIS issued €1,000 million and £300 million principal amount of senior notes in an inaugural European bond offering. The senior notes
include €500 million of Senior Notes due in 2021 that bear interest at (.400%, £300 million of Senior Notes due in 2022 that bear interest at 1.700% and
€500 million of Senior Notes due in 2024 that bear interest at 1.100%. Net proceeds from the offering, after deducting discouants and underwriting fees, were
£1,491 million using a conversion rate of 1,12 EUR/USD and 1.27 GBP/USD.

On March 15, 2017, FIS redeemed 100% of the outstanding aggregate principal amount of its $700 million 5.000% Senior Notes due March 2022 {the
"March 2022 Notes™). On February 1, 2017, the Company also paid down the outstanding balance on the syndicated term loan agreement ("2018 Term
Loans"). The redemption of the March 2022 Notes and the repayment of the 2018 Term Loans were funded by borrowings under the Revolving Credit
Facility and cash proceeds from the sale of the PS&E business. As a result of the redemption of the March 2022 Notes and the repayment of the 2018 Term
Loans, FIS incurred a pre-tax charge of approximately $25 million consisting of the call premium on the March 2022 Notes and the write-off of previousty
capitalized debt issnance costs.

The following summatizes the aggregate maturities of our long-term debt, capital Jeases, and other financing obligations based on stated contractual
maturities, excluding net unamortized non-cash bond premiums and discounts of $40 million as of December 31, 2018 (in millions):
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Total
2019 $ 48
2020 1,193
2021 1,363
2022 682
2023 908
Thereafter 4,622
Total principal payments 8,816
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization {58)
Total long-term debt $ 8,758

There are no mandatory principal payments on the Revelving Credit Facility and any balance outstanding on the Revolving Credit Facility will be due
and payable at its scheduled maturity date, which occurs at September 21, 2023.

FIS may redeem the 2020 Notes, 2021 Euro Notes, 2021 Notes, 2022 GBP Notes, 2022 Notes, 2023 Notes, 2024 Notes, 2024 Euro Notes, 2025 Notes,
2026 Notes, 2028 Notes, 2046 Notes and 2048 Notes at its option in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at a redemption price equal to the
greater of 100% of the principal amount to be redecemed and a make-whole amount calculated as described in the related indenture in each case plus accrued
and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the date of redemption, provided no make-whole amount will be paid for redemptions of the 2020 Notes, the 2021
Notes, the 2021 Euro Notes and the 2022 GBP Notes during the one month priot to their maturity, the 2022 Notes duting the two months prior to their
waturity, the 2023 Notes, the 2024 Notes, the 2024 Euro Notes, the 2025 Notes, the 2026 Notes and the 2028 Notes during the three months prior to their
matutity, and the 2046 Notes and 2048 Notes during the six months prior to their maturity.

Debt issuance costs of 858 million, net of accumulated amontization, remain capitalized as of December 31, 2018, related to all of the sbove outstanding
debt.

We monitor the financial stability of our counterparties on an ongeing basis. The lender commitments under the undrawn portions of the Revolving
Credit Facility are comprised of a diversified set of financial institutions, both domestic and international. The failure of any single lender to perform its
obligations under the Revolving Credit Facility would not adversely impact our ability to fund operations.

an Financial Instruments
As of December 31,2018 and 2017, we had no significant forward contracts.

Fair Value Hedge

During the fourth quarter of 2018, the Company entered into an interest ratc swap with a €500 million notional value converting the interest rate
exposure on the Company's 2024 Euro Notes from fixed to variable. We designated this interest rate swap as a fair vaiue hedge for accounting purposes. The
fair value of the interest rate swap was a $1 million liability at December 31, 2018, recorded as a decrease in the hedged debt balance (see Note 10).

Cash Flow Hedges

Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges with aggregate notional amounts of $500 million and $1,250 million were terminated as of December
31,2017 and 2016, respectively, As a result, FIS recognized approximately $1 million and $2 million before tax loss due to the release of fair value changes
fromt other comprehensive eartings during the yeats ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, we had no
outstanding cash flow hedges.

The amount of gain (loss) recognized in accumulated other comprehensive earnings related to interest rate swap cash flow hedges was $0 million, $0
million and $(7) million during the years ended December 31,2018,2017 and 2016, respectively.
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The amount of gain (loss) reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive eamings into income was ${1) million, ${1) million and $(9) million during the
years ended Decernber 31,2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Net Investment Hedges

During the fourth quarter 0f 2018, the Company entered into cross-currency interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of $716 million,
which were designated as net investment hedges of its investment in Euro and GBP denominated operations. The fair value of the cross-currency interest rate
swaps was a $2 million asset at December 31, 2018.

During the third quarter of 2017, the Company designated its Euro-denominated Senior Notes due 2021 (€500 million) and Senior Notes due 2024 (€500
million) and GBP-denominated Senior Notes due 2022 (£300 million) as net investment hedges of its investment in Euro and GBP denominated operations,
respectively.

The pumose of the Company's net investment hedges is to reduce the volatility of FIS' net investment value in its Euro- and GBP-denominated
operations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, net investment hedge aggregate gain (Joss) of $59 miilion and $(63) million, net of tax,
respectively, for the change in fair value was recorded in other comprehensive income as a component of foreign currency translation adjustments. No
ineffectiveness was recorded ou the net investment hedges.

2) Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to continuing operations for the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016 consists of the following (in
millions):

2018 2017 2016

Current provision:

Federal $ 169 $ 476 3 308

State 50 31 54

Foreign 105 127 131
Total current provision $ 324 § 684 § 493
Deferred provision (benefit):

Federal $ 95) $ ©@79) $ a7y

State 1) 24) (14)

Foreign (10} ) (17
Total deferred provision {i16) (1,005) (202)
Total provision for income taxes $ 208 § (321) $ 291

The provision for income taxes is based on pre-tax income from continuing operations, which is as follows for the years ended December 31,2018,2017
and 2016 (in millions}:

2018 2017 2016
United States $ 744 § 530 $ 503
Foreign 360 446 334
Total $ 1,104 § 976 § ' 837
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Total income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2018,2017 and 2016 is allocated as follows (in millions):

2018 2017 2016
3 208 § (321) § 291
— 1

Tax expensc (benefit) per statement of eamings
Tax expense (benefit) attributable to discontinued operations ()]

Unrealized (loss) gain on foreign currency translation - — 30
Other components of ether comprehensive income 1 (11) 1
Total income tax expense {(benefit) allocated to other comprehensive income 1 1) 3
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options —_ — {32)
208 (332} 241

Total income tax expense (benefit)

A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to the Company’s effective income tax rate for the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and

2016 is as follows:

2017 2016

Federal statutory income tax rate 21.0% 35.0% 350%
State income taxes 3.0 24 29
Federal benefit of state taxes (0.6) (0.8) (1.0)
Foreign rate differential — (5.1 (3B.1)
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation {5.2) 6.7 —
Book basis in excess of tax basis for dispositions 3.0 18.5 -
Tax Cuts and Johs Act 0f2017 — {(73.1) —_
Foreign-derived intangible income deduction (1.8} — —
Other {0.6) (3.1 1.0

18.8% (32.97% 348%

Effective itcome tax rate

The significant compenents of deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 consist of the following (in millions):

2018 2017
Deferred income tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards 108 130
Employee benefit accruals 58 69
Other deferred tax assets 105 128
Total gross deferred income tax assets 271 327
Less valuation allowance (116) (129)
Total deferred income tax assets 155 198
Defetred income tax liabilities:
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets 1,291 1,452
Deferred contract costs 109 94
Other deferred tax liabilities 83 90
Total defetred income tax liabilities 1,483 1,636
1,328 1,438

Net deferred income tax liability
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Deferred income taxes are classified in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 as follows {in millions):

2018 2017
Noncurrent assets (included in other noncumrent assets) $ 32 % 30
Total deferred income tax assets 32 30
Noncurrent liabilities (1,360) {1,468)
Total deferred income tax liabilities {1,360) (1,468)
Net deferred income tax liability $ (1.328) § (1,438)

Wa bolieve that based on our hiatorieal pattern of taxable income, projections of future incotne, tax planning strategics and other relevant evidence, the
Company will produce sufficient income in the future to realize ito deferred income tox agsets, A valuation allowance ia established for any portion of 2
deferred income tax asset for which we believe it is more likely than not that the Company will not be able to realize the benefits of all or a portion of that
defemred income tax asset. We also receivo periodic assessments from taxing authorities challenging cur pesitions that must ba taken into consideration in
determining our tax accruals. Resolving these assessments, which may or may not result in additional taxes due, may require an extended period of time.
Adjustments to the valuation allowance will be made if there is a change in our assessment of the amount of deferred income tax asset that is realizable,

As of December 31,2018 and 2017, the Company had net income taxes receivable (payabte) of $30 million and $(141) mitlion, respectivety. These
amounts are included in other receivables and other long-term liabilities as of December 31, 2018 and accounts payable and accrued liahilities and other
long-term liabilities as of December 31, 2017, in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

As of December 31,2018 and 2017, the Company has federal, state and foreign net operating loss carryforwards resulting in deferred tax assets of $108
million and $130 million, respectively. The federal and state net operating losses result in deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 of $42
million and $44 million, respectively, which expire between 2020 and 2038. The Company has a valuation allowance related to these defermed tax assets for
net operating loss camyforwands in the amounts of $36 million and $37 million as of December 21,2018 and 2017, The Company has foreign net aperating
loss carryforwards resulting in deferred tax assets as of December 31,2018 and 2017 of $66 million and $86 million, respectively. The Company has a full
valuation allowance against the net operating losses as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had
foreign tax credit carryforwards of $0 million and $3 million, respectively.

The Company partictpates in the IRS' Compliance Assurance Process ("CAP™), which is a real-time continuous audit. The IRS has completed its review
for years through 2016. Currently, we believe the ultimate resolution of the IRS examinations will not result in a material adverse effect to the Company’s
financial position or results of operations. Substantially all material foreign income tax retumn matters have heen concinded through 2011, Substantially all
state income tax retums have been concluded through 2011.

As of December 31,2018 and 2017, the Company had gross unrecognized tax benefits of $61 millien and $75 million of which $52 million and $56
million would favorably impact our income tax rate in the event that the unrecognized tax benefits are recognized.
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The foliowing table reconciles the gross amounts of unrecognized tax benefits at the beginning and end of the period (in millions):

Gross Amount
Amounts of unrecognized tax benefits as of January 1, 2017 $ 87
Amount of decreases due to lapse of the applicabie statute of limitations (12)
Amount of decreases due to settlements (19)
Increases as a result of tax positions taken in the current period 5
Increases as a resuit of tax positions taken in a prior period 14
Amount of unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31,2017 75
Amount of decreases due to lapse of the applicable statute of limitations 4)
Amount of decreases due 0 settlements (12)
Increases as a result of tax positions taken in the current period H
Increases as a result of tax positions taken in a prior period 1
Amount of unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2018 3 61

The total amwouiit of interest cxponse recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Eamings for unpaid taxes is $4 millien, $5 million and £6 million for
the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 1314, respectively, The iowal amowm of interest and penalties included in the Consoliduled Balance Sheets is
£24 million and $22 millien as of Decembor 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Interest and penalties are recorded as 3 component of income tax ¢xpense in
the Consolidated Statements of Eamings.

Due to the expiration of various statutes of limitation in the next 12 months, an estimated $15 million of gross unrecognized tax benefits may be
recognized during that 12-month penod,

On December 22, 2017, HR. 1, originally known s the Tax Culs and Jubs Act (the "Act") was signed into law, The Act iucluded significant chauges to
the Internal Revenue Code. Changes impacting the Company were the decrease in the corporate Federal rate from 35% te 21%, the trangition to a territorial
system of taxation from a worldwide syutem, and 4 one-thme 1ax on the desmed epaviation of cuuulatlve forcign camings and profits. Iu 2017, the Company
recorded provisional amounts for certain enactment-date effects of the Act by applying the guidance in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 ("SAB 118").
At December 31, 2018, the Company has completed the accounting for all of the enactment-date income tax effects of the Act and has confirmed the accuracy
ofthe provisional amounts initially determined.

Due to changes introduced by the Act, the Company provided for U.S. income tax on its deemed repatriation of accumulated forcign camings in 2017,
Those historic eamings are indefinitely reinvested offshore, however, those undistributed eamings could still be subject to additional income tax if
repatriated. Due to changes introduced by the Act, and in the absence of final guidance, it is not practicable to determine the unrecognized deferred tax
liability on a hypothetical distribution of those eatnings.

The Act also includes provisions for Global Low Taxcd Income ("GILTI") that imposes o minimum tax liability on forsign camings. The Company has
made the policy election to account for GILT] as a componens of income taxes in the peried incurred (the period cost method).

a3 Commitments and Contingencies

Relignce Trust Claims

Reliance Trust Company ("Reliance"), the Company’s subsidiary, is named as a defendant in a class action arising out of its provision of services as the
discretionary trusiee fise a 401¢h) Plan (the "Plan”) for onc of its customers. Plaintiffs in the action sock damages and ottomeys’ fees, as well as oquitable relief,
on behalf of Plan participants for alleged breaches of fiduciary duty and prohibited transactions under the Employee Refirement Income Security Act of
1974. The action also makes Clais against the Plan's sponsor and reeord-keeper, Reliance is vigorously defending the action and bolieves that it has
metritorious defeuses. Pre-trial discovery has now been completed. Reliance contends that no breaches of fiduciary duty or prehibited transastions ocourred
and that the Plan suffered no damages. Plaintiffs allege damages of approximately $125 million. While
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we arc unablz at this timc to cstimate more preciscly the potential loss or range of loas because of unresolved questions of fact and law, we belicve that the
ultimate resolution of the mattor will not have a material impact on our financial cendition. We do not believe a liability for this action is prebable and,
therefore, have not recorded a liability for this action.

Brazilian Tax Authorifies Claims

In 2004, Proservvi Empreendimentos e Servicos, Ltda., the predecessor to Fidelity National Servicos de Tratamento de Documentos ¢ Informatica Lida.
("Servicos"), a subsidiary of Fidelity National Participacoes Ltda., our formar item processing and remittance services operation in Brazil, acquired certain
assets and employees and leased certain facilities from the Transpev Group ("Transpev") in Brazil. Transpev’s remaining agsets were later acquired by
Prosogur, an unrolated third party. When Transpev diseontinued its operations after the asset sale to Prosegur, it had unpaid federal taxes and secial
contributions owing to the Bmzilian tax authorities. The Brazilian tax authorities brought a claim against Transpev and beginning in 2012 brought claims
against Progegur and Servicos on the grounds that Prosegur and Servicos were successors in interest te Transpev. To date, the Brazilian tax authorities filed
12 claims against Servicos asserting potential tax liabilities of approximately $14 million. There are potentially 25 additional claims against
Transpev/Prosogur for which Servicos is named as a co defendant or may be named, but for which Servicos hag not yet been served, These additional claims
amount to approximately 350 million making the total potential exposure for all 37 claims approximately $64 million. We do not believe a liahility for these
37 total claims is probable and, therefore, have not recorded a liability for any of these claims.

Acquired Contingencies

FIS and certain of its wholly owned subsidiaries acquired SunGard and SunGard Capital Comp. I (collectively, "SunGard™ on November 30, 2015 (the
*SunGard acquisition"}. As part of the SunGard sequigition, the Company became responsible for certain contingencies that were assumed. The Consolidated
Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2018 includes a liability of $64 million largely related to tax compliance matters.

Indemnifications and Warranties

The Company generally indemnifies its clients, subject to certain limitations and exceptions, against damages and costs resulting from claims of patent,
copyright, or trademark infringement associated solely with its customers' use of the Company's software applications or services. Historically, the Company
has not made any material payments under such indemnifications, but continues to monitor the conditions that are subject to the indemnifications to identify
whether it is probable that a loss has occurred, and would recognize any such losses when they are estimable. In addition, the Company warrants to customers
that its software operates substantially in aocordance with the seftware epecifications. Historically, no material costs have heen incurred related to software
warranties and no accruals for wartanty costs have been made.

Leases

The Company leases certain of its property under leases which expire at various dates. Several of these agreements include escalation clauses and
provide for renewal options for periods generally ranging from one to five years.

Future minimum operating lease payments for each of the years in the five years ending December 31, 2023, and thereafier, in the aggregate, arc as
follows (in millions):

2019 b3 121
2020 104
2021 80
2022 51
2023 38
Thereafter 86
Total $ 430
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Rent expense incurred under all operating leases during the years ended December 31, 2018,2017 and 2016, was $147 million, $134 million and $143
million, respectively.

See Note 4 for information on the Company's capital lease obligations.
Recent Accounting Guidance Not Yet Adopted

On February 25, 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which requires lessees to recognize leases on-balance sheet and disclose
key information about leasing amangements. Topic 842 was subsequently amended by ASU No. 2018-01, Land Easement Practical Expedient for Transition
to Topic 842; ASU No. 2018-10, Codification Impravements to Topic 842, Leases; ASU No. 2018-11, Targeted Improvements; and ASUNo. 2018-20, Leases
(Topic 842); Narrow-Scope Improvements for Lessors (collectively, the "new standard™). The new standard establishes a right-of-use model (ROU) that
requires a lessee to recognize a ROU asset and lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with a term longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified as
finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern and classification of expense recognition in the income statement. Under the new standard,
lessor accounting is largely unchanged.

The new standard is effective for public business entities on January 1, 2019, with early adoption permitted. A modified retrospective transition approach
is required, applying the new standard to all leases existing at the date of initial application. An entity may choose to use either (1) its cffective date or (2) the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements as its date of initial application. If an entity chooses the second option, the
transition requirements for existing leases also apply to leases entered into betwgen the date of initial application and the effective date. The entity must also
recast its comparative period financial statements and provide the disclosures required by the new standard for the comparative periods. We will adopt the
new standard on January 1, 2019 and use the effective date as our date of initial application. Consequently, financial information will not be updated and the
disclosures required under the new standard will not be provided for dates and periods before January 1, 2015.

The new standard provides a number of optional practical expedients in transition. We expect to elect the "package of practical expedients,” which
pemmits us not to reassess under the new standard our prior conclusions about lease identification, lease classification and initial direct costs. We do not
expect to elect the use-of-hindsight or the practical expedient pettaining to 1and easements. The new standard also provides practical expedients for an
entity's ongoing accounting. We cumently expect to elect the practical expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components for all of our leases. We do
nat currently expect to elect the short-term lease recognition exemption,

We cxpect that this standard will have an immaterial effect on results of operations. While we continue to assess all ofthe effects of adoption, we
cumently believe the most significant effects relate to the recognition of new ROU asscts and lease liabilities on our balance sheet for our real estate operating
leases and providing new disclosures about our leasing activities. On adoption, we currently expect to recognize additional ROU assets and [ease liabilities
for operating leases ranging from $400 million to $500 million.

Data Processing, Maintenance and Other Service Agreements

The Company has agreements with various vendors, which expire between 2019 and 2024, principally for portions of its computer data processing
operations and related functions. The Company’s estimated aggregate contractual obligation remaining under these agreements is approximately $372
million as of December 31, 2018. However, this amount could be more or less depending on various factors such as the inflation rate, foreign exchange rates,
the introduction of significant new technologies, or changes in the Company’s data processing needs.

(14) Employee Benefit Plans
Stock Purchase Plan

FIS employees participate in an Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP"). Eligible employees may voluatarily purchase, at current market prices, shares
of FIS’ common stock through payroll deductions. Pursuant to the ESPP, employees may contribute an amount between 3% and 15% of their base salary and
certain commissions. Shares purchased are allocated to employees based upon their contributions. The Company contributes a matching amount as specified
in the ESPP 0f25% of
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the employee's contribution. The Company recorded expense of $14 million, $14 million and $19 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31,
2018,2017 and 2016, relating to the participation of FIS employees in the ESPP.

401k} Profit Sharing Plans

The Company’s U.S. employees are covered by a qualified 401(k) plan. Eligible employees may contribute up to 40% of their pretax annual
compensation, up to the amount allowed pursuant to the Intemal Revenue Code. The Company generally matches 50% of each dollar of employee
contribution up to 6% of the employee's total cligible compensation. The Company recorded expense of $82 million, $30 million and $30 million,
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, relating to the participation of FIS employees in the 401(k) plan,

Stock Compensation Plans

In 2008, the Company adopted the FIS 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan ("FIS Plan™). In May 2013, the FIS Plan was combined with a plan assumed in
conjunction with the 2009 Metavaate acquisition ("FIS Restated Plan™). The restatement authorized an additional 6 million shares for issuances, which was
approved by stockholders in 2013. In May 2015, another 12 million shares were authorized for issuance under the FIS Restated Plan and approved by
stockholders. Restricted stock awards and options granted under the FIS Restated Plan for the year ended 2018 are subject to time-based vesting criteria as
well as market conditions for certain grants. Restricted stock awards and options granted under the FIS Restated Plan for the years ended 2017 and 2016 are
gubject to time- and performance-based vesting criteria.

On November 30, 2015, in conjunction with the SunGard acquisition, the Company registered an additional 10 million shares, representing the
remaining shares available for issuance under the SunGard 2005 Management Incentive Plan, as amended ("the SG Plan"), immediately prior to the
consummation of the SunGard acquisition. These shares are now available for grant under the FIS Restated Plan for legacy SunGard employees and new FIS

employees.

Also on November 30, 2015, in conjunction with the SunGard acquisition, the Company registered up to approximately 2 million shares of FIS common
stock on a Post-Effective Amendment on Form $-8, reserved for issuance with respect to converted restricted stock units ("RSU's") under the SG Plan. This SG
Plan will remain in existence until such time as these RSU's vest and the shares are exercised or the SG Plan is otherwise terminated.

A summary of the stock options granted (all of which vest over three years and, for the 2017 and 2016 grants, are also subject to performance-based vesting
criteria), outstanding and shares available for grant under the FIS Restated Plan follows (in millions):

EIS Restated Plan
Available for grant as of December 31, 2016 21
Granted in 2017 4
Quistanding as of December 31,2017 15
Available for grant as of December 31,2017 17
Cranted in 2018 1
Cutstanding as of December 31,2018 1¢
Available for grant as of December 31, 2018 15
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The following schedule summarizes the stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 {in millions except for per share

amounts):

Balance, December 31,2015
Granted

Exercised

Cancelied

Balance, December 31, 2016
Granted

Exercised

Cancelled

Balance, December 31,2017
Granted

Exercised

Cancelled

Balance, December 31,2018

Weighted
Average
Shares Exercise Price

16 § 47.19
5 63.58
3) 36.15
(1) 6225
17 53.21
4 80.05
(5) 4475
{1 70.50
15 61.97
1 96.49
5) 54.19
(1) 74.76
10 74.03

The intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016 was $257 million, $196 million and $103 million,
respectively. The Company generally issues shares from treasury stock for stock options exercised.

The following table summarizes information related to stock options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2018:

Cutstanding Options Exercisable Options
Weighted Weighted
Average Weighted Intrinsic Average Weighted Iatrinsie
Number Reinaining Average Valuc as of Remalping Average Value as of
of Contractual Exercise December 31, Number of Contractual Exercise December 31,
Range of Exercise Price Options Life Price 2018 (n) Options Life Price 20128 (a)
{In millions) (In milllons) (In millions) (1n millions)
$ 0.00-§5991 3 223 % 5250 § 136 3 223 § 5249 § 136
$£5992-%56292 2 4.15 62.92 75 1 408 62.92 44
$6293-566.62 1 3.62 65,73 51 1 352 65.56 35
$66.63-580.03 3 5.06 280.00 66 1 4.69 79.97 2i
$80.04-5%102.55 I 6.23 96.24 9 —_ 351 91.68 —
$102.56-8% 10745 —_ 6.73 104.75 —_ — 0.00 —_ —
$ 0.00-5%510745 10 4,10 7003 § 337 6 321 6126 3 236
e ————

(a) Intrinsic value is based on a closing stock price as of December 31,2018 of $102.55.

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 was estimated to be $16.07, $12.78 and
$9 35, respectively, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the assumptions below:

Risk free interest rate
Volatility
Dividend yield

Weighted average expected life (years)
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19.2% 20.1% 20.4%
1.3% 1.4% 1.6%
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The Company estimates future forfeitures at the time of grant and revises those estimates in subsequent periods ifactual forfeitures differ from those
estimates. The Company bases the risk-free interest rate that is used in the stock option valuation model on U.S. Treasury securities issued with maturities
similar to the expected term of the options. The expected stock volatility factor is determined using historical daily price changes of the Company's common
stock over the most recent period commensurate with the expected tetm of the option and the impact of any expected trends. The dividend vield assumption
is based on the current dividend yield at the grant date or management's forecasted expectations. The expected life assumption is determined by calculating
the average term from the Company's historical stock option activity and considering the impact of expected future trends.

The Company granted a total of 1 million restricted stock shares at prices ranging from $94.71 to $110.12 on various dates in 2018. The Company
granted a total of 1 million restricted stock shares at prices ranging from $79.44 to $93.36 on various dates in 2017. The Company granted 2 total of 1 millien
restricted stock shares at prices ranging fiom $56.44 10 $79.41 on varicus dates in 2016, The restricted stock shares were granted at the closing market price
on the date of grant and vest annually over three years. The restricted stock shares granted in 2017 and 2016 are also subject to performance-based vesting
criteria. Certain of the restricted stock shares granted in 2018 are also subject to market conditions. As of December 31,2018 and 2017, we have
approximately | million and 2 million unvested restricted shares remaining.

The Company has provided for total stieck compensation expense of $84 million, $107 million and $137 million for the years ended December 31, 2018,
2017 and 2016, respectively, which is included in selling, general, and administrative expense in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings, unless the
expense is attributable to a discontinued operation.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2017, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock awards is $106 million and $111 millien,
respectively, which is expected to be recognized in pre-tax income over a weighted-average period of 1.5 years and 1.5 years, respectively.

German Pension Plans

Our German operations have unfiunded, defined benefit plan obligations. These obligations relate to benefits to be paid to German employees upon
retirement. The accumulated benefit obligation as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, was $54 million and $57 million, respectively, and the projected benefit
obligation was $54 million and $57 million, respectively. The plan remains unfunded as of December 31, 2018.

s) Related Party Transactions

Cardinal Holdings

On July 31, 2017, FIS closed on the sale of a majority ownership stake in its Capco consulting business and risk and compliance consulting business to
Clayton, Dubilier & Rice L.P.,, by and through certain funds that it manages "CD&R"). CD&R acquired a 60% interest in the entity, Cardinal, and FIS
obtained the remaining 40% interest, in each case before equity issued to management (see Note 16). Cardinal became a related party effective July 31,2017,

Upon closing on the sale of the Capco consulting business and risk and compliance consulting business, FIS and Cardinal entered into a short-term
Transition Services Agreement, whereby FIS provides vatious agreed upon services to Cardinal. FIS also provides ongoing management consulting services
and other services to Candinal. Amounts transacted through these agreements were not significant to the 2018 and 2017 periods presented.

Capco provided Banco Bradesco with consulting services. Capco revenue and related party receivables from Banco Bradesco through the July 31, 2017
closing are included below under Bruzilian Venture revenue and trade receivables from Banco Bradesco.

Brazilian Venture

The Company operated the Brazilian Venture with Banco Bradesco in which FIS owned a 51% controlling interest through December 31, 2018, and
provided comprehensive, fully outsourced transaction processing, call center, cardholder support and collection services to multiple card issuing clients in
Brazil, including Banco Bradesco. The original accounting for the
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Brazilian Venture transaction resulted in the establishment ofa contract intangible asset and a liability for amounts payable to the original partner banks
upon final migration of their respective card portfolios and achieving targeted volumes.

FIS closed a transaction with Banco Bradesco on December 31, 20138 to unwind the Brazilian Venture pursuant to the agreement entered into September
28, 2018 (see Note 16). Banco Bradesco was a related party through December 31, 2018. During the third quarter of 2018, FIS incurred impaimment charges of
$95 miflion refated to the disposal, including impaitments of its contract intangible asset, goodwill and its assets held for sale to fair value less cost to sell
{see Note 2 (¢)). The canying value of the noncontrolling interest as of December 31, 2018 was 80 million as a result of the transaction.

The board of directors for the Brazilian Venture declared a dividend during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, resulting in payments to
Banco Bradesco of $26 million and $23 million respectively.

The Company recorded revenue of $332 million, $329 million and $272 million during the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, ffom Banco Bradesco. Revenue from Banco Bradesco included $46 miilion of unfavorable and $24 million of favorabie cumency impact during
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, resulting from foreign cutrency exchange rate fluctuations between the U.S. Dollar and Brazilian
Real in 2018 as compared to 2017 and 2017 as compared to 2016.

A summaty of the Company s related party receivables and payables is as follows (in millions):

December 31,
Related Party Balance Sheet Location 2018 2017
Banco Bradesco Trade receivables $ - 8 47
Banco Bradesco Contract assets —_— 5
Banco Bradesco Accounts payable and accrued liabilities — 10
Banco Bradesco Other long-term liabilities —_ 17

(16) Divestitures

On September 28, 2018, FIS entered into an agreement with Bancoe Bradesco to unwind the Brazilian Venture, The transaction closed on December 31,
2018. As aresult ofthe transaction, the Brazilian Venture spun-off certain assets of the business that also provide services to non-Bradesco clients to a new
wholly-owned FIS subsidiary. The subsidiary entered into a long-term commercial agreement to provide cument 2nd new services to Banco Bradesco
effective January i, 2019 that include software licensing, maintenance, application management, card portfolio migration, business process outsourcing,
fraud management and professional services. As a result of the transaction, Banco Bradesco owns 100% ofthe entity that previously housed the Brazilian
Venture and its remaining assets that relate to card processing for Banco Bradesco, which Banco Bradesco will perform intemally. During the third quarter of
2018, FIS incurred impairment charges of $95 million related to the expected disposal, including impairments of its contract intangible asset, goodwill and
its assets held for sale to fair value less cost to sell (see Note 2 (c)}. Upon closing of the transaction, FIS recorded an additional pre-tax loss of $12 million
related to the business divested, removed FIS' noncontrolling interest balance of $90 million, and recorded a $57 million increase to additional paid in
capital for the business spun-oifinto the new wholly-owned FIS subsidiary. The impairment loss and pre-tax loss on disposal were recorded in the Corporate
and Other segment. The Brazilian Venture business divested was included within the GFS segment as part of the consolidated Brazilian Venture results
recorded by FIS through the transaction date. The transaction did not meet the standard necessary to be reported as discontinued operations; therefore, the
impairment loss, pre-tax loss and related prior period eamings remain reported within eamings from continuing operations.

On July 31, 2017, FIS closed on the sale of a majority ownership stake in its Capco consulting business and risk and compliance consulting business to
CD&R,, for cash proceeds of approximately $469 million, resulting in a pre-tax loss of approximately $41 miilion. The divestiture is consistent with our
strategy to focus on our IP-led businesses. CD&R acquired preferred units convertible into 60% of the common units of the venture, Cardinal Holdings, L.P.
("Cardinal") and FIS obtained common units representing the remaining 40%, in each case before equity is issued to management. The preferred units are
entitled to a quarterly dividend at an annual rate of 12%, payable in cash (if available) or additional preferred units at FIS' option. The businesses sold were
included within the GFS and IFS segments. The sale did not meet the standard necessary to
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be reported as discontinued operations; therefore, the pre-tax loss and related prior period eamings remain reported within eamings from continuing
operations. Prior to the sale, the Capco consulting business and risk and compliance consulting business’ pre-tax eamings {loss), excluding certain
unallocated corpotate costs, for the periods ended December 31,2017 and 2016 were $14 mitlion, and $55 million, respectively.

FIS’ 40% ownership stake in Cardinal was initially valued at $172 million and is recorded as an equity method investment included within other
noncurrent assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. After the sale on July 31,2017, FIS began to recognize after-tax equity method investment earnings
(loss) outside of opcrating income and scgment Adjusted EBITDA. FIS ownership stake in Cardinal at Decernber 31, 2018 and 2017 was 38% and 40%,
respectively. The carrying value of this equity method investment as of December 31,2018 and 2017 was $151 million and $171 million, respectively. For
periods prior to July 31,2017, the Capeo consulting business and risk and compliance consulting business were included within operating income and
segment Adjusted EBITDA.

On February 1,2017, the Company closed on the sale of the PS&E business for $850 miflion, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $85 million. The transaction
inctuded all PS&E solutions, which provided a comprehensive set of technology solutions to address public safety and public administration needs of
govemment entities as well as the needs of K-12 school districts. The divestiture is consistent with our strategy to serve the financial services markets. Cash
procecds were used to reduce outstanding debt (see Note 10). Net cash proceeds after payment oftaxes and transaction-related expenses were approximately
$500 million. The PS&E business was included in the Corporate and Other segment. The sale did not meet the standard necessary to be reported as
discontinued operations; therefore, the gain and related prior perfod camings remain reported within camings from continuing operations. Prior lo the sale,
PS&E's pre-tax eamings, excluding certain unallocated corporate costs, for the periods ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 were $3 million and $42 mdllion,
respectively.

{ian Compaenents of Other Comprehensive Earnings

The following table shows accumulated other comprehensive eamings attributable to FIS by component, net of tax, for the year ended December 31, 2018
{in millions):

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustments Other (1) Total
Balances, December 31,2017 b 289y % 43) $ (332)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications (102) 4 (98)
Balances, December 31,2018 3 (391) $ (39) $ (430)

{1} Includes the minimum pension liability adjustment and the cash settlement payment on treasury lock contracts associated with bridge financing for
the SunGard acquisition, This amount will be amortized as an adjustment to interest expense over the 10 years in which the related interest payments
that were hedged are recognized in income.

See Note 12 for the tax provision associated with each component of other comprehensive income.
(18) Concentration of Risk

The Company generates a significant amount of revenues from large clients, however, no individual client accounted for 10% or more of total revenues
in the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016.

Financial instruments that potentially subjoet the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash cquivalents and trade reccivables.
The Company places its cash equivalents with high credit quality financial inatitutions and, by policy, limits the amount of credit cxposurc with any onc
financial institution. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited because a large number of geographically diversc clicnts make
up the Company’s client base, thus spreading the trade receivables credit risk, The Company controls credit risk through monitoring procedures.
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19) Segment Information
Integrated Financial Solutions ("IFS")

The IFS segment is focused primarily on serving North American clients for transaction and account processing, payment solutions, channel solutions,
lending and wealth and retirement solutions, cotporate liquidity, digital channels, risk and compliance solutions, and services, capitalizing on tho continuing
trend to outsource these solutions. Clients in this segment include regional and community banks, credit unions and commercial lenders, as well as
govemment institutions, merchants and other commercial organizations. IFS’ primary software applications function as the underlying infrastructure of a
financial institution's processing environment. These applications include core bank processing sofiware, which banks use to maintain the primary records of
their customer accounts, and complementary applications and services that interact directly with the core processing applications. These matkets are
primarily served through integrated solutions and characterized by multi-year processing contracts that generate highly recurring revenue. The predictable
nature of cash flows generated from this segment provides opportunities for further investmente in innovation, integration, information and security, ond
compliance in a cost effcctive manncr. The business solutions in this scgment included the risk and compliance consulting busincss through its divestituee
on July 31,2017 (see Note 16),

Global Financial Solutions ("GFS"™)

The GFS segment is focused on serving the largest global financial institutions and/or intemational financial institutions with a broad array of capital
markets and asset management and insurance solutions, as well as banking and payments selutions,

GFS clients include the largest global financial institutions, including those headquartered in the United States, as well as all intemational financial
institutions we serve as elienta in more than 130 countries around the world, and asset managers, buy and sell side securities and trading firms, insurcrs and
private cquity firms, These institutions face unique business and regulatory challenges and account for the majority of financial institution information
technolugy spend globally. The purchasing patterns of GFS clicnts vary frow those of IFS clients who typically purchase solutions on sn gutsourced basis.
GF8 clients putchase our solutions and scrvices in various ways including licensing and managing tcchnology "in-house,” using consulting and third-party
service providers as well as fully outsourced end to ¢nd solutions. We have long established relationships with many of these financial institutions that
generate significant recurring e venuc. The business sulutions in this scgment included the Capeo consulting busincss through its divestiture ou July 31,
2017 and the Company's Brazilian Ventute business divested as part of the joint venture unwinding transaction through December 31, 2018 (see Note 16).

Corporate and Other

The Corporate and Onher segment consisis of corporale overhiead expense, cerlain leveraged lunctions and miscellaneous expenses that are nol included
in the operating segments, as well as certain non-strategic businesses. At the end of 2018, the enly business unit remaining in this segment is the Global
Commercial Services business, as the non-sirategis businesses wore divested. In particular, the PS&D business was divested on Fobruary 1, 2017 (scc Notc 16)
and the Certegy Check Services buginess unit in Morth America was divested on August 21,2018 (see Mete 5). The overhead and leveraged costs relate to
markcting, eorperate finance and accounting, human resources, legal, and amontization of acquisition related intangibles and other costs that are not
considered when management evaluates revenue generating segment performance, such as acquisition, integration and certain other costs. The Corporate and
Olher segiuent also includes the impact v wvenue for 2018, 2017 and 2016 of adjusting deferred revenuc from the SunGard acquisition to fair value.

Duting 2018 the Company recorded acquisition and integration costs primanly related to the SunGard acquisition and certain other costs including
those associated with data center consolidation activities of £156 million. During 2017 and 2016 the Company recorded acquisition and integration costs
primarily related to the SunGard acquisition of $178 million and $281 million, respectively.

Adjfusted EBITDA

This measure is reported to the chief operating decision maker for purposes of making decisions about allocating resources to the segments and assessing
their performance. For this reason, Adjusted EBITDA, as it relates to our segments, is presented in conformity with FASB ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting.
Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA (defined as net
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earnings (loss) before net interest expense, income tax provision (benefit) and depreciation and amortization) plus certain non-operating items. The non-
operating items affecting the segment profit measure generally include acquisition accounting adjustments; acquisition, integration and certain other costs;
and asset impairments. For consolidated reporting purposes, these costs and adjustments are recorded in the Corporate and Other segment for the periods
discussed below. Adjusted EBITDA for the respective segments excludes the foregoing costs and adjustments.

Summarized financial information for the Company’s segments is shown in the following tables.

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2018 (in millions):

Corperate
IFS GFS and Oiher Total
Revenue H 4,401 3 3,718 H 304 3 8423
Operating expenses 2,788 2611 1,566 6965
Depreciation and smortization 349 284 787 1,420
EBITDA 1,962 £,391 475) 2878
Acquisition deferred revenve adjustment — — 4 4
Acquisition, integration and other costs —_ — 156 156
Asset impairments —_ — 95 95
Adjusted EBITDA 3 1,962 5 1,391 $ (220} % EREX]
EBITDA $ 23878
[ntereat expense, net 297
Depreciation and amortization 1420
Other income (expense) unallocated (72)
Provision (benefit) for income 1axes 208
Net i P lets ing interest 35
Net eamingy attributable to FIS tockheld $ 846
Capital expenditures (1} 3 185 3 306 $ p 13 713
Tatal assets 5 10,940 $ 8,123 ] 4,707 $ 23710
Goodwill 3 7,648 3 5,770 s 127 3 13,545

(1) Capital expenditures include $91 million in capital leases and other financing obligations.
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As ofand for the year ended December 31, 2017 (in millions):

Corparate
IFS GFS and Other Total
Revenue 5 4,260 5 4,050 H 158§ 668
Openating expenses 2.692 2,990 1,554 7236
Depreciation and amortization 306 263 798 1367
EBITDA 1874 1323 {398} 2.79%
Acquisition deforred revenue adyustment — _ T T
Acquisition, integration and other coses — -— 178 178
Adjusted EBITDA s 1,874 3 1,323 § 213) § 2.984
EBITDA H 2,799
[nierest expense, nel 337
Depreciation and smomizacion 1367
Other income (2% pense) unallocated {123)
Pravision (benefit} for yncome taxes 321)
Net earnings attributable te noncontolling intergst 33
Net earnings antributable to FIS common stockholders $ 1.261
Capital expenditures (1) b 34§ L 8 2 % 697
Total atsets ] 14663  § 8437 § 5424 % 24524
Goeodwill 3 7662 5 54898 ] 170§ 13,730
(1) Capital expenditures include $84 million in capital leases and other financing obligations.
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 (in millions):
Corporate
IFS GFS and Other Total

Revennue 1 4,178 $ 4,133 3 47¢ % 8.831
Opcratifg expenses 2,649 3219 1,734 7.602
Depreciation and amodization 263 247 643 1153
EBITDA 1,792 LIt 621) 2382
Acquisition deferred Tevenue adjustment — —_ 192 192
Acquisition, integration and other casts _ — 281 281
Adjusted EBITDA 3 1792 § 1211 % {148) 2,355
EBITDA 3 2,382
[nterest expense, et 383
Drepreciation and amortization 1,153
Other income {(expense) unallocated {9}
Provision (benefit) for inconw: taxes 29t
Ner catmungs (loss} frem discontinued opetations 1
Net carnings attributable to noncontrolling interest 22
Net eamings attributable to FIS common stackholgers 5 525
Capital expenditures {1} $ 294 5 7 s 48 & 659
Total assets $ 14,231 H 4,106 1 6,683 3 26,020
Gopdwill $ 7.676 5 6,332 b 170 3 14,178

(1) Capital expenditures include $43 million in capital leases and other financing obligations.
Total assets as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 exclude $0 million, $2 million and $6 million, respectively, related to discontinued operations.

Clients in Brazil, the United Kingdom, Germany, India and Australia accounted for the majority of the revenue from clients based outside of North
America for all periods presented. FIS conducts business in over 130 countrigs, with no individual
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country outside of North Amerioa accounting for more than 10% of'total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2018,2017 and 2016.
Long-term assets, excluding goodwill and other intangible assets, located outside of the United States totaled $560 million and $559 million as of

December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. These assets are predominantly located in the United Kingdom, India, Belgium, Germany, France and Brazil.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Noae.
Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures

As of the end ofthe year covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the panticipation of our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined in
Rule 13a-15 (e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in
the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (a) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
Commission’s rules and forms; and (b) accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

There were no changes in our intemal control over financial reporting that occurred during the most recent fiscal quarter that have matenially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, our intemal control over financial reporting.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of cur management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal cortrol over financial reporting. Management has adopted the framework in Juternal
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COS0"). Based on our evaluation

under this framework, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2018, KPMGLLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on our internal centrol over financial reporting as set forth in Item 8.

Item 9B.  Other Information

Mone.

PART II1

Items 10-14.

Within 120 days after the close of its fiscal year, the Company intends to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission a definitive proxy statement
pursvant to Regulation 14A of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which will include the matters required by these items.

PART IV

Item 15, Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(1)  Financial Statement Schedules: All schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements.

(2)  Exhibits: The following is a complete list of exhibits included as pant of this repont, including those incorporated by reference. A list of those
documents filed with this report is set forth on the Exhibit Index appearing elsewhere in this report and is incorporated by reference.
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Exhibit
No.

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Description

Fom

SEC File
Number Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed/ Fumished
Herewith

21

001-16427 21

8/14/2015

3.1

n te of fn ration

001-16427 3.1

2/6/2006

3.2

10-K

001-16427 32

2/26/2013

33

109

001-16427 31

8/7/2014

34

001-16427 3.1

1/27/2017

4.1

S-3JASR

333-131593 43

2/6/2006

42

8K

001-16427 4.1

4/15/2013

43

601-16427 42

4/15/2013

44

001-16427 4.2

6/3/2014

4.5 |

001-16427 42

10/20/2015

4.6

001-16427 43

10/20/2015

47

001-16427 44

10/20/2015

4.8

Nin emental In ated as of Al

t The Bank of rk Mellon

mpany, N, ional bankin I

3-K

as trustee,

001-16427 4.1

8/16/2016
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Exhibit
No.

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

SEC File
Number

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed/ Fumished
Herewith

4.9|Tenth Supplemental Indentyye. dated s of Augyst 16
016 between d Th¢ Bank of New York Mello;

Trust Company, N.A, a hationa] banking association,
as trystee.

8-K

001-16427

42

8/16/2016

4.10|Eleventh Supplemental Indentre, dated as of August

16,2016 between FIS and The Bank of New York
P -
mewa.

001-16427

43

8/16/2016

411 Twelfth lemental Indenture. d as 1

2317 between F  New 1
Trust Company, N.A. a nation. oki jation

8-K

001-16427

4.1

T/11/2017

4.12)Thinteenth Supplemental Indenture. dated as of July

001-16427

42

T11/2017

4.13 [Fourteenth Su nta ent’ ate of Ju

001-16427

43

T11/2617

4.14|Eifteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May

001-16427

4.1

5/16/2018

4.15|Sixteenth Sypplem 1 Indenture, date: tMa

16,201 tween FIS and The B ol New Yo
tlon L N.A., a natipnal bankj

association, as trustee

001-16427

4.2

5/16/2018

of June 15, 2001.(1

10-K405

001-16427

10.25

3/25/2002

102 . ve Life a; I3

CE

Reli B fit Plan Split Dollar Life |
Agreement, effective as of November 7, 2003 .(1)

10-K

001-16427

10.40

2/17/2004

10.3|Grantor Trug nt, d; s of Jul 001

between Ceptegy Ing. and Wachovig Bank, N.A. ([}

10-K405

001-16427

10.15

3/25/2002

wegen C

10.4 L te f fuly 8,20

amended and restated as of December 5, 2003,

10-K

001-16427

10.15(a)

2/17/2004

1

between Centegy Ing, and Wachovig Bank, NA. (1)
0.5|E fNotice o ck ion nt and Stock
1on mettt yn idelity Natignal
formatio ices, Inc. 20 mnibus Ingentiv
Plan. (1)

10-K

001-16427

10.50

2/27/2009

1

0.6|Fidetity Nati ti ices, In |
Stock Purchase Play, effective as of March 16,
2006.(1)

S-4/A

333-135845

Annex C

9/19/2006
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Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit SEC File Filed/ Fumished
No. Exhibit Description Form Number Exhibit Filing Date Herewith
10.7 t v $-8 333-158960 10.1 10/1/2009
Incentive Plan, (1)
1081 s Of)=} 1 1 Metavante 001-33747 10.10(b)| 272042009
- i W) ree Technologies,
made in November 2008, (1) Ine.10-K
10.9)Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. Annual  [S4/A 333-135845 Anaex D 9/19/2006
%MMMM(U
10.16]Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, 8K 001-16427 10,1 12/29/2008
cffective as of December 29, 2009, by and among
T -~
{A Norergss, (1)
10.11 n 0.1 tat 10-Q 001-16427 104 5/4/2012
loym n ctiv
an ideli jonal Infi ion
TV an N [4)]
10.12 i Amendment to Employment Agreement, effectiveas  |10-K 001-16427 10.31 212712015
7 : i Fidell .
Information Services.Inc. and Gary A, Noreross. (1)
10.13 ] Amendment to Emplovment Agreement, effectiveas 10K 001-16427 10.33 2/26/2016
F. 201 . idelity Natign
formati jces, In AN s.(1)
10.14{Amendment to Employment Agreertent, effective as *
" I delity National
Information Services. Inc.. and_ Gary A, Norcross. (1}
10.15 to ent, effectiv 1 3-K 001-16427 10.13 104212009
and am i National | tion
Services, Inc, and James W. Woodall, (1)
10.16|Amendment to Employment Agreement. cffectiveas [10-K 001-16427 10.51 2/28/2014
" —
Woodall. (1)
10.17 Amendm loyment A t 10-K 001-16427 10.52 2/28/2014
i March 1 an twi
idelit i timati Vi Ing,, an
James W. Woodall. (1)
10.18 | Amendment to Employment Agreement, effectiveas  [10-K 001-16427 10.37 2/26/2016
sl
WWI' | Inf o Services. & 1) W
Woodall. (1)
10.19 1¢] m t, effectivi *
201 tween Fidelit jonal
i Ervi ames W, W (1)
10.20| Employment Agreement, effective as of October 1,  |10-K 061-16427 1043 2/28/2014
| Fidoli onal [of -
Services. Inc., and Michael P, Oates. (1}
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Exhibit
No.

Exhibit Deseription

Incorporated by Reference

Form

SEC File
Number

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed/ Fumished
Herewith

10.21

Amendment No. | to Employment Agrecment,
fecti E; ary 83,2012 b mo

Fidelijty National Info. ion ] In
Michael P. Qates. (1)

10-K

001-16427

10.44

2/28/2014

10.22

nt L t

10-K

06G1-16427

10.82

2/26/2613

10.23

10-K

061-16427

1041

2/26/2016

10.24

Fidelity National
Information Jervices, Inc. and Michael P, Qates, (1)

10-K

001-16427

10.25

2/22/2018

10.25

Employme i’ 1, effective ag of April 16
2 by and among Fideli auonal [nformation

Services, Inc. and Gregory G. Montana, (1)

10-K

001-16427

10.8]

2/26/2013

10.26

19N nt I nt A 111e flactjve as

of Eebruary 23, 2016 by and among Fidelity National
Y on Sevices 1 ; G
Montana. (1)

10-K

001-16427

1043

2/26/2016

10.27

Employment Agreement, effective as of October 1,

12009, by and between Fidelity National [nformation

Services, Inc, and Anthony Jabbour. (1)

10-K

001-16427

1046

2/26/2016

10.28

| Amendment to Employment Agreement, effectyve as

fF a 20 an tween) Fidelit
National [nformati ervi Inc. and Anthon

Jabbour. (1)

10-K

601-16427

10.47

2/26/2016

10.29

sitjo. ent, Waiv, elease
dmenttot 1 nt 5 t}, effective
nuary 12,20 a etween Fidelity National

Information Serviges, Inc. and Anthony Jabboyr, (1)

10-K

001-16427

10.30

2/22/2018

10.30

Em ment Agre nt cliv of B 1

12016, by and between Fidelity National Information

Services, Inc. and Mananne Brown. (1)

10-K

001-16427

1048

2/26/2016

10.31

e ent t ent [ € jve

of August 16,2017, by and between Fidelity National
Information Serviges, inc. and Mananne Browy, (1)

10-Q

C01-16427

10.1

11/1/2017

10.32

Employment A nt, effective as o v 1|
16 n een Fidelity National Information
s, Inc, an Thompson. (1)

10-K

001-16427

10.44

2/23/2017
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Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit . SEC File Filed/ Furnished
No. Exhibit Description Form Number Exhibit Filing Date Herewith
1033 A n iv fFel 1, lex 001-16427 10.34 2/22/201%
2018 by and between Fidelity National Information
Services, Inc. and Marc Mave, (1)
10.34| Emplovment Agreement, effective as of Febryary 1,  |10-K 001-16427 10.35 2/22/2018
2015t T Fidelity National Inf -
Services. Inc. and Bruce Lowthers. (1)
10.35 A nt ivea ¢l 1 10-K 001-16427 10.36 2/22/2018
Services, Inc. and Denise Williams. (1)
10.36 ict for i 10-K 001-16427 10.53 2/28/2014
Fidelity National Information Services. Inc.. 2008
" - .
2012.(1)
10.37|F: tri tock for Ei & r 10K 001-16427 10.54 2/28/2014
Fideli ti i rvi
i ncentiv for. ade in mber
2012.{1)
10.33 | Form of Restricted Stock Grant for Employees under J10-K 001-16427 10.55 2/28/2014
idelit ti troati rvic ursuant
to the Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus
Incentive Plan for grants made in November2012. (1)
10.39|F fNon-Stat tion under 10-K 001-16427 10.60 2/26/2016
jdelity Nati Infi i i &
tated 2 ibus In ive Plan for
magde in 2014. (1)
10.40|Fomm of Restricted Stock Grant for Employeesunder [10-K 001-16427 10.61 2/26/2016
Fideli i £ ti rvices, In.
tat ibus I jve Plan for
imade in 2015, (1)
10.41{Fonn of Restricted Stock Grant for Directors under 10K 001-16427 10.62 2/26/2016
Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. amended
a ibusg In. ive Plan for gran
made in 2013, (1)
10.42|Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Award under  [10K 001-16427 10.63|  2/26/2016
tat i ti for t
made in 2015, (1)
10.43 |Form of Restricted Stock Grant for Employeesunder |10-K 001-16427 10.60 2/23/2017
Fidelitv Natiopal Information Services, Inc, amended
nd restat 8 ni ive Plan for
made in 2016. (1)
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit SEC File Filed/ Fumished
No. Exhibit Description Form Number Exhibit Filing Date Herewith
10.44|Fo ' Restr tack tor Dy s r 10-K 001-16427 10.61 2/23/2017
Fidclity Natio b ion Scrvi Inc. amen
n tare Omni In jve Pla nts
made in 2016. (1}
10.45 (Forn of Non-Statutory Stock Option Award under 10-K 001-16427 1062 2/23/2017
and restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan for grants
made in 2016, (1)
10.46 [Form of Restricted Stock Grant for Directors under *
idelity Natio nformation ices, Ing. amend
and restated 2 Omnibus Incentive Plan for grants
made n 2017. (1)
1047 - 105) *
Direct Fidelity National Inf: -
Incentive Plan for granis made in 2017. (1)
10.48)Form of ricte k Grant for | nder *
Fidelity Nati Info jon Services amg]
and restated Omnibus Incentive Plan fo. nts
made in 2017. (1)
1049 - I i T *
Services, Inc. amended and restated 2008 Omnibys
Incentive Plan for grants made g 2017, (1)
10.50|Fo fRestrict k Uni nt for Direc hd
1 Fidelity Natjonal Informati vi Inc.
nd 1 stated 2 Omnibuys Inceptive P
for grants madcin 2018. (1)
10.51 (Fonm of Stock Option Grant for Employees under *
and restated 2008 Ompibus Incenuive Plan for grants
made in 2018, (1)
10.52|Fo fRestrict k Unit Grant for Em es *
under Fidelity Natignal Informatio vices, .
amended ang restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan
for grants madg in 2018, (1)
10.53 |Form of Performance Stock Unit Grant for Emplovees *
|under Fidelity National Information Services, Inc.
for grants made in 2018, {1)
10.54|Sevent d and tate 1 ent 8K 001-16427 101 9/24/2018
ted ag of Se; ber21, 201 a mon

Fidelity National Information Services, In¢,, gach
nder th and JP Morgan Chage Bank NA.

|las Administrative Agent.
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Exhibit
No.

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

SEC File
Number

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed/ Furnished
Herewith

10.55

SunGard 2005 Management [ncentive Plan

10-K

000-53653

10.36

3/20/2013

10.56

as
lamended and restated February 13,2013, (1)
MMW ibus | ive Pl od and
sffective May 30,2018, (1)

DEF 14A

001-16427

Annex A

4/20/2018

| Subsidiaries of the Regigtrant.

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

312

i i W, W, 1L, Chief Fj i
Fideli i i ices, Inc
ursuant to mle 13a-14 r15d-

t ant to tion

3z

322

Certificatign of W. W

pursuant to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002,

101.INSH

XBRL Instance Document

1¢1.8CH+

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

161.CAL+

XBRL Taxenomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
Document

101.DEF+

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Document

101 LAB+

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
Document

101.PRE+

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
Document

{1) Management contract of compensatory plan or arrangement.

*Filed or furnished herewith

+ Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation §-T, the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 heteto are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of
Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange At of 1934, as amended, and otherwise
are not subject to liability under those sections. )
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TFable of Contents
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalfby the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.

Date: February 21,2019 By: /s/ GARY A NORCROSS

Gary A. Norcross
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Date:  February 21,2019 By: /s/ JAMES W. WOODALL

James W. Woodall
Corporate Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

Date:  February 21,2019 By: /¢ KATY T. THOMPSON

Katy T, Thompson
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Date:  February 21,2019 By: /s/ GARY A. NORCROSS

Gary A, Norcross
President, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Chairman of the Board

Date:  February 21,2019 By: /s/ ELLENR, ALEMANY

Ellen R. Alemany
Director

Date:  February 21,2019 By: /s/ KEITHW. HUGHES

Keith W. Hughes
Director

Date:  Febmary 21,2019 By: /s/ DAVID K. HUNT

David K. Hunt
Director

Date:  February 21,2019 By: /s/ STEPHAN A. JAMES

Stephan A. James
Director

Date:  February 21,2019 By: /s/ LESLIEM, MUMA

Leslic M. Muma
Director

Date:  February 21,2019 By: /s/ ALEXANDER NAVAB

Alexander Navab
Director

Date:  February 21,2019 By: /s/ LOUISE M. PARENT

Louise M. Parent
Director

103




Date:

Date:

February 21, 2019

February 21, 2019

By:

By:

/s/ BRIAN T. SHEA

Brian T. Shea
Director

/s/ JAMES B, STALLINGS, JR.

James B. Stallings, J.
Director
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Exhibit 10.14

AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the "Amendment”) is
cffective as of May 5, 2018 (the "Effective Datc"), by and between FIDELITY NATIONAL
INFORMATION SERVICES, INC., a Georgia corporation {"FIS” or the "Company"), and Gary
A. Norcross (the "Employee”) and amends that certsin Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement dated December 29, 2009, as previously amended on March 30, 2012, January 1, 2015
and February 23, 2016 (as previously amended, the "Agreement"). Except as amended herein, the
terms of the Agreement remain in full force and effect.

1. The parties hereby agree to delete Section 12{(c) of the Agreement.

TN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Amendment to be effective as of
the date set forth above.

FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION
SERVICES, INC.

its: Ciffef Legal Officer’ #

GARY, A. NORCROSS




Exhibit 10.19

AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the "Amendment") is
effective as of May 5, 2018 (the "Effective Date"), by and between FIDELITY NATIONAL
INFORMATION SERVICES, INC., a3 Georgia corporation ("FIS" or the "Company™), and
James W. Woodall (the "Employee™) and amends that certain Employment Agreement dated
October 1, 2009, as previously amended on January 29, 2013, March 15, 2013 and February 23,
2016 (as previously amended, the "Agreement”). Except as amended hercin, the terms of the
Agreement remain in full force and effect.

1. The parties hereby agree to delete Section 12(c) of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Amendmen to be effective as of
the date set forth above.

FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION
SERVICES, INC.

Its: Chicf Legal Officar

JAMES W. WOODALL

Jomeditisonincs




EXHIBIT 10.46
FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
Notice of Restricted Stock Grant
You (the “Grantee”) have been granted the following award of restricted Common Stock (the “Restricted Stock™) of Fidelity National

Information Services, Inc. (the “Company™), par value $0.01 per share (the “Shares™), pursuant to the Fidelity National Information
Services, Inc. Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan™):

Name of Grantee: [Name]

Number of Shares of Restricted Stock Granted.: {xxx]
Grant Date: [xxx]

Vesting and Period of Restriction: See Exhibit A

This document is intended as 2 summary of your individuzl restricted stock award. If there are any discrepancies between this
suinmary and the provisions of the Restricted Stock Award Agreement, Plan Document and Plan Prospectus, the provisions of
these documents will prevail.
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FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC. AMENDED AND RESTATED
2008 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
Restricted Stock Award Agreement
Section 1. GRANT OF RESTRICTED STOCK

(a) Restricted Stock. On the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and this Restricted Stock Award
Agreement (the “Agreement”), Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. (the “Company”) grants to the Grantee on the Grant Date of
the Restricted Stock set forth in the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant.

(b) Plan and Defined Terms. The Restricted Stock is granted pursuant to the Plan. All terms, provisions, and conditions applicable to
the Restricted Stock set forth in the Plan and not set forth herein are hereby incorporated by reference herein. To the extent any
provision hereof is inconsistent with a provision of the Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. Amended and Restated 2008
Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan™), the provisions of the Plan will govern. All capitalized terms that are used in the Noftice of
Restricted Stock Grant or this Agreement and not otherwise defined therein or herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the
Plan,

Section 2, FORFEITURE AND TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

(a) Forfeiture. The Restricted Stock shall be subject to forfeiture until the Restricted Stock vests, The Restricted Stock shall vest, in
accordance with Exhibit A. Except in the case of death or Disability, if the Grantee's service as director of the Company terminates for
any reason, then all unvested Restricted Stock shall be forfeited.

(b) If the Grantee’s service terminates due to death or Disability, then all such unvested Restricted Stock outstanding as of the date of
termination shall vest as of the date of termination and become free of any forfeiture and transfer restrictions described in the
Agreement.

(b) Transfer Restrictions. During the Period of Restriction, the Restricted Stock may not be sold, assigned, pledged, exchanged,
hypothecated or otherwise transferred, encumbered or disposed of to the extent such Restricted Stock is subject to a Period of
Restriction. Grantee is subject to the Company’s hedging and pledging policy, which prohibits (i) directly or indirectly engaging in
hedging or monetization transactions with the Restricted Stock; (ii) engaging in short sale transactions with the Restricted Stock and;
(iii) pledging the Restricted Stock as cellateral for a loan, including through the use of traditional margin accounts with a broker.

(c) Lapse of Restrictions. The Period of Restriction shall lapse as to the Restricted Stock in accordance with the Notice of Restricted
Stock Grant. Subject to the terms of the Plan and 6(b) hereof, upon lapse of the Period of Restriction, the Grantee shall own the Shares
that are subject to this Agreement free of all restrictions otherwise imposed by this Agreement.

(d) Definition of “Disability.” The term “Disability” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Grantee’s employment
agreement with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary. If the Grantee’s employment agreement does not define the term
“Digability,” or if the Grantee has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary, the term
“Disability” shall mean the Grantee’s entitlement to long-term disability benefits pursuant to the long-term disability plan maintained by
the Company or in which the Company’s employees participate.

(¢) Notwithstanding any provision of Section 2 of this Agreement, if any provision of this Section 2 conflicts with an employment
agreement by and between Grantee and the Company which is currently in effect,
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such conflicting provisions of that Grantee’s employment agreement shall supersede any such conflicting provisions in Section 2 of this
Agreement to the extent they are more favorable fo Granice.

SECTION 3: STOCK CERTIFICATES

As soon as practicable following the grant of Restricted Stock, the Shares of Restricted Stock shall be registered in the Grantee’s
name in cettificate or book-entry form. If a certificate is issued, it shall bear an appropriate legend referring to the restrictions and it
shall be held by the Company, or its agent, on behalf of the Grantee until the Period of Restriction has lapsed. If the Shares are
registered in book-entry form, the restrictions shall be placed on the book-entry registration. The Grantee may be required to execute
and return to the Company a blank stock power for each Restricted Stock certificate {or instruction letter, with respect to Shares
registered in book-entry form), which will permit transfer to the Company, without further action, of all or any portion of the Restricted
Stock that is forfeited in accordance with this Agreement.

SECTION 4: TRADING STOCK AND SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

(a)  Grantee is subject to insider trading liability if Grantee is aware of material, nonpublic information when making a purchase or
sale of Company stock. In addition, Grantee is subject to blackout restrictions that prevent the sale of Company stock during certain
time periods referred to as the “blackout period.” The recurring “blackout period™ begins at the end of each calendar quarter and ends
two (2) trading days following the Company's eamings release.

(b) Except for the transfer and dividend restrictions, and subject 1o such other restrictions, if any, as determined by the Company, the
Grantee shall have all other rights of a holder of Shares, including the right to vote (or to execute proxies for voting) such Shares.
Unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors, if all or part of a dividend in respect of the Restricted Stock is paid in Shares or
any other security issued by the Company, such Shares or other securities shall be held by the Company subject to the same restrictions
as the Restricted Stock in respect of which the dividend was paid.

SECTION 5: DIVIDENDS

(a) Any dividends paid with respect to Shares which remain subject to a Period of Restriction shall not be paid to the Graniee but shall

be held by the Company.
{b) Such held dividends shall be subject to the same Period of Restriction as the Shares to which they relate.

(¢} Any dividends held pursuant to this Section 5 which are attributable to Shares which vest pursuant to this Agreement shall be paid
to the Grantee within 30 days of the applicable vesting date.

{d) Dividends attributable to Shares forfeited pursuant to Section 2 of this Agreement shall be forfeited to the Company on the date
such Shares are forfeited.

SECTION 6. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

(a) Acknowledgements. The Grantee hereby acknowledges that he or she has read and understands the terms of the Plan and this
Agreement, and agrees to be bound by their respective terms and conditions. The Grantee acknowledges that there may be tax
consequences upon the vesting or transfer of the Restricted Stock and that the Grantee should consult an independent tax advisor.

(b)  Tax Withholding. Pursuant to Article 20 of the Plan, the Company shall have the power and right to deduct or withhold an
amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state and local taxes (including the Grantee’s FICA taxes) required by law to be withheld with
respect to this Award. The Company may condition the delivery of Shares upon the Grantee’s satisfaction of such withholding
obligations. The Grantee may elect to satisty all or part of such withholding requirement by tendering previously-owned Shares or by
having the Company withhold
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Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the minimum statutory withholding (based on minimum statutory withholding rates for
federal, state and local tax purposes, as applicable, including the Grantee’s FICA taxes) that could be imposed on the transaction, and,
to the extent the Company so permits, amounts in excess of the minimum statutory withholding to the extent it would not result in
additional accounting expense. Such election shall be irrevocable, made in writing and signed by the Grantee, and shall be subject to
any restrictions or limitations that the Company, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate.

(c) Ratification of Actions. By accepting this Agreement, the Grantee and each person claiming under or through the Grantee shall
be conclusively deemed to have indicated the Grantee’s acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, any action taken under the Plan
or this Agreement and Notice of Restricted Stock Grant by the Company, the Board or the Committee.

(d)  Notice. Any notice required by the terms of this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed effective upon
personal delivery or upon deposit with the United States Postal Service, by registered or certified mail, with postage and fees prepaid.
Notice shall be addressed to the General Counsel of the Company at its principal executive office and to the Grantee at the address that
he or she most recently provided in writing to the Company.

(e} Choice of Law. This Agreement and the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant shall be governed by, and construed in accordance
with, the laws of Florida, without regard to any conflicts of law or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise cause the Plan,
this Agreement or the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant to be governed by or construed in accordance with the substantive law of
another jurisdiction.

(T} Arbitration. Subject to Article 3 of the Plan, any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to the Plan, this Agreement or the Notice
of Restricted Stock Grant shall be settled by binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in Jacksonville, Florida and in accordance with
the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator shall decide any issues submitted in
accordance with the provisions and commercial purposes of the Plan, this Agreement and the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant,
provided that all substantive questions of law shall be determined in accordance with the state and Federal laws applicable in Florida,
without regard to internat principles relating to conflict of laws.

(g) Modification or Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified or amended by written agreement executed by the parties
hereto; provided, however, that the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 4.3 of the Plan may be made without such written

agreement.

(h) Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity
shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or

invalid provision had not been included.

(i) References to Plan. All references to the Plan (or to a Section or Article of the Plan) shall be deemed references to the Plan (or the
Section or Article} as may be amended from time to time.

(i} Section 409A Compliance. To the extent applicable, it is intended that the Plan and this Agreement comply with the requirements
of Code Section 409A and any related regulations or other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department
of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service and the Plan and the Award Agreement shall be interpreted accordingly.
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EXHIBIT A
Vesting and Restrictions

The Restricted Stock is subject to a Time-Based Restriction, as described below (the “Period of Restriction™).

Time-Based Restrictions

Anniversary Date % of Restricted Stock
First {1¥) anniversary of the Effective Date of Grant 33.33%
Second (2°¢) anniversary of the Effective Date of Grant 33.33%
Third (3*) anniversary of the Effective Date of Grant 33.34%
Vesting

The percentage of the Restricted Stock indicated next to each Anniversary Date shall vest on such indicated anniversary date (such
three yeat vesting schedule referred to as the “Time-Based Restrictions™).
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Exhibit 10.47
Fidelity National Information Services, Inc.
Notice of Non-Statutery Stock Option Grant
You (the “Optionee™) have been granted the following option (the “Option™) to purchase Common Stock of Fidelity National

Information Services, Inc. (the “Company”), par value $0.01 per share (“Share™), pursuant to the Fidelity National Information
Services, Inc. Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan™):

Name of Optionee: [Name]

Total number of shares subject 10 Option: [xxx}

Grant Date: [xxx]

Exercise Price: [xxx]

Vesting Schedule: See Exhibit A

Expiration Date: 7% anniversary of the Grant Date

See the Stock Option Award Agreement and Plan Prospectus for the specific provisions related to this Option award, including the time
period for exercise under various fermination events and other important information concerning this award.

This document is intended as a summary of your individual Option award. If there are any discrepancies between this summary
and the provisions of the formal documents of this Award, including the Stock Option Agreement, Plan Document or Plan
Prospectus, the provisions of the formal documents will prevail.




FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED
2068 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
Stock Option Agreement

SECTION 1: GRANT OF OPTION.

(a) Option. On the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice of Stock Option Grant and this Stock Option Agreement (the
“Agreement”}, the Company grants to the Optionee on the Grant Date the Option to purchase at the Exercise Price the number of Shares
set forth in the Notice of Stock Option Grant.

(b) Plan and Defined Terms. The Option is granted pursuant to the Plan. All terms, provisions, and conditions applicable to the
Option set forth in the Plan and not set forth herein are hereby incorporated by reference herein. To the extent any provision hereof is
inconsistent with a provision of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will govern. All capitalized terms that are used in the Notice of
Stock Option Grant or this Agreement and not otherwise defined therein or herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.

SECTION 2: RIGHT TO EXERCISE.

The Option hereby granted shall be exercised by written notice to the Committee, specifying the number of Shares the Optionee
desires to purchase together with provision for payment of the Exercise Price. Subject to such limitations as the Company may impose
(including prohibition of one more of the following payment methods), payment of the Exercise Price may be made by (a) cash or its
equivalent, (b) by tendering Shares or directing the Company to withhold Shares from the Option having an aggregate Fair Market
Value at the time of exercise equal to the Exercise Price, {c} by broker-assisted cashless exercise, {(d) in any ather manner then permitted
by the Company, or (¢) by a combination of any of the permitted methods of payment. The Company may require the Optionee to
furnish or execute such other documents as the Company shall reasonably deem necessary (i) to evidence such exercise and (ii) to
comply with or satisfy the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Exchange Act, applicable state or non-U.S.
securitics laws or any other law,

SECTION 3: TERM AND EXPIRATION.

(a) Basic Term. Subject to earlier termination pursuant to the terms here, the Option shall expire on the Expiration Date set forth in
the Notice of Stock Option Grant.

(b) Termination of Employment or Service. Subject to the terms and conditions of Optionee’s employment agreement, if any, if the
Optionee’s employment or service as a Director or Consultant, as the case may be, is terminated, the Option shall expire on the earliest
of the following occasions:

(i) The Expiration Date set forth in the Notice of Stock Option Grant;

(ii) The date three months following the termination of the Optionee’s employment or service for any reason other than Cause,
Retirement, death, or Disability;

(iii) The date three years following the termination of the Optionee’s employment or service for Retirement;
(iv)  The date one year following the termination of the Optionee’s employment or service due to death or Disability; or

{v) The date of termination of the Optionee’s employment or service for Cause (as defined below).

{¢) The Optionee may exercise all or part of this Option at any time before its expiration, but only to the extent that the Option was
vested and exercisable upon termination of the Optionee’s employment or service. Except in the case of
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death or Dizability, when the Optionee’s employmont or service terminates, this Option shall expire immcdiatcly with respect to the
number of Shares for which the Option is not yet vested.

(d) If the Optionee’s employment or service terminates due to death or Disability, then all such unvested Stock Options outstanding
as of the date of termination shall vest as of the date of termination and become free of any forfeiture and transfer restrictions described
in the Agreement.

{e) All or part of this Option may be exercised (prior to expiration) by the personal representative of the Optionee or by any person
who has acquired this Option dircetly from the Optionce by will, boquest or inheritance, but only to the cxtent that the Option was
vested and exercicable upon termination of the Optionce’s ecmployment or service,

(f) Definition of “Cause.” The term “Cause” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Optionee’s employment agreement
with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary. If the Optionee’s employment agreement does not define the term “Cause,” or if the
Optionee has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary, the torm “Causc™ shall mean
(A) persistent failuro to perform dutics consistent with a commercially reasonable standard of carc (other than duc to a physical ot
mental impairment or due to an action or inaction directed by Company that would otherwise constitutc Good Reason); (B) willful
neglect of duties (other than due to a physical or mental impairment or due to an action or inaction directed by Company that would
otherwise constitute Good Reason); (C) cenviction of, or pleading nolo contendere to, criminal or other illegal activities involving
dishonesty or moral turpitudo; (D) material breach of this Agrcement; (E) material breach of Company’s business policics, accounting
practices or standards of ethics; or (F) failure to matorially cooperate with or impeding an investigation authorized by the Doard.

(g) Definition of “Disability.” The term “Disability” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Optionee’s employment
agreement with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary. If the Optionee’s employment agreement does not define the term
“Disability,” or if the Optionee has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary, the
term “Disability” shall mean the Optionee’s entitlement to leng-term disability benefits pursuant to the long-term disability plan
maintained by the Company or in which the Company’s employees participate.

(h) Definition of “Retirement.” The term “Retirement” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Optionee’s employment
agreoment with the Company or any Subsidiary. If the Optionee’s employment agreement does not define the term “Retircment,” or if
the Optionee has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company or any Subsidiary, the term “Retirement” shall mean the
Optionee’s termination of employment without Cause on or after age 55 if the sum of the Qptionec’s age at termination of employment
and Years of Service with the Company total 65 or more.

(1) Definition of “Years of Service.” The term “Years of Service” means years of consecutive and continuous service with the
Company or a predecesscr entity.

(i) “Good Reason” termination shall apply only if the Optionee has an employment agreement with the Company, or affiliate or any
Subsidiary with an applicable provision and shall have the meaning ascribed to that term in such employment agreement.

(k) Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, if any provision of this conflicts with an employment agreement by and
betweon Optionee and the Company which is currently in effoct, such conflicting provisions of that Optionce’s employment agreement
shall supersede any such conflicting provisions of this Agroement to the cxtent they are more favorable to Optionee (but only to the
extent such conflicting provisions of that Optionece’s employment agreement do not sonflict with the terms of the Plan).

SECTION 4: TRANSFERABILITY OF OPTION.

The Option shall not be transferable by the Optionee other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and the Option
shall be exercisable during the Optionee’s lifetime only by the Optionee or on his or her behalf by the Optionee's guardian or legal
representative.,




SECTION 5: TRADING STOCK.

Kcep in mind that you arc subject to insider trading liability if you are aware of material, nonpublic information when making a
puichiase or sale of Company stock. In additien, if you arc a Section 16 officer or o designated insider of the Company, you are subject
to blackout restrictions that prevent the sale of Company stock during certain time periods referred to as the “blackout period”. The
current “blackout period” is from the end of each calendar quarter through two (2) days following the Company’s eamings release.

SECTION 6: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

{(a) Acknowlcdgements. The Optionee hereby acknowledges that he or she has read and understands the terms of the Plan and this
Agreement, and agrees t¢ be bound by their respective terms and conditions. The Optionee acknowledges that there may be tax
consequences upon the cxercise or transfor of the Option and that the Optionee should consult an independent tox advisor prior to any
exercise of the Option.

()  Tax Wilhbolding. Pucsuant to Aiticle 20 of the Plan, the Company shall have the power and the right te deduct or withhold, or
require the Optivnes 1o reniit o the Company, an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state and local taxes (including the Optionee’s
FICA obligations) required by law to be withheld with respect to this Option. The Company may condition the delivery of Shares upon
the Optionee’s salisfaction of such withholding obligations. The Optionee may elect to satisfy all or part of such withholding
requirement by fendering previously-owncd Shares or by having the Company withhold Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the
minimum statutory withholiding (based on minimum statutory withholding rates for federal, state and local tax purposes, as applicable,
including e Oplivnee’s TICA taxcs) that could be imposed on the transaction, and, 1o the extent the Company so permits, amounts in
exvess vf e minmum statutory withheldiog to the extent it would not result in additional aceounting expense. Such elostion shall be
irrevocable, made in wiiling and signed by the Optionec, and shall be subject to any rostrictions or limitations that the Company, in its
sole discretion, deems appropriate.

(¢} Notice Concerning Disqualifying Dispositions, If the Option is an Incentive Stock Option, the Optionee shall notify the Company
of any disposition of Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of the Option if the disposition constitutes a “disqualifying disposition™
within (he meaning of Sectivns 421 and 422 of the Code (or any successor provision of the Code then in effect relating to disqualifying
dispositions). Such notice shall be provided by the Optionee to the Company in writing within 10 days of any such disqualifying
disposition.

(d) Rights as a Steckholder. Neither the Optionee nor the Optionee’s transferee or representative shall have any rights as a
stockholder with respect to any Shares subject to this Option until the Option has been exercised and Share certificates have been issued
to the Opticnee, transferee or representative, as the case may be.

(e) Ratification of Actions. By accepting this Agreement, the Optionee and each person claiming under or through the Optionee
shall be conclusively deemed to have indicated the Optionee’s acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, any action taken under
the Plan or this Agreement and Notice of Stock Option Grant by the Company, the Board, or the Committee.

(i Notice. Any notice required by the terms of this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed effective upon personal
delivery or upon deposit with the United States Postal Service, by registered or certified mail, with postage and fees prepaid. Notice
shall be addressed to the General Counsel of the Company at its principal executive office and to the Optionee at the address that he or
she most recently provided in writing to the Company.

(g) Choice of Law. This Agreement and the Notice of Stock Option Grant shall be govemed by, and construed in accordance with,
the laws of Florida, without regard to any conflicts of law or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise cause the Plan, this
Agreement or the Notice of Stock Option Grant to be governed by or construed in accordance with the substantive law of another

jurisdiction.




(h)  Arbitration. Subject to Article 3 of the Plan, any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to the Plan, this Agreement or the
Notice of Stock Option Grant shall be gettled by binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in Jacksonville, Florida and in accordance
with the Commeroial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrater shall decide any issues submitted in
accordance with the provisions and commercial purposes of the Plan, this Agreement and the Netice of Stock Option Grant, provided
that all substantive questions of law shall be determined in accordance with the state and Federal laws applicable in Florida, without
regard to internal principles relating to conflict of laws.

() Modification or Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified or amended by written agreement executed by the parties
hereto; provided, however, that the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 1.3 of the Plan may be made without such written
agreement.

(j) Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity
shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or
invalid provision had not been included.

(k) References to Plan. All references to the Plan (or to a Section or Article of the Plan) shall be deemed references to the Plan (or
the Section or Article) as may be amended from time to time.

(I} Section 409A Compliance. To the extent applicable, it is intended that the Plan and this Agreement comply with the requirements
of Codc Scction 409A and any related regulations or other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department
of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service and the Plan and the Agreement shall be interpreted accordingly.




EXHIBIT A
Vesting and Restrictions

The Options are subject to forfeiture until the Options vest. The Options are subject to a time-based vesting, as described below, The

percentage of the Stock Option indicated next to each Anniversary Date shall vest and become exercisable on such indicated
anniversary date (such three-year vesting schedulg refetred to as the “Time-Based Restrictions™).

Time-Based Restrictions

Anniversary Date % of Option
First (1*) anniversary of the Effective Date of Grant 33.33%
Second (29) anniversary of the Effective Date of Grant 33.33%
Third (3™) anniversary of the Effective Date of Grant 33.34%




EXHIBIT 10.48
FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
Notice of Restricted Stock Grant
You (the “Grantee™) have been granted the following award of restricted Commeon Stock (the “Restricted Stock™) of Fidelity National

Information Services, Inc. (the “Company™), par value $0.01 per share (the “Shares™), pursuant to the Fidelity National Information
Services, Inc. Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan”):

Name of Grantee: [Name]

Number of Shares of Restricted Stock Granted: [xxx]
Grant Date: [xxx]

Vesting and Period of Restriction: See Exhibit A

This document is intended as 2 summary of your individual restricted stock award. If there are any discrepancies between this
summary and the provisions of the Restricted Stock Award Agreement, Plan Document and Plan Prospectus, the provisions of
those documents will prevail.
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FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED
2008 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
Restricted Stock Award Agreement
Section 1. GRANT OF RESTRICTED STOCK

{#) Reslricted Stock. Ou (e wims and conditions sct forth in the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant and this Restricted Stock Award
Agreement (the “Agreement”), Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. (the “Company”) grants to the Grantee on the Grant Date of
the Restricted Stock set forth in the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant.

() DPlan aud Defined Terms. The Restricted Stock is granted pursuant to the Plan. All terms, provisions, and conditions applicable to
the Restricted Stock set forth in the Plan and not set forth herein are hereby incorporated by reference herein. To the extent any
provision hereof is inconsistent with a provision of the Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. Amended and Restated 2008
Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan™), the provisions of the Plan will govem. All capitalized terms that are used in the Notice of
Restricted Stock Grant or this Agreement and not otherwise defined therein or herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the
Plan.

Section 2. FORFEITURE AND TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

(a) Foulcilwe. Thc Restricted Stock shall be subjeet to forfeiture until the Restricted Stock vests in accordance with Exhibit A. Except
in the vase ol death or Disability, if the Grantee’s employment with the Company, or any of its Affiliates or its Subgidiaries terminates
for any reason then all unvested Restricted Stock shall be forfeited.

(b) Ifthe Graulee's service uriniiates duc to death or Disability, then all such unvested Restricted Stock outstanding as of the date of
termination shall vest as of the date of termination and become free of any forfeiture and transfer restrictions described in the
Agreement.

(¢) Netwithstanding any provision of Section 2 of this Agreement, if any provision of this Section 2 conflicts with an employment
agreement by and between Grantee and the Company which is currently in effect, such conflicting provisions of that Grantee’s
employment agreement shall supersede any such conflicting provisions in Section 2 of this Agreement to the extent they are more
favorable to Grantee.

(d) Transfer Restrictions. During the Period of Restriction, the Restricted Stock may not be sold, assigned, pledged, exchanged,
hypothecated or otherwise transferred, encumbered or disposed of to the extent such Restricted Stock is subject to a Period of
Restriction. Grantee is subjeut w (e Company’s hedging and pledging policy. For designated exccutive efficers, the polisy prohibits (i)
direclly or indirectly engaging in hedging or monetization transactions with the Restricted Stock; (ii) engaging in short gale transactions
with the Restricted Stock and; (iii) pledging the Restricted Stock as collateral for a loan, including through the use of traditional margin
accounts with a broker. For all other Grantees, the policy prohibits (i) direcily or indirectly engaging in hedging or monetization
transactions with the Restricted Stock and (ii) engaging in short sale transactions with the Restricted Stock.

{e} Lapse of Restrictions. The Period of Restriction shall lapse as to the Restricted Stock in accordance with the Notice of Restricted
Stock Grant. Subject to the terms of the Plan and Sections 2(d) and 6(b) hereof, upon lapse of the Period of Restriction, the Grantee
shall own the Shares that are subject to this Agreement free of all restrictions otherwise imposed by this Agreement.
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(0 Hoklding Requirement Fellowing Period of Restriction. If and when the Grantee is an Officcr (as dofined in Rule 16a-1() of the
Exchange Act), the Grantee may not sell, assign, pledge, exchange, hypothecate or otherwise transfer, encumber or dispose of fifty
percent (50%) of any vested Shares of Restricted Stock from the date of vesting (net of any shares required to be sold to satisfy taxes
due from the exercise), until such time as the officer’s total equity holdings satisfy the equity ownership guidelines adopted by the
Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Committee™); provided, however, that this Section 2(d) shall not
prohibit the Grantee from exchanging or otherwise disposing of Shares in connection with a Change in Control or other transaction in
which Shares held by other Company sharcholders are requircd to be exchanged or otherwise disposcd.

(g) Definition of “Disability.” The term “Disability” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Grantee’s employment
agreement With the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary. If the Grantee’s employment agreement does not define the term
“Disability,” or if the Grantee has not entercd into an employment ngreement with the Company, or any affiliatc or Subsidiary, the term
“Disability” shall mean the Grantee’s entitlement to long-term disability benefits pursuant to the long-term disability plan maintained by
the Company or in which the Company’s employees participate,

Section 3. STOCK CERTIFICATES

As soon as practicable following the grant of Restricted Stock, the Shares of Restricted Stock shall be registered in the Grantee’s
name in certificate or book entry form. If a certificate is issued, it shall boar an appropriate legend referring to the restrictions and it
shall be held by the Company, or its agent, on behalf of the Grantee until the Period of Restriction has lapsed. If the Shares are
registered in book-entry form, the restrictions shall be placed on the book-entry registration. The Grantee may be required to execute
and return o the Company a blank stock power for each Restricted Steck certificate (or instruction letter, with respeet to Sharcs
registered in book-entry form), which will permit transfer to the Company, without further action, of all or any portion of the Restricted
Stock that is forfeited in accordance with this Agreement.

SECTION 4: TRADING STOCK AND SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

(a)  Grantee is subject to insider trading liability if Grantee is aware of material, nonpublic information when making a purchase or
sale of Company stock. In addition, if Grantee is an Officer {(as dofinod in Rule 16a 1(f) of the Exchange Ast), or someone designated
as an “insider” by the Company, Grantee is subject to blackout restrictions that prevent the sale of Company stock during certain time
periods referred to as the “blackout period.” The recurring “blackout period” begins at the end of each calendar quarter and ends two
(2) trading days following the Company’s eamnings rclease.

(b) Except for the transfer and dividend restrictions, and subject to such other restrictions, if any, as determined by the Company, the
Grantee shall have all other rights of a holder of Shares, including the right to vote (or to execute proxies for voting) such Shares.
Unless etherwise determined by the Board of Directors, if all or part of a dividend in respect of the Restricted Stock is paid in Shares or
any other seeurity issued by the Company, such Shares or other securities shall be held by the Company subject to the same restrictions
as the Restricted Stock in respect of which the dividend was paid.

SECTION 5: DIVIDENDS

(a) Any dividends paid with respect to Shares which remain subject to a Period of Restriction shall not be paid to the Grantee but shall
be held by the Company.

(b) Such held dividends shall be subject to the same Period of Restriction as the Shares to which they relate,

(¢) Any dividends held pursuant to this Section 5 which are atiributable to Shares which vest pursuant to thiz Agreement shall be paid
to the Grantec within 30 days of the applicable vesting date,
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(d) Dividends atiributable to Shares forfeited pursuant to Section 2 of this Agreement shall be forfeited to the Company on the date
such Shares are forfeited.

SECTION 6: NON-COMPETITION

If Grantee has an employment agreement with provisions that address the subject of this Section 6, to the terms that employment
agreement shall control,

{a) Grantee acknowledges that he/she will acquire substantial knowledge and information concerning the business of the Company
and its affiliates as a result of employment. Grantee further acknowledges that the scope of business in which the Company and its
affiliates are engaged as of the Grant Date is international and very competitive and one in which few companies can successfully
compete. Competition by Grantee in that business during or after the termination of employment would severely injure Company and
its affiliates to a degree that cannot be readily ascertainable. Accordingly, in consideration for the value of this grant, during Grantee’s
employment and for a period of one (1) year after Grantee's employment terminates for any reason whatsoever, Grantee agrees: (1) not
to become an employee, consultant, advisor, principal, partner or substantial shareholder of any firm or business that directly competes
with Company or its affiliates or subsidiaries in their products and markets; and (2), on behalf of any such competitive firm or business,
not to solicit any person or business that was at the time of such termination and remains a customer or prospective customer, a supplier
or prospective supplier, or an employee of Company or an affiliate or subsidiary.

(b No provision of Section & shall apply to restrict Grantee's conduct, or trigger any reimbursement obligations under this
Agreement, in any jurisdiction where such provision is, on its face, unenforceable and/or void as against public policy, unless the
provision may be construed, amended, reformed or equitably modified to be enforceable and compliant with public policy, in which
case, the provision will apply as construed, amended, reformed or equitably modified.

{¢) The Company and Grantee recognize that irreparable harm would result from any breach by Grantee of the covenants contained in
Section 6 and that monetary damages alone would not provide adequate relief for any such breach. Accordingly, in addition to other
remedies described in Subsection 6{(d) below, if Grantee breaches a restrictive covenant in this Grant Agreement, the parties
acknowledge that prospective injunctive relief in favor of the Company is proper.

(d) Grantee also recognizes and acknowledges that the value of the Grant he/she is receiving under this Grant Agreement represents a
portion of Grantee’s value to the Company such that if Grantee breaches the restrictive covenant by working for or with a competitor,
thereby transferring such value to the competitor, the value of the Grant represents a reasonable measure of a portion of the monetary
damages for such breach. Thus in the event of a breach by Grantee of any restriction contained in Section 6, such breach shall be
considered to be a material breach of the terms of the Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, and any other program,
plan or arrangement by which Grantee receives equity in the Company. Therefore, besides prospective injunctive relief, if Grantee
breaches any restrictive covenant contained in Section 6, the Company shall also be entitled to revoke any portion of the Grant for
which the restrictions have not lapsed and recover any shares (or the gross value of any shares) delivered or deliverable to Grantee
pursuant to this Grant Agreement and, pursuant to Florida law, shall be entitled to recover its costs and attorney’s fees incurred in
securing relief under this Section 6.

SECTION 7. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

(@) Acknowledgements. The Grantee hereby acknowledges that he or she has read and understands the terms of the Plan and this
Agreement, and agrees to be bound by their respective terms and conditions. The Grantee acknowledges that there may be tax
consequences upon the vesting or transfer of the Restricted Stock and that the Grantee should consult an independent tax adviser.
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(b) Tax Withholding. Pursuant to Article 20 of the Plan, the Company shall have the power and right to deduct or withhold an
amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state and local taxes (including the Grantee’s FICA taxes) required by law to be withheld with
respect to this Restricted Stock. The Company may condition the delivery of Shares upon the Grantee’s satisfaction of such withhoiding
obligations. The Grantee may elect to satisfy all or part of such withholding requirement by tendering previously-owned Shares or by
having the Company withhold Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the minimum statutory withholding (based on minimum
statutory withholding rates for federal, state and local tax purposes, as applicable, including the Grantee's FICA taxes) that could be
imposed on the transaction, and, to the ¢xtent the Company so permits, amounts in excess of the minimum statutory withhelding to the
extent it would not result in additional accounting expense. Such election shall be irrevocable, made in writing and signed by the
Grantee, and shall be subject to any restrictions or limitations that the Company, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate.

(c) Ratification of Actions. By accepting this Agreement, the Grantee and each person claiming under or through the Grantee shall
be conclusively deemed to have indicated the Grantee’s acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, any action taken under the Plan
or this Agreement and Notice of Restricted Stock Grant by the Company, the Board or the Committee.

(@) Notice. Any notice required by the terms of this Agreement ghall be given in writing and shall be deemed effective upon
personal delivery or upon deposit with the United States Postal Service, by registered or certified mail, with postage and fees prepaid.
Notice shall be addressed to the General Counsel of the Company at its principal executive office and to the Grantee at the address that
he or she most recently provided in writing to the Company.

{¢) Choice of Law. This Agreement and the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant shall be governed by, and construed in accordance
with, the laws of Florida, without regard to any cenflicts of law or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise cause the Plan,
this Agreement or the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant to be governed by or construed in accordance with the substantive law of
another jurisdiction.

(D Arbitration. Subject to Article 3 of the Plan, any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to the Plan, this Agreement or the
Notice of Restricted Stock Grant shall be settled by binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in Jacksonville, Florida and in
accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator shall decide any issues
submitted in accordance with the provisions and commercial purposes of the Plan, this Agreement and the Notice of Restricted Stock
Grant, provided that all substantive questions of law shall be determined in accordance with the state and Federal laws applicable in
Florida, without regard to internal principles relating to conflict of laws.

{g) Modification or Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified or amended by writlen agreement executed by the parties
hereto; provided, however, that the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 4.3 of the Plan may be made without such written

agreement.

(h) Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity
shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or
invalid provision had not been included. '

() References to Plan. All references to the Plan (or to a Section or Article of the Plan) shall be deemed references to the Plan (or the
Section or Article) as may be amended from time to time.

(i Section 40%A Compliance. To the extent applicable, it is intended that the Plan and this Agreement comply with the requirements
of Code Section 409A and any related regulations or other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department
of the Treasury or the Interna] Revenue Service and the Plan and the Agreement shall be interpreted accordingly.

Page §




SECTION 8: NATURE OF GRANT; NO ENTITLEMENT; NO CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION,

The Grantee, in accepting the Restricted Stock, represents and acknowledges the following:

(a) The Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and may be modified, amended, suspended
or terminated by the Company at any time.

(b) The grant of the Restricted Stock is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to receive
future grants of awards, or benefits in lieu of awards, even if awards have been granted repeatedly in the past.

(¢) All decisions with respect to future grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Committee.

() Any Shares acquired under the Plan ar¢ extraordinary items that are outside the scope of the Grantee’s employment contract

(if any) and arc not part of the Grantee's normal or expected compensation or salary for any purpose, including, but not limited to,
calculating any severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, end of service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, pension or
retirement or welfare benefits or similar paymenits.

(e) Any Shares sybject to the Restricted Stock are not intended to replace any pension rights or compensation.

(1) The Grantee has not been induced to participate in the Plan by any expectation of employment or continued employment with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

® In the event that the Grantee's employer is not the Company, the grant of the Restricted Stock will not be interpreted to form
an employment contract or relationship with the Company and, furthermore, the grant of the Options will not be interpreted to form an
employment contract with the Grantee’s employer or any affiliate.

h) The future value of the underlying Shares is unknown and cannot be predicted with certainty. If the Grantee vests in the
Restricted Stock, the value of the any acquired Shares may increase or decrease. The Grantee understands that the Companies are not
responsible for any foreign exchange fluctuation between the United States Dollar and the Grantee’s jocal currency that may affect the
value of the underlying Shares.

(i In consideration of the grant of the Restricted Stock, no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from
forfeiture of the Restricted Stock or diminution in value of the Restricted Stock or any of the Shares issuable under the Restricted Stock
from termination of the Grantee’s employment by the Company or his or her employer, as applicable (and for any reason whatsoever
and whether or not in breach of contract or local labor laws) or notice to terminatc employment having been given by the Grantee or the
Grantee's employer, and the Grantee irrevocably releases his or her employer, the Company and its affiliates, as applicable, from any
such claim that may arise; if, notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to have arisen,
then, by signing this Agreement, the Grantee shall be deemed to have irrevocably waived the Grantee’s entitlement to pursue such
claim.

SECTION 9: DATA PRIVACY.

a. The Grantee hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of
the Grantee's personal data as described in this Agreement by and among, as applicable, the Grantec's employer, the Company,
Subsidiaries and affiliates for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Grantee’s participation in the
Plan.
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b. The Grantee understands that the Grantee's employer, the Company and its Subsidiaries and affiliates, as applicable, hold certain
petsonal information about the Grantee regarding the Grantee's employment, the nature and amount of the Grantee's compensation and
the fact and conditions of the Grantee's participation in the Plan, including, but not limited to, the Grantee's name, home address,
telephone number and e-mail address, date of birth, social insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality, job title,
any shares of stock or directorships held in the Company and its affiliates, details of all options, restricted stock, awards or any other
entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in the Grantee's favor, for the purpose of
implementing, administering and managing the Plan (the “Data™).

c. The Grantee understands that the Data may be transferred to the Company, any subsidiary, an affiliate and any third parties assisting
in the implementation, administration and management of the Plan, including without limitation a stock plan administrator for on-line
administration of the Plan, that these recipients may be located in the Grantee's country, or elsewhere, and that the recipient’s country
may have different data privacy laws and protections than the Grantee's country, The Grantee understands that the Grantee may request
a list with the names and addresses of any potential recipients of the Data by contacting the Grantee's local human resources
representative, The Grantee authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or other form,
for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing the Grantee's participation in the Plan, including any requisite transfer of
such Data as may be required to a brolcor or other third party. The Grantee undetstands that the Data will be held only as long as is
necessary to implement, administer and manage the Grantee's participation in the Plan. The Grantee understands that Grantee may, at
any time, view the Data, request additional information about the storage and processing of the Data, require any necessary
amendments to the Data or refuse or withdraw the oonsents herein, in any case without ¢cost, by contacting in writing the Grantec's local
human regources representative. The Grantee understands, however, that refusing or withdrawing the Grantee's consent may affect the
Grantee's ability to participate in the Plan. For more information en the consequences of refusal to consent or withdrawal of consent, the
Grantee understands that the Grontee may contact the Grantee’s local human resources representative.
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EXHIBIT A
Vesting and Restrictions

The Restricted Stock is subject to both a Performance Restriction and a Time-Based Restriction, as described below
{collectively, the “Period of Restriction”).

Performance Restriction

One-third of the Restricted Stock can be eamed based on company performance in each of the calendar years 2017, 2018 and
2019. In order for the Restricted Stock to be eamed, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the
"Committee") must determine that the Company has achieved the performance restriction based on an EBITDA measurement (as
defined below) in an amount equal to or greater than $2.75 billion (the "Performance Restriction™) in each of the three calendar years
2017, 2018 and 2019, independent of each other. EBITDA includes eamings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization, and
exchides, M&A related costs, asset impairment charges, foreign exchange rates and other non-GAAP adjustments, with the goal being
io measure on a consistent basis management’s execution against the 2017 EBITDA plan. The Committee will evaluate whether the
Performance Restriction has béen achieved following the completion and filing of the Annual Report on Form 10-K with the SEC for
each of the years 2017, 2018 and 2019,

Time-Based Restrictions
In order for any eamed Restricted Stock to vest, (after the Performance Restriction has been achieved for a particular calendar

year), the grantee must remain employed by the Company on each corresponding Grant Date anniversary (the “Time-Based
Restrictions™), as indicated in the chart below.

. - Vest Date
Performance Period Performance Restriction Restricted Stock eligible to be (Lapse of Time-Based
earned < e
Restrictions)
Calendar Year 2017 $2.75B EBITDA One-third 1** Grant Date anniversary
Calendar Year 2018 $2.75B EBITDA One-third 2°¢ Grant Date anniversary
Calendar Year 2019 32.75B EBITDA One-third 31 Grant Date anniversary
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EXHIBIT 10.49
Fidelity National Information Services, Inc.
Notice of Non-Statutory Stock Option Grant
You (the “Optionee™) have been granted the following option (the “Option”) to purchase Common Stock of Fidelity National

Information Services, Inc. (the “Company™), par value $0.01 per share (“Share”), pursuant to the Fidelity National Information
Services, Inc. Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan™):

Name of Optionee: [Name]

Total number of shares subject to Option: [xxx]
Grant Date: [xxx]

Exercise Price: [xxx]

Vesting Schedule: See Exhibit A
Expiration Date: 7" anniversary of the Grant Date

See the Stock Option Award Agreement and Plan Prospectus for the specific provisions related to this Option award, including the time
period for exercise under various termination events and other important information concerning this award.

This document is intended as a summary of your individual Option award. If there are any discrepancies between this summary
and the provisions of the formal documents of this Award, including the Stock Option Agreement, Plan Document or Plan
Prospectus, the provisions of the formal documents will prevail.




FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED
2008 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
Stock Option Agreement

SECTION 1: GRANT OF OPTION.

(a) Option. On the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice of Stock Option Grant and this Stock Option Agreement (the
“Agrecment”™), the Company grants to the Optionee on the Grant Date the Option to purchase at the Exercise Price the number of Shares
set forth in the Notice of Stock Option Grant.

() Plan and Defined Terms. The Option is granted pursuant to the Plan, All terms, provisions, and conditions applicable to the
Option set forth in the Plan and not set forth herein are hereby incorporated by reference herein. To the extent any provision hereof is
inconsistent with a provision of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will govem. All capitalized terms that are used in the Notice of
Stock QOption Grant or this Agreement and not otherwise defined therein or herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan,

SECTION 2: RIGHT TO EXERCISE.

The Option hereby granted shall be exercised by written notice to the Committee, specifying the number of Shares the Optionee
desires to purchase together with provision for payment of the Exercise Price. Subject to such limitations as the Company may impose¢
(including prohibition of one more of the following payment methods), payment of the Exercise Price may be made by (a) cash or its
equivalent, (b} by tendering Shares or directing the Company to withhold Shares from the Option having an aggregate Fair Market
Value at the time of exercise equal to the Exercise Price, (¢c) by broker-assisted cashless exercise, (d) in any other manner then permitted
by the Company, or {¢) by a combination of any of the permitted methods of payment. The Company may require the Optionee to
furnish or execute such other documents as the Company shall reasonably deem necessary (i)} to evidence such exercise and (i) to
comply with or satisfy the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Exchange Act, applicable state or non-U.S.
securities laws or any other law.

SECTION 3: TERM AND EXPIRATION.

{a) Basic Term. Subject t¢ eatlier termination pursuant to the terms here, the Option shall expire on the Expiration Date set forth in
the Notice of Stock Option Grant.

(b} ‘Termination of Employment or Service. Subject to the terms and conditions of Optionee’s employment agreement, if any, if the
Optionee’s employment or service as a Director or Consultant, as the case may be, is terminated, the Option shall expire on the earliest
of the following occasions:

(i) The Expiration Date set forth in the Notice of Stock Option Grant;

(i) The date three months following the termination of the Optionee’s employment or service for any reason other than Cause,
Retirement, death, or Disability;

(iii) The date three years following the termination of the Optionee’s employment or service for Retirement;
(iv) The date one year following the termination of the Optionee’s employment or service due to death or Disability; or

(v} The date of termination of the Optionee’s employment or service for Cause (as defined below).

(¢) The Optionee may exercise all or part of this Option at any time before its expiration, but only to the extent that the Option was
vested and exercisable upon termination of the Optionee’s employment or service. Except in the case of
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death or Disability, when the Optionee’s employment or service terminates, this Option shall expire immediately with respect to the
number of Shares for which the Option is not yet vested.

(d} If the Optionee’s employment or service terminates due to death or Disability, then all such unvested Stock Options outstanding
as of the date of termination shall vest as of the date of termination and become free of any forfeiture and transfer restrictions described
in the Agreement.

(¢) All or part of this Option may be exercised (prior to expiration) by the personal representative of the Optionee or by any person
who has acquired this Option directly from the Optionee by will, bequest or inheritance, but only to the extent that the Option was
vested and exercisable upon termination of the Optionee’s employment or service.

(f) Definition of “Cause.” The term “Cause” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Optionee’s employment agreement
with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary. If the Optionee’s employment agreement does not define the term “Cause,” or if the
Optionee has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiaty, the term “Cause” shall mean
(A) persistent failure to perform duties consistent with a commercially reasonable standard of care (other than due to a physical or
mental impairment or due to an action or inaction directed by Company that would otherwise constitute Good Reason); (B) willful
neglect of duties (other than due to a physical or mental impairment or due to an action or inaction directed by Company that would
otherwise constitute Good Reasen); (C) conviction of, or pleading nolo contendere to, criminal or other illegal activities involving
dishonesty or moral turpitude; (D)) material breach of this Agreement; (E) material breach of Company’s business policies, accounting
practices or standards of ethics; or (F) failure to materially cooperate with or impeding an investigation authorized by the Board.

(g) Definition of “Disability.” The term “Disability” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Optionee’s employment
agreement with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary. If the Optionee’s employment agreement does not define the term
“Disability,” or if the Optionece has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary, the
term “Disability” shall mean the Optionee’s entitlement to long-term disability benefits pursuant to the long-term disability plan
maintained by the Company or in which the Company’s employees participate.

(h)  Definition of “Retirement.” The term “Retirement” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Optionee's employment
agreement with the Company or any Subsidiary. If the Optionee’s employment agreement does not define the term “Retirement,” or if
the Optionee has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company or any Subsidiary, the term “Retirement” shall mean the
Optionee’s termination of employment without Cause on or after age 55 if the sum of the Optionee’s age al lenmination of employment
and Years of Service with the Company total 65 or more.

() Definition of “Years of Service.” The term “Years of Service” means years of consecutive and continuous service with the
Company or a predecessor entity.

(j) “Good Reason” termination shall apply only if the Optionee has an employment agreement with the Company, or affiliate or any
Subsidiary with an applicable provision and shall have the meaning ascribed to that term in such employment agreement.

() Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, if any provision of this conflicts with an employment agreement by and
between Optionee and the Company which is currently in effect, such conflicting provisions of that Optionee’s employment agreement
shall supersede any such conflicting provisions of this Agreement to the extent they are more favorable to Optionee (but only to the
extent such conflicting provisions of that Optionee’s employment agreement do not conflict with the terms of the Plan).

SECTION 4: TRANSFERABILITY OF OPTION,

The Optien shall not be transferable by the Optionee other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and the Option
shall be exercisable during the Optionee’s lifetime only by the Optionee or on his or her behalf by the Optionee's guardian or legal
representative,




SECTION 5: TRADING STOCK.

Keep in mind that you are subject to insider trading liability if you are aware of material, nonpublic information when making a
purchase or sale of Company stock. In addition, if you are a Section 16 officer or a designated insider of the Company, you are subject
to blackout restrictions that prevent the sale of Company stock during certain time periods referred to as the “blackout period”. The
current “blackout period” is from the end of each calendar quarter through two (2) days following the Company's earnings release.

SECTION 6: NON-COMPETITION.

If Optionee has an employment agreement with provisions that address the subject of this Section 6, to the terms that
employment agreement shall control.

{a) Optionee acknowledges that he/she will acquire substantial knowledge and information concerning the business of the
Company and its affiliates as a result of employment. Optionee further acknowledges that the scope of business in which the Company
and its affiliates are engaged as of the Grant Date is international and very competitive and one in which few companies can
successfully compete. Competition by Optionee in that business during or afier the termination of employment would severely injure
Company and its affiliates to a degree that cannot be readily ascertainable. Accordingly, in consideration for the value of this grant,
during Optionee’s employment and for a period of one (1) year after Optionee's employment terminates for any reason whatsoever,
Optionee agrees: (1) not to become an employee, consultant, advisor, principal, partner or substantial sharcholder of any firm or
business that directly competes with Company or its affiliates or subsidiaries in their products and markets; and (2), on behalf of any
such competitive firm or business, not to solicit any person or business that was at the time of such termination and remains a customer
or prospective customer, a supplier or prospective supplier, or an employee of Company or an affiliate or Subsidiary.

(b No provision of Section 6 shall apply to restrict Optionee’s conduct, or trigger any reimbursement obligations under this
Agreement, in any jurisdiction where such provision is, on its face, unenforceable and/or void as against public policy, unless the
provision may be construed, amended, reformed or equitably modified to be enforceable and compliant with public policy, in which
case, the provision will apply as construed, amended, reformed or equitably modified.

(c) The Company and Optionee recognize that irreparable harm would result from any breach by Optionee of the covenants
contained in Section 6 and that monetary damages alone would not provide adequate relief for any such breach. Accordingly, in
addition to other remedies described in Subsection 6(d) below, if Optionee breaches a restrictive covenant in this Grant Agreement, the
patties acknowledge that prospective injunctive relief in favor of the Company is proper.

(d) Optionee also recognizes and acknowledges that the value of the Grant he/she is receiving under this Grant Agreement
represents a portion of Optionee’s value to the Company such that if Optionee breaches the restrictive covenant by working for or with
a competitor, thereby transferring such value to the competitor, the value of the Grant represents a reasonable measure of a portion of
the monetary damages for such breach. Thus in the event of a breach by Optionee of any restriction contained in this Section, such
breach shall be considered to be a material breach of the terms of the Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, and any
other program, plan or arrapgement by which Optionce receives equity in the Company. Thercfore, besides prospective infunctive
relief, if Optionee breaches any restrictive covenant contained in Section 6, the Company shall also be entitled to revoke any portion of
the Grant for which the restrictions have not lapsed and recover any Shares (or the gross value of any Shares) delivered or deliverable
to Optionee pursuant to this Grant Agreement and, pursuant to Florida law, shall be entitled to recover its costs and attorney’s fees
incurred in securing relief under this Section 6.

SECTION 7: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

(a) Acknowledgements. The Optionee hereby acknowledges that he or she has read and understands the terms of the Plan and this
Agreement, and agrees to be bound by their respective terms and conditions. The Optionee acknowledges
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that there may be tax consequences upon the exercise or transfer of the Option and that the Optionee should consult an independent tax
advisor prior to any exercise of the Option.

(b) Tax Withholding. Pursuant to Article 20 of the Plan, the Company shall have the power and the right to deduct or withhold, or
require the Optionee to remit to the Company, an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state and local taxes (including the Optionee’s
FICA obligations) required by law to be withheld with respect to this Option. The Company may condition the delivery of Shares upon
the Optionee’s satisfaction of such withholding obligations. The Optionee may elect to satisfy all or part of such withholding
requirement by tendering previously-owned Shares or by having the Company withhold Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the
minimum statutory withholding (based on minimum statutory withholding rates for federal, state and local tax purposes, as applicable,
including the Optionee’s FICA taxes) that could be imposed on the transaction, and, to the extent the Company so permits, amounts in
excess of the minimum statutory withholding to the extent it would not result in additional accounting expense. Such election shall be
irrevocable, made in writing and signed by the Optionee, and shall be subject to any restrictions or limitations that the Company, in its
sole discretion, deems appropriate.

{c) Notice Concerning Disqualifying Dispositions. If the Option is an Incentive Stock Option, the Optionee shall notify the Company
of any disposition of Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of the Option if the disposition constitutes a “disqualifying disposition”
within the meaning of Sections 421 and 422 of the Code (or any successor provision of the Code then in effect relating to disqualifying
dispositions). Such notice shall be provided by the Optionee to the Company in writing within 10 days of any such disqualifying
disposition.

(d) Rights as a Stockholder. Neither the Optionee nor the Optionee’s transferee or representative shall have any rights as a
stockholder with respect to any Shares subject to this Option until the Option has been exercised and Share certificates have been issued
to the Optionee, transferee or representative, as the case may be,

(e) Ratification of Actions. By accepting this Agreement, the Optionee and each person claiming under or through the Optionee
shall be conclusively deemed to have indicated the Optionee’s acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, any action taken under
the Plan or this Agreement and Notice of Stock Option Grant by the Company, the Board, or the Committee.

(f) Notice. Any notice required by the terms of this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed effective upon personal
delivery or upon deposit with the United States Postal Service, by registered or certified mail, with postage and fees prepaid. Notice
shall be addressed to the General Counsel of the Company at its principal executive office and to the Optionee at the address that he or
she most recently provided in writing to the Company.

(g) Choice of Law. This Agreement and the Notice of Stock Option Grant shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with,
the laws of Florida, without regard to any conflicts of law or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise cause the Plan, this
Agreement or the Notice of Stock Option Grant to be governed by or constmued in accordance with the substantive law of another
jurisdiction.

(h)  Arbitration. Subject to Article 3 of the Plan, any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to the Plan, this Agreement or the
Notice of Stock Option Grant shall be settled by binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in Jacksonville, Florida and in accordance
with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator shall decide any issues submitted in
accordance with the provisions and commercial purposes of the Plan, this Agreement and the Notice of Stock Option Grant, provided
that all substantive questions of law shall be determined in accordance with the state and Federal laws applicable in Florida, without
regard to internal principles relating to conflict of laws.

(i) Modification or Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified or amended by written agreement executed by the parties
hereto; provided, however, that the adjustments permitted pursnant to Section 4.3 of the Plan may be made without such written
agreement.




() Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity
shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or
invalid provision had not been included.

(k) References to Plan. All references to the Plan (or to a Section or Article of the Plan) shall be deemed references to the Plan (or
the Section or Article) as may be amended from time to time.

() Section 409A Compliance. To the ¢xtent applicable, it is intended that the Plan and this Agreement comply with the requirements
of Code Section 409A and any related regulations or other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department
of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service and the Plan and the Agreement shall be interpreted accordingly.

SECTION 8: NATURE OF GRANT; NO ENTITLEMENT; NO CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION.
The Optionee, in accepting the Option, represents and acknowledges the following:

(=) The Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in natre and may be modificd, amended, suspended
or terminated by the Company at any time.

) The grant of the Option is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to receive future grants
of awards, or benefits in lieu of awards, even if awards have been granted repeatedly in the past.

(c) All decisions with respect to future grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Committee.

(d) The Options and any Shares acquired under the Plan are extraordinary items that are outside the scope of the Optionee’s
employment contract (if any) and are not part of the Optionee's normal or expected compensation or salary for any purpose, including,
but not limited to, calculating any severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, end of service payments, bonuses, long-service
awards, pension or retirement or welfare benefits or similar payments.

(e} The Options and the Shares subject to the Options are not intended to replace any pension rights or compensation.

(1] The Optionee has not been induced to participate in the Plan by any expectation of employment or continued employment
with the Company or any of its subsidiaties.

® In the event that the Optionee’s employer is not the Company, the grant of the Options will not be interpreted to form an
employment contract or relationship with the Company and, furthermore, the grant of the Options will not be interpreted to form an
employment contract with the Optionee’s employer or any affiliate.

(h) The future value of the underlying Shares is unknown and cannot be predicted with certainty. If the Optionee vests in the
Options, the value of the Options and any acquired Shares may increase or decrease. The Optionee understands that the Companies are
not responsible for any foreign exchange fluctuation between the United States Dollar and the Optionee’s local currency that may affect
the value of the Options or the underlying Shares.

0] In consideration of the grant of the Options, ho ¢laim ot entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from forfeiture of
the Options or diminution in value of the Options or any of the Shares issuable under the Options from termination of the Optionee’s
employment by the Company or his or her employer, as applicable (and for any reason whatsoever and whether or not in breach of
contract or local labor laws) or notice to terminate employment having been given by the Optionee or the Optionee's employer, and the
Optionee irrevocably releases his or her employer, the Company and its affiliates, as applicable, from any such claim that may arise; if,
notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim is




found by a court of competent jurisdiction to have arisen, then, by signing this Agreement, the Optionee shall be deemed to have
irrevocably waived the Optionee’s entitlement to pursue such claim,

SECTION 9: DATA PRIVACY.

a, The Optionee hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of
the Optionee's personal data as described in this Agreement by and among, as applicable, the Optionee's employer, the Company,
Subsidiaries and affiliates for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Optionee’s participation in the
Plan.

b. The Optionee understands that the Optionee's employer, the Company and its Subsidiaries and affiliates, as applicable, hold certain
personal information about the Optionee regarding the Optionee's employment, the nature and amount of the Optionee's compensation
and the fact and conditions of the Optionee’s participation in the Plan, including, but not limited to, the Optionee's name, home address,
telephone number and e-mail address, date of birth, social insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality, job title,
any shares of stock or directorships held in the Company and its affiliates, details of all options, awards or any other entitlement to
shares of stock awarded, canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in the Optionec's favor, for the purpose of implementing,
administering and managing the Plan (the “Data™).

¢. The Optionee understands that the Data may be transferred to the Company, any subsidiary, an affiliate and any third parties
assisting in the implementation, administration and management of the Plan, including without limitation a stock plan administrator for
on-line administration of the Plan, that these recipients may be located in the Optionee's country, or ¢lsewhere, and that the recipient’s
country may have different data privacy laws and protections than the Optionee's country. The Optionee understands that the Optionee
may request a list with the names and addresses of any potential recipients of the Data by contacting the Optionee's local human
resources representative. The Optionee authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or
other form, for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing the Optionee's participation in the Plan, including any
requisite transfer of such Data as may be required to a broker or other third party. The Optionee understands that the Data will be held
only as long as is necessary to implement, administer and manage the Optionee's participation in the Plan. The Optionee understands
that Optionee may, at any time, view the Data, request additional information about the storage and processing of the Data, require any
necessaty amendments to the Data or refuse or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by contacting in writing the
Optionee’s local human resources representative. The Optionee understands, however, that refusing or withdrawing the Optionee’s
consent may affect the Optionee's ability to participate in the Plan. For more information on the consequences of refusal to consent or
withdrawal of consent, the Optionee understands that the Optionee may contact the Optionee's local kuman resources representative.




EXHIBIT A
Vesting and Restrictions

The Options are subject to forfeiture until the Options vest. The Options are subject to both a Performance Restriction and a
Time-Based Restriction, as described below (collectively, the “Period of Restriction™).

Performance Restriction

One-third of the Options can be earned based on company performance in each of the calendar years 2017, 2018 and 2019. In
order for the Option to be eamed, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the "Committee”) must
determine that the Company has achieved the performance restriction based on an EBITDA measurement (as defined below) in an
amount equal to or greater than $2.75 billion (the "Performance Restriction™) in each of the three calendar years 2017, 2018 and 2019,
independent of each other. EBITDA includes earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization, and excludes, M&A related
costs, asset impairment charges, foreign exchange rates and other non-GAAP adjustments, with the goal being to measure on a
consistent basis management’s execution against the 2017 EBITDA plan. The Commitiee wili evaluate whether the Performance
Restriction has been achieved following the completion and filing of the Annual Report on Form 10-K with the SEC for each of the
years 2017, 2018 and 2019.

Time-Based Restrictions

In order for any eamed Stock Options to vest, (after the Performance Restriction has been achieved for a particular calendar
year), the Optionee must remain employed by the Company on each corresponding Grant Date anniversary (the “Time-Based
Restrictions™), as indicated in the chart below.

. Vest Date
Performance Period Performance Restriction Stock Options eligible to be (Lapse of Time-Base;l
earted i
Restrictions)
Calendar Year 2017 $2.75B EBITDA One-third 1% Grant Date anniversary
Calendar Year 2018 $2.75B EBITDA One-third 2™ Grant Date anniversary
Calendar Year 2019 $2.75B EBITDA One-third 3™ Grant Date anniversary




Exhibit 10.50

FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant to Director

You (the “Grantec™) have been granted the following award of restricted stock units (the “Restricted Stock Units™} denominated
in shares of Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. (the “Company”), par value $0.01 per share (the “Shares™), pursuant to the
Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the
“Plan”):

Grantee; «Name»

Number of Restricted Stock Units Granted: «Shares»

Grant Date: «Daten

Vesting Schedule: One-third vests on the 1* Grant Date Anniversary
One-third vests on the 2nd Grant Date Anniversary
One-third vests on the 3rd Grant Date Anniversary

See the Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement and Plan Prospectus for the specific provisions related to this Notice of
Restricted Stock Unit Grant and important information concerning this award.

This document is intended as a summary of your individual restricted stock unit award. If there are any discrepancies between
this summary and the provisions of the Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, Plan Document and Plan Prospectus, the
provisions of those documents will prevail.
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FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED
2008 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement

SECTION 1. GRANT OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS

(a) Restricted Stock Unit. On the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant and this Restricted
Stock Unit Agreement (the “Agreement™), Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. (the “Company”) grants to the Grantee on the
Grant Date the Restricted Stock Units set forth in the Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant (the “Grant™), and the Grantee, by
acceptance hereof agrees to the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

) Plan and Defined Terms. The Restricted Stock Units are granted pursuant to the Plan. All terms, provisions, and conditions
applicable to the Restricted Stock Units set forth in the Plan and not set forth herein are hereby incorporated by reference herein. To the
extent any provision hereof is inconsistent with a provision of the Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. Amended and Restated
2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “Plan”), the provisions of the Plan will govern. All capitalized terms that
are used in the Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant or this Agreement and not otherwise defined therein or hercin shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.

Section 2. FORFEITURE AND TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

{a) Forfeiture. The Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to forfeiture until the Restricted Stock Units vest in accordance with Exhibit
A, except as otherwise stated. If the Grantee’s service as a director of the Company terminates for any reason then all unvested
Restricted Stock Units shall be forfeited unless otherwise provided by the Compensation Committee of the Company, provided that; if
the Grantee’s service terminates due to death, then all such unvested Restricted Stock Units outstanding as of the date of termination
shall vest as of the date of termination and become free of any forfeiture and transfer restrictions described in the Agreement.

(b} Transfer Restrictions. During the Period of Restriction, the Restricted Stock Units may not be sold, assigned, pledged,
exchanged, hypothecated or otherwise transferred, encumbered or disposed of to the extent such Restricted Stock Units are subject to a
Period of Restriction. Grantee is also subject to the Company’s hedging and pledging policy. For directors, the policy prohibits (i)
directly or indirectly engaging in hedging or monetization transactions with the Restricted Stock Units and Company stock; (ii)
engaging in short sale transactions with the Restricted Stock Units and Company steck and; (iii) pledging the Restricted Stock Units and
Company stock as collateral for a loan, including through the use of traditional margin accounts with a broker.

(t) Lapse of Restrictions. The Period of Restriction shall lapse as to the Restricted Stock Units in accordance with the Notice of
Restricted Stock Unit Grant. For avoidance of doubt, once Restricted Stock Units vest, the Period of Restriction lapses as to those units.
Subject to the terms of the Plan and Sections 2(d) and 6(b) hereof, upon lapse of the Period of Restriction, the Grantee shall own the
Shares that are subject to this Agreement free of all restrictions otherwise imposed by this Agreement.

(d) Change in Control. If a Change in Control {as defined in the Plan) occurs, then the Period of Restriction shall immediately lapse
and all outstanding Restricted Stock Units granted pursuant o this Agreement shall immediately vest; provided, however, that the
Committee may instead provide that the outstanding Restricted Stock Units shall be automatically cashed out upon a Change in Control.
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SECTION 3: PAYMENT OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS

As soon as practicable (and in no case more than 30 days) after a Restricted Stock Unit becomes vested (the “Payment Date”),
the Company will pay the vested Restricted Stock Units by delivering to Grantee a number of Shares equal to the number of Restricted
Stock Units that vested less any required tax withholding per Section 7(b).

SECTION 4: TRADING STOCK AND SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

(a) Grantee is subject to the Company’s Insider Trading Policy and insider trading liability if Grantee is aware of material,
nponpublic information when making a purchase or sale of Company stock. In addition, Grantee is subject to blackout
restrictions that prevent the sale of Company stock during certzin time periods referred to as the “blackout period.” The
recurring “blackout period” begins at the end of each calendar quarter and ends two (2) trading days following the Company’s
earnings release.

(b) Prior to the Payment Date, the Grantee shall not have any rights as a shareholder of the Company in connection with these
Restricted Stock Units and the Grantee's interest in the Restricted Stock Units shall make the Grantee only a general, unsecured
creditor of the Company, unless and until the Shares are distributed to the Grantee. Following delivery of Shares upon the
Payment Date, the Grantee shall have all rights as a shareholder with respect to such Shares.

SECTION S5: DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS

(a) Any dividend equivalents eamed with respect to Restricted Stock Units which remain subject to a Period of Restriction shall not
be paid to the Grantee but shall be held by the Company.

(b)  Such held dividend equivalents shail be subject to the same Period of Restriction as the Shares to which they relate.

(© Any dividend equivalents held pursuant to this Section 5 which are atiributable to Restricted Stock Units which vest pursuant to
this Agreement shall be paid to the Grantee within 30 days of the applicable vesting date.

) Dividend equivalents attributable to Restricted Stock Units forfeited pursuant to Section 2 of this Agreement shall be forfeited to
the Company on the date such Shares are forfeited.

SECTION 6: GRANTEE OBLIGATIONS
In consideration for the benefits provided herein, Grantee agrees to abide by the following terms:

(a) Confidential Information. Grantee has occupied a position of trust and confidence and has had access to substantial
information about Company and its affiliates and Subsidiaries, and their operations, that is confidential or not generally known
in the industry including, without limitation, information that relates to purchasing, sales, customers, marketing, strategic plan,
and the financial positions and financing arrangements of Company and its affiliates and subsidiaries, Grantee agrees that all
such information is proprietary or confidential, or constitutes trade secrets and is the sole property of Company and/or its
affiliates and Subsidiaries, as the case may be. Grantee will keep confidential and, outside the scope of Grantee’s duties and
responsibilities with Company and its affiliates and Subsidiaries, will not reproduce, copy or disclose to any other person or
firm, any such information or any documents or information relating
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to Company's or its affiliates’ methods, processes, customers, accounts, analyses, systems, charts, programs, procedures,
correspondence or records, or any other documents used or owned by Company or any of its affiliates, nor will Grantee advise,
discuss with or in any way assist any other person, firm or entity in obtaining or learning about any of the items described in this
section. Accordingly, at all times before and after the termination of Grantee’s service as a director, for any reasen, Grantee will
not disclose, or permit or encourage anyone else to disclose, any such information, nor will Grantee any such information,
cither alone or with others, outside the scope of Grantee's duties and responsibilities with Company and its affiliates. This
provision shall not diminish in any respect, the director’s fiduciary duty to the Company.

) Nonsolicitation,

During Grantee’s service as a director and for a period of one year after the termination of Grantee’s service as a director, for
any reason, Grantee agrees not to, dirgctly or indirectly, on behalf of Grantee or any third-party or business, hire or solicit for
employment, parmership or engagement as an independent contractor any person who was an employee of Company or any affiliate or
Subsidiary during the period of twelve (12) months prior to any such improper solicitation, hire or engagement.

(¢} Grantee expressly acknowledges and agrees with the reasonableness of the terms in this Section 6 and agrees not 1o contest these
terms in a court of competent jurisdiction on such grounds. Grantee agrees that the Company's remedy at law for a breach of these
covenants may be inadequate and that for a breach of these covenants the Company, in addition to other remedies provided for by law,
may be entitled to an injunction, restraining order or other equitable relief prohibiting Grantee from committing or continuing to commit
any such breach. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any of these restrictions are overbroad, Grantee and Company
agree to modification of the affected restriction(s) to permit enforcement to the maximum extent allowed by law.

{d) No provision of Section 6 shall apply to restrict Grantee’s conduct, or trigger any reimbursement obligations under this
Agreement, in any jurisdiction where such provision is, on its face, unenforceable and/or void as against public policy, unless the
provision may be construed, amended, reformed or equitably modified to be enforceable and compliant with public policy, in which
case, the provision will apply as construed, amended, reformed or equitably modified.

(¢) Grantee also recognizes and acknowledges that the value of the Grant he/she is receiving under this Grant Agreement represents a
portion of Grantee’s value to the Company such that if Grantee breaches this restrictive covenant, the value of the Grant represents a
reasonable measure of a portion of the monetary damages for such breach. Thus, in the event of a breach by Grantee of any restriction
contained in Section 6, such breach shall be considered a material breach of the terms of the Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus
Incentive Plan, and any other program, plan or amrangement by which Grantee receives equity in the Company. Therefore, besides
prospective injunctive relief, if Grantee breaches any restrictive covenant contained in Section 6, the Company shall also be entitled to
revoke any portion of the Grant for which the resirictions have not lapsed and recover any shares (or the gross value of any shares)
delivered or deliverable to Grantee pursuant to this Grant Agreement and, pursuant to Florida law, shall be entitled to recover its costs
and attorney’s fees incurred in securing relief under this Section 6.

SECTION 7. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

(a) Acknowledgements. The Grantee hereby acknowledges that he or she has read and understands the terms of the Plan and this
Agreement, and agrees to be bound by their respective terms and conditions. The Grantee acknowledges that there may be tax
conseguences upon the vesting of the Restricted Stock Units or the transfer of Shares paid to the Grantee under this Agreement and that
the Grantee should consult an independent tax advisor.

(b) Tax Withholding. Pursuant to Article 20 of the Plan, the Company shall have the power and right to deduct or withhold an
amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state and local taxes (including the Graniee™s FICA taxes)
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required by law to be withheld with respect to this Restricted Stock Units. The Company may condition the delivery of Shares upon the
Grantee’s satisfaction of such withholding obligations. The Grantee may elect to satisfy all or part of such withholding requirement by
tendering previously-owned Shares or by having the Company withhold Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the minimum
statutory withholding (based on minimum statutory withholding rates for federal, state and local tax purposes, as applicable, including
the Grantee’s FICA taxes) that could be imposed on the transaction, and, to the extent the Company so permits, amounts in excess of
the minimum statutory withholding to the extent it would not result in additional accounting expense. Such election shall be irrevocable,
made in writing and signed by the Grantee, and shall be subject to any restrictions or limitations that the Company, in its sole discretion,
deems appropriate.

© Ratification of Actions. By accepting this Agreement, the Grantee and each person claiming under or through the Grantee
shall be conclusively deemed to have indicated the Grantee’s acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, any action taken under the
Plan or this Agreement and Notice of Restricted Stock Grant by the Company, the Board or the Committee.

d) Notice. Any notice required by the terms of this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed

effective upon personal delivery or upon deposit with the United States Postal Service, by registered or certified mail, with postage and
fees prepaid. Notice shall be addressed to the Chief Legal Officer of the Company at its principal executive office and to the Grantee at
the address that he or she most recently provided in writing to the Company.

(e) Choice of Law. This Agreement and the Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant shall be governed by, and construzed in accordance
with, the laws of Florida, without regard to any conflicts of law or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise cause the Plan,
this Agreement or the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant to be governed by or construed in accordance with the substantive law of
another jurisdiction.

() Arbitration. Subject to Article 3 of the Plan, any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to the Plan, this Agreement or the
Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant shall be settled by bnding arbitration before a single arbitrator in Jacksonville, Florida and in
accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association, The arbitrator shall decide any issues
submitted in accordance with the provisions and commercial purposes of the Plan, this Agreement and the Notice of Restricted Stock
Unit Grant, provided that all substantive questions of law shall be determined in accordance with the state and Federal laws applicable
in Florida, without regard to internal principles relating to conflict of laws.

(g) Modification or Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified or amended by written agreement executed by the parties
hereto; provided, however, that the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 4.3 of the Plan may be made without such written

agreement.

(h)  Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or
invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such
illegal or invalid provision had not been included.

{) References to Plan. All references to the Plan (or to a Section or Article of the Plan) shall be deemed references to the Plan (or the
Section or Article} as may be amended from time to time.

{j) Section 469A Compliance. To the extent applicable, it is intended that the Plan and this Agreement comply with the requirements
of Code Section 409A and any related regulations or other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department
of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service and the Plan and the Agreement shall be interpreted accordingly.
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SECTION 8: NATURE OF GRANT; NO ENTITLEMENT; NO CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION.

The Grantee, in accepting the grant of Restricted Stock Units, represents and acknowledges the following:

(a) The Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and may be modified, amended, suspended
or terminated by the Company at any time.

(b The grant of the Restricted Stock Units is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to
receive future grants of awards, or benefits in lieu of awards, even if awards have been granted repeatedly in the past,

(c) All decisions with respect to future grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Committee,

(d) Any Shares acquired under the Plan are extraordinary itetns that are outside the scope of the Grantee’s service as a director

and are not part of the Grantee's normal or expected compensation for any purpose, including, but not limited to, calculating any end of
service payments, long-service awards, pension or retirement or welfare benefits or similar payments.

(e) Any Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units are not intended te replace any pension rights or compensation.

) The grant of the Restricted Stock Units will not be interpreted to form an employment contract or relationship with the
Company and, furthermore, the grant of the Restricted Stock Units will not be interpreted to form an employment contract with the
Grantee's employer or any affiliate or Subsidiary.

3] The future value of the underlying Shares is unknown and cannot be predicted with cerfainty. If the Grantee vests in the
Restricted Stock Units, the value of any acquired Shares may increase or decrease. The Grantee understands that the Companies are not
tesponsible for any foreign exchange fluctuation between the United States Dollar and the Grantee’s local currency that may affect the
value of the underlying Shares.

(h) In consideration of the grant of the Restricted Stock Units, no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise
from forfeiture of the Restricted Stock Units or diminution in value of the Restricted Stock Units or any of the Shares issuable under the
Restricted Stock Units from termination of the Grantee’s service as a direclor, and the Grantee irrevocably releases the Company and its
affiliates and Subsidiaries, as applicable, from any such claim that may arise; if, notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim is found
by a court of competent jurisdiction to have arisen, then, by accepting this Agreement, the Grantee shall be deemed to have irrevocably
waived the Grantee’s entitlement to putsue such claim.

SECTION 9: DATA PRIVACY.

a. The Grantee hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of
the Grantee's personal data as described in this Agreement by and among, as applicable, the Company, Subsidiaries and affiliates for
the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Grantee’s participation in the Plan.

b. The Grantee understands that the Company and its Subsidiaries and affiliates, as applicable, hold certain personal information about
the Grantee inciuding, but not limited to, the Grantee's name, home address, telephone number and e-mail address, date of birth, social
insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality,

Page 6




any shares of stock or directorships held in the Company and its affiliates, details of all options, restricted stock awards or units,
performance units or any other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in the
Grantee's favor, for the purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Plan (the “Data”).

¢. The Grantee understands that the Data may be transferred to the Company, any Subsidiary, an affiliate and any third parties
assisting in the mplementation, administration and management of the Plan, including without limitation a stock plan administrator for
on-line administration of the Plan, that these recipients may be located in the Grantee's country, or elsewhere, and that the recipient’s
country may have different data privacy laws and protections than the Grantee's country. The Grantee understands that the Grantee may
request a list with the names and addresses of any potential recipients of the Data by contacting the Grantee's local human resources
representative. The Grantee authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or other form,
for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing the Grantee's participation in the Plan, including any requisite iransfer of
such Data as may be required to a broker or other third party. The Grantee understands that the Data will be held only as long as is
necessary to implement, administer and manage the Grantee's participation in the Plan. The Grantee understands that Grantee may, at
any time, view the Data, request additional information about the storage and processing of the Data, require any necessary
amendments to the Data or refuse or withdraw the conseats hezein, in any case without cost, by contacting in writing the Grantee's local
human resources representative. The Grantee understands, however, that refusing or withdrawing the Grantee's consent may affect the
Grantee's ability to participate in the Plan. For more information on the consequences of refusal to consent or withdrawal of consent, the
Grantee understands that the Grantee may contact the Company’s Corporate Secretary.
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EXHIBIT A
Vesting and Restrictions

This grant is subject to a Time-Based Restriction, as described below (the “Period of Restriction”).
Time-Based Restrictions

In order for any Restricted Stock Units to vest, the grantee must continuously serve as a director or the Company from the Grant
Date through each corresponding Grant Date anniversary, as indicated in the chart below.

Anniversary Date % of Restricted Stock Units Granted
i* Grant Date anniversary One-third
274 Grant Date anniversary One-third
3" Grant Date anniversary One-third

The percentage of the Number of Restricted Stock Units Granted indicated next to each Anniversary Date shall vest on such indicated
anniversary date (such three-year vesting schedule referred to as the “Time-Based Restrictions™).
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EXHIBIT 10.51

Fidelity National Information Services, Inc.
Notice of Stock Option Grant
You (the “Optionee”) have been granted the following stock option (the “Option™) to purchase Common Stock of Fidelity

National Infermation Services, Inc. (the “Company™), par value $0.01 per share (“Share”), pursuant to the Fidelity National Information
Services, Inc. Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “Plan™):

Name: «Name»

Total Number of Shares subject to Option: «Shares»

Grant Date: «Crant Daten

Exercise price: «Pricen

Vesting Schedule: One-third vests on the 1* Grant Date Anniversary

One-third vests on the 2nd Grant Date Anniversary
One-third vests on the 3rd Grant Date Anniversary

Expiration Date: 7 years following the Grant Date
Option Type: Non-Statutory Stock Option

See the Stock Option Agreement and Plan Prospectus for the specific provisions
related to this Option, including the time period for exercise under various termination events and other important information
concerning the Option.

This document is intended as a summary of your individual Option Agreement. If there are any discrepancies between this
summary and the provisions of the formal documents of this Option, including the Stock Option Agreement, Plan Document or
Plan Prospectus, the provisions of the formal decuments will prevail.




FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC,
AMENDED AND RESTATED
2008 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
Stock Option Agreement

SECTION 1. GRANT OF OPTION.

(a) Option. On the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice of Stock Option Grant and this Stock Option Agreement (the
“Agreement”), the Company grants to the Optionee on the Grant Date the Option to purchase at the Exercise Price the number of Shares
set forth in the Notice of Stock Option Grant (the “Grant™), and the Optionee, by acceptance hereof, agrees to the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

(b) Plan and Defined Terms. The Option is granted pursuant to the Plan. All terms, provisions, and conditions applicable to the
Option set forth in the Plan and not set forth herein are hereby incorporated by reference herein. To the extent any provision hereof is
inconsistent with a provision of the Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan,
as amended and restated (the “Plan’™), the provisions of the Plan will govern. All capitalized terms that are used in the Notice of Stock
Option Grant or this Agreement and not otherwise defined therein or herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.

SECTION 2. RIGHT TO EXERCISE.

Subject to such limitations as the Company may impose (including prohibition of one more of the following payment methods),
payment of the Exetcise Price may be made by (a) cash or its equivalent, (b} by tendering Shares or directing the Company to withhoid
Shares from the Option having an aggregate Fair Market Value at the time of exercise equal to the Exercise Price, (¢) by broker-assisted
cashless exercise, (d) in any other manner then permitted by the Committee, or (¢) by a combination of any of the permitted methods of
payment. The Company may require the Optionee to furnish or execute such other documents as the Company shall reasonably deem
necessary (i) to evidence such exercise and (ii) to comply with or satisfy the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
the Exchange Act, applicable state or non-U.S. securities laws or any other law.

SCETION 3. TERM AND EXPIRATION.

(a) Basic Term. Subject to earlier termination pursuant to the terms hercin, the Option shall expire on the Expiration Date set forth in
the Notice of Stock Option Grant.

(b) Termination of Employment or Service. Subject to the terms and conditions of Optionee’s employment agreement, if any, the
Optionee’s employment, or service as a Director or Consultant, as the case may be, is terminated, the Option shall expire immediately
with respect to the number of Shares subject to Option that are not yet vested and the Shares subject to Option that are vested shall
expire on the earliest of the following occasions:

(i) The Expiration Date set forth in the Notice of Stock Option Grant;

(i) The date three months following the termination of the Optionee’s employment or service for Good Reason or any reason
other than Cause, Retirement, death, or Disability;

(i)  The date three years following the termination of the Optionee’s employment or service for Retirement;
(iv)  The date one year following the termination of the Optionee’s employment or service due to death or Disability; or

) The date of termination of the Optionee’s employment or service for Cause.




(¢) The Optionee may exercise all or part of this Option at any time before its expiration as defined in subsection 3(b) hereof, but
only to the extent that the Option was vested and exercisable upon termination of the Optionee’s employment or service.

(d) If the Optionee’s employment terminates due to death or Disability (as defined below), prior to the vesting of zll the Shares
subject to Option, then all unvested Shares subject to Option shall vest as of the date of termination and become free of any forfeiture
and transfer restrictions described in the Agreement. If the Optionee dies after termination of employment or service, but before the
expiration of the Option, all or part of this Option may be exercised (prior to expiration) by the personal representative of the Optionee
or by any person who has acquired this Option directly from the Optionee by will, bequest or inheritance, but only to the extent that the
Option was vested and exercisable upon termination of the Optionee’s employment or service.

(e}  Definition of “Cause.” The term “Cause” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Optionee’s employment agreement
with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary. If the Optionee’s employment agreement does not define the term “Cause,” or if the
Optionee has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary, the term “Cause™ shail mean
(i) persistent failure to perform duties consistent with a commercially reasonable standard of care (if) willful neglect of duties (iii(C)
conviction of, or pleading guilty or nole contendere to, criminal or other illegal activities involving dishonesty or moral turpitude, (D)
commission of an act of fraud or an omission constituting fraud: (E)(iv) material breach of this Agreement, including without limitation,
of a breach of Section 6 of this Agreement (v) material breach of Company’s business policies, accounting practices or standards of
ethics; or (vi) failure to materially cooperate with or impeding an investigation authorized by the Board.

() Definition of “Disability.” The term “Disability” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Optionee's employment
agreement with the Company or any affiliate or Subsidiary. If the Optionee’s employment agreement does not define the term
“Disability,” or if the Optionee has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company or any affiliate or Subsidiary, the term
“Disability™ shall mean the Optionee’s entitlement to long-term disability benefits pursuant to the long-term disability plan maintained
by the Company or in which the Company’s employees participate,

(g} Definition of “Retirement.” The term “Retirement” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Optionee’s employment
agreement with the Company or any Subsidiary. If the Optionee’s employment agreement does not define the term “Retirement,” or if
the Optione¢ has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company or any affiliate or Subsidiary, the term “Retirement”
shall mean the Optionee’s termination of employment without Cause on or afier age 55 if the sum of the Optionee’s age at termination
of employment and Years of Service with the Company total 65 or more.

(h) Definition of “Years of Service.” The term “Years of Service” means years of consecutive and continuous service with the

Company or a predecessor entity.

)] “Good Reason” termination shall apply in this Agreement only if the Grantee has an employment agreement with the
Company, ot affiliate or any Subsidiary with an applicable Good Reason provision and shall have the meaning ascribed to that term in

such employment agreement.

)] Change in Control. If a Change in Control (as defined in the Plan) occurs, then the Period of Restriction shall immediately
lapse and all cutstanding Shares subject to Option granted pursuant to this Agreement shall vest and become immediately exercisable;
provided, however, that the Committee may instead provide that the outstanding Shares subject to Option shall be automatically cashed
out upon a Change in Control.

SECTION 4. TRANSFERABILITY OF OPTION.

The Option shall not be transferable by the Optionee other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and the Option
shall be exercisable during the Optionee’s lifetime only by the Optionee or on his or her behalf by the Optionee’s guardian or legal

representative.




SECTION 5. TRADING STOCK

Optionee is subject to insider wrading liability if aware of material, nonpublic information when trading in Company stock. In
addition, if Optionee is an Officer (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) of the Exchange Act or appointed by the Board of Directors of the
Company), or someone designated as an “insider” by the Company, Optionee is subject to blackout restrictions that prevent the sale of
Company stock during certain time periods referred to as “blackout periods.” A recurring “blackout period” begins at the end of each
calendar quarter and ends twoe (2) wrading days following the Company’s camings release. Other blackout periods may be imposed
based on the Optinee’s knowledge of other material non-public information. Optionee may also be subject to the Company’s hedging
and pledging policy. For designated executive officers, the policy prohibits (i) directly or indirectly engaging in hedging or
monetization transactions with the Option and Company stock; (ii) engaging in short sale transactions with the Option and Company
stock and; (iii) pledging of part or all of the Option and Company stock as collateral for a loan, including through the use of traditional
margin accounts with a broker. For all other Grantees, the policy prohibits (i) directly or indirectly engaging in hedging or monetization
transactions with all or part of the Option and Company stock and (ii) engaging in short sale transactions with the Option and Company
stock.

SECTION f., OPTIONEE OBLIGATIONS

In consideration for the benefits provided herein, Optionee agrees to abide by the
following terms:

(a) Confidential Information, Optionee has occupied a position of trust and confidence and has had access to substantial
information about Company and its affiliates and Subsidiaries, and their operations, that is confidential or not generally known in the
industry including, without limitation, information that relates to purchasing, sales, customers, marketing, and the financial positions
and financing arrangements of Company and its affiliates and subsidiarics, Optionee agrees that all such information is proprietary or
confidential, or constitutes trade secrets and is the sole property of Company and/er its affiliates and Subsidiaries, as the case may be.
Optionee will keep confidential and, outside the scope of Optionee’s duties and responsibilities with Company and its affiliates and
Subsidiaries, will not reproduce, copy or disclose to any other person or firm, any such information or any documents or information
relating to Company's or its affiliates' methods, processes, customers, accounts, analyses, systems, charts, programs, procedures,
cotrespondence or records, or any other documents used or owned by Company or any of its affiliates, nor will Employee advise,
discuss with or in any way assist any other person, firm or enfity in abtaining or learning about any of the items described in this
section. Accordingly, at all times before and after the termination of Optionee’s employment, for any reason, Optionee will not disclose,
or permit or encourage anyone else w disclose, any such information, nor will Optionee any such information, either alone or with
others, outside the scope of Optionee's dutics and responsibilities with Company and its affiliates.

( b ) Noncompetition, Optionee acknowledges that he/she has acquired substantial knowledge and confidential information
concerning the business of Company and its affiliates as a result of his/her employment. Optionee further acknowledges that the scope
of business in which Company and its affiliates and Subsidiaries are engaged as of the Grant Date is international and very competitive.
Competition by Optionee in that business after the termination of Optionee’s employment, for any reason, could severely injure
Company and its affiliates and Subsidiaries.

In this Section:

(i} "Competitive Business” shall mean any firm or business that directly competes with the Company, or any of its affiliates or
Subsidiaries, in its principal products and markets;

{(ii) "Restricted Tetritory" shail mean any country or other geographic scope in which Company or its affiliates or Subsidiaries
conducted business in the twelve months prior to the termination of Optionee’s employment in relation to which Optionee had material
responsibilities;

(iii)  "Customer” shail mean any business or person for which Company or its affiliates or Subsidiaries provided products or
services during the twelve months prior to the termination of Optionee’s employment; and




(iv) "Prospective Customer” shall mean any business or person from which Company or its affiliates or Subsidiaries actively
solicited business within the twelve (12) months prior to the termination of Optionee’s employment.

During Optionee’s employment and for a period of one year afier the termination of Optionee’s employment, for any reason,
Optionee agrees that, in the Restricted Tetritory, Optionee will not, directly or indirectly; (i) become an employee, consultant, advisor,
principal, partner or substantial sharcholder of any Competitive Business; (ii) become an employee, consultant, advisor, principal,
partner or substantial shareholder of any Customer or Prospective Customer; or (iii) selicit or accept any business that directly competes
with the Company, its affiliates or Subsidiaries in their principal products and services from any Customer or Prospective Customer. In
addition, for a period of twelve (12) months after the termination of Optionee’s employment, Optionee agrees not to, directly or
indirectly, on behalf of Optionee or any Competitive Business, hire or solicit for employment, partnership or engagement as an
independent contractor any person who was an employee of Company or any affiliate or Subsidiary during the period of twelve (12)
months prior to any such improper solicitation, hire or engagement.

{c) Optionee expressly acknowledges and agrees with the reasonableness of the terms in this Section 6 and agrees not to contest these
terms in a court of competent jurisdiction on such grounds. Optionee agrees that the Company's remedy at law for a breach of these
covenants may be inadequate and that for a breach of these covenants the Company, in addition to other remedies provided for by law,
may be entitled to an injunction, restraining order or other equitable relief prohibiting Optionee from committing or continuing to
commit any such breach. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any of these restrictions are overbroad, Optionee and
Company agree to modification of the affected restriction(s) to permit enforcement to the maximum extent allowed by law.

(d) No provision of Section 6 shall apply to restrict Optionee’s conduct, or trigger any reimbursement obligations under this
Agreement, in any jurisdiction where such provision is, on its face, unenforceable and/or void as against public policy, unless the
provision may be construed, amended, reformed or equitably modified to be enforceable and compliant with public policy, in which
case, the provision will apply as construed, amended, reformed or equitably modified.

(e) Optionee also recognizes and acknowledges that the value of the Grant he/she is receiving under this Agreement represents a
portion of Optionee’s value to the Company such that if Optionee breaches the restrictive covenant by working for or with a competitor,
thereby transferring such value to the competitor, the value of the Grant represents a reasonable measure of a pottion of the monetary
damages for such breach. Thus, in the event of a breach by Optionee of any restriction contained in Section 6, such breach shall be
considered a material breach of the terms of the Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, and any other program, plan or
arrangement by which Optionee receives equity in the Company. Therefore, besides prospective injunctive relief, if Optionee breaches
any restrictive covenant contained in Section 6, the Company shall also be entitled to revoke any portion of the Grant for which the
restrictions have not lapsed and recover any shares (or the gross value of any shares) delivered or deliverable to Optionee pursuant to
this Agreement and, pursuant to Florida law, shall be entitled to recover its costs and attorney’s fees incurred in securing relief under
this Section 6.

SECTION 7. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

(a) Acknowledgements. The Optionee hereby acknowledges that he or she has read and understands the terms of the Plan and this
Agreement, and agrees to be bound by their respective terms and conditions, The Optionee acknowledges that there may be tax
consequences upon the exercise or transfer of the Option and that the Optionee should consult an independent tax advisor prior to any
exercise of the Option.

(b) Tax Withholding. Pursuant to Article 20 of the Plan, the Company shall have the power and the right to deduct or withhold, or
require the Optionee to remit to the Company, an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state and local taxes (including the Optionee’s
FICA obligations) required by law to be withheld with respect to this Option. The Company may condition the delivery of Shares upon
the Optionee’s satisfaction of such withholding obligations. The Optionee may elect to satisfy all or part of such withholding
requirement by tendering previously-owned Shares or by having the Company withhold Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the
minimum statutory withholding (based on minimum statutory withholding rates for federal, state and local tax purposes, as applicable,
including the Optionee’s FICA taxes) that could be imposed on the transaction, and, to the extent the Company so permits, amounts in

excess of the minimum




statutory withholding to the extent it would not result in additional accounting expense. Such election shall be irrevocable, made in
writing and signed by the Optionee, and shall be subject to any restrictions or limitations that the Company, in its sole discretion, deems
appropriate.

{c) Notice Concerning Disqualifying Dispesitions. If the Option is an Incentive Stock Option, the Optionee shall notify the Company
of any disposition of Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of the Option if the disposition constitutes a “disqualifying disposition™
within the meaning of Sections 421 and 422 of the Code (or any successor provision of the Code then in effect relating to disqualifying
dispositions). Such notice shall be provided by the Optionee to the Company in writing within 10 days of any such disqualifying
disposition.

(d) Rights as a Stockholder. Neither the Optionce nor the Optionee’s transferee or representative shall have any rights as a
stockholder with respect to any Shares subject to this Option until the Option has been exercised and Share certificates have been issued
to the Optionee, transferee or representative, as the case may be.

(e) Ratification of Actions. By accepting this Agreement, the Optionec and each person claiming under or through the Optionee
shall be conclusively deemed to have indicated the Optionee’s acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, any action taken under
the Plan or this Agreement and Notice of Stock Option Grant by the Company, the Board, or the Committee.

{f} Notice. Any notice required by the terms of this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed effective upon personal
delivery or upon deposit with the United States Postal Service, by registered or certified mail, with postage and fees prepaid. Notice
shall be addressed to the General Counsel at its principal executive office and to the Optionee at the address that he or she most recently
provided in writing to the Company.

(g) Choice of Law. This Agreement and the Notice of Stock Option Grant shall be govemed by, and construed in accordance with,
the laws of Florida, without regard to any conflicts of law or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise cause the Plan, this
Agreement or the Notice of Stock Option (Grant to be governed by or construed in accordance with the substantive law of another
jurisdiction.

(h)  Arbitration. Subject to Article 3 of the Plan, any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to the Plan, this Agreement or the
Notice of Stock Option Grant shall be settled by binding arbitration before a single arbimrator in Jacksenville, Florida and in accordance
with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator shall decide any issues submitted in
accordance with the provisions and commercial purposes of the Plan, this Agreement and the Notice of Stock Option Grant, provided
that all substantive questions of law shall be determined in accordance with the state and Federal laws applicable in Florida, without
regard to internal prineiples relating to conflict of laws,

(i) Modification or Amendment. This Agreement may only be meodified or amended by written agreement executed by the parties
hereto; provided, however, that the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 4.3 of the Plan may be made without such written
agreement.

(i) Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity
shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or
invalid provision had not been included.

(k) References to Plan. All references to the Plan (or to a Section or Article of the Plan) shall be deemed references to the Plan (or
the Section or Article) as may be amended from time to time.

(I} Section 409A Compliance. To the extent applicable, it is intended that the Plan and this Agreement comply with the requirements
of Code Section 409A and any related regulations or other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department
of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service and the Plan and the Stock Option Agreement shall be interpreted accordingly.
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SECTION 8. NATURE OF GRANT; NO ENTITLEMENT; NO CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION.
The Optionee, in accepting the Option, ropresents and acknowledges the following:

(a) The Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and may be modified, amended, suspended
or terminated by the Company at any time,

(b) The grant of the Option is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to receive future grants
of awarde, or benefits in lieu of awards, even if awards have been granted repeatedly in the past.

(©) All decisions with respect to future grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Committee.

{d) Any Option or Shares acquired under the Plan are extraordinary items that are outside the scope of the Optionee’s
employment contract (if any) and are not part of the Optionce's nermal or expected compensation or salary for any purposc, including,
but not limited to, caleulating any severanoc, resignation, termination, redundancy, end of service payments, bonuses, long-service
awards, pension or retirement or welfare bonofits or similar payments.

(e} Any Option or Shares subject to the Option not intended to replace any pension rights or compensation.

(] The Optionee has not been induced to participate in the Plan by any expectation of employment or continued employment
with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

(2) In the event that the Optionee's employer is not the Company, the grant of the Option will not be interpreted to form an
employment contract or relationship with the Company and, furthermore, the grant of the Option will not be interpreted te form an
employment contract with the Optinnec’s employer or any affiliatc or Subsidiary

(h) The future value of the underlying Shares is unknown and cannot be predicted with certainty. If the Optionee vests in the
Option, the value of any acquired Shares may increase or decrcase. The Optionce understands that the Companics arc not responsible
for any foreigh exchange fluctuation betweon the United States Dollar and the Optionec’s local curreney that may affect the valuc of the
underlying Shares.

® In consideration of the grant of the Option, no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from forfeiture of
the Optiens or diminution in value of the Options or any of the Shares issuable under the Cption from termination of the Optioneo’s
employment by the Company or his or her employer, as applicable (and for any reason whatsecver and whether or not in breach of
contract or local labor laws) or notice to terminate employment having besn given by the Optionec or the Optionee's empleyer, and the
Optionee irrevocably releases his or her employer, the Company and its affiliates and Subsidianies, as applicable, from any such claim
that may arise; if, notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to have arisen, then, by
acccpting this Agrcement, the Optionee shall be deemed to have irrevocably waived the Optionee’s entitlement to pursue such claim.

SECTION 9. DATA PRIVACY.

a. The Optionee hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of
the Optionee's personal data as doscribed in this Agreement by and among, a3 applicable, the Optionec's employer, the Company,
Subsidiaries and affiliates for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Optionee’s participation in the
Plan.




b. The Optionee understands that the Optionee’s employer, the Company and its Subsidiaries and affiliates, as applicable, hold certain
personal information about the Optionee regarding the Qptionee’s employment, the nature and amount of the Optionee's compensation
and the fact and conditions of the Optienee's participation in the Plan, including, but not limited to, the Optionee's name, home address,
telephone number and e-mail address, date of birth, social insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality, job title,
any shares of stock or directorships held in the Company and its affiliates, details of all options, restricted stock or units, performance
units or any other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in the Optionee's favor,
for the purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Plan (the “Data™).

¢. The Optionee understands that the Data may be transferred to the Company, any Subsidiary, an affiliate and any third parties
assisting in the implementatior, administration and management of the Plan, including without limitation a stock plan administrator for
on-line administration of the Plan, that these recipients may be located in the Optionee's country, or elsewhere, and that the recipient’s
country may have different data privacy laws and protections than the Optionee's country. The Optionee understands that the Optionee
may request a list with the names and addresses of any potential recipients of the Data by contacting the Optionee's local human
resources representative. The Optionee authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or
other form, for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing the Optionee's participation in the Plan, including any
requisite transfer of such Data as may be required to a broker or other third party. The Optionee understands that the Data will be held
only as long as is necessary to implement, administer and manage the Optionee's participation in the Plan. The Optionee understands
that Optionee may, at any time, view the Data, request additional information about the storage and processing of the Data, require any
necessary amendments to the Data or refuse or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by contacting in writing the
Optionee's local human resources representative. The Optionee understands, however, that refusing or withdrawing the Optionee's
consent may affect the Optionee's ability to participate in the Plan. For more information on the consequences of refusal to consent or
withdrawal of consent, the Optionee understands that the Optionee may contact the Optionee's local human resources representative.




EXHIBIT A
Vesting and Restrictions

This grant is subject to a Time-Based Restriction, as described below (the “Period of Restriction™).

Time-Based Restrictions

Anniversary Date % of Option

First (1*") anniversary of the Grant Date One-third

Second (2*¢) anniversary of the Grant Date One-third

Third (3*) anniversary of the Grant Date One-third
Vesting

The percentage of the Total Number of Shares subject to Option indicated next to each Anniversary Date shall vest on such
indicated anniversary date (such three-year vesting schedule referred to as the “Time-Based Restrictions™),

Bl ic i \ D

Electronic Signature Acceptance Date




EXHIBIT 10.52
FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
Notice of Restricted Stack Unit Grant
You {the “Grantee”) have been granted the following award of restricted stock units (the “Restricted Stock Units”) denominated
in shares of Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. (the “Company™), par value $0.01 per share (the “Shares”), pursuant to the

Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the
“Plan™):

Grantee: «Name»

Number of Restricted Stock Units Granted: «Shares»

Grant Date: «Grant Datey»

Vesting Schedule: One-third vests on the 1** Grant Date Anniversary
One-third vests on the 2nd Grant Date Anniversary
One-third vests on the 3rd Grant Date Anniversary

See¢ the Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement and Plan Prospectus for the specific pravisions related to this Notice of
Restricted Stock Unit Grant and important information concerning this award.

This document is intended as a summary of your individual restricted stock unit award. If there are any discrepancies between
this summary and the provisions of the Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, Plan Decument and Plan Prospectus, the
provisions of those documents will prevail.
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FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED
2008 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement

SECTION 1. GRANT OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS

(a) _ Restricted Stock Unit. On the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant and this Restricted
Stock Unit Agreement (the “Agreement”), Fidelity National Information Services, lnc. (the “Company™) grants to the Grantee on the
Grant Date the Restricted Stock Units set forth in the Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant (the “Grant”), and the Grantee, by
acceptance hereof agrees to the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

) Plan and Defined Terms. The Restricted Stock Units are granted pursuant to the Plan. All terms, provisions, and conditions
applicable to the Restricted Stock Units set forth in the Plan and not set forth herein are hereby incorporated by reference herein. To the
extent any provision hereof is inconsistent with a provision of the Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. Amended and Restated
2008 Ompibus Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “Plan™), the provisions of the Plan will govern, All capitalized terms that
are used in the Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant or this Agreement and not otherwise defined therein or herein shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.

Section 2, FORFEITURE AND TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

(a) Forfeiture. The Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to forfeiture until the Restricted Stock Units vest in accordance with Exhibit
A, except as otherwise stated herein or in an employment agreement between the Company and Grantee. Except in the case of death or
Disability, if the Grantee’s employment with the Company, or any of its Affiliates or its Subsidiaries terminates for any reason then all
unvested Restricted Stock Units shall be forfeited, provided that;

(i) If the Grantee’s service terminates due to death or Disability, then all such unvested Restricted Stock Units outstanding as of
the date of termination shall vest as of the date of termination and become free of any forfeiture and transfer restrictions described in the
Agreement.

(i) The term “Disability” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Grantee’s employment agreement with the
Company, ot any affiliate or Subsidiary. If the Grantee’s employment agreement does not define the term “Disability,” or if the Grantee
has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary, the term “Disability” shall mean the
Grantee’s entitlement to long-term disability benefits pursuant to the long-term disability plan maintained by the Company or in which
the Company’s employees participate.

(iii) Notwithstanding any provision of Section 2 of this Agreement, if any provision of this Section 2 conflicts with an
employment agreement by and between Grantee and the Company which is currently in effect, such conflicting provisions of that
Grantee's employment agreement shall supersede any such conflicting provisions in Section 2 of this Agreement to the extent they are
more favorable to Grantee.

{b) Transfer Restrictions. During the Period of Restriction, the Restricted Stock Units may not be sold, assigned, pledged,
exchanged, hypothecated or otherwise transferred, encumbered or disposed of to the extent such Restricted Stock Units are subject to a
Period of Restriction. Grantee may also be subject to the Company’s hedging and pledging policy. For designated executive officers,
the pelicy prohibits (i) directly or indirectly engaging in hedging or monetization transactions with the Restricted Stock Units and
Company stock; (ii) engaging in short sale transactions with the Restricted Stock Units and Company stock and; (i) pledging the
Restricted Stock Units and Company stock as collateral for a loan, includimg through the use of traditional margin accounts with a
broker.
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For all other Grantees, the policy prohibits (i) directly or indirectly engaging in hedging or monetization transactions with the Restricted
Stock Units and Company stock and (ii) engaging in short sale transactions with the Restricted Stock Units and Company stock.

(¢) Lapse of Restrictions. The Period of Restriction shall lapse as to the Restricted Stock Units in accordance with the Notice of
Restricted Stock Unit Grant. For avoidance of doubt, once Restricted Stock Units vest, the Period of Restriction lapses as to those units.
Subject to the terms of the Plan and Sections 2(d) and 6(b) hereof, upon lapse of the Period of Restriction, the Grantee shail own the
Shares that are subject to this Agreement free of all restrictions otherwise imposed by this Agreement.

(d) Change in Control. If a Change in Control (as defined in the Plan) occurs, then the Period of Restriction shall immediately lapse
and all outstanding Restricted Stock Units granted pursuant to this Agreement shall immediately vest; provided, however, that the
Committee may instead provide that the outstanding Restricted Stock Units shall be automatically cashed out upon a Change in Control.

(¢) Holding Requirement Following Period of Restriction. If and when the Grantee is an Officer (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) of the
Exchange Act or appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company), the Grantee may not sell, assign, pledge, exchange,
hypothecate or otherwise transfer, encumber or dispose of fifty percent (50%) of any Shares paid to the Grantee as-of the Payment Date
pursuant to Section 3 (net of any shares required to be sold, withheld or otherwise to satisfy tax withholding pursuant to Section 7(b)),
until such time as the officer’s total equity holdings satisfy the equity ownership guidelines adopted by the Compensation Commitiee of
the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Committee™); provided, however, that this Section 2(d) shall not prohibit the Grantee from
exchanging or otherwise disposing of Shares in connection with a2 Change in Control or other transaction in which Shares held by other
Company shareholders are required to be exchanged or otherwise disposed.

SECTION 3: PAYMENT OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS

As soon as practicable (and in no case more than 30 days) after a Restricted Stock Unit becomes vested (the “Payment Date™),
the Company will pay the vested Restricted Stock Units by delivering to Grantee a number of Shares equal to the mumber of Restricted
Stock Units that vested less any required tax withholding per Section 7(b).

SECTION 4: TRADING STOCK AND SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

(a) Grantee is subject to insider trading liability if Grantee is aware of material, nonpublic information when making a purchase or
sale of Company stock. In addition, if Grantee is an Officer (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) of the Exchange Act or appointed as
such by the Board of Governors of the Company), or someone designated as an “insider” by the Company, Grantee is subject to
blackout restrictions that prevent the sale of Company stock during certain time periods referred to as the “blackout period.”
The recurring “blackout petiod” begins at the end of each calendar quarter and ends two (2) trading days following the
Company’s earnings release.

(b) Prior to the Payment Date, the Grantee shall not have any rights as a sharcholder of the Company in connection with these
Restricted Stock Units and the Grantee’s interest in the Restricted Stock Units shall make the Grantee only a general, unsecured
creditor of the Company, unless and until the Shares are distributed to the Grantee. Following delivery of Shares upon the
Payment Date, the Grantee shall have all rights as a shareholder with respect to such Shares.

SECTION 5: DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS
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(a) Any dividend equivalents carned with respect to Restricted Stock Units which remain subject to a Period of Restriction shall not
be paid to the Grantee but shall be held by the Company.

M) Such held dividend equivalents shall be subject to the same Period of Restriction as the Shares to which they relate.

(©) Any dividend equivalents held pursuant to this Section 5 which are attributable to Restricted Stock Units which vest pursuant to
this Agreement shall be paid to the Grantee within 30 days of the applicable vesting date.

{(d)  Dividend equivalents attributable to Restricted Stock Units forfeited pursuant to Section 2 of this Agreement shall be forfeited to
the Company on the date such Shares are forfeited.

SECTION 6;: GRANTEE OBLIGATIONS
In consideration for the benefits provided herein, Grantee agrees to abide by the following terms:

(a) Confidential Information. Grantee has occupied a position of trust and confidence and has had access to substantial information
about Company and its affiliates and Subsidiaries, and their operations, that is confidential er not generally known in the industry
including, without limitation, information that relates to purchasing, sales, customers, marketing, and the financial positions and
financing arrangements of Company and its affiliates and subsidiaries. Grantee agrees that all such informatien is proprietary or
confidential, or constitutes trade secrets and is the sole property of Company and/or its affiliates and Subsidiaries, as the case may be.
Grantee will keep confidential and, outside the scope of Grantee’s duties and responsibilities with Company and its affiliates and
Subsidiaries, will not reproduce, copy or disclose to any other person or firm, any such information or any documents or information
relating to Company's or its affiliates’ methods, processes, customers, accounts, analyses, systems, charts, programs, procedures,
cotrespondence or records, or any other documents used or owned by Company or any of its affiliates, nor will Employee advise,
discuss with or in any way assist any other person, firm or entity in obtaining or leaming about any of the items described in this
section. Accordingly, at all times before and after the termination of Grantee’s employment, for any reason, Grantee will not disclose, or
permit or encourage anyone else to disclose, any such information, nor will Grantee any such information, either alone or with others,
outside the scope of Grantee's duties and responsibilities with Company and its affiliates.

() Noncompetition. Grantee acknowledges that he/she has acquired substantial knowledge and confidential information concemning
the business of Company and its affiliates as a result of histher employment. Grantee further acknowledges that the scope of business in
which Company and its affiliates and Subsidiaries are engaged as of the Grant Date is international and very competitive, Competition
by Grantee in that business after the termination of Grantee's employment, for any reason, could severely injure Company and its
affiliates and Subsidiaries.

In this Section:

(i) "Competitive Business" shall mean any firm or business that directly competes with the Company, or any of its affiliates or
Subsidiaries, in its principal products and markets;

(i) "Restricted Territory" shall mean any country or other geographic scope in which Company or its affiliates or Subsidiaries
conducted business in the twelve months prior to the termination of Grantee’s employment in relation to which Grantee had material

responsibilities;

(iii) "Customer" shall mean any business or person for which Company or its affiliates or Subsidiaries provided products or
services during the twelve months prior to the termination of Grantee's employment; and
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(iv) "Prospective Customer” shall mean any business or person from which Company or its affiliates or Subsidiaries actively
solicited business within the twelve (12} months prier o the termination of Grantee’s employment.

During Grantee’s employment and for a period of one year after the termination of Grantee’s employment, for any reason,
Grantee agrees that, in the Restricted Territory, Grantee will not, directly or indirectly; (i) become an employee, consultant, advisor,
principal, partmer or substantial shareholder of any Competitive Business; (ii) become an employee, consultant, adviser, principal,
partner or substantial shareholder of any Customer or Prospective Customer; or (iii) solicit or accept any business that directly competes
with the Company, its affiliates or Subsidiaries in their principal preducts and services from any Customer or Prospective Customer. In
addition, for a period of twelve (12) months after the termination of Grantee’s employment, Grantee agrees not to, directly or indirectly,
on behalf of Grantee or any Competitive Business, hire or solicit for employment, partnership or engagement as an independent
contractor any persen who was an employee of Company or any affiliate or Subsidiary during the period of twelve (12} months prior to
any such improper solicitation, hire or engagement,

() Grantee expressly acknowledges and agrees with the reasonableness of the terms in this Section 6 and agrees not to contest these
terms in a court of competent jurisdiction on such grounds. Grantee agrees that the Company's remedy at law for a breach of these
covenanis may be inadequate and that for a breach of these covenants the Company, in addition to other remedies provided for by law,
may be entitied to an injunction, restraining order or other equitable relief prohibiting Grantee from committing or continuing to commit
any such breach. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any of these restrictions are overbroad, Grantee and Company
agree to modification of the affected restriction(s) to permit enforcement to the maximum extent allowed by law.

(d) No provision of Section 6 shall apply to restrict Grantee’s conduct, or trigger any reimbursement obliigations under this
Agreement, in any jurisdiction where such provision is, on its face, unenforceable and/or void as against public policy, unless the
provision may be construed, amended, reformed or equitably modified to be enforceable and compliant with public policy, in which
case, the provision will apply as construed, amended, reformed or equitably modified.

(e) Grantee also recognizes and acknowledges that the value of the Grant he/she is receiving under this Grant Agreement represents a
portion of Grantee's value to the Company such that if Grantee breaches the restrictive covenant by working for or with a competitor,
thereby transferring such value to the competitor, the value of the Grant represents a reasonable measure of a portion of the monetary
damages for such breach. Thus, in the event of a breach by Grantee of any restriction coniained in Section 6, such breach shall be
considered a material breach of the terms of the Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, and any other program, plan or
amrangement by which Grantee receives equity in the Company. Therefore, besides prospective injunctive relief, if Grantee breaches
any restrictive covenant contained in Section 6, the Company shall also be entitled to revoke any portion of the Grant for which the
restrictions have not lapsed and recover any shares (or the gross value of any shares) delivered or deliverable to Grantee pursuant fo
this Grant Agreement and, pursuant to Florida law, shall be entitled to recover its costs and attorney’s fees incurred in secuting relief
under this Section 6.

SECTION 7. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

(a) Acknowledgements. The Grantee hereby acknowledges that he or she has read and understands the terms of the Plan and this
Agreement, and agreces to be bound by their respective terms and conditions. The Grantee acknowledges that there may be lax
consequences upon the vesting of the Restricted Stock Units or the transfer of Sharcs paid to the Grantee under this Agreement and that
the Grantee should consult an independent tax advisor.

(b)  Tax Withholding. Pursuant to Article 20 of the Plan, the Company shall have the power and right to deduct or withhold an
amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state and local taxes (including the Grantee's FICA taxes) required by law 10 be withheld with
respect to this Restricted Stock Units. The Company may condition the delivery of Shares upon the Grantee’s satisfaction of such
withholding obligations. The Grantee may clect to satisfy all or
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part of such withholding requirement by tendeting previously-owned Shares or by having the Company withhold Shares having a Fair
Market Value equal to the minimum statutory withholding (based on minimum statutory withhelding rates for federal, state and local
tax purposes, as applicable, including the Grantee’s FICA taxes) that could be imposed on the transaction, and, to the extent the
Company so permits, amounts in excess of the minimum statutory withholding to the extent it would not result in additional accounting
expense. Such election shall be irrevocable, made in writing and signed by the Grantee, and shall be subject to any restrictions or
limitations that the Company, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate.

(3] Ratification of Actions. By accepting this Agreement, the Grantee and each person claiming under or through the Grantee
shall be conclusively deemed to have indicated the Grantee's acceptance and ratification of, and consent to, any action taken under the
Plan or this Agreement and Notice of Restricted Stock Grant by the Company, the Board or the Committee.

(d)  Notice. Any notice required by the terms of this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed

effective upon personal delivery or upon deposit with the United States Postal Service, by registered or certified mail, with postage and
fees prepaid. Notice shall be addressed to the General Counsel of the Company at its principal executive office and to the Grantee at the
address that he or she most recently provided in writing to the Company.

(e) Choice of Law. This Agreement and the Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant shail be governed by, and construed in accordance
with, the laws of Florida, without regard to any conflicts of law or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise cause the Plan,
this Agreement or the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant to be governed by or construed in accordance with the substantive law of
another jurisdiction.

()  Arbitration. Subject to Article 3 of the Plan, any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to the Plan, this Agreement or the
Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Grant shall be settled by binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in Jacksonville, Florida and in
accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator shall decide any issues
submitted in accordance with the provisions and commercial purposes of the Plan, this Agreement and the Notice of Restricted Stock
Unit Grant, provided that all substantive questions of law shall be determined in accordance with the state and Federal laws applicable
in Florida, without regard to internal principles relating to conflict of laws,

(g) Modification or Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified or amended by written agreement executed by the parties
hereto; provided, however, that the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 4.3 of the Plan may be made without such written

agreement.

(h)  Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or
invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such
illegal or invalid provision had not been included.

{iy References to Plan. All references to the Plan (or to a Section or Article of the Plan) shall be deemed references to the Plan (or the
Section or Article) as may be amended from time to time.

(i) Section 409A Compliance. To the extent applicable, it is intended that the Plan and this Agreement comply with the requirements
of Code Section 409A and any related regulations or other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S. Department
of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service and the Plan and the Agreement shall be interpreted accordingly,
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SECTION 8: NATURE OF GRANT; NO ENTITLEMENT; NO CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION.

The Grantee, in accepting the grant of Restricted Stock Units, represents and acknowledges the following:

{a) The Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and may be modified, amended, suspended
or terminated by the Company at any time,

(b) The grant of the Restricted Stock Units is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to
receive future grants of awards, or benefits in lieu of awards, even if awards have been granted repeatedly in the past.

(<) All decisions with respect to future grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Committee.

(@ Any Shares acquired under the Plan are extraordinary items that are outside the scope of the Grantee’s employment

agreement (if any) and are not part of the Grantee's normal or expected compensation or salary for any purpose, including, but not
limited 1o, calculating any severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, end of service payments, bonuses, long-service awards,
pension or retirement or welfare benefits or similar payments.

(e} Any Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units are not intended to replace any pension rights or compensation,

{f The Grantee has not been induced to participate in the Plan by any expectation of employment or continued employment with
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

( In the event that the Grantee's employer is not the Company, the grant of the Restricted Stock Units will not be interpreted to
form an employment contract or relationship with the Company and, furthermore, the grant of the Restricted Stock Units will not be
interpreted to form an employment contract with the Grantee’s employer or any affiliate or Subsidiary.

(h) The future value of the underlying Shares is unknown and canrot be predicted with cettainty. If the Grantee vests in the
Restricted Stock Units, the value of any acquired Shares may increase or decrease. The Grantee understands that the Companies are not
responsible for any foreign exchange fluctuation between the United States Dollar and the Grantee’s local currency that may affect the
value of the underlying Shares.

@ In consideration of the grant of the Restricted Stock Units, no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise
from forfeiture of the Restricted Stock Units or diminution in value of the Restricted Stock Units or any of the Shares issuable under the
Restricted Stock Units from termination of the Grantee’s employment by the Company or his or her employer, as applicable (and for
any reason whatsoever and whether or not in breach of contract or local labor laws) ot notice to terminate employment having been
given by the Grantee or the Grantee's employer, and the Grantee irrevocably releases his or her employer, the Company and its
affiliates and Subsidiaries, as applicable, from any such claim that may arise; if, notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim is found
by a court of competent jurisdiction to have arisen, then, by accepting this Agreement, the Grantee shall be deemed to have irrevocably
waived the Grantee’s entitlement to pursue such claim.

SECTION 9: DATA PRIVACY.

a. The Grantee hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of
the Grantee's personal data as described in this Agreement by and among, as applicable, the
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Grantee's employer, the Company, Subsidiaries and affiliates for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing
the Grantee’s participation in the Plan.

b. The Grantce understands that the Grantee's employer, the Company and its Subsidiarics and affiliates, as applicable, hold certain
personal information about the Grantee regarding the Grantee's employment, the nature and amount of the Grantee's compensation and
the fact and conditions of the Grantee's participation in the Plan, including, but not limited to, the Grantee's name, home address,
telephone number and e-mail address, date of birth, social insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality, job title,
any shares of stock or directorships held in the Company and its affiliates, details of all options, restricted stock awards or units,
performance units or any other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in the
Grantee's favor, for the purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Plan (the “Data™).

¢. The Grantee understands that the Data may be transferred to the Company, any Subsidiary, an affiliate and any third parties
assisting in the implementation, administration and management of the Plan, including without limitation a stock plan administrator for
on-line administration of the Plan, that these recipients may be located in the Grantee's country, or elsewhere, and that the recipient’s
country may have different data privacy laws and protections than the Grantee's country. The Grantee understands that the Grantee may
request a list with the names and addresses of any potential recipients of the Data by contacting the Grantee's local human resources
representative. The Grantee authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or other form,
for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing the Grantee's participation in the Plan, including any requisite transfer of
such Data as may be required to a broker or other third party. The Grantee understands that the Data will be held only as long as is
necessary to implement, administer and manage the Grantee's participation in the Plan. The Grantee understands that Grantee may, at
any time, view the Data, request additional information about the storage and processing of the Data, require any necessary
amendments to the Data or refuse or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by contacting in writing the Grantee's local
human resources representative. The Grantee understands, however, that refusing ot withdrawing the Grantee's consent may affect the
Grantee's ability to participate in the Plan. For more information on the consequences of refusal to consent or withdrawal of consent, the
Grantee understands that the Grantee may contact the Grantee's local human resources representative.
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EXHIBIT A
Vesting and Restrictions

This grant is subject to a Time-Based Restriction, as described below (the “Period of Restriction™).
Time-Based Restrictions

In order for any Restricted Stock Units to vest, the grantee must remain continunously employed by the Company from the Grant
Date through e¢ach corresponding Grant Date anniversary, as indicated in the chart below.

Anniversary Date % of Restricted Stock Units Granted
1*' Grant Date anniversary One-third
284 Grant Date anniversary One-third
3 Grant Date anniversary One-third

The percentage of the Number of Restricted Stock Units Granted indicated next to each Anniversary Date shall vest on such indicated
anniversary date (such three-year vesting schedule referred to as the “Time-Based Restrictions™).

Electronic Signatire @ Acceptance Date

Electronic Signature Acceptance Date
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EXHIBIT 10.53

FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.

Notice of Performance Stock Unit Grant

You (the “Grantee”) have been granted the following award of performance stock units (the “Performance Stock Units™)
denominated in shares of Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. (the “Company™), par value $0.01 per share (the “Shares”),
pursuant to the Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended and

restated (the “Plan™):

Grantee: «Name»
Number of Performance Stock Units Granted: «Shares»
Grant Date: «Grant Date»
Vesting and Period of Restriction: See Exhibit A
Measurement Periods: See Exhibit A

See the Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement and Plan Prospectus for the specific provisions related to this Notice of
Performance Stock Unit Grant and important information concerning this award.

This decument is intended as a summary of your individual Performance Stock Unit award. If there are any discrepancies
between this summary and the provisions of the Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement, Plan Document and Flan Prospectus,
the provisions of these documents will prevail.
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FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SERVICES, INC,
AMENDED AND RESTATED
2008 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN
Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement

Section 1. GRANT OF PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS

Performance Stock Unit. On the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice of Performance Stock Unit Grant and this
Performance Stock Unit Agreement {the “Agreement”), Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. {the “Company”) grants to the
Grantee on the Grant Date the Performance Stock Units set forth in the Notice of Performance Stock Unit Grant (the “Grant”) and the
(Grantee, by acceptance hereof agrees to the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

(a) Plan and Defined Terms. The Performance Stock Units are granted pursuant to the Plan. All terms, provisions, and conditions
applicable to the Performance Stock Units set forth in the Plan and not set forth herein are hereby incorporated by reference herein. To
the extent any provision hereof is inconsistent with a provision of the Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. Amended and
Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “Plan™), the provisions of the Plan will govern. All capitalized
terms that are used in the Notice of Performance Stock Unit Grant or this Agreement and not otherwise defined therein or herein shall
have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan,

Section 2. FORFEITURE; TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS; AND CHANGE IN CONTROL

(a) Forfeiture. The Performance Stock Units shall be subject to forfeiture until the Performance Stock Units vest in accordance with
Exhibit A, except as otherwise stated herein or in an employment agreement between the Company and Grantee. Except in the case of
death or Disability, if the Grantee’s employment with the Company, or any of its Affiliates or its Subsidiaries terminates for any reasen
then all unvested Performance Stock Units shall be immediately forfeited, provided that;

(i) Hthe Grantee’s service terminates due to death or Disability, then all such unvested Performance Stock Units outstanding as
of the date of termination shall vest as of the date of termination and become free of any forfeiture and transfer restrictions described in
the Agreement;

(i) The term “Disability” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Grantee’s employment
agreement with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary. If the Grantee’s employment agreement does not define the term
“Disability,” or if the Grantee has not entered into an employment agreement with the Company, or any affiliate or Subsidiary, the term
“Disability” shall mean the Grantee’s entitlement to long-term disability benefits pursuant to the long-term disability plan maintained by
the Company or in which the Company’s employees participate.

(ii) Notwithstanding any provision of Section 2 of this Agreement, if any provision in Section 2 conflicts with an employment
agreement by and between Grantee and the Company which is currently in effect, such conflicting provisions of that Grantee’s
employment agreement shall supersede any such conflicting provisions in Section 2 of this Agreement to the extent they are more

favorable to Grantee. To the extent an
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acceleration of vesting and lapse of the Period of Restriction is triggered in accordance with the terms of an employment agreement
upon the Grantee’s termination of employment, then for any outstanding Performance Stock Units pursuant to this Agreement as of the
date of the Grantee’s termination of employment, the number of outstanding Performance Stock Units Eligible to be Earned for a
Measurement Period as of the date of the Grantee's termination of employment wilt have the Performance Achiever medifier applied at
Target as defined in Exhibit A unless the Grantee’s date of termination of employment occurs after a Measurement Period End Date, in
which case the outstanding Performance Stock Units Eligible to be Earned for that Measurement Period will have the modifier applied
in accordance with Exhibit A and will vest on the corresponding Grant Date Anniversary of such Measurement Period.

(b)  Transfer Restrictions. During the Period of Restriction, the Performance Stock Units may not be sold, assigned, pledged,
exchanged, hypothecated or otherwise transferred, encumbered or disposed of to the extent such Performance Stock Units are subject to
a Period of Restriction. Grantee may also be subject to the Company’s hedging and pledging policy. For designated executive officers,
the policy prohibits (i) directly or indirectly engaging in hedging or monetization transactions with the Performance Steck Units and
Company stock; (ii) engaging in short sale transactions with the Performance Stock Units and Company stock and; (iii) pledging the
Performance Stock Units and Company stock as collateral for a loan, including through the use of traditional margin accounts with a
broker. For all other Grantges, the policy prohibits (i) directly or indirectly engaging in hedging or monetization transactions with the
Performance Stock Units and Company stock and (ii) engaging in short sale transactions with the Performance Stock Units and
Company stock.

()} Lapse of Restrictions. The Period of Restriction shall lapse as to the Performance Stock Units in accordance with the Notice of
Performance Stock Unit Grant. For avoidance of doubt, once Performance Stock Units vest, the Pertod of Restriction lapses as to those
units. Subject to the terms of the Plan and Sections 2(d) and 6(b) hereof, upon lapse of the Period of Restriction, the Grantee shall own
the Shares that are subject to this Agreement free of all restrictions otherwise imposed by this Agreement.

(d) Holding Requirement Following Period of Restriction. If and when the Grantee is an Officer (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) of the
Exchange Act or appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company), the Grantee may not sell, assign, pledge, exchange,
hypothecate or otherwise transfer, encumber or dispose of fifty percent (50%) of any Shares paid to the Grantee as-of the Payment Date
pursuant to Section 3 (net of any shares required to be sold, withheld or otherwise to satisfy tax withholding pursuant to Section 7(b)},
until such time as the officer’s total equity holdings satisfy the equity ownership guidelines adopted by the Compensation Committee of
the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Committee”); provided, however, that this Section 2(d) shall not prohibit the Grantee from
exchanging or otherwise disposing of Shares in connection with 2 Change in Control or other transaction in which Shares held by other
Company shareholders are required to be exchanged or otherwise disposed.

(e) Change in Control, If a Change in Control (as defined in the Plan) occurs prior to the Measurement Period Start Date of a
Measurement Period, then the Performance Stock Units eligible to be eamed for that Measurement Period will vest at Target. If a
Change in Control occurs on or after the Measurement Period Start Date of a Measurement Period and prior to the corresponding
Measurement Period End Date reflected in Exhibit A, then the Measurement Period End Date for that Measurement Period will become
the date of the Change of Control and the
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Time-Based restrictions will immediately lapse. The Performance Stock Units eligible to be earned for that Measurement Period will vest
in the amount of the Performance Stock Units eligible to be earned for that Measurement Period multiplied by the greater modifier
amount in Exhibit A of 1) Target or 2) the actual Performance Achievement modifier of that Measurement Period.

Section 3. PAYMENT OF PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS

As soon as practicable {and in no case more than 30 days) afler a Performance Stock Unit becomes vested (the “Payment
Date™), the Company will pay the vested Performance Stock Units by delivering to Grantee a number of Shares equal to the number of
Performance Stock Units that vested less any required tax withholding per Section 7(b).

Section 4. TRADING STOCK AND SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

(a) Grantee is subject to insider trading liability if Grantee is aware of material, nonpublic information when making a purchase
or sale of Company stock. In addition, if Grantee is an Officer (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) of the Exchange Act or appointed as such by
the Board of Governors of the Company), or someone designated as an “insider” by the Company, Grantee is subject to blackout
restrictions that prevent the sale of Company stock during certain time periods referred 10 as the “blackout period.” The recurring
“blackout period” begins at the end of each calendar quarter and ends two (2) rading days following the Company’s eamings release.

(b)  Prior to the Payment Date, the Grantee shall not have any rights as a sharcholder of the Company in connection with these
Performance Stock Units and the Grantee’s interest in the Performance Stock Unils shall make the Grantee only a general, unsecured
creditor of the Company, unless and until the Shares are distributed to the Grantee. Following deliver of Shares upon the Payment Date,
the Grantee shall have all rights as a sharcholder with respect to such Shares.

SECTION 5: DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS

(a) Any dividend equivalents earned with respect to Performance Stock Units which remain subject to a Period of Restriction
shall not be paid to the Grantee but shall be held by the Company;

) Such held dividend equivalents shall be subject to the same Period of Restriction as the Shares to which they relate;

(c) Any dividend equivalents held pursuant to this Section 5 which are attributable to Performance Stock Units which vest
pursuant to this Agreement shall be paid to the Grantee within 30 days of the applicable vesting date; and

(d) Dividend equivalents attributable to Performance Stock Units forfeited pursuant to Section 2 of this Agreement shall be
forfeited to the Company on the date such Shares are forfeited.

Section 6. GRANTEE OBLIGATIONS
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In consideration for the benefits provided herein, Grantee agrees to abide by the following terms:

(3} Confidential Information, Grantee has occupied a position of trust and confidence and has had access to substantial information
about Company and its affiliates and Subsidiaries, and their operations, that is confidential or not generally known in the industry
including, without limitation, information that relates to purchasing, sales, customers, marketing, and the financial positions and
financing arrangements of Company and its affiliates and subsidiaries. Grantee agrees that all such information is proprictary or
confidential, or constitutes trade secreis and is the sole property of Company and/or its affiliates and Subsidiaries, as the case may be.
Grantee will keep confidential and, ouiside the scope of Grantee’s duties and responsibilities with Company and its affiliates and
Subsidiaries, will not reproduce, copy or disclose to any other person or firm, any such information or any documents or information
relating to Company's or its affiliates’ methods, processes, customers, accounts, analyses, systems, charts, programs, procedures,
comrespondence or records, or any other documents used or owned by Company or any of its affiliates, nor will Employee advise,
discuss with or in any way assist any other person, firm or entity in obtaining or learning about any of the items described in this
section. Accordingly, at all times before and after the termination of Grantee’s employment, for any reason, Grantee will not disclose, or
permit or encourage anyone else to disclose, any such information, nor will Grantee any such information, either alene or with others,
outside the scope of Grantee's duties and responsibilities with Company and its affiliates.

(b) Noncompetition. Grantee acknowledges that he/she has acquired substantial knowledge and confidential information conceming
the business of Company and its affiliates as a result of his’/her employment. Grantee further acknowledges that the scope of business in
which Company and its affiliates and Subsidiaries are engaged as of the Grant Date is international and very competitive, Competition
by Grantee in that business after the termination of Grantee’s employment, for any reason, could severely injure Company and its
affiliates and Subsidiaries.

In this Section:

@ "Competitive Business" shall mean any firm or business that directly competes with the Company, or any of iis affiliates or
Subsidiaries, in its principal products and markets;

(i) "Restricted Territory™ shall mean any country or other geographic scope in which Company or its affiliates or Subsidiaries
conducted business in the twelve months prior to the termination of Grantee’s employment in relation to which Grantee had material

responsibilities;

(ili) "Customer” shall mean any business or person for which Company or its affiliates or Subsidiaries provided products of services
during the twelve months prior to the termination of Grantee’s employment; and

(iv) "Prospective Customer" shall mean any business or person from which Company or its affiliates or Subsidiaries actively solicited
business within the twelve (12) months prior to the termination of Grantee’s employment.

During Grantee’s employment and for a petiod of one year after the termination of Grantee’s employment, for any reason,
Grantee agrees that, in the Restricted Territory, Grantee will not, directly or indirectly; (i} become an employee, consultant, advisor,
ptincipal, partner or substantial shareholder of any Competitive Business; (ii) become an employee, consultant, advisor, principal,
partner or substantial shareholder of any Customer or Prospective Customer; or (iii) solicit or accept any business that directly competes
with the Company, its affiliates or Subsidiaries in their principal products and services from any Customer or Prospective Customer. In
addition, for a petiod of twelve (12) months after the termination of Grantee's employment, Grantee agrees not to, directly or indirectly,
on behalf of Grantee or any Competitive Business, hire or solicit for employment, partmership or engagement as an
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independent contractor any person who was an employee of Company or any affiliate or Subsidiary during the period of twelve (12)
months prior to any such improper solicitation, hire or engagement.

(¢) Grantee expressly acknowledges and agrees with the reasonableness of the terms in this Section 6 and agrees not to contest these
terms in a court of competent jurisdiction on such grounds. Grantee agrees that the Company's remedy at law for a breach of these
covenants may be inadequate and that for a breach of these covenants the Company, in addition to other remedies provided for by law,
may be entitled to an injunction, restraining order or other equitable relief prohibiting Grantee from committing or continuing to commit
any such breach. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any of these restrictions are overbroad, Grantee and Company
agree to modification of the affected restriction(s) to permit enforcement to the maximum extent allowed by law.

( d) No provision of Section 6 shall apply to restrict Grantee’s conduct, or trigger any reimbursement obligations under this
Agreement, in any jurisdiction where such provision is, on its face, unenforceable and/or void as against public policy, unless the
provision may be construed, amended, reformed or equitably modified to be enforceable and compliant with public policy, in which
case, the provision will apply as construed, amended, reformed or equitably modified.

{¢} Grantee also recognizes and acknowledges that the value of the Grant he/she is receiving under this Grant Agreement represents a
portion of Grantee’s value to the Company such that if Grantee breaches the restrictive covenant by working for or with a competitor,
thereby transferring such value to the competitor, the value of the Grant represents a reasonable measure of a portion of the monetary
damages for such breach. Thus, in the event of a breach by Grantee of any restriction contained in Section 6, such breach shall be
considered a material breach of the terms of the Amended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, and any other program, plan or
arrangement by which Grantee receives equity in the Company. Therefore, besides prospective injunctive relief, if Grantee breaches
any restrictive covenant contained in Section 6, the Company shall also be entitled to revoke any portion of the Grant for which the
testrictions have not lapsed and recover any shares (or the gross value of any shares) delivered or deliverable to Grantee pursuant to
this Grant Agreement and, pursuant to Florida law, shall be entitled to recover its costs and attorney’s fees incurred in securing relief
under this Section 6.

SECTION 7. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

(a) Acknowledgements. The Grantce hereby acknowledges that he or she has read and understands the terms of the Plan and
this Agreement, and agrees to be bound by their respective terms and conditions. The Grantee acknowledges that there may be tax
consequences upon the vesting of the Performance Stock Units or the transfer of Shares paid to the Grantee under this Agreement and
that the Grantee should consult an independent tax advisor.

(h) Tax Withholding. Pursuant to Article 20 of the Plan, the Company shall have the power and right to deduct or withhold an
amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state and local taxes (including the Grantee’s FICA taxes) required by law to be withheld with
respect to this Performance Stock Units. The Company may condition the delivery of Shares upon the Grantee’s satisfaction of such
withholding obligations. The Grantee may elect to satisfy all or part of such withholding requirement by tendering previously-owned
Shares or by having the Company withhold Shares having a Fair Market Value equa! to the minimum statutory withholding (based on
minimum statutory withholding rates for federal, statc and local tax purposes, as applicable, including the Grantee’s FICA taxes) that
could be imposed on the transaction, and, to the extent the Company so permits, amounts in e¢xcess of the minimum
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statutory withholding to the extent it would not result in additional accounting expense. Such election shall be irrevocable, made in
writing and signed by the Grantee, and shall be subject to any restrictions or limitations that the Company, in its sole discretion, deems
appropriate.

(c) Ratification of Actions. By accepting this Agreement, the Grantee and each person claiming under or through the Grantee
shall be conclusively deemed to have indicated the Grantee’s accepiance and ratification of, and consent to, any action taken under the
Plan or this Agreement and Notice of Restricted Stock Grant by the Company, the Board or the Committee,

(d) Notice. Any notice required by the terms of this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed effective upon
personal delivery or upon deposit with the United States Postal Service, by registered or certified mail, with postage and fees prepaid.
Notice shall be addressed to the General Counsel of the Company at its principal executive office and to the Grantee at the address that
he or she most recently provided in writing to the Company.

(e) Choice of Law. This Agreement and the Notice of Performance Stock Unit Grant shall be governed by, and construed in
accordance with, the laws of Florida, without regard to any conflicts of law or cheice of law rule or principle that might otherwise cause
the Plan, this Agreement or the Notice of Restricted Stock Grant to be govemned by or construed in accordance with the substantive law
of another jurisdiction.

161 Arbitration. Subject to Article 3 of the Plan, any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to the Plan, this Agreement or the
Notice of Performance Stock Unit Grant shall be settled by binding arbitration before a single arbitrator in Jacksonville, Florida and in
accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Atbitration Association. The arbitrator shall decide any issues
submitted in accordance with the provisions and commercial purposes of the Plan, this Agreement and the Notice of Performance Stock
Unit Grant, provided that all substantive questions of law shall be determined in accordance with the state and Federal laws applicable
in Florida, without regard to internal principles relating to conflict of laws.

{2 Modification or Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified or amended by written agreement executed by the
parties hereto; provided, however, that the adjustments permitted pursuant to Section 4.3 of the Plan may be made without such written
agreement.

(h) Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or
invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such
iltegal or invalid provision had not been included.

(i) References to Plan. All references to the Plan (or to a Section or Article of the Plan) shall be deemed references to the Plan
(or the Section or Article) as may be amended from time to time.

() Section 409A Compliance. To the extent applicable, it is intended that the Plan and this Agreement comply with the
requirements of Code Section 409A and any related regulations or other guidance promulgated with respect to such Section by the U.S.
Department of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Serviee and the Plan and the Agreement shall be interpreted accordingly.
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SECTION 8: NATURE OF GRANT; NO ENTITLEMENT; NO CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION.
The Grantee, in accepting the grant of Performance Stock Units, represents and acknowledges the following:

(@) The Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and may be modified, amended, suspended
or terminated by the Company at any time.

) The grant of the Performance Stock Units is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to
receive future grants of awards, or benefits in lieu of awards, even if awards have been granted repeatedly in the past.

{c) All decisions with respect to future grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Committee.

) Any Shares acquired under the Plan are extraordinary items that are outside the scope of the Grantee’s employment
agreement (if any) and are not part of the Grantee's normal or expected compensation or salary for any purpose, including, but not
limited to, calculating any severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, end of service payments, bonuses, long-service awards,
pension or retirement or welfare benefits or similar payments.

(e) Any Shares subject to the Performance Stock Units are not intended to replace any pension rights or compensation.

H The Grantee has not been induced to participate in the Plan by any expectation of employment or continued employment with
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

(g) In the event that the Grantee's employer is not the Company, the grant of the Performance Steck Units will not be interpreted
to form an employment contract or relationship with the Company and, furthermore, the grant of the Performance Stock Units will not
be interpreted to form an employment contract with the Grantee’s employer or any affiliate or Subsidiary.

(h) The future value of the underlying Shares is unknown and cannot be predicted with certainty. If the Grantee vests in the
Performance Stock Units, the value of any acquired Shares may increase or decrease. The Grantee understands that the Companies are
not responsible for any foreign exchange fluctuation between the United States Dollar and the Grantee’s local currency that may affect
the value of the underlying Shares.

(i} In consideration of the grant of the Performance Stock Units, no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise
from forfeiture of the Performance Stock Units or diminution in value of the Performance Stock Units or any of the Shares issuable
under the Performance Stock Units from termination of the Grantee’s employment by the Company or his or her employer, as
applicable (and for any reason whatsoever and whether or not in breach of contract or local labor laws) or notice to terminate
employment having been given by the Grantee or the Grantee's employer, and the Grantee irevocably releases his or her employer, the
Company and its affiliates and Subsidiaries, as applicable, from any such claim that may arise; if, notwithstanding the foregoing, any
such elaim is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to have arisen, then, by accepting this Agrecment, the Grantee shall be deemed
to have irevocably waived the Grantee’s entiflement to pursue such claim,
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SECTION 9: DATA PRIVACY.

a. The Grantee hereby explicitl.y and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of
the (?Tfin!ee's persongl data as described in this Agreement by and among, as applicable, the Grantee's employer, the Company,
Subsidiaries and affiliates for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Grantee’s participation in the
Plan.

b. The Grantce understands that the Grantee's employer, the Company and its Subsidiaries and affiliates, as applicable, hold
certain personal information about the Grantee regarding the Grantee's employment, the nature and amount of the Grantee's
compensation and the fact and conditions of the Grantee's participation in the Plan, including, but not limited to, the Grantee's name,
home address, telephone number and e-mail address, date of birth, social insurance number or other identification number, salary,
nationality, job title, any shares of stock or directorships held in the Company and its affiliates, details of all options, restricted stock
awards or units, performance units or any other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or
outstanding in the Grantee's favor, for the purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Plan (the “Data”).

c. The Grantee understands that the Data may be transferred to the Company, any Subsidiary, an affiliate and any third parties
assisting in the implementation, administration and management of the Plan, including without limitation a stock plan administrator for
on-line administration of the Plan, that these recipients may be located in the Grantee's country, or elsewhere, and that the recipient’s
country may have different data privacy laws and protections than the Grantee's country. The Grantee understands that the Grantee may
request a list with the names and addresses of any potential recipients of the Data by contacting the Grantee's local human resources
representative. The Grantee authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or other form,
for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing the Grantee's participation in the Plan, including any requisite transfer of
such Data as may be required to a broker or other third party. The Grantee understands that the Data will be held only as long as is
necessary to implement, administer and manage the Grantee's participation in the Plan. The Grantee understands that Grantee may, at
any time, view the Data, request additional information about the storage and processing of the Data, require any necessary
amendments to the Data or refuse or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by contacting in writing the Grantee's local
human rescurces representative. The Grantee understands, however, that refusing or withdrawing the Grantee's consent may affect the
Grantee's ability fo participate in the Plan. For more information on the consequences of refusal to consent or withdrawal of consent, the
Grantee understands that the Grantee may contact the Grantee's local human resources representative.
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EXHIBIT A
Vesting and Restrictions

The Performance Stock Units are subject to both a Performance Restriction and a Time-Based Restriction, 23 desctibed belew
{coliectively, the “Period of Restriction™).

Performance Restriction
1. MEASUREMENT PERIODS
Subject to the terms and conditions hereof and of the Plan, the Grant is subject to three separate measurement periods that each

begin on January 1st and each end on the last New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) trading date in December of calendar years 2018,
2019 and 2020 respectively (the “Measurement Periods™).

Measurement Measurement Period Start|Measurement Period End  |Performance Stock Units Eligible to be Earned:

Periods Date Date

Period 1 January 1, 2018 Last NYSE trading day of One-third of the Performance Stock Units granted
calendar year 2018

Period 2 January I, 2019 Last NYSE trading day of One-third of the Performance Stock Units granted
|calendar year 2019

Peried 3 January 1, 2020 Last NYSE trading day of One-third of the Performance Stock Units granted
calendar year 2020

2. PEER GROUP

For all Measurement Periods subject to this Grant, the peer group consists of the shares of the companies that are incleded in the
S&P 500 index (the “Index™) at the Measurement Period Start Date of Period 1. If the shares of a company are remoeved from the Index
due to bankruptcy or Insolvency during a Measurement Period, the shares of that company will not be removed from the peer group. If
the shares of a company in the peer group are removed from the Index due to merger, acquisition or other corporate action during a
Measurement Period, the shares of the company removed from the Index will be removed from the peer group for a Measurement
Period only where the date of removal from the Index occurs prior to the Measurement Period End Date of a Measurement Period.

3 PERFORMANCE GOALS

The amount of Performance Stock Units subject to each Measurement Period that will be eamed are conditioned on the
satisfaction of the performance goals set forth below during cach Measurement Period, which have been established by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Committee™).

(@) After the end of each Measurement Period, the Company will determine (and the Committee will certify) the achievement as
a percentage of the TSR (as defined below) of the Shares of the Company and the TSR of each company in the Peer Group.
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) After the end of gach Mfaasurement Period, the Company will determine (and the Committee will certify) the percentile of the
TSR percentage as defined in Section 3(d) of the Shares of the Company relative against the TSR of the shares of each company in the
Peer Group (the “Relative TSR Percentile Rank”).

(c) After the end of each Measurement Period, the total units earned for a Measurement Period, if any, are adjusted by applying a
modifier to the Performance Stock Units eligible to be earned for 2 Measurement Period based on the Company’s Relative TSR
Percentile Rank for the Measurement Period. If the Company’s Relative TSR Percentile Rank is at the 50t percentile of the Peer Group
(the “Target”), the modifier will be 100%. If the Company's Relative TSR Percentile Rank is at or above the 75th percentile of S&P 500
companies (the “Maximum™), the modifier will be 150%. If the Company's Relative TSR Percentile Rank is below the 25th percentile
(the “Threshold™), the modifier will be 0%. If the Relative TSR Percentile Rank is between the 25% and 75t® percentiles, the modifier
will be determined by interpolation. For the avoidance of doubt, the maximum zmount of the Performance Stock Units eligible to be
earned for cach Measurement Period may not exceed 150% of the Performance Stock Units eligible to be earned for each Measurement
Period.

Relative TSR <25th percentile =25th percentile =50th percentile >75% Percentile
Percentile Rank: of S&P 500 of S&P 500 of S&P 500 of S&P500
Modifier: 0% 50% 100% 150%

)] The calculation of TSR for 2 Measurement Period is the average daily closing price per share for the last twenty (20} trading

days of the Measurement Period (the “Ending Stock Price”) minus the average daily closing price per share for the last twenty (20)
trading days immediately preceding the Measurement Period Start Date (the “Beginning Stock Price”™), plus Reinvested Dividends, with
the resulting amount divided by the Beginning Stock Price. “Reinvested Dividends” will be calculated by multiplying (i) the aggregate
number of shares (including fractional shares) that could have been purchased during the Measurement Period had each cash dividend
paid on a single share during that perfod been irnmediately reinvested in additional shares (or fractional shares) at the closing selling
price per share on the applicable dividend payment date by (ii) the average daily closing price per share calculated for the entire
duration of the Measurement Period. Each of the foregoing amounts will be equitably adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends,
recapitalizations and other similar events affecting Shares of the Company and the shares of the companies in the Peer Group. For
companies in the Peer Group that are not on a calendar fiscal year, TSR will be measured consistent with the Company's calendar fiscal

year. For the avoidance of doubt, the TSR formula is:

TSR = (Ending Stock Price — Beginning Stock Price) + Reinvested Dividends

Beginning Stock Price

{e) Any Performance Stock Units that fail to be earned in a Measurement Period based on the Company’s Relative TSR
Percentage Rank achievement for a Measurement Period shall be immediately forfeited to the Company.

Time-Based Restrictions
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For any earned Performance Stock Units to vest of a Measurement Period, the grantee must remain continuously employed by
the Company from the Grant Date through the Grant Date anniversary that corresponds to the Measurement Period (the “Time-Based
Restrictions”), as indicated in the chart below.

Measurement Period / Anniversary Date
Period 1/ 1# Grant Date anniversary
Period 2 / 2™ Grant Date anniversary
Period 3 / 3™ Grant Date anniversary

Acceptance Date
Electronic Signature Acceptance Date
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Fidelity National Information Services, Inc.

A Georgis corporation
List of Subsidiaries
As of December 31, 2018

Exhibit21.1

Company Incorporation

11601 Roosevelt Boulevard Realty, LLC Florida

Advanced Pottfolic Technologies Ltd. Bermuda

Advanced Portfolio Technologies Ltd. England & Wales

Advanced Portfolio Technologics, Inc. Delaware

AGES Participacoes Lida. Brazil

Aircrown Limited England & Wales

Aquarius Particpacoes S.A. Brazil

Amed Forces Financial Network, LLC (50%) Flotida

Automated Securities Clearance LLC Delaware

Birza Limited Ireland

C&E Holdings Luxembourg S.a.rl. Luxembourg

Card Brazil Holdings, Inc. Georgia

Card Brazil LLC Georgia

Central Credit Services Limited Scotland

Certegy Canada Company Canada

Certegy Card Services B.V. Netherlands

Certegy Card Services Limited England & Wales

Certegy Dutch Holdings B.V. Nethedands

Certegy EziPay Ltd. England & Wales

Certegy France Limited England & Wales

Certegy SNC France

Certegy UK Holdings B.V. Netherlands

Chain Servicos e Contact Center S.A. - IV - (51% FIS and 49% Bradesco) Brazil

Chex Systems Inc. Minnesota

Clear2Pay (Beijing) Company Limited China

Clear2Pay (Shenzhen) Company Limited China

Clear2Pay Americas, Inc. Delaware

Clear2Pay APAC Pte. Ltd. Singapore

Clear2Pay APAC Pty Ltd. Australia

Clear2Pay Beijing Co. China

Clear2Pay Belgium NV Belgium

Clear2Pay China Limited Hong Kong

Clear2Pay France SAS France

Clear2Pay Germany GmbH Gemmany

Clear2Pay Integri NV Belgium

Clear2Pay Limited England & Wales

Clear2Pay Nanjing Company Limited China

Clear2Pay Nederland BV Netherlands
Belgium

Clear2Pay NV




Company

lncerpoeration

Clear2Pay Poland Sp z.0.0

Clear2Pay Scotland Holdings Limited

Clear2Pay Scotland Limited

Clear2Pay Spain 8.1

ClearPark NV,

ClearTwoPay Chile SpA

Compilete Payment Recovery Services, Inc.

CPRS Holdings, Inc.

Decalog (1991) Ltd.

Decalog (UK} Limited

Decalog N.V.,

eFunds Corporation

eFunds Holdings Limited

eFunds International Limited

eFunds IT Selutions Greup, Inc.

F.LS, Systems (Middle East) Limited

FAME Information Services (Asia Pacific) Pte Lid
Fidelity Holding Ltda.

Fidelity Information Services SARL

Fidelity Information Services (Hong Kong) Limited
Fidelity Information Services (Iberia), S.L.U.
Fidelity Information Services (Israel) Ltd.

Fidelity Information Services {South Africa) (Pty) Ltd.
Fidelity Information Services (Thailand) Limited (99.9%)

Fidelity Information Services de Mexico,S.de RL.de C.V.

Fidelity lnformation Services Front Arena AB

Fidelity Information Services GmbH

Fidelity Information Services Holdings B.V.,

Fidelity Information Services India Private Limited
Fidelity Information Services Intemational Holdings, Inc.
Fidelity Information Services Limited

Fidelity Information Services Operations GmbH

Fidelity Information Services Slovakia s.r.o.

Fidelity Information Services, LLC

Fidelity Intemational Resource Management, Inc.
Fidelity National Card Services, Inc.

Fidelity National Global Card Services, Inc.

Fidelity National Information Services (Netherlands) B.V.
Fidelity National Information Services C.V,

Fidelity National Information Services, Inc.

Fidelity National Participacoes & Servicos de Informatica Ltda,
Fidelity National Servicos de Tratamento de Documentos € Informacoes Lida.

Fidelity Participacoes Services ¢ Contact Center Ltda.

Poland

Scotland
Scotland

Spain

Belgium

Chile

Georgia
Delaware

Israel

England & Wales
Netherdands
Delaware
England & Wales
England & Wales
Delawarg

United Arab Emirates

Singapore
Brazil
France

Hong Kong
Spain

Israel

South Africa
Thailand
Mexico
Sweden
Germany
Netherlands
India
Delaware
England & Wales
Germany

Slovakia (Slovak Republic)

Arkansas
Delaware
Florida
Florida
Netherlands
Netherlands
Georgia
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil




Company Incorporation
Fidelity Servicos e Servicos Ltda. Brazil

Financial Insurance Marketing Group, Inc. Washington D.C.
FIRML,LLC Delaware
FIRMII,LLC Delaware

FIS (Benelux) N.V. Belgivm

FIS (Switzerland) SA Switzerland

FIS (Tunisia} I SARL Tunisia

FIS {Tunisia) Il SARL Tunisia

FIS Ambit Holdings Pty Ltd Australia

FIS Apex (International) Limited England & Wales
FIS Apex (UK) Limited England & Wales
FIS Asia Pacific Inc. Delaware

FIS AsiaPacRim Heldings Ltd. England & Wales
FIS Australasia Pty Ltd. Australia

FIS AvantGard LLC California

FIS Bilgisayar Hizmetleri Ticaret Limited Sirketi Turkey

FIS Brokerage & Securities Services LLC Delaware

FIS Business Integration (UK) Limited England & Wales
FIS Business Integration AG Switzerland

FIS Business Systems LLC Delaware

FIS Card Services (Thailand) Co., Lid. Thailand

FIS Card Services Caribbean, Ltd. Barbados

FIS Computer Services LLC Delaware

FIS Consulting Services (Ireland) Limited Ireland

FIS Consulting Services (UK) Limited England & Wales
FIS Data Systems Inc. Delaware

FIS Derivatives Utility Services (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore

FIS Derivatives Utility Services (UK) Limited England & Wales
FIS Derivatives Utility Services LLC Delaware

FIS DIS Inc. Delaware

FIS Energy Solutions (Ttalia) S.r.l. Italy

FIS Energy Solutions Limited England & Wales
FIS Energy Systems Inc. Delaware

FIS eProcess Intelligence LLC Delaware

FIS Financial Solutions Canada Inc. Canada

FIS Financial Strategies LLC Delaware

FIS Financial Systems (France) SAS France

FIS Financial Systems LL.C Delaware

FIS Foundation, Inc. Wisconsin
FISGCSLLC Delaware

FIS Global Business Solutions India Private Ltd. (99%) India

FIS Global Execution Services Limnited England & Wales




Company

Incorporation

FIS Global Holdings S.a.r}

FIS Global Recovery Services India Private Limited

FIS Global Solutions Philippines, Inc.
FIS Global Trading (Belgium} N.V.

FIS Global Trading (Deutschland) GmbH
FIS Global Trading (Hong Kong) Limited

FIS Global Trading (Toerica) S.L. Unigersonal

FIS Global Trading (Nederland} BV,

FIS Global Trading (Portugal), Unipesscal Lda

FIS Global Trading (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
FIS Global Trading {Suisse) SA

FIS Global Trading {UK) Limited

FIS Healthcare Trustee Limited

FIS Holdings (Cayman Islands} Ltd.

FIS Holdings (Germany) GmbH i.L.

FIS Holdings Limited

FIS Holdings Mauritius

FIS Insurance Services Limited

FIS Intemational Subsidiaries Holdings Inc.

FIS Investment Systems (UK) Limited
FIS Investment Systems LLC

FIS Investment Ventures LLC

FIS Investor Services LLC

FIS ltaly Sl

FIS iWORKS LLC

FIS iWORKS P&C (US) Inc.

FIS Japan KK

FIS Kingstar Cayman Islands Limited
FIS Kiodex LLC

FIS Korea Ltd.

FIS Management Services Mexico, S.de RL.de C.V.

FIS Management Services, LL.C
FIS Pakistan (Private) Limited

FIS Payment Solutions & Services India Private Limited

FIS Payments (Ireland) Limited

FIS Payments (UK) Limited

FIS Pensions Limited

FIS Public Sector AG Limited

FIS Reference Data Solutions LLC
FIS Risk and Security Services, Inc.
FIS Romania SRL

FIS Securities Finance LLC

FIS SG (Ttalia) S.t.l.

FIS SG Intemnational Holdings LLC

Luxembourg
India

Philippines
Belgium
Gemany

Hong Kong
Spain
Netherlands
Portugal
Singapore
Switzerland
England & Wales
England & Wales
Cayman Islands
Germany
England & Wales
Mauritius
England & Wales
Delaware
England & Wales
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

haly

Delaware
Delaware

Japan

Cayman Islands
Delaware

Korea, Republic of
Mexico

Delaware
Pakistan

India

Ireland

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Delaware
Delaware
Romania
Delaware

Italy

Delaware




Company Incorporation

FIS SG Systems Philippines Inc. Philippines

FIS Sharcholder Systems LLC Delaware

FIS Sherwood Systems (Netherlands) B.V. Netherlands

FIS Sherwood Systems Group Limited England & Wales

FIS Sherwood Systems Limited

FIS Solutions (India) Private Limited

FIS Solutions Software (India) Private Limited
FIS Solutions, LLC

FIS Systeme GmbH

FIS Systems (Hong Kong) Limited

FIS Systems {Luxembourg) S.A.

FIS Systems (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

FIS Systems (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

FIS Systems Canada Inc.

FIS Systems de Colombia 5.A.S.

FIS Systems Intemational LLC

FIS Systems Kenya Limited

FIS Systems Limited

FIS Systems NZ Limited

FIS Systems Pty Limited

FIS Systems South Africa (Pty) Limited

FIS Technology (Beijing) Co. Limited

FIS Technelegy Services (New Zealand) Limited
FIS Technology Services (Poland) Sp. z.0.0.
FIS Technology Services {Tunisia) SARL
FIS Technology Services Singapore Pte. Ltd.
FIS Treasury Systems (Europe) Limited

FIS Treasury Systems (UK) Limited

FIS UK Holdings Limited

FIS Vietnam LLC

FIS Wealth Management Services, Inc.

FIS Workflow Solutions LLC

FIS-SG Holding Corp.

FNIS Holding Brasil Lida.

FNIS Istanbul Danismanlik Limited Sirketi
GL Settle Limited

GL Trade (South Africa) (Proprietary) Limited
GL Trade Americas Inc.

GL Trade CMS (Thailand) Limited

GL Trade Software DOO

GL Trade Solutions CMS (Thailand} Limited
Glesia Sr.l.

England & Wales
India

India

Delaware
Germany

Hong Kong
Luxembourg
Malaysia
Singapore
Ontario Canada
Colombia
Delaware

Kenya

England & Wales
New Zealand
Australia

South Africa
China

New Zealand
Poland

Tunisia
Singapore
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Vietnam
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Brazil

Tutkey

England & Wales
South Africa
New York
Thailand

Serbia

Thailand

Italy




Company

Incorporation

i DLX Intemational B.V,

Information Services Luxembourg S.arl
Integrity Treasury Solutions Europe Limited
Integnity Treasury Solutions Inc.
Integrity Treasury Solutions Limited
Integrity Treasury Selutions Pty Limited
Level Four Americas LLC

Link2Gov Corp.

Metavante Corporation

Metavante Leasing, LLC

Metavante Payment Services, LLC
Metavante Technologies Limited
mFoundry, Inc.

Minorca Corporation NV

Monis Management Limited

Monis Software Inc.

Monis Software Limited

NYCE Payments Network, LLC

Oshap Software Industries Ltd.

Oshap Technologies Lid.

Panther GP 1

Panther GP 2

Panther Holdco 2, Inc.

Panther Holdco, Inc.

Panther Sub LLC

Payment Brasil Holdings Ltda.

Payment Chile 5.A. (99.99%)

Payment South America Holdings, Inc.
PayNet Payments Network, LLC

Penley, Inc.

Platform Securities Hoidings Limited
Platform Securities International Limited
Platform Securities International Nominees Limited
Platform Securities LLP

Platform Securities Nominees Limited
Platform Securities Services Limited
PREFCO VL, LLC

PT Fidelity Information Services Indonesia
PT. FIS Systems Indonesia

Reech Capital Limited

Reliance Financial Corporation
Reliance Integrated Solutions LLC
Reliance Trust Company

Netherlands
Luxembourg
England & Wales
Delaware
England & Wales
Australia
Delaware
Tennessee
Wisconsin
Florida

Delaware
England & Wales
Delaware
Curacao

England & Wales
New York
England & Wales
Delaware

Israel

Israel

Delaware
Delaware
Deilaware

North Carolina
Delaware

Brazil

Chile

Georgia
Delaware
Georgia

England & Wales
Jersey

Jersey

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Connecticut
Indonesia
Indonesia
England & Wales
Georgia
Delaware
Georgia




Company

Incerporatiocn

Sanchez Computer Associates Pty Limited
Secondco Limited

Sherwood US Holdings Limited

Solutions Plus Consulting Services Limited
SunGard Ambit {Aastralia) Pty Ltd
Sunard Data Systems Beijing Co. Ltd.
Sun(Gard Global Services (Tunisia) I

SunGard Global Trading (Australia) Pty. Ltd,

SunGard India Sales Private Limited
TP Technologies N.V.

Transax Limited

Trax N.V.

Valuelink Information Services Limited
Valutec Card Solutiens, LLC

WildCard Systems, Inc,

Australia
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Australia

China

Tunisia

Auvstralia

India

Belgium
England & Wales
Belgium
England & Wales
Delaware

Florida




Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The board of directors
Fidelity National Information Services, Inc.;

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 333-63342, 333-103266, 333-131601, 333-131602, 333-132844,333-
132845, 333-138654, 333-146080,333-157575, 333-158960, 333-162262, 333-190793, 333-206214, 333-206832, and 333-208266) on Form -8 and (No.
333-131593 and 333-212372) on Form 5-3 of Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) of our reports dated February 21,
201%, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31,2018 and 2017, the related consolidated statements of carnings,
comprehensive camings, equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes (collectively,
the “consolidated financial statements™), and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, which reports appear in
the December 31, 2018 annual report on Form 10-K of the Company.

/sf KPMG LLP

Jacksonville, Florida
February 21, 2019



Exhibic31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

L, Gary A. Norcross, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fidelity National Information Services, Inc.:

2. Based onmy kno\'wler.ige, this report does not contain any untnie statement of a matetial fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financia! information included in this report, faifly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I arc responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) and intemal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

c)

d

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control aver financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
extemnal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, asof the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent fnctions):

a)

b}

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's intemal
control over financial reporting.

Date: Febmary 21,2019 By: /s/ GARY A NORCROSS

Gary A. Norcross
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

1, James W. Woodall, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fidelity National Information Services, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

1epon;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this repont, fairly present in all matenal respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15{¢)) and intemal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
[5(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b}

<)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its conselidated subsidiades, is made known to us by others within
those entitics, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemnal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepatation of financial statements for
extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this repont based on such evaluation; and
disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s intermnal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and Lhave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b}

all significant deficiencies and materia! weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registmni's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's intemal
control gver financial reporting.

Date: February 21,2019 By: /s/James W. Woodall

James W. Woodall

Corporate Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC FINANCIAL REFORTS PURSUANT TO 18 US.C, §1350

The undersigned hereby centifies that he is the duly appointed and acting Chief Executive Officer of Fidelity National Information Services, Inc., a Georgia
corporation (the “Company”™), and hereby further certifies as follows.

1. The periodic report containing financial statements to which this certificate is an exhibit fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

2. The information contained in the periodic report to which this certificate is an exhibit fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

In witness whereof, the undersigned has executed and delivered this certificate as of the date set forth opposite his signature below.

Date: Febmary 21,2019 By: /s/ GARY A. NORCROSS

Gary A. Norcross
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC FINANCIAL REPORTS PURSUANT TO 18 US.C. §1350

The undersigned hereby certifies that he is the duly appointed and acting Chief Financial Officer of Fidelity National Information Services, Inc., a Georgia
corporation (the “Company”}, and hereby further certifies as follows.

1. The periodic report containing financial statements to which this centifieate is an exhibit fully complies with the requirements of Soction 13{a) ar
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

2. The information contained in the periodic report to which this certificate is an exhibit fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

In witness whereof, the undersigned has executed and delivered this certificate as of the date set forth opposite his signature below.

Date: Febmary 21,2019 By: /s/James W. Woodall
James W. Woodall
ChiefFinancial Officer




